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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER

December 3, 2002

The Honorable Mayor Willie L. Brown, Jr.

The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
City and County of San Francisco

San Francisco, California

Ladies and Gentlemen:

| am pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City and County of San
Francisco, California (the City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 with the Independent Auditors’
Report, submitted in compliance with City Charter Sections 2.115 and 3.105 and California Government
Code Sections 25250 and 25253. The CAFR has been prepared by the Controller's Office in conformance
with the principles and standards for financial reporting set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and
fairess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. | believe that the data, as
presented, is accurate in all material respects; that its presentation fairly shows the financial position and
the results of the City’s operations as measured by the financial activity of its various funds; and that the
included disclosures will provide the reader with an understanding of the City’s financial affairs.

This is the second year the City prepares the CAFR using the new financial reporting requirements as
prescribed by the GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion
and Analysis - for State and Local Governments (GASB 34). This GASB Statement requires that
management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the Basic Financial
Statements in the form of a Management's Discussion & Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Our CAFR is divided into the following sections:

The Introductory Section includes information about the organizational structure of the City, the City’s
economy, major initiatives, status of City services, and cash management.

The Financial Section is prepared in accordance with the GASB 34 requirements by including the MD&A,
the Basic Financial Statements including notes and the Required Supplementary Information. The Basic
Financial Statements include the government-wide financial statements that present an overview of the
City's entire financial operations and the fund financial statements that present the financial information of
each of the City’s major funds, as well as non-major governmental, fiduciary, and other funds. Also
included in this section is the Independent Auditors’ Report on the basic financial statements.

The Statistical Section includes tables containing historical financial data, debt statistics, and
miscellaneous social and economic data of the City that are of interest to potential investors in our bonds
and to other readers. The data includes ten—year revenue and expenditure information on an inflation-
adjusted basis.

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The City and County of San Francisco (City), established by Charter in 1850, is a legal subdivision of the
State of California with the governmental powers of both a city and a county under California law. The
City's powers are exercised through a Board of Supervisors serving as the legislative authority, and a
Mayor and other independent elected officials serving as the executive authority. The services provided by
the City include public protection, public transportation, construction and maintenance of all public facilities,
water, parks, public health systems, social services, planning, tax collection, and many others.

i



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER

This CAFR includes the financial activities of the primary government, which encompasses several
enterprise activities, as well as all of its component units. Component units include legally separate entities
for which the primary government is financially accountable and that have substantially the same board as
the City or provide services entirely to the City. For reporting purposes the operations of the San Francisco
County Transportation Authority, the San Francisco Parking Authority, and the San Francisco Finance
Corporation, are blended with the City. In addition, there are two component units, the San Francisco
Redevelopment Agency and the Treasure Island Development Authority, which are legally separate entities
but which have some financial interdependency with the City. For reporting purposes these entities are
shown as discretely presented component units.

SAN FRANCISCO’S GOVERNMENT, ECONOMY AND OUTLOOK

San Francisco is the economic and cultural hub of the Bay Area, a
metropolitan region with more than 6.78 million residents in nine counties.
The population of the City has grown by approximately 7.3 percent in the
past ten years, to 776,733." The year 2000 federal census once again
highlights San Francisco’s racial and ethnic diversity. All minority groups
combined represent just over 56 percent of the population. No single
racial or ethnic group by itself represents a majority of the population.”

San Francisco is a charter city, exercising the powers and duties of both a city and county. The elected
Mayor of San Francisco serves as the executive, and appoints the heads of most city departments. Many
departments are also advised by Commissions or Boards whose members are appointed either by the
Mayor, or, in some cases, by a combination of the Mayor, the Board of Supervisors, and other elected
officials. Elected officials include the Assessor-Recorder, City Attorney, District Attorney, Public Defender,
Treasurer, and Sheriff. In November 2000, the eleven members of the Board of Supervisors were elected
by district for the first time since the 1970s. In order to provide for staggered terms of office on the Board of
Supervisors an election for seats of the City’s even-numbered supervisorial districts was conducted in
November 2002, and subsequent run-off elections are being heid in two districts in December 2002.

Overall, nearly 50,000 jobs were created in San Francisco during the 1990s expansion, for an aggregate
increase of 13%." Unemployment dropped from 7 percent in 1993 to a low of 2.8 percent in 2000, among
the lowest in the state. However, the overall economic slowdown, compounded by the impact of the events
of September 11" 2001, has affected the City’s economy since early 2001 and is expected to continue to
do so during the next fiscal year. The technology sector, including in particular “dot-com” companies, has
experienced significant job losses. In addition, losses in financial services, travel, and tourism have
impacted many professional and service workers. Job losses in 2001 pushed the unemployment rate to a
peak of 7.3 percent in January 2002. By June of 2002, the close of the fiscal year, San Francisco’s
unemployment rate stood at 7.1 percent, slightly worse than that of California as a whole with 6.6 percent.
San Francisco's economic base continues to be dominated by the services sector, which provides
approximately 41 percent of all jobs. Retail employs the next largest portion, with 16 percent, followed by
finance, insurance and real estate businesses, with 12 percent of those working in the City."

Downtown office vacancy rates, which decreased steadily for over eight years, dropping below one percent
at certain points, have reversed and risen in each of the last two fiscal years. Surveys show the vacancy
rate rising steadily to 15 percent halfway through the fiscal year and to 20 percent by June 2002. Asking
prices for office space rents have also declined by as much as 60 percent, from an average of $80 per
square foot in July of 2000, to around $30 per square foot by June 2002. Analysts now report that during

i
i
it

iv

Source: California Department of Finance

Source: United States Census

Source: California Department of Finance

Source: California Employment Development Department

il



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER

the July to September period of 2002, rents have leveled off, vacancy rates have begun o drop, and
ieasing activity has increased, indicating that an expected recovery in the market may have begun.”

Despite these weaknesses in areas of the economy, property values in San Francisco remain among the
highest in the nation. Regional housing prices, after dipping for periods in 2001, have climbed again, and
San Francisco and the greater Bay Area’s ongoing housing shortage keeps upward pressure on the City's
residential real estate market. Despite steady construction, including 3,273 new units of housing permitted
during fiscal year 2002, San Francisco’s shortage persists. The gap between housing demand and supply
has also contributed to a worsening affordability gap in the City, with homeownership remaining out of
reach for most residents and workers in the City. As of June 2002, the median price for an average single
family home in San Francisco had climbed slightly from the prior year and stood at $567,000, a level that
was affordable by less than 14 percent of the population.”  Affordable housing continues to be built and
developed in the City, funded in part by a $100 million general obligation bond issue approved by the volers
in 1996. During the November 2002 election, however, voters rejected an additional $250 million bond
authorization for affordable housing. Housing is and will remain a critical challenge for the City's
policymakers, planners, employers, and residents.

Reflecting the continued demand and activity in real estate, the City's property tax revenue, the single
largest tax revenue for the City’s general fund, has grown in some cases by as much as 12 percent
annually over the last five years, reflecting extraordinary growth in property values and prices during the
time period. Helped by falling interest rates, property tax revenues overall grew by approximately $68.9
million during the fiscal year, an increase of nine percent from the prior fiscal year. ~ Trends in other
sources of local tax revenue were more typical of the current downturn in the business cycle, with sales,
parking, and other local taxes decreasing by between eight and 24 percent. Hote! taxes showed among
the most severe decline, dropping 36 percent during the fiscal year—a loss of aimost $70 million in funding
for local cultural institutions and general City services.

The decrease in hotel tax collections experienced by the City is further
indicative of an overall decline in travel and tourism to San Francisco. The
Convention and Visitors Bureau estimates that 15.7 million people visited San
Francisco in calendar year 2001, down over nine percent from the year before.
Total visitor spending in the City dropped to approximately $6.5 billion or nearly
15 percent, down from $7.6 billion during 2000." Hotel occcupancy rates during
the 2001-2002 fiscal year averaged 63.5 percent, down from a range of 77 to
80 percent occupancy rates in the last three fiscal years. Occupancy rates for
fiscal year 2002-2003 are currently projected to improve somewhat, returning to
the area of 70 percent—ievels commensurate with a gradual recovery and a
strengthening 2003 convention season. "

At San Francisco International Airport (SFO), losses in business travel which were aiready apparent in the
spring of 2001, and the drops in air traffic of all kinds following September 11, have reduced passenger
traffic by 13 percent and cargo tonnage by 8.6 percent from the prior year. SFO's transfer of concession
revenues to the City general fund, budgeted at $25 million for the fiscal year, was reduced during the year
by $7.3 million, and is projected to be reduced for the next fiscal year and perhaps beyond.

While the economic coniraction in the nation and the Bay Area has affected the City’s economy, San
Francisco’s overall economic environment is built upon a solid foundation of business and indusiry
diversification. San Francisco’s economic base includes national and giobal companies and locaily owned
smali businesses. The City is a financial and banking center of the West, with the Pacific Stock Exchange,
Wells Fargo Bank, and Charles Schwab among others headquartered here. The City has large employers
ranging from Providian Financial to The Gap, yet over 85 percent of businesses empioy fewer than twenty

Vi
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people. * The City's economy overall has demonstrated sustained growth since the severe recession of
the early 1990s.
MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ACHEIVEMENTS

A number of significant initiatives, outlined below, are underway in San Francisco which should have a
positive effect on the City’s economic health and its services to residents and businesses.

Health and Safety Projects, Programs, and Systems

The City is in the process of designing and constructing a new campus on the site of the current Laguna
Honda Hospital, including new facilities as well as a rebuild of the existing hospital. The project is financed
by general obligation bonds, with tobacco settlement funds and supplemental Medicaid payments also
available to reduce the property tax burden of the bond issue. The new Laguna Honda will provide housing
and a complete continuum of long-term healthcare services, with all facilities built to modern design,
environmental, seismic, and technological standards. The project's Environmental Impact Reports and
community consultation processes were substantially completed in 2002. Relocation of infrastructure and
other preparatory work has begun. Site preparation work will begin in 2003 and construction on the new
facilities will begin in early 2004. Community outreach processes will continue throughout construction of
the project.

San Francisco's Public Health and Human Services departments are statewide leaders in providing
prevention, emergency intervention, and supportive services to homeless, very low income, and other at-
risk populations. Working with community-based organizations, these departments also provide substance
abuse, mental heaith, and housing services designed to improve the economic and health status of
vulnerable populations. For example, since 1999, the City has developed over 1,200 units of supportive
housing targeted to chronically homeless persons and those with disabilities. Combinations of these and
other programs have increased the City’s success rates in helping clients access State and Federal health
and nutrition programs for which they are eligible, obtain employment, increase income, and stabilize their
housing.

An innovative design-build deal has been completed, and ground broken, for the construction of a new jail
at the City’s existing jail site in San Bruno. The new facility is being built by a private developer, and
operated by the City under a financing and lease-back plan which will eventually transfer ownership to the
public. San Francisco has been working to reduce overcrowding and improve conditions at the jails—the
new facility means the achievement of many of the City’s goals in this area. In other recent public safety
improvements, the Police company which serves one of the City’s most densely populated areas, the
Tenderloin, was relocated in October 2000 from an inadequate basement site to a newly renovated station
house. The new site includes security improvements as well as facilities to allow the San Francisco Police
Department to better serve the population of primarily immigrant and low-income families in the area.
Finally, in February 2002, San Francisco’'s Emergency Communications system tested and then began
receiving 911 calls from most wireless phones directly, rather than through the California Highway Patrol,
becoming the first city or county in California to do so under a new State law authorizing this service.

Convention, Cultural and Recreational Facilities

The City’s Moscone Convention Center has nearly completed the 300,000 square foot expansion of its
exhibit and meeting space at Moscone West. The new, free-standing facility, located at Fourth and Howard
Streets one half block west of the existing Convention Center, is scheduled to open in 2003 and events are
currently being booked. Meeting Professionals International will be the first group to hoid a convention at
the facility, with 3,000 members scheduled to attend their World Education Congress in August of 2003.

ix

Source: California Department of Finance
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in the same neighborhood as the Moscone Center and as Yerba Buena Gardens with its arts spaces and
commercial facilities, the City’s cultural institutions are being developed, with the Mexican, African-
American, and Jewish Museums each in the midst of major re-design or renovation projects. In the Civic
Center, construction of the new Asian Art Museum in the City’s former Main Library building is nearing
completion and the collection is being prepared for a March 2003 re-opening. The new Asian Art Museum
has been financed with a combination of $51 million of voter-approved bonds and $69 million in private
donations and greatly increases the collections, special shows and programming which will be available to
the public. The City’s DeYoung museum, under a campaign funded entirely by private donations, razed the
seismically unsafe portions of its buildings in 2002 and is preparing the site for the construction of the new
museum, scheduled for completion in 2005. A $105.9 million bond program approved by the voters {o
improve San Francisco’s branch libraries continued its work in 2002, with site acquisition and planning now
underway at the Glen Park, Mission Bay, Ingleside, Visitacion Valley and Poricia sites. The Program has
also purchased a site for a Library support service center, and is engaged in preliminary design at the
Excelsior, Richmond, Noe Valley, Marina, and Parkside sites.

Recreational facilities and public park projects which were completed
over the last year include improvements to Coit Tower and Pioneer
Park in the North Beach area, renovation of the historic carousel at
Golden Gate Park, improvements at the San Francisco Zoo including
a new Education Center, Animal Resource Center and public
entrance and parking lot, and completion of the new Martin Luther
King Pool in the Hunter's Point neighborhood. In addition, the City
began the reconstruction of the unique glass Conservatory of
Flowers in Golden Gate Park. With these and other projects, the City is engaged in a major capital
overhaul of its parks system which was fully underway for the first time during the 2002 fiscal year. General
obligation bonds, the City’s property-tax supported Open Space fund, grants and private donations will be
combined to carry out improvements at over 200 sites citywide over the next ten years. Finally, in July of
2002, the redesigned Union Square held its grand opening after an 18-month renovation. The new Union
Square includes a café, the half-price theater ticket booth, an open stage platform for performances, grassy
terraces, palm trees, and granite paving structures throughout, making new public open space and seating
available in the heart of the downtown shopping district.

Housing, Economic Development. and Transportation Projects

Over a projected 20 year period in total, the former warehouses and rail yards in San Francisco’'s Mission
Bay area in the southeast part of the City are being fransformed into a new neighborhood of housing,
mixed-use buildings, retail, and medical and technology development. Work on the residential, retail, and
industrial projects in Mission Bay area is proceeding on schedule. Whiie office construction in the region is
fargely on hold due to softness in that market, developers are currently building over 1,000 apartment units
along the King Street corridor near Pacific Bell Park and in other areas. The new medical research facility
being built by the University of California at San Francisco is nearly compiete.

The final $40 million in bonds available under the City’s $100 million voter-approved Affordable Housing
and Home Ownership Bond Program was issued in July 2001, Notices of Funding Availabiiity were issued
in the fall of 2001, and the process for committing these monies was underway during the 2002 fiscal year.
The Program provides for the development of rental housing and for downpayment assistance to first-time
homebuyers. As of August 2002, the City had funded $73 million in loans or grants for the development of
rental housing, with the program on frack to develop approximately 2,200 units of housing and beds in
group housing. The Downpayment Assistance Loan Program funded by the bonds has assisted
approximately 250 low and moderate-income householids o become first time homebuyers. With a current
median household income of about $55,000, participants in the program have few other opportunities to
become homeowners in San Francisco, and the program has been an essential tool o allow these families
{o remain in the City.

During fiscal year 2001-2002, affordable housing deveiopment continued city-wide. Significant projects
completing construction during the year include Church Street Apartments (93 units of family rental
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on the former military base, with renovation of 84 units of housing for homeless families getting underway in
April 2002.

In recent years the City has also replaced outdated public housing projects including unsafe high-rises with
new buildings better designed for families. Bernal Dwellings, a severely distressed pubiic housing high-rise
building located in the Mission District, was replaced with 160 townhouses and flats, completed in
September 2001. In December 2001, an additional 193 townhouses and flats were completed at Yerba
Buena Plaza East, a former high-rise apartment building in the Western Addition. in October of 2002,
ground breaking was held for the new North Beach Place housing developments, which wili be the largest
mixed-use, mixed-income development of its kind in California, combining affordable apartments with retall
space. In addition to the 229 public housing units being replaced, 112 units of housing for low-income
families and seniors will be added to the site.

improving the City and the Bay Area’s capacity to move people and goods has long been recognized as a
key challenge for the region and transit projects are underway throughout the nine-county area tc meet the
need. The Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) system is adding service both in the east bay and the
peninsula, with four new BART stations to the south of the City recently completed or under construction,
including one at the San Francisco International Airport scheduled o open in 2003.

San Francisco international Airport (SFO}, including the new International Compiex with a new terminal,
parking garages, and an improved airport roadway system opened just under two years ago, serves as the
key connection between the Bay Area, national, and international economies, receiving 54 percent of the
region’s air traffic and 94 percent of international traffic. The recent decreases in passenger and freight
traffic using SFO affected the current fiscal year and beyond, however projections of long-term demand for
the airport's new facilities are robust. The new BART connection will provide a direct rail line from San
Francisco and the East Bay to the Airport for the first time, and a light rail “pecple mover” system is being
built within the airport.

Groundbreaking for Phase 1 of the San Francisco Municipal Railway’s (Muni) new Third Street light rail line
was held in May of 2002 and construction is now underway. The project will eventually connect the
communities along Third Street and in the Bayshore area with Mission Bay, South of Market, Downtown,
and Chinatown. Phase 1 extends Muni service from 4" and King Streets to the Bayshore Caitrain station,
with over five miles of track and 19 stations. Phase 2, which includes a new central subway extending from
the San Francisco Caltrain Station (Caitrain provides rail service from the peninsula cities south of San
Francisco) to Chinatown, is currently in the design consultant selection
stage. When completed this major increase in service will improve air
quality, reduce downtown traffic congestion, increase connections with
BART and Calirain, and support economic revitalization in the
southeast part of the city. Over 95 percent of the Phase 1 funding for
the Third Street Light rail project comes from local sales tax funds. In
the last year, Muni has alsc completed the replacement of all aging
cars on the Metro lines with new Breda vehicles and rolled out 196 new
buses including 80 zero emission electric vehicles and two aliernative
fuel vehicles.

Projects to improve parking options in San Francisco are also in progress. A new North Beach Parking
garage was completed in February 2002, providing much needed parking in an area that is both densely
popuiated and home to many of the City's restaurants, clubs and tourist sites. Parking meters throughout
the City are being updated with a pian for new digital technology that accommodates coins and debit cards.
instaliation of the new mefers began in 2002 and is expected fo improve parking management in
commercial areas, reduce theft, and lower the maintenance costs to the City.

vi
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Status of City Services

in the spring of 2002, the City, through the Controller's Office, conducted its seventh annual Citizen Survey.
A total of 1,565 San Franciscans were surveyed, providing their opinions of recreation programs and parks,
libraries, services for children and youth, public transportation (MUNI), streets, public safety and general
City performance.

The 2002 survey results indicated that:

« San Franciscans generally felt safer walking alone in their neighborhoods and in the
downtown than in previous years. A higher percentage of respondents also reported
feeling safe crossing the street.

o Residents of the southeastern part of San Francisco feel the least safe in their
neighborhoods, and experience more crime than residents of other areas of the City.

e MUNI's ratings were better than or equal to any year since survey data has been
collected. As in other years, routes and fares received the most favorable ratings,
while the MUN! transit system’s cleanliness and timeliness/reliability were rated least

favorably.

« Survey respondents reported visiting the City's libraries more frequently than in the
previous year, and continued to rate library services favorably.

e Two-thirds of respondents felt that the children they knew in San Francisco received
good health care, but fewer than half said that children were getting a good
education.

e White respondents were more likely than those in other ethnic/racial groups to have
children attending private schools and using private health care providers.

e 45 percent of respondents rated the cleanliness of the streets in their neighborhood
as good or very good, whereas only 25 percent rated the cleanliness of City streets
in general as good or very good.

e Almost half of survey respondents chose "fair" in assessing how well local

government provides services. Opinions of services provided for children and youth
were less favorable than those for services in general.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Controls

In developing and evaluating the City's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of
internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management. All internal control evaluations occur within the above
framework. We believe that the City’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and
provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

vii
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Budgetary Process

The City’s budget is a detailed operating plan, which identifies estimated costs and results in relation to
estimated revenues. The budget includes: (1) the programs, projects, services, and activities to be carried
on during the fiscal year; (2) the estimated revenue available to finance the operating plan; and (3) the
estimated spending requirements of the operating plan. The budget represents a process where policy
decisions by the Mayor and Board of Supervisors are made, implemented, and controlled. Note 2(c) to the
basic financial statements summarizes the budgetary roles of various City officials and the timetable for
their various budgetary actions according to the City Charter.

Pension Trust Fund Operations

The City has a defined benefit retirement plan in which a substantial majority of full-time employees
participate. The plan’s most recent actuarial calculations, as of July 1, 2001, estimate the plan is 129%
funded.

Cash Management

The City’s pooled deposits and investments are invested pursuant to policy established by the Treasurer
working with the City’s Treasury Oversight Committee. The City's investment policy seeks the preservation
of capital, liquidity and vyield, in that order of priority. The policy addresses soundness of financial
institutions holding our assets and the types of investments permitted by the California Government Code.
The earned yield for the fiscal year 2001-02 was 4.139%. The Employees’ Retirement System and the
Redevelopment Agency deposits and investments are maintained outside the City Treasury and follow
policies established by their respective governing boards.

Risk Management

With certain exceptions, it is the policy of the City not to purchase commercial insurance against property or
liability risks. Instead, the City believes it is more economical to manage its risks internally and set aside
funds as needed for estimated current claim settlements and unfavorable judgments through annual
appropriations and supplemental appropriations. The City maintains limited coverage for certain facilities,
primarily property of the San Francisco International Airport, Port of San Francisco, Municipal Railway,
Hetch Hetchy, Water Department, Moscone Convention Center and art at City-owned museums.
Additionally, various types of liability insurance coverage are maintained by the City for the Port and the
Airport. The City is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims. Claims payment history (experience)
and payroll costs (exposure) are considered when calculating the claims liabilities and workers’
compensation outstanding liabilities for each department. The City’'s insurance/self-insurance program is
reviewed annually in the budget process. The claims liabilities and workers’ compensation liabilities
reported on the balance sheet have been actuarially determined and include an estimate of incurred but not
reported losses.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The City’s Charter requires an annual audit of the Controller's records. These records, represented in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, have been audited by a consortium headed by the nationally
recognized certified public accounting firm, KPMG LLP. The consortium also includes Calvin Louie CPA
(representing a separate consortium known as Associated Asian CPA Firms), Lamorena and Chang CPAs,
Yano and Associates, and Rodriguez, Perez, Deigado & Co. CPAs. The various enterprise funds, the
Health Service System, the Employees’ Retirement System, the San Francisco County Transportation
Authority and the Redevelopment Agency have been separately audited. The Independent Auditors’
Report on our current financial statements is presented in the Financial Section.
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. This was the twentieth consecutive year
(fiscal years ended June 30, 1982 — 2001) that the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR. The CAFR must satisfy both Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and
applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues
to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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Three Embarcadero Center
San Francisco, CA 94111

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mayor Willie L. Brown, Jr.
The Honorable Members of the Board of Supervisors
City and County of San Francisco, California:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City and County of San Francisco, California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2002, which
collectively comprise of the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. The prior year partial and summarized comparative information has been
derived from the City’s 2001 financial statements and, in our report dated January 22, 2002, we expressed unqualified
opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the City and County of San
Francisco, California, as of June 30, 2002, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

The management’s discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress, on pages 2 through 19 and 118,
respectively, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of
the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole. The introductory section and statistical
tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

KPMe LLP

November 27, 2002

KPMG LLP. KPMG LI.P. a U.S. limited liability partnership, is
a membar of KPMG International a Swiss association
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City and County of San Francisco’s (the City) Comprehensive Annual F inancial Report
presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2002. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

= The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $5.7 billion (net
assets). Of this amount, $438 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

= The government’s total net assets increased by $120 million, or just over two percent, during the fiscal
year. The increase is largely attributable to acquisition of capital assets in certain of the government’s
business enterprises and to scheduled retirement of debt faster than depreciation.

= As of June 30, 2002, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1.25
billion. Approximately 23 percent of this total amount, $283 million, is unreserved fund balance available
for spending at the government’s discretion within the purposes specified for the City’s funds.

= At the close of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $136.7 million or seven
percent of total general fund expenditures of $1.9 billion.

»  The City’s total long-term debt increased by $335 million, approximately 4.5 percent, during the fiscal
year. Key factors in this increase were issuances of $140 million in revenue bonds by the Water
Department, $61 million in settlement obligation bonds issued to provide for refunds under a portion of the
City’s business tax which was repealed in fiscal year 2001, and $37 million in certificates of participation
for the purchase of a building at 30 Van Ness Avenue for City offices. The City also issued $988 million in
refunding bonds and certificates during the year to take advantage of favorable interest rates in the current
market and to retire outstanding commercial paper primarily held by San Francisco International Airport
and other enterprises.

» The City’s revenues from local sources including hotel, sales, and business tax showed significant drops
from budget estimates during fiscal year 2002. In addition, concession and fee revenues collected by San
Francisco International Airport dropped, and slowing business and construction activity decreased other
fees and charges collected by the City. These factors were evaluated early in fiscal year 2002, and the City
took measures to cut spending as a resuit. The lowered revenues have also affected both the estimated
unreserved fund balance and the operating revenues available to the City in the fiscal year ending June 30,
2003. City management will monitor revenue streams and control expenditures and has already restricted
expenditures to budget for a general fund revenue decrease currently estimated at $20 million during fiscal
year 2003.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.
The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) Government-wide financial statements,
(2) Fund financial statements, and (3) Notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. These various elements
of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report are related as shown in the graphic on the following page:
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The following figure summarizes the major features of the financial statements. The overview section
below also describes the structure and contents of each of the statements in more detail.

Government- Fund Financial Statements
wide Statement Governmental IProprietary Fiduciary
Scope Entire entity (except he day-to-day operating The day-to-day operating  [Instances in which the City
fiduciary funds) activities of the City for basic jactivities of the City for administers resources on
lgovernmental services business-type enterprises  behalf of others, such as

lemployee benefits

Accounting [Accrual accounting and _ |Modified accrual and current [Accrual accounting and [Accrual accounting and
basis and leconomic resources focus [financial resources leconomic resources focus  feconomic resources focus;
measurement imeasurement focus lexcept agency funds do not
focus have measurement focus
Type of asset  |All assets and liabilities, [Current assets and liabilities |All assets and liabilities, IAll assets held in a trustee or,
and liability  oth financial and capital, {that come due during the year both financial and capital, [agency capacity for others
information short-term and long-term  {or soon thereafter; capital short-term and long-term  fand all liabilities

assets and long-term

liabilities

Type of inflow |All revenues and expenses [Revenues for which cash is [All revenues and expenses |All additions and deductions
and outflow during year, regardless of [received during the year or  |during year, regardless of  [during the year, regardless
information when cash is received or  jsoon thereafter; expenditures [when cash is received or  jof when cash is received or
paid when goods or services have [paid paid

been received and the related
liability is due and payable

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether or not the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as revenues pertaining
to uncollected taxes and expenses pertaining to earned but unused vacation and sick leave.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include public protection, public works, transportation and
commerce, human welfare and neighborhood development, community health, culture and recreation, general
administration and finance, and general city responsibilities. The business-type activities of the City include an
airport, port, public transit system, water and power operations, an acute care hospital, a long-term care hospital,
sewer operations, and various parking facilities.



The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government),
but also a legally separate redevelopment agency, the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (RDA) and a
legally separate development authority, the Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA), for which the City
is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the
financial information presented for the primary government. Included within the governmental activities of the
government-wide financial statements are the operations of the San Francisco County Transportation Authority,
San Francisco Finance Corporation, and San Francisco Parking Authority. Although legally separate from the
City, these component units are blended with the primary government because of their governance or financial
relationships to the City.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements are designed to report information about groupings of related accounts which are
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City,
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into the following three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fidueiary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements—i.e. most of the
City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds. These statements, however, focus on (1) how
cash and other financial assets can readily be converted to available resources and (2) the balances left
at year-end that are available for spending. Such information may be useful in determining what
financial resources are available in the near future to finance the City’s programs.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains several individual governmental funds organized according to their type (special
revenue, debt service, capital projects and permanent funds). Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, which is considered to be a major fund. Data from
the remaining governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
fund data for each of the non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annually appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are generally used to account for services for which the City
charges customers—either outside customers, or internal units or departments of the City. Proprietary
funds provide the same type of information as shown in the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The City maintains the following two types of proprietary funds:

e Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in
the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the
operations of the San Francisco International Airport (Airport), Port of San Francisco (Port),



Water Department, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power (Hetch Hetchy), Municipal Railway (Mumi),
Laguna Honda Hospital, General Hospital Medical Center, Clean Water Program (Clean Water),
and various nonprofit parking facilities, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City.

e Internal Service funds are used to report activities that provide supplies and services for certain
City programs and activities. The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet of
vehicles, management information services, printing and mail services, and, beginning in fiscal
year 2002, for lease-purchases of equipment by the San Francisco Finance Corporation. Because
these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have
been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the City. The City employees’ pension and health plans, the external portion of the Treasurer’s
Office investment pool, and the agency funds are reported under the fiduciary funds. Since the
resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs, they are not reflected in
the government-wide financial statements. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that
used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits
to its employees.

Combining Statements

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds, internal service
funds, and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on
pensions.



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

This is the second year that the City has presented its financial statements under the new reporting model
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) — for State and Local Governments.
Because this reporting model changed significantly both the recording and presentation of financial data, the
City’s CAFR for fiscal year 2001 did not provide comparative information in its MD&A. This year marks the
first time that two years of financial information in the GASB 34 format are available. In addition, adjustments
have been made to some prior year balances to conform to current year presentation formats.

Net Assets
June 30, 2002 (in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Assets:
Current and other assets................. $ 1,806,132 $ 2,099,581 $ 2,158,248 § 2,040,145 $ 3,964,380 $ 4,139,726
Capital @ssets...............ccocovveeniine 2,041,451 1,821,115 8,185,824 7,782,633 10,227,275 9,603,748

Total assets.........cc.cooveeviennne 3,847,583 3,920,696 10,344,072 9,822,778 14,191,655 13,743,474
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities ocutstanding...... 1,877,327 1,844,956 5,392,934 4,725,413 7,270,261 6,570,369
Other liabilities.............ccccvviiennne 495,235 617,410 721,128 970,662 1,216,363 1,588,072

Total liabilities.................cce.o.. 2,372,562 2,462,366 6,114,062 5,696,075 8,486,624 8,158,441
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt........................ 887,667 779,698 3,115,392 2,970,198 4,003,059 3,749,896

Restricted.............oocoviiii 717,879 724,034 546,019 577,830 1,263,898 1,301,864
Unrestricted.................o.coviiiiin (130,525) (45,402) 568,599 578,675 438,074 533,273

Total net assets....................... $ 1,475,021 $ 1,458,330 $ 4,230,010 $ 4,126,703 $ 5705031 $ 5,585,033

Analysis of Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. For the City,
assets exceeded liabilities by $5.7 billion at the close of the current fiscal year.

The largest portion of the City’s net assets (70 percent) reflects its investment of $4 billion in capital assets (e.g.
land, buildings, and equipment), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be liquidated for these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets, $1.3 billion (22 percent) represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets, $438 million
(eight percent) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net
assets for the government as a whole, as well as for the business-type activities. For the governmental



activities, unrestricted net assets have a deficit of $130.5 million related in part to $128 million in debt from
general obligation bonds for the San Francisco Unified School District which is recorded with no corresponding
assets. This deficit has also increased from the comparable figure of $45.4 million in 2001 due to use of
reserves to balance the budget.

Changes in Net Assets
June 30, 2002 (in thousands)
Governmental Business-type
activities activities Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for Services..............cooeveeeeenen. $ 348,898 $ 344,721 $ 1,479,232 $ 1,408,121 $ 1828130 $ 1,752,842
Operating grants and contributions.. 781,767 763,863 282,059 260,520 1,063,826 1,024,383
Capital grants and contributions.... 58,394 22,619 251,747 335,520 310,141 358,139
General revenues:
Property taxes........c.ccoeeveeininic e 697,703 628,846 - - 697,703 628,846
Business taxes... 274,848 277,822 - - 274,848 277,822
Other local taxes 444,590 581,480 - - 444,590 581,480
Interest and investment income. 70,597 81,084 63,530 96,493 134,127 177,577
Other........coocee. 115,943 115,695 85,425 28,779 201,368 144,474
Total revenues...........occeececceccnenne. 2,792,740 2,816,130 2,161,993 2,129,433 4,954,733 4,945,563
Expenses
Public protection..........ccc.cccocoveiiine $ 717552 $ 688,994 - - 717,552 688,994
Public works, transportation
and COMMErce..........ccooovvnevenerenen. 317,778 300,355 - - 317,778 300,355
Human welfare and
neighborhood development. 586,188 499,096 - - 586,188 499,096
Community health.................. 493,856 455,101 - - 493,856 455,101
Culture and recreation 246,620 229,721 - - 246,620 229,721
General administration and finance....... 156,770 153,742 - - 156,770 153,742
General City responsibilities.................. 55,551 109,804 - - 55,5651 109,804
Unallocated Interest on long-term
debt....ooi e 77,335 73,588 - - 77,335 73,588
Airport.. - - 599,335 529,002 599,335 529,002
- - 528,725 468,753 528,725 468,753
- - 58,694 47,587 58,694 47,587
- - 165,362 145,858 165,362 145,858
- - 113,754 107,000 113,754 107,000
- - 525,045 513,486 525,045 513,486
- - 159,896 149,687 159,896 149,687
- - 32,274 34,155 32,274 34,155
Total eXpenses...........ccoevveeveirecnnnes 2,651,650 2,510,401 2,183,085 1,995,528 4,834,735 4,505,929
Increase/(decrease) in net assets
before special items and transfers. 141,090 305,729 (21,092) 133,905 119,998 439,634
Special items - - - 126,014 - 126,014
Transfers............... (124,399) (102,154) 124,399 102,154 - -
Increase in net assets..............c...... 16,691 203,575 103,307 362,073 119,998 565,648
Net assets at beginning of year.................. 1,458,330 1,254,755 4,126,703 3,764,630 5,585,033 5,019,385
Net assets atend of year...........cc.ccoeenee $ 1,475,021 $ 1,458,330 $ 4,230,010 $ 4,126,703 $ 5,705,031 § 5,585,033

Analysis of Changes in Net Assets

The City’s net assets overall increased by $120 million during the current fiscal year.  These increases are
explained in the government and business-type activities discussion below, and are primarily a result of
acquisition and completion of capital assets, and in some measure to expenditures growing more slowly than
revenues, particularly in the business-type funds.
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Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $16.7 million,
accounting for 14 percent of the overall change. Key factors of thisincrease are as follows:

Property tax revenues increased by approximately $68.9 million or eleven percent during the
year. Most of this increase is attributable to a continued strong real estate market and
consequent growth in the assessed value of property and a reduction in the City’s estimated
assessment appeals reserve. In addition, the City is processing deeds more efficiently and is able
to issue supplemental tax bills within a shorter time period following the sale of a property.

Operating and capital grants and contributions together increased by $53.7 million, or
approximately seven percent in the aggregate, largely related to increases in State
reimbursement rates to San Francisco General Hospital and to receipt of State traffic congestion



relief funds and other State funds by the Department of Public Works and the Department of
Parking and Traffic.

e Governmental activities showed an increase in capital assets through progress on the
construction of the Moscone West Convention Center, the Asian Art Museum, and various other
parks and public works improvements.

e The growth in property taxes and other net increases were somewhat offset by losses in the
City’ s other local taxes, which include sales, hotel, parking and utility users taxes. Revenue from
these sources dropped by approximately $137 million or 24 percent overall during the year.
Hotel occupancy and room rates were weak at the beginning of the year and were severely
impacted during the second six months of the fiscal year. Sales tax similarly decreased during
the year. Utility users tax decreased, coming off a sharp increase in 2001 related in part to high
prices during the run-up in California energy markets.

e Interest and investment income also dropped by approximately $10.5 million or 13 percent
during the year due to a decrease in the average yield of City pooled investments from 6.06
percent to 4.14 percent. Because the City’s investments are concentrated in Treasury Bills and
Notes and other short-term instruments the Federal Reserve'sinterest rate cuts during the year
have significantly affected the City’ sinvestment returns.

For the most part, increasesin expenses paralleled increasesin the cost of living in the San Francisco Bay
Area and growth in the demand for government services. The transfers that the City General Fund
makes each year to help finance the operations of two enterprises, San Francisco General Hospital and
Laguna Honda Hospital, decreased by five percent in the aggregate from $106 million in 2001 to $100
million in 2002. Both hospitals experienced increases in the proportion of patients covered by Medicare,
Medi-Cal or other insurers, and/or improvement in reimbursement rates which allowed them to recover
a higher share of their costs of service. Also of note is a decrease of approximately $54 million from 2001
to 2002 in expenditures in General City Responsibilities largely due to the City’s completion of most
refund payments due under the repeal of a portion of the business tax.

The charts on the previous page illustrate the City’s governmental expenses and revenues by function,
and its revenues by source. As shown, public protection is the largest function in expense (27 percent),
followed by human welfare and neighborhood development (22 percent) and community health (19
percent). General revenues such as property, business, and sales taxes are not shown by program, but
are effectively used to support program activities citywide. For governmental activities overall, without
regard to program, operating grants and contributions are the largest single source of funds (28 percent),
followed by property taxes (25 percent) and other local taxes (15.9 percent).  These ratios are
substantially similar to 2001, with the notable exception of other local taxes, which in 2001 provided
approximately 20 percent of total governmental activities revenues, dropping in 2002 related to the City’s
decreased collectionsin hotel, sales, and other taxes.
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Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $103.3 million,
accounting for 84 percent of the overall growth in the City’s net assets. Key factors of thisincrease are as
follows:

e The Municipal Railway’s net assets overall increased by $126.2 million primarily due to increasesin
the total value of equipment with the acquisition of new rolling stock, and to capitalization of
infrastructure investments. M uni’s non-operating revenues, which include state and federal grants as
well as parking fees and fines, increased by $22.6 million. The increase is largely due to improved
collection, and in some cases to increased rates, of parking meters, parking taxes, and parking fines
which accrue to MUNI under the terms of the City’s charter.
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e Laguna Honda Hospital’s net assets overall increased by $21 million, largely related to the receipt of
approximately that same amount in cash under the tobacco settlement monies paid to the City and County
of San Francisco. These revenues are restricted for the Laguna Honda Replacement Project and will be
used to pay contract costs and debt service for construction of the new hospital complex. Laguna Honda
also experienced a five percent increase in net patient revenue under increased Medi-Cal reimbursements
for skilled nursing facilities.

e Hetch Hetchy, which operates the City’s water storage and power generating facilities in the Sierra Nevada
Mountains, increased total net assets by $15.5 million primarily as a result of a lowered revenue transfer to
the City’s General Fund. In the prior fiscal year, Hetch Hetchy transferred $29.9 million, decreasing in
fiscal year 2002 to less than half a million. This action was taken by the City management and the Public
Utilities Commission in order to allow Hetch Hetchy to better manage cash flows and cope with the highly
volatile electricity market which affected California during the year.

e  San Francisco International Airport’s net asset decrease of $46.9 million is due primarily to major capital
assets being depreciated on a straight-line basis over an average of 30 years, while principal retirement of
debt escalates over time. During fiscal year 2002, depreciation expense exceeded the principal retirement
of outstanding debt by more than $100 million. The City projects that this situation will continue through
approximately 2010, then reverse for the remaining life of the bonds. The Airport also experienced losses
in operating revenue from multiple sources including rents, parking, and other charges, for a reduction from
these sources of approximately $50 million during the year. In fiscal year 2002, the cash transfer from the
Airport to the City’s General Fund was reduced from $25.1 million to $17.8 million, reflecting the decrease
in Airport concession revenues.

e The Clean Water Department’s net assets decreased by $14.3 million. The department defeased $28.4
million in certain bonds primarily by using funds from the State Water Resources Control Board
Revolving Loan Fund Program instead of issuing additional bonds. In addition, capital assets net of
related debt increased by $15.9 million largely because debt reductions are scheduled to occur faster
than depreciation.

As shown in the charts above, the largest of San Francisco’s business-type activities—the San Francisco
International Airport, the City’s two hospitals combined, and the Municipal Railway, each had total expenses
over $500 million in fiscal year 2002, with these three enterprises together making up more than 75 percent of
the total business activities. For all of the business-type activities, charges for services provide the largest share
of revenues (65 percent) followed by operating grants and contributions (12.2 percent), and capital grants (10.9
percent), which are primarily received by the Municipal Railway. The proportion of business activity revenue
overall which is attributable to charges for services has increased from 60 percent in 2001, in part as a result of
passenger facility service charges which the Airport began collecting as of October 2001.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. Types of Governmental funds
reported by the City include the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, Capital Project
Funds, and the Permanent Fund.
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As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $1.25 billion, a decrease of $243.8 million in comparison with the prior year. The drop represents the City’s
relatively higher budgetary use of reserves, liquidation of encumbrances, and reductions in carry-forward funds
in fiscal year 2002. In addition, the San Francisco Finance Corporation, which 1s an entity used to lease-finance
equipment on behalf of City departments, was consolidated beginning in fiscal year 2002 as an internal service
fund where in prior years it had been accounted for in various other governmental funds (capital and debt
service funds). As a result, $144.7 million in cash and other balances was transferred from governmental to
proprietary funds.

Approximately $283 million of the combined ending fund balance in the governmental funds constitutes
unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the City’s discretion within the purposes specified
for the City’s funds. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not available for new
spending because it has already been committed, (1) to liquidate existing contracts and purchase orders ($393.3
million), (2) to fund continued programs or projects in future fiscal periods ($391.2 million), (3) to pay debt
service ($36.5 million), and (4) for a variety of other restricted purposes ($145.1 million).

Revenues for governmental functions overall totaled approximately $2.78 billion in the fiscal year ended June
30, 2002, which represents a decrease of 1.37 percent from the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. Expenditures
for governmental functions, totaling $2.96 billion, increased by approximately 5.9 percent from the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2001. In fiscal year 2002, expenses for governmental functions overall exceeded revenues by
approximately $183 million, or slightly less than seven percent.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unreserved
fund balance of the general fund was $136.7 million, while total fund balance was $380.4 million. Total fund
balance decreased in the City’s general fund by $98.8 million during the fiscal year mainly due to continued
decreases in revenues, especially local taxes, and to consequent use of cash and other reserves. As noted above,
these factors were partly offset by increases in the City’s general fund property tax collections and by
management controls on general fund expenditures put in place beginning in the second quarter of the fiscal
year. Overall, the general fund’s performance resulted in revenues in excess of expenditures in the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2002 of $45 million, before transfers and other items are considered.

As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total
fund balance to total fund expenditures. For 2002, unreserved fund balance represents seven percent of total
general fund expenditures of $1.912 billion, while total fund balance represents 20 percent of that same amount.
For 2001, the general fund’s unreserved fund balance was approximately 12 percent of total expenditures of
$1.798 billion, and the total fund balance represented approximately 27 percent of expenditures. These
positions also reflect the City’s relatively higher budgetary use of reserved funds in 2002.

Proprietary funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

At the end of the fiscal year, the unrestricted net assets for the San Francisco International Airport were $267.9
million, the Water Department $177 million, the Hetch Hetchy Project $52.7 million, the Clean Water Program
$67 million, the Port of San Francisco $54.9 million, and the Parking Garages were $46.2 million. Three
proprietary funds had deficits in unrestricted net assets—the Municipal Railway fund had a deficit of $68.2
million, and the San Francisco General Hospital and the Laguna Honda Hospital had deficits in unrestricted net
assets of $13.7 million and $15.2 million respectively. The internal service funds which are used to account for
certain governmental activities also had a deficit in unrestricted net assets of $8.6 million.

The total growth in net assets for the proprietary funds was $103.3 million. Factors concerning the finances of
these funds have been addressed previously in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities. In
particular, the San Francisco International Airport’s net assets decreased by $46.9 million due to drops in
operating revenue and to an increase in net bonded debt related to the defeasance of commercial paper.
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The following table shows actual revenues, expenses and results of operations (excluding capital contributions
and expenses) for the current fiscal year in the City’s proprietary funds (in thousands):

Net Non-
Operating Operating Change
Operating Operating Income Revenues Capital Interfund In Net
Revenues Expenses (Loss) (Expenese) Contributions Transfers Assets
AINPOrt....oceveee v $ 465176 $ 409,659 $ 55517 $ (117,595) $ 32937 $ (17,784) § (46,925)
Water.......oooeiveireeineenn 147,216 148,430 (1,214) (499) - - (1,713)
Hetch Hetchy.......coccoveene 125,777 113,754 12,023 3,885 - (382) 15,526
Municipat Railway.. 107,455 528,725 (421,270) 220,453 216,063 110,945 126,191
General Hospital.... . 301,482 382,253 (80,771) 73,397 - 2,961 (4,413)
Clean Water.........cccovveuens 134,595 128,948 5,647 (19,988) - - (14,341)
POrt....ocecierec e 50,494 55,878 (5,384) 7,545 2,747 - 4,908
L.aguna Honda Hospital....... 111,392 141,030 (29,638) 22,004 - 28,659 21,025
Parking Garages/Other....... 35,645 30,928 4,717 (1,668) - - 3,049
Total e $ 1479232 $ 1939605 $ (460,373) $ 187,534 § 251,747 $ 124399 § 103,307

Fiduciary Funds

The City maintains fiduciary funds for the assets of the San Francisco Employees’ Retirement System and
Health Service System, and manages the investment of monies held in trust to benefit public services or
employees. As of the end of fiscal year 2001-2002, the net assets of the Retirement System and Health Service
System totaled $10.5 billion, representing a decrease of $826.5 million in total net assets since June 30, 2001.
The change is primarily related to decreases in the market value of the Retirement System’s investments. The
Investment Trust Fund’s net assets totaled $300.6 million, with an increase in net assets over the fiscal year of
$25.4 million, primarily resulting from increased contributions from external participants to the fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City’s final budget differs from the original budget in that it contains carry-forward appropriations for
various programs and projects, and supplemental appropriations approved during the fiscal year. In fiscal year
2002, significant supplemental appropriations were approved for the Department of Elections for temporary
salaries, materials, and services ($5.15 million), the Sheriff for overtime and other personnel costs ($4.99
million), Emergency Communications Department for civilianization efforts and for additional personnel costs
($1.62 million), the City Attorney for affirmative litigation ($951 thousand), and the District Attorney’s Office
due to the high cost of prosecuting a lengthy out-of-venue case ($260 thousand).

During the year, actual revenues and other resources lagged budgetary estimates by $3.59 million. The majority
of this amount is attributable to local taxes—specifically the sales, hotel, and utility taxes where actual
performance was less than estimates. In addition, transfers in to the General Fund were $31 million less than
estimates, primarily due to a reduction in the transfer of concession revenues earned by the Airport. The funds
which are transferred from the General Hospital Fund to the General Fund for the City’s participation in the
State cost-sharing program among county hospitals was also reduced, however there is no net loss to the
General Fund as a result of this transaction. Budgetary shortfalls were offset in part by receipts greater than
estimates in property taxes and in federal health and social services funds.

Differences between the final budget and the actual (budgetary basis) resulted in a $133.8 million decrease in
total charges to appropriations. This is primarily due to the following factors:

e Expenditures less than budgeted by the Fire Department of approximately $7.3 million related to fewer

retirements than had been anticipated, and the resulting decrease in the required recruitment, Fire Academy
training classes, and hiring expenses need to fulfill the Department’s personnel needs.
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e A decrease in expenditures by the Human Services Department of approximately $14.9 million related to
reduced costs under local, State and federal welfare programs. In particular, the City spent less than was
budgeted in wage augmentation programs, childcare subsidies, and personnel costs. However, these
expense reductions are almost entirely offset by decreases in the subvention funds which San Francisco is
able to claim under these programs.

e A decrease in expenditures by the Department of Public Health of approximately $31.2 million, primarily
associated with a reduction in the local match requirement for the State hospital cost-sharing program noted
above (SB 855 Medi-Cal disproportionate share program). This decrease is non-program related and does
not result in service reductions.

e A decrease in expenditures of approximately $2.4 million in the General City Responsibilities area
resulting primarily from debt service payments which were less than the budgeted level due to debt being
issued later in the year than projected.

e  The General Fund was able to reduce its transfers to other funds by $43 million, stemming primarily from
unanticipated State revenues which were received by San Francisco General Hospital and Laguna Honda
Hospital, thus allowing for reduced subsidy transfers.

e Budgetary reserves of $22.1 million for various programs and payments which had been anticipated and
included in the budget were not used due to management restrictions on spending, and were able to be
liquidated at the close of the fiscal year.

The net effect of the under-utilization of appropriations and the receipt of some actual revenues greater than
estimates resulted in a positive budgetary fund balance of $130 million at the end of the fiscal year.

In creating its budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, the City used an estimated budgetary fund
balance of $124 million (see Note 4 to the Basic Financial Statements).

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 2002, amount to $10.2
billion (net of accumulated depreciation). Capital assets include land, buildings and improvements, machinery
and equipment, park facilities, roads, streets, and bridges. The total increase in the City’s capital assets for the
current fiscal year was six percent (a 12 percent increase for governmental activities and a five percent increase
for business-type activities) as shown in the table on the following page.
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Changes in Capital Assets , Net of Accumulated Depreciation
(in thousands)

Business-type

Governmental Activities Activities Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

Land.........ooooviiie $ 139534 3 131,539 $ 185594 $ 184299 § 325128 $ 315,838
Facilities and Improvement... 1,223,619 1,214,496 5,456,106 5,316,447 6,679,725 6,530,943
Machinery and equipment.... 77,609 88,372 694,659 493,757 772,268 582,129
Infrastructure.................cooee. 23,663 - 481,128 454,899 504,791 454,899
Property held under lease. ... 536 536 308 515 845 1,051
Easements..........c.occoceei - - 99,631 98,482 99,631 98,482
Construction in progress....... 576,490 386,172 1,268,397 1,234,234 1,844,887 1,620,406

Total...ooi $ 2,041,451 $ 1,821,115 $ 8185824 $ 7,782,633 $ 10,227,275 $ 8,603,748

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e The Airport showed an increase of $126 million or three percent in capital assets related to additional
completions of the Near Term Master Plan Program. This program, which includes new parking facilities,
roadways, runway improvements, and the new International Terminal, was substantially completed in
2001, with the Airport reporting a 13 percent increase in capital assets that year. During fiscal year 2002,
major project completions include the BART station at SFO and the Air Train (people mover) Domestic
Stations. These facilities are scheduled to begin operations in calendar year 2003.

e Muni capital assets increased by $158.8 million due to improvements at the Woods Division bus facility,
progress on the Third Street Light Rail Project, acquisition of 145 motor coaches and 24 light rail vehicles,
and capitalization of the completed Automated Train Control System for the Metro subway. In April 2002,
Muni entered into a lease transaction involving 118 Breda light rail vehicies which allows equity investors
holding title to the vehicles to take advantage of tax benefits not available to public entities. During the
term of the lease Muni maintains custody and use of the vehicles, and is obligated to insure and maintain
them. As a result of the transaction, Muni recorded a deferred gain in 2002 of $35.5 million which will be
amortized over the life of the sublease. During fiscal year 2003 Muni will request authorization to use the
funds for one-time capital needs.

e The Water Department’s total capital asset additions of $16.2 during the fiscal year include an upgrade to
the Sunol Valley Water Treatment Plant of $5.6 million, and improvements at the Harry Tracy Water
Treatment Plant of $9.6 million, and many smaller projects at less than $1 million each.

e The Clean Water Program completed sewer replacement projects at four sites within the City for a capital
asset increase of $2.5 million.

e During fiscal year 2002 the primary capital asset event at Hetch Hetchy was the completion of the
O’Shaughnessy Dam electrical project at a value of $927 thousand, as well as many other smaller projects
such as completed maintenance and construction of pipelines, and purchase of vehicles and equipment.

e Governmental activities construction in progress increased by $190 million due to additional work on the

Moscone Center West facility, the Asian Art Museum, and other public works and recreation and park
sites.
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For government-wide financial statement presentation, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from
acquisition date to the end of the current fiscal year. Fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as
expenditures.

For governmental activities, no major net infrastructure assets are reported at the beginning of the year because
the historical costs did not meet the threshold established in GASB 34. In fiscal year 2002, newly completed
projects are capitalized and ongoing infrastructure projects are accounted for in construction in progress.

Additional information about the City's capital assets can be found in Note 7 to the Basic Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total long-term obligations outstanding of $7.8 billion. Of this
amount, $919.2 million is general obligation bonds (including $2 million in general obligation bonds issued on
behalf of the Port of San Francisco) backed by the full faith and credit of the City, and $5.7 billion is revenue
bonds, commercial paper, loans, and other obligations of the City’s business enterprises. The remainder
includes accrued leave and workers compensation obligations, as well as revenue bonds, certificates of
participation, and other debts of City parking garages, the Moscone Convention Center, and other governmental
activities.

During fiscal year 2002, the City’s total bonded debt increased by approximately $713 million. Key factors
were the issuances of $140 million in revenue bonds for Water Department projects, $60.8 million in settlement
obligation bonds to provide for refunds under a portion of the City’s business tax which was repealed, $37.2
million in certificates of participation to finance the acquisition of an office building at 30 Van Ness Avenue,
and $17.7 million in general obligation bonds to fund continued work on the Branch Library Improvement
Program.

In addition, the City issued $988 million in refunding bonds and refunding certificates to take advantage of
favorable interest rates and reduce total debt payments both in the general obligation bond and revenue bond
programs. Of this amount, $853.5 million was for the purpose of largely refunding the commercial paper
program at the San Francisco International Airport.

The City’s Charter imposes a limit on the amount of general obligation bonds the City can have outstanding at
any given time. That limit is three percent of the taxable assessed value of property in the City—approximately
$90.4 billion in value as of the close of the fiscal year. As of June 30, 2002, the City had $919.2 million in
authorized, outstanding property tax—supported general obligation bonds, which is equal to approximately one
percent of the taxable assessed value of property. As of June 30, 2002, there were an additional $951.8 million
in bonds that were authorized but unissued. If all of these bonds were issued and outstanding, the total debt
burden would be approximately two percent of the taxable assessed value of property.

The City’s underlying ratings on general obligation bonds as of June 30, 2002 were:

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. Aa3
Standard and Poor’s Corporation AA
Fitch IBCA, Inc. AA

The City’s enterprise activities have experienced some changes in debt ratings since June 30, 2001.  In July
2001, Standard & Poor’s downgraded the Water Department’s underlying rating on outstanding debt from AA-
negative outlook to A+ stable outlook primarily related to political uncertainty regarding a long-term capital
plan and the Department’s inability to raise service rates without voter approval. Subsequently, in November
2002, voters approved $1.6 billion in Water Revenue Bonds for capital projects.
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Following the events of September 11, 2001, Standard & Poor’s placed all of its North American airport and
airport-related facilities, including the San Francisco International Airport, on CreditWatch with negative
implications, and has since lowered its long-term ratings for San Francisco Airport debt from A+ to A.
Moody’s Investors Service has affirmed its Al rating for the Airport, but revised the outlook from developing
to negative. Fitch ICBA, Inc. lowered its rating for the Airport from AA- to A+

Since the close of the 2002 fiscal year, the City has issued additional debt of $250 million in Water Department
revenue bonds, primarily for refunding purposes, and $29.3 million in general obligation bonds for acquisition
and construction projects under the Zoo Facilities Program and the Branch Library Improvement Program. In
1994, the City issued $35 million in taxable general obligation bonds for a program to provide loans for seismic
strengthening of privately-owned unreinforced masonry buildings. On October 16, 2002, from proceeds of the
bonds and other sources, the City paid, in full, the outstanding $26,665,000 principal amount, accrued interest

from June 15, 2002, and the redemption premium.

Additional information in the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 8 to the Basic Financial Statements.

Economic factors and next year’s budget and rates

e  The City appropriated $124 million in estimated available fund balance in the General Fund for spending in
fiscal year 2003. It is intended that this use of fund balance will avoid the need to cut public safety, health

and human services programs in the budget year.

e The City evaluated the basis on which it has calculated the cash reserves held in relation to property tax
collections. Where previously San Francisco had maintained a ten percent cash reserve for all property-tax
based funds, including the General Fund, the voter-approved set-aside funds (Children’s, Library, and Open
Space Funds), the Redevelopment Agency, and the School District, and others, the City has determined that
the reserve requirement as stated in Charter Section 9.113 is intended to guarantee against losses only in
funds under the City’s budgetary control. As a result of this determination, $45.8 million was made
available and appropriated to fund the 2003 budget on a one-time basis.

e The City currently faces a less favorable economic environment resulting from the decline in technology
industries, continued weakness in the travel and tourism markets, and the overall downturn in the business
cycle. As noted in our transmittal letter, San Francisco’s unemployment rate has more than doubled from
its low point of 2.8 percent in 2000 to approximately 6.7 percent by November 2002.

e Hotel and sales, with losses already experienced related to the economic downturn and the aftermath of
September 11, 2001 have further fallen off during the first quarter of 2003, down approximately eight to ten
percent from budgeted projections. Other major local tax revenues have showed lesser shortfalls in the first
quarter, but are nonetheless not at projected budget levels. The City has restricted departmental spending
in the current year, and is preparing to further reduce spending in 2004 to budget for these conditions.

All of the above factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for fiscal year 2003.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives.
Below are the contacts for questions about this report or requests for additional financial information.

City and County of San Francisco

Office of the Controller
City Hall, Room 316

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102-4694

Individual Department Financial Statements

San Francisco International Airport
Office of the Airport Deputy Director
Business and Finance Division

PO Box 8097

San Francisco, CA 94128

San Francisco Water Department
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

San Francisco Clean Water Program
1155 Market Street, 5th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94103

San Francisco Municipal Railway
MUNI Finance and Administration
875 Stevenson Street, Room 260
San Francisco, CA 94103

San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center

Chief Financial Officer
2789 — 25™ Street
San Francisco, CA 94110

Port of San Francisco
Fiscal Officer

Pier 1

San Francisco, CA 94111

Laguna Honda Hospital
Chief Financial Officer
375 Laguna Honda Blvd.
San Francisco, CA 94116

Health Service System
Department of Human Resources
44 Gough Street

San Francisco, CA 94103

San Francisco Employees’ Retirement
System

Finance Department

30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 3000

San Francisco, CA 94102

Component Unit Financial Statements

San Francisco Redevelopment Agency

Finance Department
770 Golden Gate Avenue, 3rd Floor
San Francisco, CA 94102

Blended Component Units Financial Statements

San Francisco County Transportation Authority

100 Van Ness Avenue, 25% Floor
San Francisco, CA 94102

WWW.SFGOV.ORG
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San Francisco Finance Corporation
City Hall, Room 336

1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place
San Francisco, CA 94102
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units
Treasure
Business- San Francisco Island
Governmental Type Redevelopment Development
Activities Activities Total Agency Authority
ASSETS
Current assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury................ $1,050,766 $ 754,778 $1,805544 § - $ 3,442
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury............. 184,591 3,508 188,099 104,394 -
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible amounts
of $23,252 for the primary government):
Property taxes and penalties............ccccccccoiiiiii 33,395 - 33,395 - -
Other local taxes.........ooocoii i 173,873 - 173,873 - -
Federal and state grants and subventions..................... 139,975 39,306 179,281 - 12
Charges for Services..........ccoovvie i 21,755 156,220 177,975 - 678
Interest and other.............oooiiii 11,862 68,364 80,226 19,077 12
Loans and capital lease receivables............................... - - - 21,927 -
Due from component unit .................ccooeviiei s 22,587 - 22 587 - -
INVENEOMIES. .. ..t e - 37,801 37,801 - -
Deferred charges and other assets.................occccevee. 1,658 6,266 7,924 - -
Total current @ssets............cccooviiii e 1,640,462 1,066,243 2,706,705 145,398 4,144
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.................. - 601,351 601,351 - -
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury............. - 390,938 390,938 219,060 -
Grants and other receivables........................... - 33,960 33,960 1,202 -
Total restricted assets..........cc.coooeiiiiiiii - 1,026,249 1,026,249 220,262 -
Noncurrent assets:
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible amounts
of $165,637 and $110,771 for the primary government
and component units, respectively):
Loans and capital lease receivables.......................o 149,125 - 149,125 207,491 -
Deferred charges and other assets..................ccc i 16,545 65,756 82,301 712 -
Property held forresale ................oociiii - - - 4,297 -
Capital assets:
Land and other assets not being depreciated................. 716,024 1,453,991 2,170,015 64,798 -
Facilities, infrastructure, and equipment, net of
depreciation........cococc e 1,325,427 6,731,833 8,057,260 126,568 -
Total capital assets............cccccoiiiiiiiii 2,041,451 8,185,824 10,227,275 191,366 -
Total noncurrent assets.... 2,207,121 8,251,580 10,458,701 403,866 -
Total @SSetS. ..o 3,847,583 10,344,072 14,191,655 769,526 4,144
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Net Assets (Continued)
June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units
Treasure
Business- San Francisco Island
Governmental Type Redevelopment Development
Activities Activities Total Agency Authority
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
ACCoUNts PayabIe. ..o 157,542 119,989 277,531 5,590 211
Accrued payroll 82,553 61,174 143,727 - 57
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay..............ccooconn 59,132 38,811 97,943 859 -
Accrued workers' compensation..............cc..c...oee . 38,926 30,476 69,402 - -
Estimated claims payable...........cccoiiiii e 9,224 16,668 25,892 - -
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables............ 114,626 185,185 299,811 20,081 -
Accrued interest payable...............co 11,511 12,381 23,892 27,353 -
Unearned grant and subvention revenues....................... 2,995 - 2,995 - -
Due to primary government............cccovciiiiiins - - - 22,587 -
Internal balanCes..........ooovviiviii e (30,785) 30,785 - - -
Deferred credits and other liabilities............c.cccccvvinninnes 49,511 107,474 156,985 9,360 -
Total current liabilities............cocooeviriiiiiii 495,235 602,943 1,098,178 85,830 268
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables............ - 12,115 12,115 - -
Accrued interest payable..................c - 42,666 42,666 - -
(@13 =1 SUTTURTR TP TP PP PO TUUUSIPRPPPRI - 63,404 63,404 - -
Total liabilities payable from
restricted assets........ocoooiiiiiii - 118,185 118,185 - -
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay...............c.co 62,828 30,617 93,445 1,011 -
Accrued workers' compensation............c.coooov 137,851 96,928 234,779 - -
Estimated claims payable 32,221 28,618 60,839 - -
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables............ 1,644,427 5,183,842 6,828,269 569,896 -
Accrued interest payable..............ocii - - - 144,009 -
Deferred credits and other liabilities...................cccccoen - 52,929 52,929 - -
Total noncurrent liabilities.........cocoovviii i 1,877,327 5,392,934 7,270,261 714,916 -
Total liabilities 2,372,562 6,114,062 8,486,624 800,746 268
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................... 887,667 3,115,392 4,003,059 76,223 -
Restricted for:
Cash and emergencies requirements by Charter............. 93,293 - 93,293 - -
DEDE SEIVICE. ... ie ettt 12,135 334,747 346,882 67,232 -
Capital PrOJECES. .....cvieiieieic it 115,052 141,154 256,206 - -
Community development..............oo 135,308 - 135,308 - -
Transportation Authority activities.................o 142,740 - 142,740 - -
OthEr PUIMPOSES. ... evieerieiieeieeeie e 219,351 70,118 289,469 1,200 3,876
Unrestricted (defiCit)........coocvi (130,525) 568,599 438,074 (175,875) -
Total net assets (defiCit).........cccooriviniiniin $ 1475021 $4,230010 §$5,705031 § (31,220 $ 3,876

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Component Units

Program Revenues Primary Government San Francisco Treasure
Charges Operating Capital Govern- Business- Redevelop- Island
for Grants and Grants and mental Type ment Developmeni
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Agency Authority
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Public protection $ 717,552 $ 42254 $ 103,941 $ - $ (571,357) $ - § (571,357) $ - $ -
Public works, transportation
and CoOmmerce..........ccccooee.e. 317,778 102,576 22,307 56,168 (136,727) - (136,727) - -
Human welfare and
neighborhood development.. 586,188 20,292 379,062 - (186,834) - (186,834) - -
Community health................... 493,856 36,176 243,105 - (214,575) - (214,575) - -
Culture and recreation............ 246,620 47,116 3,458 1,213 (194,833) - (194,833) - -
General administration and
fiNNCE...ccvevviereceeeece 156,770 53,434 3,510 1,013 (98,813) - (98,813) - -
General City responsibilities... 55,551 47,050 26,384 - 17,883 - 17,883 - -
Unallocated Interest on
long-term debt............c.c... 77,335 - - - (77,335) - (77,335) - -
Total governmental
activities......cocvvevencnnineneen 2,651,650 348,898 781,767 58,394 (1,462,591) - {1,462,591) - -
Business-type activities:
AITPOt...coeeeeie e 599,335 465,176 - 32,937 - (101,222) (101,222) - -
Transit.......cooeeeeeerreciecenene 528,725 107,455 210,746 216,063 - 5,539 5,539 - -
Port....... 58,694 50,494 - 2,747 - (5,453) (5.453) - -
Water. 165,362 147,216 - - - (18,146) (18,146) - -
Power 113,754 125,777 1,788 - - 13,811 13,811 - -
Hospitals... 525,045 412,874 69,525 - - (42,646) (42,646) - -
Sewer....... 159,896 134,595 - - - (25,301) (25,301) - -
Garages 32,274 35,645 - - - 3,371 3,371 - -
Total business-type
activities.........occecvrvecnneenns 2,183,085 1,479,232 282,059 251,747 - (170,047) (170,047) - -
Total primary government........... $4,834,735 §$ 1,828,130 $ 1,063,826 $ 310,141 $(1,462,591) $ (170,047) $(1,632,638) $ - $ -
Component units:
San Francisco Redevelopment
AQENCY..evevirererreeieeeeeeeeeieeeienns $ 116,252 $ 25747 $ 16,620 $ - 8 - 8 - $ - 8§ (73,885) % -
Treasure Island Development
Authority.............. rrees 6,123 8,651 226 - - - - - 2,754
Total component units................ $ 122375 $ 34,398 $ 16,846 $ - $ - 8 - 3 - $ (73885 §$ 2,754
General Revenues:
Taxes:
PrOPEMY LAXES. ......cecurvieeresciasesesesrearaesesesessssasssansasanas $ 697,703 § - $ 697,703 $ 59,434 $ -
BUSINESS tAXES......cciceviviieei it 274,848 - 274,848 - -
Other [ocal taxes...........ccovevcieiecci e 444,590 - 444,590 5,806 -
Interest and investment income............coccocoveiienecciinecne, 70,597 63,530 134,127 16,652 -
[0 (3T U OUP YU OTTOUPPRP 115,943 85,425 201,368 3,179 -
Transfers - internal activities of primary government.. (124,399) 124,399 - - -
Total general revenues and transfers........... 1,479,282 273,354 1,752,636 85,071 -
Change in net assets................. . 16,691 103,307 119,998 11,186 2,754
Net assets (deficit) - beginming........cooveeveieieioeeeeeeee 1,458,330 4,126,703 5,585,033 (42,406) 1,122
Net assets (deficit) - ending........c..ococeveeieemiiieieeeieie e $ 1,475,021 $ 4,230,010 $ 5,705,031 $ (31,220) $ 3,876

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

23



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2002
(with comparative financial information as of June 30, 2001)

(in thousands)

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............... $ 311,466 $ 400,595 $ 724,801 $ 838427 §$1,036267 $ 1,239,022
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.......... 361 356 132,498 297,592 132,859 297,948
Receivables:
Property taxes and penalties...............c.ccccois 26,948 21,687 6,447 7,542 33,395 29,229
Other 10Cal taxXes........ooivuiveiiee e 147,368 165,567 26,505 17,159 173,873 182,726
Federal and state grants and subventions................. 56,890 62,247 83,085 78,881 139,975 141,128
Charges for SerViCeSs..........ccoiiiiiiii e 16,125 17,775 5,630 4,960 21,755 22,735
Interest and other..............ccocoiviiiiiii 7,506 10,935 3,105 15,897 10,611 26,832
Due from other funds ... 66,651 48,937 54 - 66,705 48,937
Due from component unit .........cccccoooiiiiiiiiine i 400 400 22,187 19,187 22,587 19,587
Loans receivable (net of allowance for uncollectable
amount of $165,637 in 2002; $155,235 in 2001)...... 183 183 148,942 117,934 149,125 118,117
Deferred charges and other assets.....................cccoo. 5,862 5,529 1,338 1,443 7,200 6,972
Total @SSets......cooviiiiie e $ 639,760 $ 734211 $1,154,592 $1,399,022 $ 1,794,352 $ 2,133,233
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
ACCOUNtS PayabIe..........ccooo i 3 92,514 $ 66,338 $ 58,214 $ 36,912 $ 150,728 $ 103,250
Accrued payroll. ... 66,071 59,439 14,167 13,077 80,238 72,516
Estimated claims payable.............cccooooiins - 2,104 - 63,000 - 65,104
Accrued interest payable.................oooo - - 398 398 398 398
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues............ 27,604 27,822 11,680 24,640 39,284 52,462
Due to other funds.........coooicviieeiiiiii - - 33,893 89,046 33,893 89,046
Deferred credits and other liabilities 73,180 99,321 167,669 158,419 240,849 257,740
Total liabilities..........ccoooiirieeei e 259,369 255,024 286,021 385,492 545,390 640,516
Fund balances:
Reserved for cash requirements.......................oees 93,293 93,293 - - 93,293 93,293
Reserved for emergencies................ccc.ccoien. 4,198 4,198 ~ - 4,198 4,198
Reserved for assets not available for appropriation... 6,406 6,089 41,233 51,548 47,639 57,637
Reserved for debt service...............ccooooiiii s - - 36,548 63,308 36,548 63,308
Reserved for encumbrances.............coooviiiininieees 52,735 37,743 340,591 373,088 393,326 410,831
Reserved for appropriation carryforward................... 61,716 77,060 285,508 446,211 347,224 523,271
Reserved for subsequent years' budgets................. 25,379 53,337 18,604 9,664 43,983 63,001
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund.................. 136,664 207,467 - - 136,664 207,467
Special revenue funds......... - - 97,167 54,018 97,167 54,018
Capital project funds.............cocoooiiiii - - 44 487 11,629 44,487 11,629
Permanent fund.............ccooiiiiiie e - - 4,433 4,064 4,433 4,064
Total fund balances 380,391 479,187 868,571 1,013,530 1,248,962 1,492,717
Total liabilities and fund balances................... $ 639,760 $ 734,211 $1,154,592 $1,399,022 $ 1,794,352 $ 2,133,233

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

24



City and County of San Francisco
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Fund balances - total governmental funds $1,248,962

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 2,037,854

Bond issue costs are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds. 7,545

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (1,835,214)

interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the funds, but rather is
recognized as an expenditure when due. (8,1186)

Because the focus of governmental funds is not short-term financing,
some assets will not be available to pay for current period expenditures.
Those assets are offset by deferred revenue in the funds. 229,549

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
capital lease financing, fleet management, printing and mailing services,
and information systems to individual funds. The assets and liabilities
of internal service funds are inciuded in governmental activities in the

statement of net assets. (205,559)

Net assets of governmental activities $1,475,021

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Year ended June 30, 2002
(with comparative financial information for the year ended June 30, 2001)

(in thousands)

Other Total
General Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Revenues:
Property taXes......oooviiiiiie e $ 507,308 $ 462171 $ 179,842 $ 165483 $ 687,150 $ 627,654
BUSINESS tAXES. . .iiiiiiiciii it 274,125 277,094 723 728 274,848 277,822
Other 10Cal taXeS.......vovieie et 334,357 448,132 110,233 133,348 444 590 581,480
Licenses, permits and franchises..............cccccovviiiicc i, 19,548 17,714 6,214 5,789 25,762 23,503
Fines, forfeitures and penalties.............cccccviiiiciii e, 8,591 9,097 3,454 3,676 12,045 12,773
Interest and investment iNCOME............ccco i, 20,737 27,693 44,860 63,736 65,597 91,429
Rents and CONCESSIONS.......ocvviiiii e 17,636 19,298 45,987 56,084 63,623 75,382
Intergovernmental:
FEABTAL ...ttt 150,444 135,410 157,499 161,348 307,943 296,758
S . o 510,952 501,020 97,852 74,341 608,804 575,361
O BT ... - - 33,924 6,245 33,924 6,245
Charges for SEIVICES. ..o 102,782 100,325 122,765 115,087 225,547 215,412
OthEI TEVENUES........oeiiiieiie ettt 10,338 17,395 16,067 13,724 26,405 31,119
Total FEVENUES......cooi e 1,956,818 2,015,349 819,420 799,589 2,776,238 2,814,938
Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection. ... 650,019 626,136 40,031 45,983 690,050 672,119
Public works, transportation and commerce........................ 103,579 95,486 192,832 204,463 296,411 299,949
Human welfare and neighborhood development................ 467,688 431,266 145,445 125,976 613,133 557,242
Community health...........cccoooiiii e 395,465 365,290 89,361 89,685 484,826 454 975
Culture and recreation...............cceoveevioee e 108,810 106,728 129,516 127,135 238,326 233,863
General administration and finance............ccccoocieeninn. 136,143 127,366 28,602 23,116 164,745 150,482
General City responsibilities.............occoioeiiiiiie i 49,571 45,380 5,057 64,373 54,628 109,753
Debt service:
Principal retirement............oooooii i - - 69,536 69,870 69,536 69,870
Interest and fiscal charges........cccocoveiiee i - - 68,111 68,367 68,111 68,367
BOoNnd iSSUANCE COSES......oumii ittt e e e e e e e e e eeeeeees 534 - 2,453 7,368 2,987 7,368
Capital OUHAY ..ot - - 276,662 170,472 276,662 170,472
Total expenditures. ..........cccooovviieiie e eiee et 1,911,809 1,797,652 1,047,606 996,808 2,959 415 2,794,460
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures.... 45,009 217,697 (228,186) (197,219) (183,177) 20,478
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers iMoo 109,941 134,983 157,166 126,974 267,107 261,957
Transfers OUb.........cooiiiice et (316,691)  (257,317) (219,989) (107,861) (536,680) (365,178)
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds issued....................... e 60,755 - 189,240 394,040 249,995 394,040
Premium on issuance of bonds.. . - - 3,095 803 3,095 803
Discount on issuance of bonds............... (176) - (62) (2,773) (238) (2,773)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent ............ccccoviiiie - - (136,230) - (136,230) -
Other financing sources-capital leases.....................c.cccee 1,417 - 90,007 - 91,424 -
(O (3 1= PO PR SRR 949 - - - 949 -
Total other financing sources (USES)...........c.ccceevinuean. (143,805)  (122,334) 83,227 411,183 (60,578) 288,849
Net change in fund balances.............ccocoviiineinne. (98,796) 95,363 (144,959) 213,964 (243,755) 309,327
Fund balance at beginning of year, as previously reported......... 479,187 275,640 1,013,530 792,104 1,492,717 1,067,744
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principles............... - 108,184 - 7,462 - 115,646
Fund balances at beginning of year, as restated........................ 479,187 383,824 1,013,530 799,566 1,492,717 1,183,390
Fund balances at end of year $ 380,391 $ 479,187 $ 868571 $1,013530 $ 1,248,962 § 1,492717

The notes to the financial statements are an integrai part of this statement.
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City and County of San Francisco
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (243,755)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current
period. 219,333

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. This is the
amount by which the decrease in certain liabilities reported in the statement of net assets of the
previous year exceeded expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the 10,280
use of current financing resources.

Property tax revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 10,553

Governmental funds report expenditures pertaining to the establishment of certain deferred credits
related to long-term loans made. These deferred credits are not reported on the statement of net
assets and, therefore, the corresponding expense is not reported on the statement of activities. (1,838)

Lease payments on the Moscone Convention Center (including both principal and interest) are
reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when paid. For the City as a whole,
however, the principal portion of the payments serve to reduce the liability in the statement of net
assets while the accrual of accreted interest serves to increase the liability in the statement of net
assets and result in additional expenses in the statement of activities. This is the amount by which
principal payments exceeded newly accreted interest. 6,933

Bond issue costs are expended in the governmental funds when paid, and are capitalized and
amortized in the statement of activities. This is the amount by which current year bond issuance
costs exceed amortization expense in the current period. 2,642

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while
the repayment of the principal of iong-term debt and the advance refunding of debt consume the
current financial resources of governmental funds. These transactions, however, have no effect
on net assets. This is the amount by which bond proceeds exceeded principal retirement and
payment to escrow for refunded debt in the current period. (135,653)

Bond premiums and discounts are expended in the governmental funds when the bonds are
issued, and are capitalized and amortized in the statement of net assets. This is the net amount
of bond premiums and discounts capitalized during the current period. (2,857)

Losses incurred on the advance refunding of debt are expended in the governmental funds when
the refunding occurs and are deferred and amortized for purposes of the statement of activities.
This is the portion of the refunding loss related to the payment to escrow funded from non bond
proceeds. The remaining portion of the refunding loss is reported within the other financing use

entitled "payment to refunded bond escrow agent”. 3,666
Amortization of bond premiums, discounts and refunding losses (158)
Additional accrued interest calculated on bonds and notes payable. (2,494)
Additional interest calculated pertaining to the City's arbitrage rebate liability. (2,049)
The net revenues of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmentai

activities. 152,088

Changes in net assets of governmental activities $ 16,691

The notes fo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Budgetary Comparison Statement - General Fund
Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Actual Variance
Original Final Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis Negativ
Budgetary fund balance, July 1 $ 188,710 $ 489,347 $ 489,347 $ -
Resources (inflows):
Property tAXES.......cocviveiiiieie e 461,550 461,715 510,001 48,286
Business taxes.........cccccceeeeeennnns . 275,669 275,669 274125 (1,544)
Other local taxes:
SAIES tAX.. .ottt 155,190 155,190 111,293 (43,897)
HOE! FOOM tAX.. .o oo 141,635 141,634 72,285 (69,349)
Utility USEIS 18X ....coviiiiiiiiiie e 77,346 77,346 70,779 (6,567)
Parking f8X.......covcvvimiieiiiiierin e 35,022 35,022 30,484 (4,538)
Other 10Cal taXES.........vi i 50,622 50,622 49,516 (1,106}
Licenses, permits, and franchises:
Licenses and permitS..........ccccoveve i 7,634 7,634 7,575 (59)
FranChiSe TAX.......ceiiiiureeeeesiiiirceeeaeenrirtre e e e e eeenneibaneaee e 11,141 11,141 11,973 832
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties...............ccoooivi. 5,793 6,180 8,591 2,411
Interest and investment INCOME..........coiieeiiiiiiiiiie s 24,733 25,063 29,992 4,929
Rents and concessions:
Garages - Recreation and Park.............ccccooooiin 8,487 8,487 7,105 (1,382)
Rents and concessions - Recreation and Park.. 10,155 10,155 9,183 (972)
Other rents and CONCESSIONS........uuiiiiiiiiiieiiiieee e 1,351 1,351 1,347 (4)
Intergovernmental:
Federal subventions:
Health and social service subventions............................. 121,626 129,560 147,773 18,213
Other grants and subventions...................c.on 6,826 3,626 2,670 (956)
State subventions:
Social service subventions......... 115,916 116,800 101,417 (15,383)
Health and welfare realignment 85,890 85,841 87,475 1,634
Health/mental health subventions.............................. 120,958 120,958 127,497 6,539
Public safety sales tax.............ccociiin 75,066 75,066 70,959 (4,107)
Motor vehicle in-lieu - county............oooiiiin 102,171 102,171 102,751 580
Other grants & subventions................ccoociieiie 26,254 22,722 20,853 (1,869)
Charges for services:
General government service charges 29,087 29,108 29,506 398
Public safety service charges.............cccoooiiiiiiiiiiin e, 12,620 15,434 15,435 1
Recreation charges - Recreation and Park.......................... 9,754 9,754 9,445 (309)
MediCal, MediCare and health service charges................... 43 347 48,646 48,397 (249)
Other financing sources:
Transfers from other funds..........cc..ccoeiiiiiiii 61,364 136,028 105,070 (30,958)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and loans...................... 62,800 63,662 61,233 (2,429)
Other resources (inflows) 900 1,312 1,518 206
Total amounts available for appropriation....................... $ 2,329,617 $ 2,717,244 $2,615,595 $ (101,649)
(Continued)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Budgetary Comparison Statement - General Fund (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Actual
Original Final Budgetary
Budget Budget Basis
Charges to appropriations (outflows):
Public Protection
Administrative Services - Animal Care and Control.............. $ 3,224 § 3252 § 3,033
Administrative Services - Consumer Assurance.................. 1,773 1,676 1,566
Administrative Services - Medical Examiner....................... 4,365 4,595 4,315
Adult Probation..........coi i 9,025 9,076 8,837
District Attorney... 21,259 21,759 21,702
Fire Department.........cccccoovviiimiiiii e 195,173 202,583 195,286
Juvenile Probation................ 37,094 30,398 29,942
Mayor - Office of the Emergency Services............cccocceeene 1,313 1,247 1,207
Police Department..........cccvviiiiiiieiii et 235,982 247,432 247,256
PUbliC Defender..........ccoooiiiiiiieee et 13,075 13,146 12,806
SHEI ... 83,969 92,009 91,477
Trial Courts 33,552 33,687 32,742
Public Works Transportation and Commerce
Board of APPEaIS........ccvviiiieiiiiiiiiee e 425 426 403
Business and Economic Development.........................ooe 2,734 2,544 2,316
Clean Water...........vviiiiiiii e 306 246 2486
Department of Public WOrKS.........c..oooviiiiicii s 38,200 32,261 32,208
Emergency Communications..........cccovvveveiriiinicrensinienennnns 19,008 19,395 19,323
Light, Heat and Power......... 2,687 2,492 2,466
Parking and Traffic Commission..........c...c.occvoniicninninnnn. 42,716 43,624 43,046
Telecommunications and Information Services .................. 2,773 2,307 2,306
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Adult and AQING SErVICES.......ccveiviiiiiiriiii e 19,064 21,434 20,826
Children, Youth and Their Families.............cccccocvvvininnnn. 10,917 9,427 9,353
Commission on the Status of Women.............cc.ocoovveeieee 2,585 2,403 2,237
Environment.............coooiiiiiii 738 3,601 3,594
Human Rights Commission 1,876 1,886 1,884
HUMAN SEIVICES. ...t 437,298 443,992 429,072
Mayor - Housing and Neighborhood.............c.ccccccooiiiine 150 667 606
Rent Arbitration Board..................c - 113 113
Public Health 447,126 426,683 395,471
Culture and Recreation
Academy Of SCIENCES.......oeivirveeiee e 2,169 2,270 2,236
Administrative Services - Convention Facilities.................... 5,982 5,705 5,420
Art COMMISSION. ..o e 7,270 8,128 8,099
Asian At MUSEUM. ... 3,469 3,599 3,253
County Education Office...........c.cccooiii 66 66 64
Fine Arts Museum... . 5,597 5,604 4,786
Law LiDrary.......coiooiioiii e 520 522 471
Mayor - Grants for the Amts...........ccoiiiiiii e 16,995 18,784 15,743
Recreation and Park Commission..............cccccoovviiiiniiiienes 72,237 68,775 68,446
General Administration and Finance
Administrative ServiCes.........c..cccoveeriiiiiiiin e 7,353 6,089 6,089
Administrative Services - Purchasing................ccoooo - 87 87
Administrative Services - Office of Contract Administration. 3,196 2,936 2,619
ASSESSOMRECONET.....coiiiiiiiiiiiii e 10,803 11,174 10,954
Board of SUPEIVISOIS...........ccvviivviiiiciiiiieerees e 8,967 9,964 9,721

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

Variance

Positive
N iv

219
110
280
239
57
7,297
456
40
176
340
532
945

23
228

53
72
26
578

608
74
166

14,920
61

31,212

34

29
346

818
51
3,041
329

317
220
243

(Continued)



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Budgetary Comparison Statement - General Fund (Continued)
Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Actual Variance
Original Final Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis Negativ
City AtOIMEY . ...eiiie ittt e 7,522 13,282 13,282 -
City Planning.... 13,404 13,385 13,081 304
CVIE SEIVICE......iii i 665 620 615 5
(O] o1 (1111 O USSR 20,929 20,051 19,821 230
EIECHONS. ....eei ettt 8,330 14,299 14,293 6
Ethics CoOmMmISSION.........coiiiiiiiic e 878 853 811 42
HUmMan RESOUNCES ..ot 19,082 21,584 20,883 701
MBYOT ...t 7,772 8,159 8,033 126
Retirement Services... 420 155 1565 -
Treasurer/Tax Collector. ......c..oorviiiiiriiii e 17,018 18,241 17,808 433
General City Responsibilities
General City Responsibilities.................ccoooviciiieens 118,012 116,601 114,195 2,406
General Fund Unallocated..............ccccooiniiin e - 20 20 -
Other financing uses:
Dbt SEIVICE......oiiii e 9,550 240 240 -
Transfers to other funds 219,125 293,517 250,550 42,967
Budgetary reserves and designations 73,879 123,346 3,154 120,192
Total charges to appropriations.............c.cocccvevviiiienneeennns 2,329,617 2,462,417 2,230,568 231,849
Budgetary fund balance, June 30 3 - $ 254,827 $ 385,027 $ 130,200
Explanation of differences between budgetary inflows and outflows,
and GAAP revenues and expenditures:
Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation” ................cc.coooieiiiiien i $2,615,595
Difference - budget to GAAP:
The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource but is not
a current year revenue for financial reporting purposes............cccccceeveiiinniiineeeennnen. {489,347)
Property tax revenue - Teeter Plan.................oo e (2,693)
Unrealized (0SS ON INVESIMENt............ooiiiiiiiiciecie e (9,254)
Interest reclassified as transfers from other funds 8,820
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and 10anS..........ccccoiiiiiiii i (61,233)
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not
revenues for financial reporting pUrPOSES. ..o (105,070)
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds...............ccooci i $1,956,818
Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations™ .............ccoccciiiinnns $2,230,568
Difference - budget to GAAP:
Capital asset purchases funded under capital leases
with Finance Corporation.............ooiiiiie it (1,417)
Pension reimbursement and other budget to GAAP differences...............ccccc e (638)
Change recognized in budget basis reserves...........coooeeiiiiiine i (3,154)
GAAP to budget basis change of business tax settlement recorded in prior year......... (63,000)
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are not
expenditures for financial reporting purposes. ... (250,550)
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances - governmental funds............ccoiiiii i $1,911,809

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury
Receivables:
Payroll contribution............cocoiii
Interest and Other.........ooii i
Invested securities lending collateral................ccocii
Deferred charges and other assets..
Total @SSELS......ooiiiiii i

Liabilities
Accounts payable... ...
Estimated claims payable.............oooiiii
Agency obligations..............
Obligations under fixed coupon dollar repurchase agreements.......................
Payable t0 Brokers. ...
Securities lending collateral...............cooo i
Deferred credits and other liabilities...................ccooo i

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Held in trust for pension and other employee benefits and pool participants...

Pension
and Other
Employee Investment
Benefit Trust Trust Agency
Funds Fund Funds
$ 70,570 $ 300,937 $ 103,993
11,026,161 - 2,930
12,358 - 48,329
256,100 1,903 85,441
1,461,506 - -
3 - 5,741
12,826,698 302,840 $ 246,434
15,458 2,267 73,049
14,911 - -
- - 173,385
252,500 - -
593,214 - -
1,461,506 - -
34,782 - -
2,372,371 2,267 $ 246,434
$ 10,454,327 $ 300,573

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Pension
and Other
Employee Investment
Benefit Trust Trust
Funds Fund
Additions:
Employees' contributions.. $ 228,169 $ -
Employer contributions.............ccccooiiiiii e 218,854 -
Contributions on pooled investments................coccol s - 2,119,085
Total contributions. ..o 447,023 2,119,085
Investment income (loss):
Interest... e 215,271 10,773
DIVIENAS. v 63,875 -
Net decrease in fair value of investments...................... (820,239) -
Securities [ending INCOME........ccoiiii e 35,676 -
Fixed coupon doliar repurchase agreement income............................ 7,791 -
Total investment income (loss) (497,626) 10,773
Less investment expenses:
Securities lending borrower rebates and expenses......................... (24,505) -
Fixed coupon dollar repurchase finance charges and expenses..... (7,061) -
Other EXPENSES.........oiiiiiiiiiiiii e e (18,517} -
Total investment expenses (50,083) -
Total additions (10SS), NEL......c..oooiiiiiiiiii e (100,686) 2,129,858
Deductions:
Benefit payments. ... 704,194 -
Refunds of contributions............cooo i 9,814 -
Distribution from pooled investments - 2,104,493
Administrative eXpenses. ... 11,827 -
Total dedUCtionsS..........cooiiiei i 725,835 2,104,493
Change in net assets...........ccccoeoiiiiiiii (826,521) 25,365
Net assets at beginning of year..............ccoo 11,280,848 275,208
Net assets at end of year $ 10,454,327 $ 300,573

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(1)

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

San Francisco is a city and county chartered by the State of California and as such can exercise the
powers as both a city and a county under state law. As required by generally accepted accounting
principles, the accompanying financial statements present the City and County of San Francisco (the City
or Primary Government) and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in
the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operations or financial relationships with the
City.

As a government agency, the City is exempt from both federal income taxes and California State franchise
taxes.

Blended Component Units

Following is a description of those legally separate component units for which the City is financially
accountable that are blended with the Primary Government because of their individual governance or
financial relationships to the City.

San Francisco County Transportation Authority (Authority) - The Authority was created in 1989 by the
voters of the City and County of San Francisco to impose a voter-approved sales and use tax of one-half
of one percent to fund essential traffic and transportation projects. A Board consisting of the eleven
members of the City’'s Board of Supervisors serving ex officio governs the Authority. The operations of the
Authority are reported within other governmental funds. Financial statements for the Authority can be
obtained from the Authority’s administrative offices at 100 Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94102

San Francisco Finance Corporation (Finance Corporation) - The Finance Corporation was created in 1990
by a vote of the electorate to allow the City to lease-purchase $20 million (plus 5% per year growth) of
equipment using tax-exempt obligations. Although legally separate from the City, the Finance Corporation
is reported as if it were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to provide lease
financing to the City. Beginning on July 1, 2001, the operations of the Finance Corporation began to be
reported within the internal service funds. Prior to July 1, 2001, the operations of the Finance Corporation
were reported within governmental funds.

Effective July 1, 2001, Finance Corporation net assets of approximately $145 million were transferred, by
means of interfund transfers, from other governmental funds to the internal service funds to establish the
Finance Corporation as an internal service fund. Internal service funds report certain long-term assets and
liabilities that are not reported in governmental funds since the assets do not represent current financial
resources and the liabilities do not require current financial resources. Accordingly, the transfers out from
the governmental funds are not offset by a corresponding transfer in to the newly created Finance
Corporation internal service fund. Financial statements for the Finance Corporation can be obtained from
the Finance Corporation’s administrative offices at City Hall, Room 336, #1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place,
San Francisco, CA 94102,

San Francisco Parking Authority (Parking Authority) — The Parking Authority was created in October 1949.
in accordance with Proposition D authorized by the City's electorate in November 1988, a City Charter
amendment created the Parking and Traffic Commission (DPT). The DPT consists of five commissioners
appointed by the mayor. Upon creation of the DPT, the responsibility to oversee the City's off-street
parking operations was transferred from the Parking Authority to the DPT. The staff and fiscal operations
of the Parking Authority were also incorporated into the DPT and DPT is reported within other
governmental funds. Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Parking Authority. Further
information about the Parking Authority can be obtained from the Parking Authority's administrative offices
at 25 Van Ness Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94102.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units

San Francisco Redevelopment Agency (Agency) - The Agency is a public body, corporate and politic,
organized and existing under the Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California. Seven
commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City’s Board of
Supervisors, govern it. The Agency has adopted as its mission the creation of affordable housing and
economic development opportunities Citywide. Included in its financial data are the accounts of the San
Francisco Redevelopment Financing Authority (SFRFA), a component unit of the Agency. The SFRFA is a
separate joint-powers authority formed between the Agency and the City to facilitate the long-term
financing of Agency activities. The Agency’s governing commission serves as the Board of Directors of
the SFRFA. Financial statements for the Parking Authority can be obtained from their offices at 25 Van
Ness Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94102,

The Agency’s governing body is not substantively the same as that of the City, and the Agency does not
provide services entirely or almost entirely to the City. The Agency is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. The City is financially accountable for the Agency
through the appointment of the Agency’s Board and the ability of the City to approve the Agency’s budget.
Disclosures related to the Agency, where significant, are identified separately throughout these notes.
Complete financial statements can be obtained from the Agency’s administrative offices at 770 Golden
Gate Ave., San Francisco, CA 94102.

Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) — The TIDA is a nonprofit public benefit corporation. The
TIDA was authorized in accordance with the Treasure Island Conversion Act of 1997 and designated as a
redevelopment agency pursuant to Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California. Seven
commissioners who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City’s Board of
Supervisors, govern the TIDA. The specific purpose of the TIDA is to promote the planning,
redevelopment, reconstruction, rehabilitation, reuse and conversion of the property known as Naval
Station Treasure Island for the public interest, convenience, welfare and common benefit of the inhabitants
of the City. The TIDA has adopted as its mission the creation of affordable housing and economic
development opportunities on Treasure Island.

The TIDA’'s governing body is not substantively the same as that of the City and the TIDA does not
provide services entirely or almost entirely to the City. The TIDA is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. The City is financially accountable for the TIDA through
the appointment of the TIDA’'s Board and the ability of the City to approve the TIDA’s budget. Disclosures
related to the TIDA, where significant, are separately identified throughout these notes. Separate financial
statements are not prepared for TIDA. Further information about TIDA can be obtained from the TIDA
administrative offices at 410 Palm Avenue, Building 1, Room 223, Treasure Island, San Francisco, CA
94130.

Non Disclosed Organizations

There are other governmental agencies that provide services within the City and County of San Francisco.
These entities have independent governing boards and the City is not financially accountable for them.
The City’s basic financial statements, except for certain cash held by the City as an agent, do not reflect
operations of the San Francisco Airport Improvement Corporation, San Francisco Health Authority, San
Francisco Housing Authority, Private Industry Council of San Francisco, San Francisco Unified School
District and San Francisco Community College District. The City is represented in two regional agencies,
the Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) and the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQM),
which are also excluded from the City’s reporting entity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities which rely, to a significant extent, on fees
and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information. This
information is presented only to facilitate financial analysis.

(b) Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers property
tax revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. All
other revenues are considered to be available if they are generally collected within 120 days of the end of
the current fiscal period. It is the City’s policy to submit reimbursement and claim requests for federal and
state grant revenues within 30 days of the end of the program cycle and payment is generally received
within the first or second quarter of the following fiscal year. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to vacation, sick leave, claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is
due.
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Property taxes, other local taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the City receives cash.

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary (enterprise) funds:

The San Francisco International Airport Fund accounts for the activities of the City-owned
commercial service airport in the San Francisco Bay Area.

The Water Department Fund accounts for the activities of the San Francisco Water Department.
The department is engaged in the distribution of water to the City and certain suburban areas.

The Hetch Hetchy Water and Power Fund accounts for the activities of Hetch Hetchy Water and
Power Department (Hetch Hetchy). The department is engaged in the collection and conveyance of
approximately 85% of the City's water supply and in the generation and transmission of electricity.

The Municipal Railway Fund accounts for the activities of the San Francisco Municipal Railway
(Muni) and the San Francisco Municipal Railway Improvement Corporation (SFMRIC). Muni was
established in 1912 and is responsible for the operations of the City’s public transportation system.
SFMRIC is a nonprofit corporation established to provide capital financial assistance for the
modernization of Muni by acquiring, constructing, and financing improvements to the City's public
transportation system.

The General Hospital Medical Center Fund accounts for the activities of the San Francisco
General Hospital Medical Center, a City-owned acute care hospital. This Fund was established in
1980.

The Clean Water Program Fund accounts for the activities of the Clean Water Program. It was
created after the San Francisco voters approved a proposition in 1976, authorizing the City to issue
$240 million in bonds for the purpose of acquiring, construction, improving, and financing
improvements to the City municipal sewage treatment and disposal system.

The Port of San Francisco Fund accounts for the activities of the Port of San Francisco. This was
established in 1969 after the San Francisco voters approved a proposition to accept the transfer of
the Harbor of San Francisco from the State of California.

The Laguna Honda Hospital Fund accounts for the activities of Laguna Honda Hospital, the City-
owned skilled nursing facility which specializes in serving elderly and disabled residents. This Fund
was established in 1983.

The Parking Garages Fund accounts for the activities of various non-profit corporations formed to

provide financial and other assistance the City to acquire land, construct facilities, and manage
various parking facilities.
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Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Permanent Fund accounts for resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support specific programs.

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one City
department to another City department on a cost reimbursement basis. Internal Service Funds
account for the activities of the equipment maintenance services, centralized printing and mailing
services, centralized telecommunications and information services, and lease financing through the
Finance Corporation.

The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds reflect the activities of the Employees’
Retirement System and the Health Service System. The Retirement System accounts for employee
contributions, City contributions, and the earnings and profits from investments. It also accounts for
the disbursements made for employee retirements, withdrawals, disability and death benefits as well
as administrative expenses. The Health Service System accounts for contributions from active and
retired employees and surviving spouses, City contributions, and the earnings and profits from
investments. It also accounts for the disbursements to various health plans and health care
providers for the medical expenses of beneficiaries.

The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the external portion of the Treasurer's Office investment
pool. The funds of the San Francisco Community College District, San Francisco Unified School
District, and the Trial Courts are accounted for within the Investment Trust Fund.

The Agency Funds account for the resources held by the City in a custodial capacity on behalf of
other agencies.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The City has elected not to follow
subsequent private-sector guidance.

In general, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this rule are charges to other City Departments from the Water Department and
Hetch Hetchy. These charges have not been eliminated because elimination would distort the direct costs
and program revenues reported in the Statement of Activities.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2)
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the fund's principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City's enterprise and internal service funds
are charges for customer services including: water, sewer and power charges, public transportation fees,
airline fees and charges, parking fees, commercial and industrial rents, printing services, vehicle
maintenance fees, and telecommunication and information system support charges. Operating expenses
for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and
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depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(c) Budgetary Data

The City adopts annual budgets for all governmental funds on a Modified Accrual basis of accounting
except for capital project funds which adopt project length budgets.

The budget of the City is a detailed operating plan, which identifies estimated costs and resuits in relation
to estimated revenues. The budget includes (1) the programs, projects, services, and activities to be
provided during the fiscal year, (2) the estimated resources (inflows) and amounts available for
appropriation and (3) the estimated charges to appropriations. The budget represents a process through
which policy decisions are made, implemented, and controlled. The City Charter prohibits expending funds
for which there is no legal appropriation.

The following procedures establish the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

Original Budget

(1) Departments and Commissions conduct hearings to obtain public comment on their proposed
annual budgets beginning in December and submit their budget proposals to the Controller's Office
no later than February 21.

(2) The Controller's Office consolidates the budget estimates and transmits them to the Mayor’s Office.
Staff of the Mayor's Office analyze, review and refine the budget estimates before transmitting a
budget to the Board of Supervisors.

(3) By the first working day of June, the Mayor submits the proposed budget to the Board of
Supervisors along with a draft of the annual appropriation ordinance prepared by the Controller’s
Office.

(4)  Within five working days of the Mayor’'s proposed budget transmission to the Board of Supervisors,
the Controller reviews the estimated revenues and assumptions in the Mayor’s proposed budget
and provides an opinion as to their accuracy and reasonableness. The Controller also may make a
recommendation regarding prudent reserves given the Mayor's proposed resources and
expenditures.

(5) The appropriate Committee of the Board of Supervisors conducts hearings, obtains public comment,
and reviews the Mayor's proposed annual budget. The Committee recommends an interim budget
reflecting the Mayor's budget transmittal and, by June 30, the Board of Supervisors passes an
interim budget.

(6) Prior to August 1, the Board of Supervisors finalizes the annual budget through passage of the
Annual Appropriation Ordinance, the legal authority for enactment of the budget.
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Final Budget

The final budgetary data presented in the basic financial statements reflects the following changes to the
original budget:

(1)  Certain annual appropriations are budgeted on a project or program basis. If such projects or
programs are not completed at the end of the fiscal year, unexpended appropriations, including
encumbered funds, are carried forward to the following year. In certain circumstances, other
programs and regular annual appropriations may be carried forward after appropriate approval.
Annually appropriated funds, not authorized to be carried forward, lapse at the end of the fiscal year.
Appropriations carried forward from the prior year are included in the final budgetary data.

(2)  Appropriations may be adjusted during the year with the approval of the Mayor and the Board of
Supervisors. Additionally, the Controller is authorized to make certain transfers of surplus
appropriations within a department. Such adjustments are reflected in the final budgetary data.

The Annual Appropriation Ordinance adopts the budget at the character level of expenditure within
departments. As described above, the Controller is authorized to make certain transfers of
appropriations within departments. Accordingly, the legal level of budgetary control by the Board of
Supervisors is the department level.

Budgetary data, as revised, is presented in the basic financial statements for the General Fund.
Final budgetary data excludes the amount reserved for encumbrances for appropriate comparison
to actual expenditures.

Generally, new or one time federal and state grants, other capital projects, and debt issues are
budgeted by the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors as a supplemental appropriation.

(d) Deposits and Investments
Investment in the Treasurer’s Pool

The Treasurer invests on behalf of most funds of the City and external participants in accordance with the
City’s investment policy and the California State Government Code. The City Treasurer who reports on a
monthly basis to the Board of Supervisors manages the Treasurer's pool. In addition, the function of the
County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the City's investment policy and to monitor
compliance with the investment policy and reporting provisions of the law through an annual audit.

The Treasurer's investment pool consists of two components: 1) pooled deposits and investments and
2) dedicated investment funds. The dedicated investment funds represent restricted funds and relate to
bond issuance of the Enterprise Funds and the General Fund's cash reserve requirement. In addition to
the Treasurer's investment pool, the City has other funds that are held by trustees. These funds are
related to the issuance of bonds and certain loan programs of the City. The investments of the Employees’
Retirement System and deposits and investments of the Redevelopment Agency are held by trustees
(note 5).

The San Francisco Unified School District, San Francisco Community College District, and the Trial
Courts of the State of California are voluntary participants in the City’s investment pool. As of June 30,
2002, $300.6 million was held on behalf of these voluntary participants. The total percentage share of the
Treasurer's pool that relates to these three external participants is 10.4%. The deposits held for these
entities are included in the investment Trust Fund. The City has not provided nor obtained any legally
binding guarantees during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 to support the value of shares in the pool.

44



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For reports on the external investment pool, contact the Office of the Treasurer, Room 140, City Hall, 1 Dr.
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102.

Investment Valuation

Treasurer's Pool — Substantially all investments are carried at fair value. The fair value of pooled
investments is determined annually and is based on current market prices. The fair value of participants’
position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. The method used to determine the value
of participants’ equity withdrawn is based on the book value of the participants’ percentage participation at
the date of such withdrawal. In the event that a certain fund overdraws its share of pooled cash, the
overdraft is reported as a due to the General Fund. Certain US government securities that have a
remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less are carried at amortized cost, which
approximates market value.

Employees’ Retirement System (Retirement System) - Investments are reported at fair value. Securities
traded on national or international exchanges are valued at the last reported sales price at current
exchange rates. Investments that do not have an established market price are reported at estimated fair
value. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade date basis. The fair values of real
estate holdings are estimated primarily on appraisals prepared by third-party appraisers. The fair values of
venture capital investments are estimated based primarily on audited financial statements provided by the
individual fund managers. Such market value estimates involve subjective judgments, and the actual
market price of these investments can only be determined by negotiation between independent third
parties in a sales transaction.

Investments in forward currency contract investments are commitments to purchase or sell stated
amounts of foreign currency. Changes in market value of open contracts are immediately recognized as
gains or losses. The market values of forward currency contracts are determined by quoted currency
prices from national exchanges. As of June 30, 2002, the fair value of open purchase contracts was
$966.8 million, offset by the fair value of open sales contracts of ($980.4) million for a net fair value of
($13.6) million. The Retirement System utilized contracts netting to $17.9 million to hedge (or decrease)
the currency risk of foreign investments or to settle trades, and contracts netting to $4.3 million to increase
investment exposure in foreign currencies beyond the amounts reported as international investment
securities or to settle trades. Additionally, contracts may be used to effectively cancel previous contracts.

The City Charter and Retirement System Board (Board) policies permit the Retirement System to use
investments of the Retirement System's Pension Plan (the Plan) to enter into securities lending
transactions. These are loans of securities to broker-dealers and other entities for collateral, with a
simultaneous agreement to return collateral for the same securities in the future. The Retirement System'’s
securities custodians are agents in lending the Plan’s securities for cash collateral of 102% for domestic
securities and 105% for international securities. Securities on loan at year-end are presented as “non-
categorized” in the schedule of custodial risk (note 5). As of June 30, 2002, the Retirement System has no
credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts the Retirement System owes the borrowers
exceed the amounts the borrowers owe the Retirement System. Contracts with the lending agents require
them to indemnify the Retirement System if the borrowers fail to return the securities (and if the collateral
were inadequate to replace the securities lent) or if the borrowers fail to pay the Retirement System for
income distributions by the securities issuers while the securities are on loan. Non cash collateral cannot
be pledged or sold unless the borrower defaults.

Either the Retirement System or the borrower can terminate all securities loans on demand, although the
average term of the loans is thirty-three days. In lending domestic securities, cash collateral is invested in
the lending agent's short-term investment pool, which at year-end had a weighted-average maturity of
forty-eight days. In lending international securities, cash collateral is invested in a separate short-term
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investment pool, which at year-end had a weighted-average maturity of three days. The relationship
between the maturities of the investment pools and the Retirement System’s loans is affected by the
maturities of the securities loans made by other entities that use the agent's pool, which the Retirement
System cannot determine. Cash collateral may also be invested separately in term loans, in which case
the maturity of the loaned securities matches the term of the loan. Cash received as collateral on
securities lending transactions is reported as an asset, and liabilities from these transactions are reported
in the statement of net assets. Additionally, the costs of securities lending transactions, such as borrower
rebates and fees, are recorded as expenses.

The City Charter and Board policies permit the Retirement System to use investments to enter into fixed
coupon dollar repurchase agreements, that is, a sale of securities with a simultaneous agreement to
repurchase similar securities in the future at a lower price that reflects a financing rate. The fair value of
the securities underlying fixed coupon dollar repurchase agreements equals the cash received. If the
dealers default on their obligations to resell these securities to the Retirement System at the agreed buy
back price, the Retirement System could suffer an economic loss if the securities have to be purchased in
the open market at a price higher than the agreed-upon buy back price. This credit exposure at June 30,
2002 was approximately $313 thousand.

Investments in S&P 500 futures contracts are used to replicate the performance of the S&P 500 index
while lowering transaction costs. Changes in market value of open contracts are immediately recognized
as gains or losses. At June 30, 2002, the fair value of total open contracts was $0. Changes in market
value of open contracts are immediately recognized as gains or losses.

Investments in fixed income future contracts are used to hedge two fixed income portfolios as their
assigned performance benchmark is the Lehman Brothers Global Aggregate Index-Hedged. As of June
30, 2002, the market value of open contracts was ($195) thousand. Changes in the market value of open
contracts are immediately recognized as gains or losses.

Other funds — Non-pooled investments are aiso generally carried at fair value. However, money market
investments (such as short term, highly liquid debt instruments including commercial paper, bankers’
acceptances, and U.S. Treasury and agency obligations), and participating interest-earning investment
contracts (such as negotiable certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and guaranteed or bank
investment contracts) that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are
carried at amortized cost which approximates market value. The fair value of non-pooled investments is
determined annually and is based on current market prices. The fair value of investments in open-end
mutual funds is determined based on the fund’s current share price.

Component Unit - San Francisco Redevelopment Agency - Investments are stated at fair value except for
money market investments with maturities of one year or less which have been stated at amortized cost.
The fair value of investments has been obtained by using market quotes as of June 30, 2002 and reflects
the values as if the Agency were to liquidate the securities on that date.

Investment Income

Income from pooled investments is allocated at month end to the individual funds or external participants
based on the fund or participant’s average daily cash balance in relation to total pooled investments. City
management has determined that the investment income related to certain funds should be allocated to
the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest income is recorded in the General Fund. On a generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis, the income is reported in the fund where the related
investments reside. A transfer is then recorded to transfer an amount equal to the interest earnings to the
General Fund. This is the case for certain other governmental funds, Internal Service Funds, and Trust
and Agency Funds.
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It is the City’s policy to charge interest at month end to those funds that have a negative average daily
cash balance. In certain instances, City management has determined that the interest expense related to
the fund should be allocated to the General Fund. On a budget basis, the interest expense is recorded in
the General Fund. On a GAAP basis, the interest expense is recorded in the fund and then a transfer from
the General Fund for an amount equal to the interest expense is made to the fund. This is the case for
certain other governmental funds, Municipal Railway, Laguna Honda Hospital, San Francisco General
Hospital Medical Center, and the Internal Service Funds.

Income from non-pooled investments is recorded based on the specific investments held by the fund. The
interest income is recorded in the fund that earned the interest.

(e) Loans Receivable

For the purposes of the fund financial statements, the other governmental funds expenditures relating to
long-term loans arising from loan subsidy programs are charged to operations upon funding and the loans
are recorded, net of an estimated allowance for potentially uncollectible loans, with an offset to a deferred
credit account.

The Mayor's Office of Housing administers several housing programs and issues loans to qualified
applicants. Many of these loans may be forgiven if certain terms and conditions of the loans are met. They
are accounted for in the other governmental funds as long-term loans receivable with an offsetting
allowance for forgivable loans.

For purposes of the government-wide financial statements, long-term loans are not offset by deferred
credit accounts.

(f) Inventory

Inventory recorded in the proprietary funds primarily consists of construction materials and maintenance
supplies as well as pharmaceutical supplies maintained by the hospitals. Generally, proprietary funds
value inventory at cost or average cost and expense supply inventory as it is consumed. This is referred to
as the consumption method of inventory accounting. An exception is the Clean Water Program which
accounts for materials and supplies using the purchase method. This method records items as expenses
when they are acquired. The governmental fund types also use the purchase method to account for
supply inventories.

(g9) Redevelopment Agency Property Held for Resale

Property held for resale is recorded as an asset at the lower of estimated cost or estimated conveyance
value. Estimated conveyance value is management's estimate of net realizable value of a property based
on current intended use.

(h) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, facilities and improvement, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial individual cost of
more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Capital outlay is recorded as expenditures
of the General Fund and other governmental funds and as assets in the government-wide financial
statements to the extent the City’s capitalization threshold is met. Interest incurred during the construction
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phase of the capital assets of business-type activities is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset
constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. Amortization of assets
acquired under capital lease is included in depreciation and amortization. Facilities and improvements,
infrastructure, and machinery and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units,
are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Facilities and Improvements 15 to 50
Infrastructure 15t0 70
Machinery and Equipment 3 to 40
Easements 20

Works of art, historical treasures and zoological animals held for public exhibition, education, or research
in furtherance of public service, rather than financial gain, are not capitalized. These items are protected,
kept unencumbered, cared for and preserved by the City. It is the City’s policy to utilize proceeds from the
sale of these items for the acquisition of other items for collection and display.

(i) Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Pay

Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to ten weeks depending on an employee’s length of service,
is payable upon termination.

Sick leave may be accumulated up to six months. Unused amounts accumulated prior to December 6,
1978 are vested and payable upon termination of employment by retirement or disability caused by
industrial accident or death. Sick leave earned subsequent to that date is non-vesting and, hence, is not a
liability.

The City accrues for all salary-related items in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements for which they are liable to make a payment directly and incrementally associated with
payments made for compensated absences on termination. The City includes its share of social security
and Medicare payments made on behalf of the employees in the accrual for vacation and sick leave pay.

(j) Bond Issuance Costs and Discounts

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund type financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts as other
financing sources and uses, respectively, and bond issuance costs as debt service expenditures.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are reported as debt
service expenditures.
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(k) Fund Equity
Reservations of Fund Equity

Reservations of fund balances of the governmental funds indicate that portion of fund equity which is not
available for appropriation for expenditure or is legally segregated for a specific future use. Following is a
brief description of the nature of certain reserves.

Reserve for cash requirements - The City’s Charter provides for a cash requirement reserve to meet
potential short-term working capital needs. The balance is calculated as 10% of either the current or the
last preceding tax levy.

Reserve for emergencies - The City's Charter provides for an emergency reserve fund for purposes of
meeting any emergency as defined in the City’s Charter. The amount reserved for emergencies may be
appropriated only by a vote of three-fourths of the Board of Supervisors.

Reserve for assets not available for appropriation - Certain assets, primarily cash and investments outside
City Treasury and deferred charges, do not represent expendable available financial resources.
Therefore, a portion of fund equity is reserved to offset the balance of these assets.

Reserve for debt service - The fund balance of the debt service funds is reserved for the payment of debt
service in the subsequent year.

Reserves for encumbrances - Encumbrances are recorded as reservations of fund balances because they
do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. In certain other governmental funds, this accounting treatment
results in a deficit unreserved fund balance. This deficiency is carried forward to the next fiscal year where
it is applied against estimated revenues in the year the commitments are expended.

Reserve for appropriation carry-forward — At the end of the fiscal year, certain budgeted expenditures are
authorized to be carried over and expended in the ensuing year. A reserve of fund balance is established
in the amount of these budget authorizations.

Reserve for subsequent years’ budgets — A portion of fund equity is reserved for subsequent years’
budgets. This balance inciudes the reserve required by the City’'s Administrative Code for the budget
incentive program for the purpose of making additional funds available for items and services that will
improve the efficient operations of departments.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for
their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheets because the use of the
proceeds is limited by applicable bond covenants and resolutions. Restricted assets account for the
principal and interest amounts accumulated to pay debt service, unspent bond proceeds, and amounts
restricted for future capital projects. In addition, certain grant proceeds are restricted by the granting
agency.

Designations of Fund Equity

Designations of fund balances (note 4) indicate that portion of fund balance that is not available for
appropriation based on management’s plans for future use of the funds. Following is a brief description of
the nature of the designation as of June 30, 2002.
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Designation for litigation and contingencies — This designation represents management’'s estimate of
anticipated legal settiements or contingencies to be paid in the subsequent fiscal year.

Deficit Fund Balances/Net Assets

The Telecommunications and Information Internal Service Fund had a $4.5 million deficit total net assets
as of June 30, 2002. Approximately $ 2.2 million of this deficit is due to depreciation that is not funded and
will result in continuing deficits. The remaining portion of the deficit of total net assets relates to operations
and is expected to be reduced in future years through anticipated rate increases or reductions in operating
expenses.

The Central Shops Internal Service Fund had a $781 thousand deficit total net assets as of June 30, 2002.
The deficit is due to depreciation and certain non-current accrued expenses that are not funded and will
result in continuing deficits in future years.

() Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are generally recorded as transfers in (out) except for certain types of transactions that
are described below.

(1) Charges for services are recorded as revenues of the performing fund and expenditures of the
requesting fund. Unbilled costs are recognized as an asset of the performing fund at the end of the
fiscal year.

(2) Reimbursements for expenditures, initially made by one fund which are properly applicable to
another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of
expenditures in the fund that is reimbursed.

(m) Refunding of Debt

Gains or losses occurring from advance refundings, completed subsequent to June 30, 1993, are deferred
and amortized into expense for both business-type activities and proprietary funds. For governmental
activities, they are deferred and amortized into expense if they occurred subsequent to June 30, 2000.

(n) Cash Flows

Statements of cash flows are presented for proprietary fund types. Cash and cash equivalents include all
unrestricted and restricted highly liquid investments with original purchase maturities of three months or
less. Pooled cash and investments in the City’s Treasury represent monies in a cash management pool
and such accounts are similar in nature to demand deposits.

(o) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

(p) Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented as 2001 Summarized Comparative Financial Information in the basic financial
statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the 2002
basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance
sheet and the government-wide statement of net assets
Total fund balances of the City's governmental funds, $1,248,962, differs from net assets of governmental

activities, $1,475,021, reported in the statement of net assets. The difference primarily results from the
long-term economic focus in the statement of net assets versus the current financial resources focus in

the governmental fund balance sheets.

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Assets (in thousands)

Total Long-term Internal Reclassi-  Statement of
Governmental  Assets, Service fications and Net Assets
Funds Liabilities(1) Funds(2) Eliminations Totals
Assets
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............... $ 1,036,267 $ - $ 14499 § - $ 1,050,766
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.......... 132,859 - 51,732 - 184,591
Receivables, net:
Property taxes and penalties..............cccoceieninic 33,395 - - - 33,395
Other [0cal taxes......cceeimrrrircieciiciiite et 173,873 - - - 173,873
Federal and state grants and subventions.................. 139,975 - - - 139,975
Charges for services..............ccccovvenvrninnnnn 21,755 - - - 21,755
Interest and other............cccoiiniiiin 10,611 - 1,251 - 11,862
Due from other funds ...........ccoceiiiicciinns 66,705 - - (66,705) -
Due from component unit ...........cccoccoiveiviininncnineenns 22,587 - - - 22,587
Loans receivable, net............cccoiiii e 149,125 - - - 149,125
Capital assets, net - 2,037,854 3,597 - 2,041,451
Deferred charges and other assets............c.cccocceeie 7,200 7,545 3,458 - 18,203
Total @SSELS.....eioeeeiiecrre et 1,794,352 2,045,399 74,537 (66,705) 3,847,583
Liabilities
Accounts payable 150,728 - 6,814 - 157,542
Accrued payroll.........ccocceiinininnnne . 80,238 - 2,315 - 82,553
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay...............ccccceel - 119,144 2,816 - 121,960
Accrued workers' compensation...............coceviieennne. - 175,765 1,012 - 176,777
Estimated claims payable.......... . - 41,445 - - 41,445
Accrued interest payable..................... . 398 8,116 2,997 - 11,511
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues... 39,284 (36,289) - - 2,995
Due to other funds/internal balances............cccccvnneean. 33,893 - 2,027 (66,705) (30,785)
Deferred credits and other liabilities....................ccoee 240,849 (193,260) 1,922 - 49,511
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables......... - 1,498,860 260,193 - 1,759,053
Total iabilities.........cccccoererveieccieeeee e 545,390 1,613,781 280,096 (66,705) 2,372,562
Fund balances/net assets
Total fund balances/net assets..........c..cccoevievecinnnnnnn. 1,248,962 431,618 (205,559) - 1,475,021
Total liabilities and fund balances/net assets........... $ 1,794,352 $ 2,045,399 $ 74,537 $ (66,705) $ 3,847,583
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(1) When capital assets (land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment) that are to be used
in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the costs of those assets are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, the statement of net assets
includes those capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, among the assets of the
City as a whole.

Cost Of CAPItal @SSELS........ooiiii i 3
Accumulated depreciation
$
Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid and are capitalized
and amortized over the life of the corresponding bonds for purposes of the statement of
net assets. $

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and
payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All
liabilities, both current and long-term, are reported in the statement of net assets.
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay..............cc.cooii $
Accrued workers' COMPENSAtION. ...
Estimated claims payable.............ccoiiiiiii

Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables..............cccco i
$

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized
as an expenditure when paid. $

Because the focus of governmental funds is on short-term financing, some assets wili
not be available to pay for current period expenditures. Those assets (for example,
receivables) are offset by deferred revenues in the governmental funds and thus are not
included in fund balance.
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenue....................cocoo e 3
Deferred credits and other liabilities. ...

$
(2) Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as capital lease financing, equipment maintenance, printing and mailing services,
and telecommunications, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of certain internal
service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. $

(b) Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide

statement of activities

The net change in fund balances for governmental funds, ($243,755) differs from the change in net assets
for governmental activities, $16,691, reported in the statement of activities. The differences arise primarily
from the iong-term economic focus in the statement of activities versus the current financial resources

focus in the governmental funds. The effect of the differences is illustrated below.
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances/Statement of Activities (in thousands)

Revenues

Property taxes. .........oovvemimin e
BUSINESS tAXES.....ueeerreeiiiieniieeiree it
Other 10Cal tAXES...c.vvierieveireteeeir et eaar e eree s
Licenses, permits and franchises.
Fines, forfeitures and penalties..........cccccevvieeeeiceniions
Interest and investment income............cooeeiinine.
Rents and CONCESSIONS . ..coov e rirnrerrime e eine s
Intergovernmental:

[T =Y = | IO OO OO TO PO

Charges for ServiCes........couiieimneiiias
Other TEVENUES.....oevvieeieeeiirirreerieeiresssane s seeea s

TOtal FEVENUES....c..ieciercrecee et rseie s srae e

Expenditures/Expenses

Current:
PUbIiC protection..... ...
Public works, transportation and commerce.....
Human welfare and neighborhood development..
Community health..........co.cooonininiiiines
Culture and recreation...........cceevenienninennenenns
General administration and finance
General City responsibilities..... ...t

Debt service:
Principal retirement...........ccooioni
Interest and fiscal charges..
Bond iSSUBNCE COSES......ovvririeriiriiver it

Capital OULIBY......cooccv e

Total expenditures/expenses.........ocvvvevenncnincnnens

Other financing sources (uses)/changes in
net assets
Net transfers (to) from other funds.........ccoocceeeeiiieas
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds issued...........ccooieinmniicienine
Premium on issuance of bonds.....
Discount on issuance of bonds..............
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent...
Other Financing sources - capital leases...

Total other financing sources (uses)/changes
N NEt ASSELS...ccovirricciis i
Net change for the year.............ccocooviininniiiinn,

Total Long-term Capital- Internal Long-term Statement of
Governmental Revenues/ related Service Debt Activities
Funds Expenses(3) ltems(4) Funds(5) Transactions(6) Totals
687,150 $ 10,553 § - 8 - 8 - $ 697,703
274,848 - - - - 274,848
444,590 - - - - 444,590
25,762 - - - - 25,762
12,045 - - - - 12,045
65,597 - - 5,000 - 70,597
63,623 - - - - 63,623
307,943 - - - - 307,943
608,804 - - - - 608,804
33,924 - - - - 33,924
225,547 - - - - 225,547
26,405 - - - - 26,405
2,776,238 10,553 - 5,000 - 279,791
690,050 20,127 11,282 (3,907) - 717,552
296,411 14,196 17,177 (10,006) - 317,778
613,133 (27,282) 337 - - 586,188
484,826 8,420 248 362 - 493,856
238,326 (1,669) 14,330 2,566 (6,933) 246,620
164,745 (22,046) 13,955 (229) 345 156,770
54,628 (188) - 1,111 - 55,551
69,536 - - - (69,536) -
68,111 - - 8,189 1,035 77,335
2,987 - - - (2,987) -
276,662 - (276,662) - - -
2,959,415 (8,442) (219,333) {1,914) (78,076) 2,651,650
(269,573) - - 145,174 - (124,399)
249,995 - - - (249,995) -
3,095 - - - (3,095) -
(238) - - - 238 -
(136,230) - - - 136,230 -
91,424 - - - (91,424) -
949 - - - - 949
(60,578) - - 145,174 (208,046) (123,450)
(243,755) $ 18,995 $ 219,333 § 152,088 § (129,970) $ 16,691
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Because some property taxes will not be collected for several months after the City's fiscal year ends, they are not
considered as available revenues in the governmental funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Certain long-term liabilities reported in the prior
year statement of net assets were paid during the current period resulting in expenditures in the governmental
funds. This is the amount by which the decrease in long term liabilities exceeded expenses reported in the
statement of activities that do not require the use of current financial resources.

Some expenditures reported in the governmental funds pertain to the establishment of deferred credits on long-term
loans since the loans are not considered "available" to pay current period expenditures. The deferred credits are not
reported in the statement of net assets and, therefore, the related expenses are not reported in the statement of
activities.

When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the resources
expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. As a result, fund balance decreases by the amount of financial resources expended, whereas net assets
decrease by the amount of depreciation expense charged for the year, and the loss on disposal of capital assets.

CaPItA] EXPENGIUIES. ..ot et h e
Depreciation expenses
Loss on disposal of capital assets..

[0 N3 (=1 C=1a o= T OO U OO T PO PP PP PP PP PPV PR PPRPPPPR

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as capital lease
financing, equipment maintenance, printing and mailing services, and telecommunications, to individual funds. The
adjustments for internal service funds "close" those funds by charging additional amounts to participating
governmental activities to completely cover the internal service funds' costs for the year.

Lease payments on the Moscone Convention Center (note 8) are reported as a culture and recreation expenditure
in the governmental funds and, thus, have the effect of reducing fund balance because current financial resources
have been used. For the City as a whole, however, the principal payments reduce the liability in the statement of net
assets and do not result in an expense in the statement of activities. The City’s capital lease obligation was reduced
because principal payments were made to the lessee. Additions to the lease obligation related to interest accretion
are reported as culture and recreation expenditures in the governmental funds when paid. The City's capital lease
obligation was increased due to the accrual of accreted interest resulting in additional culture and recreation
expenses being reported in the statement of activities.

Principal PAYMENTS MAGE........ oottt
Increase in capital [8ase ODIGAtION. . ..... ..o

Bond issuance costs are expended in governmental funds when paid, and are capitalized and amortized over the
life of the corresponding bonds for purposes of the statement of activities.
BON IS8 AIMCE COSES. ... o i ittt et e
AmOortization of DONG ISSUBNCE COSES ... ittt e

DI EIEIICE. ..o et e e e e e b e e e e

Bond premiums and discounts are expended in the governmental funds when the bonds are issued, and are
capitalized in the statement of net assets. The following premiums and discounts were capitalized during the
current period:

[ =Y 0 1110141 7S O P P
Discounts

Net amount capitalized
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Repayment of bond principal and the payment to escrow in conjunction with the advance refunding of debt are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds and, thus, have the effect of reducing fund balance because
current financial resources have been used. For the City as a whole, however, the principal payments and payment
to escrow for refunded debt reduce the liabilities in the statement of net assets and do not result in expenses in the
statement of activities. The City's bonded debt was reduced because principal payments were made to bond
holders and payments were made to escrow for refunded debt.

Principal payMents MAOE. . ... ..o et e e e $ 69,536
Payments to escrow for refunded debt...............o 136,230
$ 205,766

Interest expense in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in governmental funds because (1)
additional accrued interest was calculated for bonds and notes payable, (2) deferral of the loss on advance debt
refunding which is expended in the governmental funds and capitalized and amortized in the statement of activities,
(3) amortization of bond discounts, premiums and refunding losses which are expended within the fund statements,
and (4) additional interest expense was recognized on the accrual of an arbitrage rebate liability which will not be
recognized in the governmental funds until the liability is due and payable.

ACCTUBA INEBIESE. ... ittt ettt ettt eh et b ettt b e ea b e e eh e e e b he e oh e Saa e e et e ean e e em b e e e s ads e e b a e e es b b e s e e e e s sbeenns $  (2,494)
Refunding loss 3,666
Amortization of bond premiums, discounts and refunding l0SSES..............cooiviiiiiiiiii (158)
Arbitrage rebate liability............cooo (2,049)
$  (1,035)
Bond proceeds and capital leases are reported as financing sources in governmental funds and thus contribute to
the change in fund balance. In the government-wide statements, however, issuing debt and entering into capital
lease arrangements increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and does not affect the statement of
activities. Proceeds were received from:
General Obligation DOMAS.........cccoiii ettt $ 17,665
General obligation refunding bonds 118,945
Certificate of participation...................oons 37,170
Certificate of participation refunding 15,460
Settlement obligation DONAS...........ooee i 60,755
$ 249,995
PRI IBASES. .. ..t e e $ 91424

BUDGETARY RESULTS RECONCILED TO RESULTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Budgetary Results Reconciliation

The budgetary process is based upon accounting for certain transactions on a basis other than GAAP
basis. The results of operations are presented in the budget-to-actual comparison statement in
accordance with the budgetary process (Budget basis) to provide a meaningful comparison with the
budget.

The major differences between the Budget basis “actual” and GAAP basis are as follows:

(a) Basis differences

Certain accruals for estimated claims payable are excluded from the Budget basis financial statement
because such amounts are budgeted on a cash basis.
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(b) Timing differences

Timing differences represent transactions that are accounted for in different periods for Budget basis and
GAAP basis reporting. Certain revenues accrued on a Budget basis have been deferred for GAAP
reporting. These primarily relate to the accounting for property tax revenues under the Teeter Plan (note
B).

The fund balances as of June 30, 2002 on a Budget basis are reconciled to the fund balances on a GAAP
basis as follows (in thousands):

General
Fund
Fund balance - Budget basis..............ocvveeiiiiiiiiie e $385,027
Unrealized gain on iNVESIMENTS...........oooiiiiiii e 8,214
Deferred charges and assets not available for appropriation.............c.cccccovveiennn, 6,406
Cumulative excess property tax revenues recognized on a Budget basis............... (19,256)
Fund balance - GAAP DasSiS............ooviiiiiiie e e $380,391

General Fund Budget basis fund balance at June 30, 2002 is composed of the following (in thousands):

Reserved for cash requirements ................cccccoevviii i, $93,293
Reserved for emergencies ........cccocovviiiiiiciii e 4,198
Reserved forencumbrances ...........ccooovoiviiiiici e 52,735
Reserved for appropriation carryforward......................... 61,716
Reserved for subsequent years’ budgets:
Reserved for budget incentive program .........ccccccceeeeieen. 2,300
Reserved forinvestments...........ccoovvvonii 5,080
Reserved for on-line City access program....................... 350
Reserved for salaries and benefits (MOU)........................ 11,400
Reserved for nurses' childcare (MOU) .............cc.oee 1,100
Reserved for litigation...............cccccoiii 956
Reserved for Recreation & Park savings ..........cccccceeeeenn. 3,500
Reserved for one time expenditures .............c.cccccceennnn, 683
TOtal FESEIVE ..o $237,321
Designated for litigation and contingencies............................ 17,506
Unreserved — available for appropriation ..............cccceeeieee 130,200
Total unreserved amounts ..............cccoee e, 147,706
Fund Balance, June 30, 2002 - Budget basis $385,027

Of the $130.2 million unreserved-available for appropriation, $124.1 million has been subsequently
appropriated as part of the General Fund budget for fiscal year 2003.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The City's deposits and investments are invested pursuant to investment policy guidelines established by

the City Treasurer subject to review by the Treasury Oversight Committee. The Treasury Oversight
Committee established under California Government Code Sections 27130 to 27137 is composed of
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various City officials and representatives of agencies with large cash balances. The objectives of the
policy are, in order of priority, preservation of capital, liquidity, and yield. The policy addresses the
soundness of financial institutions in which the City will deposit funds, types of investment instruments as
permitted by the California Government Code, and the percentage of the portfolio which may be invested
in certain instruments with longer terms to maturity. Investments permitted by the City’s investment policy
include the following:

Public Time Deposits
Public Demand Accounts
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
U.S. Government Securities

e Treasury Bills

e Treasury Bonds

e Treasury Notes
e Federal Agencies -

¢ Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Farm Credit Bank
Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Mortgage Corporation
Student Loan Marketing Association
e Money Market Instruments
e Commercial Paper
e Bankers' Acceptances
e Repurchase Agreements
s Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The City’s investment policy identifies certain restrictions related to the above investments. Investments
held by the City Treasurer during the year did not include repurchase agreements or reverse repurchase
agreements.

Other deposits and investments maintained outside the City Treasury are invested pursuant to governing
bond covenants or California Government Code provisions. The following provides a brief description of
the nature of these investments.

Employees’ Retirement System

The Retirement System'’s funds are invested pursuant to policy guidelines established by the Retirement
System’s Board. The objective of the investment policy is to maximize the expected return of the fund at
an agreed upon level of risk. The Retirement Board has established percentage guidelines for types of
investments to ensure the portfolio is diversified. As of June 30, 2002, the Retirement System had no
investments in any one organization that represented 5% or more of plan net assets. Investments held by
the Retirement System during the year did not include reverse repurchase agreements.

Other Funds

Other funds consist primarily of deposits and investments with trustees related to the issuance of bonds
and to certain loan programs operated by the City. These funds are invested either in accordance with
bond covenants and are pledged for payment of principal, interest, and specified capital improvements or
in accordance with grant agreements and may be restricted for the issuance of loans.
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Component Units

The investment policy of the Redevelopment Agency is governed by Article 2 of the California
Government Code (Code). Investments are restricted to certain types of instruments and certain of these
instruments are only allowed within limits. The Code permits repurchase agreements, but reverse
repurchase agreements require the prior approval of the Agency Commission. The Agency does not
participate in reverse repurchase agreements or other high-risk investments as defined by the Agency’s
investment policy. It is the Agency'’s intention to hold investments until maturity, unless earlier liquidation
would result in an investment gain.

The funds of the TIDA are invested solely in the City Treasury.

Deposits and investments

Total City deposits and investments at fair value are as follows (in thousands):

Primary Component
Government Units

Governmental Business-type Fiduciary

Activities Activities Funds Total
Deposits and investments with
City Tre@SUMY v eeeeeeeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeea $1,050,766 ' $ 754,778 $ 475500 ° $ 2,281,044 $ 3,442
Deposits and investments outside
City Treasury......coeoeieiiiiiins 184,591 ° 3,508 11,029,091 11,217,190 104,394
Restricted assets:
Deposits and investments with
City Treasury..........ccoooeiniiinn - 601,351 - 601,351 -
Deposits and investments outside
City Treasury......cccooeeieeeiinniiiinns - 390,938 - 390,938 -
invested securities lending coliateral... - - 1,461,506 1,461,506 219,060
Total deposits and investments........... $ 1,235,357 $1,750,575 $ 12,966,097 $ 15,952,029 $ 326,896
DEPOSItS...coiiiiii i $ 39,084 $ 10,055 % 4,228 $ 53,367 § 5,221
INVeStMENtS....o.oooiiiiii 1,196,273 1,740,520 12,961,869 15,898,662 321,675
Total deposits and investments........... $ 1,235,357 $ 1,750,575 $ 12,966,097 $ 15,952,029 $ 326,896

Includes deposits and investments with the City Treasury of total governmental funds ($1,036,267) and

internal service funds ($14,499).

includes deposits and investments with the City Treasury of pension and other employee benefit trust funds ($70,570j,
investment trust fund ($300,937) and agency funds ($103,993).

includes deposits and investments outside the City Treasury of total governmental funds ($132,859)

and internal service funds ($51,732).

2

3
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Cash and Deposits
The City had cash and deposits at June 30, 2002 as follows (in thousands):

Primary Government Component Units
Governmental Business-type Fiduciary
Activities Activities Funds
Carrying Bank Carrying Bank Camrying Bank Carrying Bank
Amount Balance Amount Balance Amount Balance Amount Balance
Cashonhand....................... $ 174  § - $ 720 % - $2930 % - % 1 8 -
Federally insured deposits.... 500 500 1,283 1,283 - - 158 163
Collateralized deposits *....... 38,410 160,890 170 50 - - 5,062 6,170
Uninsured and
uncollateralized.................... - - 7,882 7734 1,298 1,298 - -

$ 30084 $ 161,390 $ 10055 $ 9067 $ 4228 § 1298 $ 5221 §$ 6,333

* Under the City’s cash management policy, investments are converted to cash as checks are
presented for payment. At June 30, 2002, the carrying amount of collateralized deposits has
been reduced by the amount of outstanding checks of approximately $122.6 million. Of the
$122.6 million of outstanding checks, $34.8 million relates to the San Francisco Unified
School District and Community College District which have been reflected in an investment
trust fund.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure
the City’s deposits not covered by Federal depository insurance by pledging government securities as
collateral. The fair value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City’s deposits or 150% of
mortgage backed collateral. The collateral must be held at the pledging bank’s trust department or other
bank, acting as the pledging bank’s agent, in the City’s name.

The $9.2 million of uncollateralized cash outlined above consists of $1.3 million of cash held on behalf of
the Employees’ Retirement System by a third party trustee, $4.8 million, $0.2 million, $0.3 million, and $2.6
million of cash held on behalf of Municipal Railway, Port Commission, Laguna Honda Hospitai, and the
Parking Garages respectively by third party trustees.

Investments

Investments of the City are summarized below. The investments that are represented by specific
identifiable investment securities are classified as to custodial risk by three categories. They are as

follows:
Category 1 - includes investments that are insured or registered or securities held by the City or
its agent in the City’s name;
Category 2 - includes uninsured and unregistered investments, with the securities held by
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the City’s name;
Category 3 - includes uninsured and unregistered investments, with the securities held by the
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.
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At June 30, 2002, investments included the following (in thousands):

Type of Investment
Primary Government including Pension
and Investment Trust Funds

Investments in City Treasury:
U.S. government securities....
Federal agencies..................
Negotiable certificates of deposit.
Public time deposit

Total Investments in City Treasury.......cccccccoovvicnninieeiin e

E 0 ' Retirement System (ERS):
U.S. government Securities. ...
Short term bills and notes
Debt securities
Equity securities

Total categorized investments..
Non-categorized investments:
Mortgage backed securities
Fixed interest mutual funds...........
Equity investments, inlcuding mutual funds..
Real estate
Venture capital ...
Money market mutual funds...............
Investment in lending agents' short-term
Investment pool
Investments lent to broker-dealers

Total non-categorized investments...........................

Total Employees' Retirement System....................
Qther Funds:

U.S. government securities.................cocoii s

Total categorized investments..............c..ccocoiviiiiinn e,
Non-categorized investments:

Commercial PAPEI.........cooooii

Money market mutual funds............c.co oo

Total non-categorized investments..
Total Other Funds.
Total Primary Government including

Pension and Investment Trust Funds...........c....coeiiniinninnne
Component Units -
Redevelopment Agency
U.S. government securities and Federal agencies...
Bankers' acceptances...
Commercial paper.....
Corporate medium term notes ..
Repurchase agreements

Total categorized investments........................
Non-categorized investments:
Guaranteed investment contracts
Local agency investment fund.
Money market mutual funds

Total non-categorized investments..........c.....ccco
Total Redevelopment AGeNnCy......................,
Treasure Island Development Authority

nCity T .

U.S. government securities..................coooiinn
Total Treasure island Development Authority.........c..ccoeniiiiinniinins

Total Component UnitS......ccooieeciiinienniis s
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Category Carrying

1 2 3 value
2,393,877 § - $ - $ 2,393,877
442,736 - - 442,736
10,000 - - 10,000
100 - - 100
2,846,713 - - 2,846,713
343,510 - - 343,510
48,826 - 21,211 70,037
1,030,839 - 84,053 1,114,892
3,607,684 - 485 3,608,169
5,030,859 - 105,749 5,136,608
485,029
452,387
748,480
820,844
1,218,142
745,130
1,461,506
1,418,243
7,349,761
12,486,369
64,048 - 427,733 491,781
64,048 - 427,733 491,781
24,533
49,266
73,799
565,580
7,941,620 $ - $ 533482 $ 15,898,662
1,786 $ 3,854 $ 132,102 $ 137,842
- 3,608 - 3,608
7.528 13,593 11,059 32,180
2,015 - - 2,015
- - 1,634 1,634
11,329 21,155 144,795 177,279
39,912
63,019
38,023
140,954
318,233
3,442 - - 3,442
3,442 - - 3,442
14771 § 21,155 $§ 144,795 § 321,675




CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The types of investments made during the year were substantially the same as those held as of June 30,
2002. Fair value fluctuates with interest rates, and increasing rates could cause fair value to decline below
original cost. City management believes the liquidity in the portfolio is sufficient to meet cash flow
requirements and to preclude the City from having to sell investments below original cost for that purpose.

The interest and net investment loss is comprised of the following at June 30, 2002 (in thousands):

Interest and dividends, net of amounts capitalized $ 400,273
Net decrease in the fair value of investments (802,213)
Total investment loss $(401,940)

The net decrease in the fair value of investments takes into account all changes in fair value (including
purchases and sales) that occurred during the year. The primary component of this figure is the net
decrease in the fair value of pension investments.

The earned yield, which includes net gains on investments sold, on all investments held by the City
Treasurer for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 was 4.139%.

The following represents a condensed statement of net assets and changes in net assets for the
Treasurer's Pool as of June 30, 2002 (in thousands):

Statement of Net Assets
Net assets held in trust for all pool participants....... $2,885,772
Equity of internal pool participants........................... $ 2,585,199
Equity of external pool participants......................... 300,573
Total equity........ocoooiii e $2,885,772

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Netassets at July 1, 2001, $ 3,023,036
Net change in investments by pool participants...... (137,264)
Net assets at June 30, 2002...............cccevveeeenn. $2,885772

The following provides a summary of key investment information for the Treasurer's Pool as of June 30,
2002 (in thousands):

Carrying

Type of Investment Rates Maturities Par Value Value
US government securities........ 1.66% -7.52% 7/05/02-11/15/06 $ 2,386,006 $ 2,397,319
Federal agencies....................... 1.72% -2.35% 7/03/02 - 11/29/02 448 670 442736
Commercial paper..........cc......... 3.8% 7/01/02 10,000 10,001
Public time deposits.................. 3.39% 8/21/02 100 100

$ 2,844,775 2,850,156
Carrying amount of deposits in Treasurer's Pool............ccccove 35,616
Total cash and investments in Treasurer's Pool.............cccooovviiiivieeeinnnn. $ 2,885,772
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

PROPERTY TAXES

The City is responsible for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes in accordance with
enabling state law. Property taxes are levied on both real and personal property. Liens for secured
property taxes attach on January 1st preceding the fiscal year for which taxes are levied. Secured
property taxes are levied on the first business day of September and are payable in two equal
installments: the first is due on November 1st and delinquent with penalties after December 10th; the
second is due February 1st and delinquent with penalities after April 10th. Secured property taxes that are
delinquent and unpaid as of June 30th are subject to redemption penalties, costs, and interest when paid.
If not paid at the end of five years, the property may be sold at public auction and the proceeds used to
pay delinquent amounts due. Any excess is remitted, if claimed, to the taxpayer. Unsecured personal
property taxes do not represent a lien on real property. Those taxes are due on January 1st and become
delinquent with penalties after August 31st. Supplemental property tax assessments associated with
changes in the assessed valuation due to transfer of ownership in property or upon completion of new
construction are levied in two equal installments and have variable due dates based on the dates of the
underlying transaction.

Since the passage of California's Proposition 13, beginning with fiscal year 1978-79, general property
taxes are based either on a flat 1% rate applied to the 1975-76 full value of the property or on 1% of the
sales price of the property on sales transactions or construction value added after the 1975-76 valuation.
Taxable values on properties (exclusive of increases related to sales and construction) can rise at the
lesser of 2% per year or inflation.

The Proposition 13 limitations on general property taxes do not limit taxes levied to pay the interest and
redemption charges on any indebtedness approved by the voters prior to June 6, 1978 (the date of
passage of Proposition 13). Proposition 13 was amended in 1986 to allow property taxes in excess of the
1% tax rate limit to fund general obligation bond debt service when such bonds are approved by two-thirds
of the local voters. These "override”" taxes for debt service amounted to approximately $109.9 million for
the year ended June 30, 2002.

Taxable valuation for the year ended June 30, 2002 (net of non-reimbursable exemptions, reimbursable
exemptions, and tax increment allocations to the Redevelopment Agency) was approximately $84.5 billion,
an increase of 12.8% from the previous year. The secured tax rate was $1.124 per $100 of assessed
valuation. After adjusting for a State mandated property tax shift to schools, the tax rate is comprised of:
$0.65 for general government, $0.124 for bond debt service, and $0.350 for the San Francisco Unified
School District, the San Francisco Community College District, the Bay Area Air Quality Management
District, and the Bay Area Rapid Transit District. Delinquencies in the current year on secured taxes and
unsecured taxes amounted to 2.20% and 5.15%, respectively, of the current year tax levy, for an average
delinquency rate of 2.48% of the current year tax levy.

As established by the Teeter Plan, the Controller allocates to the City and other agencies 100% of the
secured property taxes billed but not yet collected by the County; in return, as the delinquent property
taxes and associated penalties and interest are collected, the County retains such amounts in the Agency
Fund. To the extent the Agency Fund balances are higher than required, transfers may be made to benefit
the City’'s General Fund on a budgetary basis. The balance of the tax loss reserve, as of June 30, 2002
was $9.1 million, which is included in the Agency Fund for reporting purposes. The City has funded
payment of accrued and current delinquencies, together with the required reserve, from interfund
borrowing.
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(7) CAPITAL ASSETS

Primary Government

Capital asset activity of the primary government for the year ended June 30, 2002 was as follows (in
thousands):

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
LB e $ 131,539 § 7,995 % -8 139,534
Construction iN ProgresS....cocovvciiiiiiiniiee e 386,172 218,919 (28,601) 576,490
Total capitai assets, not being depreciated........... 517,711 226,914 (28,601) 716,024
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements................cccccce 1,633,928 37,393 - 1,671,321
Machinery and equipment...............ccc 217,117 16,819 (2,714) 231,222
INFrastruCtUre. . ... - 23,663 - 23,663
Property held under lease.. 4,816 - - 4,816
Total capital assets, being depreciated................. 1,755,861 77,875 (2,714) 1,831,022
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...............o 319,432 28,270 - 347,702
Machinery and equipment 128,745 26,307 (1,439) 153,613
Property held under lease.. 4,280 - - 4,280
Total accumulated depreciation......................... 452,457 54,577 (1,439) 505,595
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net............ 1,303,404 23,298 (1,275) 1,325,427
Governmental activities capital assets, net........ $ 1,821,115 $ 250,212 $ (29,876) $ 2,041,451
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Business-type Activities:

San Francisco International Airport

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
LANG..oi et e e $ 2316 % - 3 - 98 2,316
Construction in progress.........cccccvceccvie e, 679,644 268,646 (170,551) 777,739
Total capital assets, not being depreciated........... 681,960 268,646 (170,551) 780,055
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements................cccoiee 3,677,933 157,820 (8,553) 3,827,200
Machinery and equipment..................on 67,379 4,050 (949) 70,480
Easements.........cccooiiiiini e 125,523 7,416 - 132,939
Total capital assets, being depreciated................. 3,870,835 169,286 (9,502) 4,030,619
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements............c.ccoovcen s 595,985 127,616 (8,380) 715,221
Machinery and equipment................oo 43,464 7,100 (900) 49,664
Easements..........c..ooooiiiiiiiiiinnn .. 27,041 6,267 - 33,308
Total accumulated depreciation 666,490 140,983 (9,280) 798,193
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net............ 3,204,345 28,303 (222) 3,232,426
Capital assets, net........c..ooooiii s $ 3,886,305 § 296,949 $ (170,773) $ 4,012,481
Water Department
Baiance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
LaR. $ 17,436 % 650 % 3) $ 18,083
Construction in progress.............coevveiveeinieieniee s 122,194 129,834 (148,643) 103,385
Total capital assets, not being depreciated........... 139,630 130,484 (148,646) 121,468
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements...............cccecveine 657,269 133,548 - 790,817
Machinery and equipment..................cccoin 62,020 5,143 (213) 66,950
Total capital assets, being depreciated................. 719,289 138,691 (213) 857,767
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...............cccccoveice 285,635 21,351 - 306,986
Machinery and equipment...................coo 43,397 4,558 (201) 47,754
Total accumulated depreciation............c.c..cccoee 329,032 25,909 (201) 354,740
Total capital assets, being depreciated, nef... . 390,257 112,782 (12) 503,027
Capital assets, Net.............cccoevvvieiiiniieie 529,887 §$ 243266 § (148,658) $ 624,495
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Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
LN e $ 4,215 - % -5 4,215
Construction in progress.....c.ooovoevveiciieeneceeee e 9,157 14,517 (5,213) 18,461
Total capital assets, not being depreciated........... 13,372 14,517 (5,213) 22,676
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.............ccovevieniinnn 388,323 2,700 - 391,023
Machinery and equipment.................. 34,465 1,480 (327) 35,618
Total capital assets, being depreciated................. 422,788 4,180 (327) 426,641
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...............cccccoccevnin. 209,715 8,018 - 217,733
Machinery and equipment............ccccooiviiinin e, 21,374 1,596 (44) 22,926
Total accumulated depreciation........................... 231,089 9,614 (44) 240,659
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net............ 191,699 (5,434) (283) 185,982
Capital assets, net............occooi e $ 205,071 9,083 § (5,496) $ 208,658
Municipal Railway
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land. .o e $ 18,537 - 8§ (56) $ 18,481
Construction in progress........ooocveiiieeiiice i 354,426 214,864 (277,645) 291,645
Total capital assets, not being depreciated........... 372,963 214,864 (277,701) 310,126
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.........ccc.cccociiiiiinenne 234,944 22,631 (25,608) 231,967
Machinery and equipment............ccoocconiniiinns 665,898 234,338 (86,236) 814,000
Infrastructure............cco v 593,562 52,714 - 646,276
Total capital assets, being depreciated................ 1,494 404 309,683 (111,844) 1,692,243
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...................ccceeeiin. 78,272 3,141 - 81,413
Machinery and equipment.................is 249,363 25,710 (79,129) 195,944
Infrastructure. ... 138,663 26,485 - 165,148
Total accumutated depreciation........................... 466,298 55,336 (79,129) 442 505
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net... 1,028,106 254,347 (32,715) 1,249,738
Capital assets, net.........ccoooiiiiiiiii $ 1,401,069 469,211 $ (310,416) $ 1,559,864
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General Hospital Medical Center

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
[ o T R USSP $ 542 % - 8 - 8 542
Construction in progress. ... e 639 2,471 (192) 2,918
Total capital assets, not being depreciated........... 1,181 2,471 (192) 3,460
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements...............c.ccccoees 122,414 1,020 - 123,434
Machinery and equipment................ccoonninn. 38,389 3,368 - 41,757
Total capital assets, being depreciated................. 160,803 4,388 - 165,191
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...................ooceen 70,467 4,430 1 74,898
Machinery and equipment................cocoi 30,176 1,854 - 32,030
Total accumulated depreciation...........c...c.cccce. 100,643 6,284 1 106,928
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net............ 60,160 (1,896) (1) 58,263
Capital assets, net.........cccccooiiiniiicn $ 61,341 $ 575 $ (193) $ 61,723

Clean Water Program

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
LN, $ 22445 % - % - 8 22,445
Construction in progress 14,855 21,997 (26,239) 10,613
Total capital assets, not being depreciated........... 37,300 21,997 (26,239) 33,058
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements.............ccccooicecniennnns 1,877,707 24,158 - 1,901,865
Machinery and equipment.................o 20,410 1,731 - 22,141
Total capital assets, being depreciated................. 1,898,117 25,889 - 1,924,006
LLess accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.................ccoeviieees 551,394 37,034 - 588,428
Machinery and equipment.................cccos 16,979 1,272 - 18,251
Total accumulated depreciation 568,373 38,306 - 606,679
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net............ 1,329,744 (12,417) - 1,317,327
Capital assets, net............ois $ 1,367,044 9 9580 $ (26,239) $ 1,350,385
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Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Construction in progress............c.cooiviciieneen.

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements...........c.coccveevnenee.
Machinery and equipment....................
Total capital assets, being depreciated..........

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements..............cccccceoeenn.

Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation...................
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.....
Capital assets, net..........ccoccoeiiiiiiiiiiinnns

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Construction in progress..........ccccooveeeeceeenes

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements..............cc..cocceee
Machinery and equipment.............c.coveieinnneen.
Property held under lease................c..c.oooeeee

Total capital assets, being depreciated..........

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements............c...c.ccooeee
Machinery and equipment..............cooonennnn.
Property held under lease......................cce.
Total accumuiated depreciation.....................
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net.....
Capital assets, net.........cccocoeiiiiiiiinnns

Port of San Francisco

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002
....... $ 118,809 §$ 703§ - 3 119,512
....... 42 964 13,397 (37,577) 18,784
....... 161,773 14,100 (37,577) 138,296
...... 216,149 34,523 (844) 249,828
....... 9,965 1,802 (287) 11,480
....... 226,114 36,325 (1,131) 261,308
...... 143,808 6,888 (826) 149,870
5,143 1,231 (272) 6,102
....... 148,951 8,119 (1,098) 155,972
....... 77,163 28,206 (33) 105,336
...... $ 238936 $ 42,306 $ (37610) § 243,632
Laguna Honda Hospital
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002

....... $ 8,719 § 13,974 $ - $ 22,693
..... 8,719 13,974 - 22,693
...... 25,165 - - 25,165
....... 12,401 71 - 12,472
....... 824 - - 824
....... 38,390 71 - 38,461
...... 18,807 725 - 19,532
....... 11,129 284 - 11,413
....... 309 206 - 515
...... 30,245 1,215 - 31,460
....... 8,145 (1,144) - 7,001
...... $ 16,864 $ 12,830 $ - $ 29,694
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Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress.........c.ooooeveciiiieiie e
Total capital assets, not being depreciated...........

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements.............cc.ccccv i

Machinery and equipment.............c.cccccoii
Total capital assets, being depreciated...............

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements...........cccocveeiiiiin.
Machinery and equipment.................oe
Total accumulated depreciation..................c..c.o.
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net............
Capital assets, Net.........cccoocviiiiiiiiiiiiince

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Construction in progress...........cccoceveeeiiiniciinnnenns
Total capital assets, not being depreciated...........

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements...............coccoeies

Machinery and equipment.................

Infrastructure...........c.ococcciiii e

Property held underiease................c.ccooe s

EaSEMENES. ..ot e
Total capital assets, being depreciated.................

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements.............cccoeiiiinnnnnns
Machinery and equipment............c..ccccooiiiiin .
INfrastruCture...........ooooiiiii e
Property held underlease.............cc...ccoooiviiine
E8SeMEeNtS.....cocoooeiriiiii

Total accumulated depreciation..............cccccoeoeee
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net..

Parking Garages

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002
$ 1635 § 20,524 $ - 8 22,159

1,635 20,524 - 22,159

84,711 996 (1,705) 84,002

4,625 200 (876) 3,949

89,336 1,196 (2,581) 87,951

14,086 1,028 - 15,114

769 40 (705) 104

14,855 1,068 (705) 15,218

74,481 128 (1,876) 72,733

$ 76,116 § 20,652 § (1,876) $ 94,892

Total Business-type Activities
Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Increases Decreases 2002

$ 184,300 §$ 1,353 § (59) & 185,594

1,234,233 700,224 (666,060) 1,268,397

1,418,533 701,577 (666,119) 1,453,991

7,284,615 377,396 (36,710) 7,625,301

915,552 252,183 (88,888) 1,078,847

593,562 52,714 - 646,276

824 - - 824

125,523 7,416 - 132,939

8,920,076 689,709 (125,598) 9,484,187

1,968,169 210,231 (9,205) 2,169,195

421,794 43,645 (81,251) 384,188

138,663 26,485 - 165,148

309 206 - 515

27,041 6,267 - 33,308

2,555,97€ 286,834 {90,456) 2,752,354

6,364,100 402,875 (35,142) 6,731,833

$ 7782633 $ 1,104452 § (701,261) $ 8,185,824

Business-type activities capital assets, net........
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows (in
thousands).

Governmental Activities:

PUbIiC protection.............c.cvevieiiriie e $ 11,191
Public works transportation and commerce............................. 14,190
Human welfare and neighborhood development.................. 573
Community Health...............cocooo 769
Culture and recreation...............ccooooieiii i e 11,869
General administration and finance...............c.cccc 13,360

Capital assets held by the City's internal service funds

charged to the various functions on a prorated basis
based on their usage of the assets............................. 2,625
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities................ $ 54,577

Business-type activities:

ATTDOM. .o e 140,983
A A= 1 (= OV PR PSPV 25,909
POWET ...t 9,614
TRANSIE. ..o et 55,336
HOSPItAIS. ... 7,499
SBWE . .. oo ettt e e e 38,306
[T o SO P 8,119
GATAGES. ...t e 1,068
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities................ $ 286,834

Equipment is generally estimated to have useful lives of 3 to 40 years, except for certain equipment of the
Water Department that has an estimated useful life of up to 75 years. Facilities and improvements are
generally estimated to have usefu! lives from 5 to 50 years, except for utility type assets of the Water
Department and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power (Hetch Hetchy), the Clean Water Program, the San
Francisco Municipal Railway (Muni), Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH), and the Port of San Francisco (Port)
that have estimated useful lives from 51 to 100 years. These long-lived assets include reservoirs,
aqueducts, pumping stations of Hetch Hetchy, Cable Car Barn facilities and structures of Muni, buiiding
and structures of LHH, and pier substructures of the Port and totaled $1.45 billion as of June 30, 2002. In
addition, the Hetch Hetchy had utility type assets with useful lives over 100 years which totaled $4.5
million at June 30, 2002.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 the City’s Enterprise Funds incurred total interest expense and
interest income of approximately $288.4 million and $65.9 million, respectively. Of these amounts, interest
expense and interest income of approximately $44.9 million and $2.4 million respectively, was capitalized
as part of the cost of constructing proprietary capital assets. The net amount of approximately $42.5
million was capitalized into capital assets.

During fiscal year 2002, Water, Hetch Hetchy, and Clean Water Program expensed $12.9 million, $2
million, $1.3 million respectively, related to capitalized design and planning costs on certain projects which
were discontinued. The amounts of the write-off were recognized as other operating expense in the
accompanying financial statements.
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Component Unit - Redevelopment Agency

Capital asset activity of the Redevelopment Agency for the year ended June 30, 2002 was as follows (in
thousands):

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Incr Decr 2002
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Property held under lease..................c.coee 49,416 14,734 - $ 64,150
Construction in progress............cccoeeevvveiiine 315 333 - 648
Total capital assets not being depreciated.... 49,731 15,067 - 64,798
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements..............cccccooee 135,311 297 - 135,608
Leasehold improvements..............cccceoivieeen. 21,602 - - 21,602
Machinery and equipment.............cccccoiirie 7,096 510 - 7,606
Total capital assets being depreciated.......... 164,009 807 - 164,816
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization for:
Facilities and improvements...............ccocceeee. (22,108) (3,386) - (25,492)
Leasehold improvements............. (6,058) (432) - (6,490)
Machinery and equipment (5,554) (712) - (6,266)
Total accumulated depreciation
and amortization..............coccccviinininn. (33,718) (4,530) - (38,248)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net.......... 130,291 (3,723) - 126,568
Redevelopment Agency capital assets, net... $ 180,022 $ 11,344 § - $ 191,366
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(8) BONDS, LOANS, CAPITAL LEASES AND OTHER PAYABLES
The following is a summary of long-term obligations of the City as of June 30, 2002 (in thousands):

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Final Remaining
Maturity Interest
T ligation and Pur Date Rates Amount
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (a):
Affordable NOUSING ...oooooriiiiiii e 2021 4.0t07.625% $ 93,905
City hall improvement project ... 2007 4.7t05.125% 14,105
Fire protection 2006 5.11t07.0% 2,930
(110 VPP UP R PP PR PP PRSPPSO 2021 4.0t07.0% 17,080
IMUSBUIMIS o oeee et e e et s et e et e ea e r e em e e s e aaas e e e aa e 2019 4.5t07.0% 19,485
Parks and playgrounds ..o 2021 3.5t06.5% 66,150
Public safety improvements ... 2014 5.0t0 7.0% 8,760
S CRNOOIS oo 2020 4.125t07.0% 128,060
Seismic safety loan program ... 2014 6.95t07.65% 26,665
Zoo facilities 2020 4.125t06.5% 31,655
REFUNGING ..oviiiviceiiiee et 2016 3.0t05.75% 508,425
General obligation bonds - governmentai activities ......... 917,220
LEASE REVENUE BONDS:
San Francisco Finance Corporation (b) & ()*..............o... 2024 3.0t05.5% 255,760
San Francisco Parking Authority (€) ....coeveiiieiiiiiiininnins 2022 4.0106.0% 32,090
San Francisco Social Services Corporation (d) ......c.......... 2003 6.25t07.75% 900
Moscone Convention Center Garage (d) ..........ccccoiviiennn 2009 3.351t0 4.0% 5,060
Lease revenue bonds - governmental activities .............. 293,810
OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS:
Certificates of participation (C) ........cooociiis 2033 .25 to 5.875 259,360
Lo@ans (€) & (f) ooeeieiiiiirice e 2008 451t06.7% 13,007
Capital leases payable (d) & (f) ..o 2018 3.5t08.5% 226,541
Settlement Obligation Bonds {d) ........ccccoviiiviinns 2011 3.0 to 3.875% 54,820
Accrued vacation and sick leave (d) & (f)... 121,960
Accrued workers' compensation (d) & (f) ... 176,777
Estimated claims payable (d) & (f) .o 41,445
Other long-term obligations - governmental activities ..... 893,910
DEFERRED AMOUNTS:
Bond iSSUSNCE PreMilMS. .. ... eeeeeeie e reen i 3,805
Bond issuance discounts... (2,840)
Bond refunding.....ccccoooiiriiiiee e (6,670)
Deferred @amOUNS.......oei e e (5,705)
Governmental activities total iong-term obligations........ $ 2,099,235
Debt service payments are made from the following sources:
(a) Property tax recorded in the Debt Service Fund.
(b) Lease revenues from participating departments in the General, Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds.

(c) Revenues recorded in Special Revenue Funds.

(d) Revenues recorded in the General Fund.

(e) Hotel taxes and other revenues recorded in the General and Special Revenue Funds.
f) User-charge reimbursements from General, Special Revenue and Enterprise Funds.

Internal Service Funds serve primarily the governmental funds. Accordingly, long term liabilities for the Internal Service Funds are
included in the above amounts.

“includes the Moscone Center West Expansion Project which was financed with variable rate bonds that reset weekly. The average
interest rate from issuance date of November 2, 2000 through June 30, 2002 was 2.07%.
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BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Final Remaining
Maturity Interest
Entityand T f Qbligation Date Rates Amount

San Francisco International Airport:

Revenue DONAS ... 2032 2.0t0 8.0% $ 4,323,005
Water Department:

REVENUE DONAS ... 2031 40t07.4% 364,841
CommErCial PAPET .........cooiviiiiiiiiieiieee e 2003 1.151t0 1.65% 90,000
General Hospital Medical Center

Capital I8ASE . ..oocveiii e 2007 3.0t03.8% 802
Clean Water Program:

REVENUE DONGS ..ot 2026 47106.1% 418,809
State of California - Revolving fund loans ........................ 2021 2.8103.5% 179,591
Port of San Francisco:

General Obligation Bonds -

City and County of San Francisco ..................ccooinnenn 2005 451t06.3% 2,000
Revenue bonds ..........cccoiiiii 2010 5.0t0 9.0% 34,095
Notes, loans and other payables ... 2029 Variable 3,684
Capital I88SE ......oooiviii i 2005 6.31% 108

Laguna Honda Hospital:
Capital I88SE ... 2003 5.40% 432
Nonprofit Parking Corporations (Garages):
Downtown Parking - revenue bonds ... 2018 5.85 to 6.65% 12,785
Ellis-O'Farrell - revenue bonds ...........cccccooiiiiis 2017 6.9% t0 7.125% 5,225
Portsmouth Plaza - notes, loans and other
PAYADIES .ot 2003 9.00% 104
San Francisco Market Corporation - notes, loans
and other payables ... 2007 Prime plus 0.25% 388
Uptown Parking - revenue bonds.................ocoo oo oo 2031 4.5106.0% 19,000
Accrued vacation and sick leave ... 69,428
Accrued workers' compensation ... 127,404
Estimated claims payable ... 45,286

Business-type activities total long-term obligations ............

$ 5,696,887

Sources of funds to meet debt service requirements are revenues derived from user fees and charges for

services recorded in their respective Enterprise Funds.
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COMPONENT UNIT

Final Remaining
Maturity Interest
Type of Qbligation Date Rates Amount
SAN FRANCISCO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
AND FINANCING AUTHORITY:
Lease Revenue Bonds:

Moscone Convention Center (a) ..........ccccvveeenenne 2024 5510 8.5% $ 188,350
Hotel Tax Revenue Bonds (b) ........ccccceiviiiiniicns 2025 4.0t06.75% 74,765
Financing Authority Bonds:

Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds (c) ........................ 2025 3.5109.0% 306,362
Sub-total ... 569,477
South Beach Harbor Variable Rate

Refunding Bonds (d) ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiii 2017  Variable (1.25 % at 6/30/02) 12,500
California Department of Boating and

Waterways Loan (€) .......ccccvveeeevciviniireee e 2037 4.50% 8,000

Accreted interest payable...................c 154,859
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay .........cooceiiiiinen. 1,870
Component unit total long-term obligations............... $ 746,706

Debt service payments are made from the following sources:

(a) Hotel taxes and operating revenues recorded in the Convention Facilities Special Revenue Fund and existing
debt service/escrow trust funds.

(b)  Hotel taxes from hotels located in the Redevelopment Project Areas.

(c) Propenrty taxes allocated to the Redevelopment Agency based on increased assessed valuations in project
areas (note 12) and existing debt service/escrow frust funds.

(d) South Beach Harbor Project cash reserves, property tax increments and project revenues.

(e)  South Beach Harbor Project revenues (subordinated to Refunding Bonds).

Debt Compliance
There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City
believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions.

Legal Debt Limit and Legal Debt Margin

As of June 30, 2002, the City’'s debt limit (3% of valuation subject to taxation) was $2.7 billion. The total
amount of debt applicable to the debt limit was $0.9 billion, net of certain assets in other non-major
governmental funds, and other deductions allowed by law. The resuiting legal debt margin was $1.8
billion.

Arbitrage

Under U.S. Treasury Department regulations, all governmental tax-exempt debt issued after August 31,
1986 is subject to arbitrage rebate requirements. The requirements stipulate, in general, that the earnings
from the investment of tax exempt bond proceeds, which exceed related interest expenditures on the
bonds, must be remitted to the Federal government on every fifth anniversary of each bond issue. The
City has evaluated each general obligation bond and has recognized an arbitrage liability of $2.0 million as
of June 30, 2002. This arbitrage liability is reported in deferred credits and other liabilities in the
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governmental activities of the statement of net assets. The Finance Corporation had an independent
consultant perform a separate calculation on their lease revenue bonds and a liability of $1.9 million was
reported in the deferred credits and other liabilities in the Internal Service Fund as of June 30, 2002. Each
Enterprise Fund has performed a similar analysis of its debt which is subject to arbitrage rebate
requirements. Any material arbitrage liability related to the debt of the Enterprise Funds has been recorded
as a liability in the respective fund. In addition, the Redevelopment Agency records any arbitrage liability in
deferred credits and other liabilities.

Assessment District

During June 1996, the City issued $1 million of Limited Obligation Improvement Bonds for the Bayshore
Hester Assessment District No. 95-1. These bonds were issued pursuant to the Improvement Bond Act of
1915. The proceeds were used to finance the construction of a new public right-of-way. The bonds began
to mature during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 and continue through 2026 bearing interest from
6.0% to 6.85%. These bonds do not represent obligations of the City. Neither the faith and credit nor the
taxing power of the City is pledged to the payment of the bonds. Accordingly, the debt has not been
included in the basic financial statements. Assessments collected for repayment of this debt are received
in the Tax Collection Agency Fund. Unpaid assessments constitute fixed liens on the lots and parcels
assessed within the Bayshore-Hester Assessment District and do not constitute a personal indebtedness
of the respective owners of such lots and parcels.

Mortgage Revenue Bonds

In order to facilitate affordable housing, the City has issued mortgage revenue bonds with an outstanding
aggregate balance of $99.7 million as of June 30, 2002. These obligations are secured by the related
mortgage indebtedness and are not obligations of the City.
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Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The changes in long-term obligations for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as
follows (in thousands):

Additional
Obligations, Current
Interest Maturities,
Accretion Retirements, Amounts
July 1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2001 Increases Decreases 2002 One Year

Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds ............ccccocciinin $ 953535 % 136,610 $ (172,925) $ 917,220 $ 60,895
Lease revenue bonds ... 302,405 7,900 (16,495) 293,810 16,575
Certificates of participation 225,707 52,630 (18,977) 259,360 5,190
Settlement obligation bond - 60,755 (5,935) 54,820 5,350
Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums ..........ocooviiiceeniinniniicineeene 784 3,123 (102) 3,805 -

For issuance disCounts ..........ccoccvveeciiiiiiiinnciinen. (2,703) (237) 100 (2,840) -

Onrefunding.........occcooiriiii - (6,829) 159 (6,670) -

Total bonds payable ... 1,479,728 253,952 (214,175) 1,519,505 88,010
LO@NS. . eeeve ettt et 15,816 - (2,809) 13,007 2,728
Capital I8aSES .....o.veevereeeecieee e 232,485 13,337 (19,281) 226,541 23,888
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay..................c.oo. 113,513 8,447 - 121,960 59,132
Accrued workers' compensation...............cccoceceennnn. 151,199 57,634 (32,056) 176,777 38,926
Estimated claims payable.........cccccvvviiiiiiiiiiinn 149,967 - (108,522) 41,445 9,224

Governmental activity long-term obligations.............. $ 2,142,708 $ 333,370 $ (376,843) $ 2,099,235 § 221,908

Internal Service Funds serve primarily the governmental funds, the long-term liabilities of which are included as part
of the above totals for governmental activities. At the year ending June 30, 2002, $255.8 million of lease revenue
bonds, $3.6 million of capital leases, $0.8 million of loans, $2.8 million of accrued vacation and sick leave pay and
$1 million of accrued workers' compensation are included in the above amounts. Also, for the governmental
activities, claims and judgments and compensated absences are generally liquidated by the generai funds.
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The changes in long-term obligations for each enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as

follows (in thousands):

Additional
Obligations, Current
Interest Maturities,
Accretion Retirements, Amounts
July 1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2001 Increases Decreases 2002 One Year
San Francisco International Airport
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds ... $ 3,743605 $ 853,525 § (274,125) $ 4,323,005 $ 52,260
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums ..........ccooocveeeereininnnenne - 7,836 - 7,836 -
For issuance discounts ..........ccccccoviiivennnnes (22,284) - 1,747 (20,537)
On refunding.......ceeeiieei e (24,683) (17,379) 2,816 (39,246) -
Total bonds payable ............ccccoceiiieiiiiiins 3,696,638 843,982 (269,562) 4,271,058 52,260
Commercial Paper.........ccocviieiiiiiie e 397,541 160,847 (558,388) - -
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay............... 10,255 690 - 10,945 5,709
Accrued workers' compensation ........................ 7,800 - (2,397) 5,403 1,275
Estimated claims payable ...............ccccoeen. 459 500 (500) 459 209
Long-term liabilities.............c.ccc oo $ 4112693 §$ 1,006019 § (830,847) $ 4,287,865 $ 59,453
Water Department
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds ..o $ 232042 $ 140,149 § (7,350) $ 364,841 $ 9,715
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums ...........ccovoveveeeeennennenns - 772 (17) 755 -
For issuance discounts ... (4,755) - 62 (4,693) -
On refunding.........oocoiiiiiiii (4,490) - 328 (4,162) -
Total bonds payable .........c..cccoeciiiieriinen, 222,797 140,921 (8,977) 356,741 9,715
Commercial paper..........cocvevienicenen 75,000 100,000 (85,000) 90,000 90,000
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.................. 6,280 804 - 7,084 3,475
Accrued workers' compensation.............cccccoo et 3,975 5,311 (1,979) 7,307 1,731
Estimated claims payable............cc.ccooceiiinnnn. 7,023 366 (2,421) 4,968 1,574
Long-term liabilities.............ccooeeiiiiinics $ 315075 § 247,402 § (96,377) $ 466,100 $ 106,495
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.... $ 1,805 $ - 8 61 $ 1,744 § 917
Accrued workers' compensation................ccenn 1,056 854 (285) 1,625 385
Estimated claims payable........................o. 6,602 3,000 (5,982) 3,620 197
Long-term liabilities..............ccooiiiinis $ 9463 § 3854 $ (6,328) $ 6,989 $ 1,499
Municipal Railway
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.................. $ 20115  $ 868 $ - $ 20,983 $ 12,025
Accrued workers' compensation... 67,390 33,956 (19,004) 82,342 19,852
Estimated claims payable............ccccccooinin 26,014 11,838 (7,941) 29,911 13,197
Long-term liabilities..........c.coooeoiviniie, $ 113519 § 46,662 $ (26,945) $ 133,236 § 45,074
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The changes in long-term obligations for each enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as

follows (in thousands) — continued:

Additional
Obligations, Current
Interest Maturities,
Accretion  Retirements, Amounts
July 1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2001 Increases Decreases 2002 One Year
General Hospital Medical Center
Capital 1eases...........coooe oo $ - 8 802 ¢ -8 802 $ 78
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay................. 14,533 1,394 - 15,927 9,317
Accrued workers' compensation.............c.ccce.... 12,521 6,074 (3,920) 14,675 3,385
Long-term liabilities..................c.oecoiiiienenn $ 27,054 § 8,270 $ (3,920) $ 31,404 § 12,780
Clean Water Program
Bonds payable:
Revenue Bonds ........ooceevevvioreieeeeee e $ 469883 $ 926 $ (52,0000 $ 418,809 § 24,930
Less deferred amounts:
Forissuance discounts ..........ccccoooiiiiiiiinnnine (5,037) - 692 (4,345) -
Onrefunding.........cocoiiei e (9,689) - 764 (8,925) -
Total bonds payable ... 455,157 926 (50,544) 405,539 24,930
State of California - Revolving fund loans.. 193,597 - (14,006) 179,591 14,461
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.................. 3,475 - (20) 3,455 1,885
Accrued workers' compensation..............cc......... 1,923 1,420 (648) 2,695 641
Estimated claims payable................c..ccooinnn. 1,086 4,049 (407) 4,728 291
Long-term liabilities................cceooeiinnnn $ 655238 $ 6,395 $ (65,625) $ 596,008 $ 42 208
Port of San Francisco
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds .............cccoeiiiin. $ 3200 § - 8 (1,200) $ 2,000 § 1,200
Revenue bonds ..........ococev i 37,330 - (3,235) 34,095 3,405
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums ... 347 - (44) 303 -
Onrefunding ....ccoocovvriei e (1,261) - 158 (1,103) -
Total bonds payable ... 39,616 - (4,321) 35,295 4,605
Notes, loans, and other payables...................... 11,186 1,098 (8,700) 3,584 74
Capital 1eases ..o 147 - (39) 108 41
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.................. 1,720 75 - 1,795 951
Accrued workers' compensation......................... 1,145 1,965 (640) 2,470 613
Estimated claims payable............c.....cocccc 311 1,390 (101) 1,600 1,200
Long-term liabilities $ 54,125 § 4528 % (13,801) § 44 852 % 7,484
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The changes in long-term obligations for each enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as
follows (in thousands) — continued:

Additional
Obligations, Current
Interest Maturities,
Accretion  Retirements, Amounts
July 1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2001 Increases Decreases 2002 One Year
Laguna Honda Hospital
Capital 188Ses .........c.cooocieviiiiiee e $ 632 § - 3§ (200) $ 432 S 210
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay................ 7,163 332 - 7,495 4,532
Accrued workers' compensation...............cc.cceo. 9,783 3,988 (2,884) 10,887 2,594
Long-term liabilities.............c.cooceeciiviieerienns $ 17,578 § 4320 § (3,084) $ 18,814 § 7,336

Parking Garages
Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds ........ccocoveiiiiiii e $ 18,655 § 19,000 § (645) $ 37,010 $ 685
Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums - 640 (20) 620 -
For issuance discounts (138) - 8 (130) -
Total bonds payable ..............cccoiiiiinn. 18,517 19,640 (657) 37,500 685
Notes, loans, and other payables...................... 1,081 - (589) 492 241
Long-term liabilities...............cocooeiiiiiinne. $ 19,598 § 19,640 $ (1,246) $ 37,992 % 926
Additional
Obligations, Current
Interest Maturities,
Accretion Retirements, Amounts
July 1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2001 Increases Decreases 2002 One Year
Total Business-type Activities:
Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds ..............ccccoviviviiinni $ 3,200 % - $ (1,200) $ 2,000 $ 1,200
Revenue bonds ..........ocooeiieiiee e 4,501,515 1,013,600 (337,355) 5,177,760 90,995
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance premiums ...........ooovveeriivinncinneeeniienans 347 9,248 81) 9,514 -
Forissuance discounts .............c.cccovveviiiiiviiii i, (32,214) - 2,509 (29,705) -
Onrefunding.........coooviiiii i (40,123) (17,379) 4,066 (53,436) -
Total bonds payable .. 4,432,725 1,005,469 (332,061) 5,106,133 92,195
COmMMErcial PAPET.... ..ot i seeeeee e 472,541 260,847 (643,388) 90,000 90,000
State of California - Revolving fund loans.................... 193,597 - (14,008) 179,591 14,461
Notes, loans, and other payables...............ccccoeeieee 12,267 1,098 (9,289) 4,076 315
Capital [BaSeS ....cooiiiiiiiece e 779 802 (239) 1,342 329
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay..................... 65,346 4,163 (81) 69,428 38,811
Accrued workers' compensation 105,593 53,568 (31,757) 127,404 30,476
Estimated claims payable........................ooei 41,495 21,143 (17,352) 45,286 16,668
Business-type activity long term obligations............ $ 5324343 $ 1,347,090 $ (1,048,173) $ 5,623,260 § 283,255
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The changes in long term obligations for the component unit for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as
follows (in thousands):

Component unit:

Redevelopment Agency

Bonds payable:
Revenue bonds

Refunding bonds

Total bonds payable
Accreted interest payable
Notes, loans, and other payables
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay

Component unit - long term obligations

(1) This amount is included in accrued interest payable in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets.

Additional
Obligations, Current
Interest Maturities,
Accretion Retirements, Amounts
July 1, and Net and Net June 30, Due Within
2001 Increases Decreases 2002 One Year
589,163 §$ - 3 (19,686) $ 569477 $ 20,081
14,000 - (1,500) 12,500 -
603,163 - (21,186) 581,977 20,081
145,191 20,517 (10,849) 154,859 10,850
......... 8,000 - - 8,000 -
......... 1,674 196 - 1,870 859
........... $ 758028 % 20713 § (32035) $ 746706 $ 31,790

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2002 for
governmental activities are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year

Ending

2008-2012
2013-2017
2018-2022
2023-2027

2028-2032...
2033-2037...

Governmental Activities ("

General Obligation
Bonds

Lease Revenue
Bonds

Other Long-Term
Obligations

Total

$ 60895 $ 48,160 § 16,575 $ 13,960 $ 13269 §$ 16,538 § 90,739 $ 78,658
64,610 44,200 16,520 13,269 12,834 15,111 93,964 72,580
60,665 41,246 16,060 12,584 15,554 14,520 92,279 68,350
63,610 38,330 14,120 11,903 15,060 13,887 92,790 64,120
66,785 34,952 12,930 11,319 14,657 13,244 94,372 59,515

344,360 121,328 52,580 48,499 70,538 56,687 467,478 226,514
192,160 45,665 44,785 37,270 47,365 42,616 284,310 125,551
64,135 7,345 47,485 25,468 37,485 31,106 148,105 63,918

- - 43,355 13,922 37,250 21,373 80,605 35,295

- - 29,400 2,997 46,035 10,724 75,435 13,721

- - - - 17,139 912 17,139 912
$917.220 $ 381226 $ 293,810 $ 191,191 $ 327,187 $ 236,718 § 1,638,217 $ 809,135

™ The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay and accrued workers'
compensation is not practicable to determine.
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2002
for each enterprise fund are as follows (in thousands):

San Francisco International Airport“’

Fiscal Year General Obligation Revenue Other Long-Term

Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Total
2003....cceenne. $ - 3 - $ 52260 $ 227639 $ - 8 - $ 52260 $ 227,639
2004............... - - 78,245 225,089 - - 78,245 225,089
2005.....ccccuenn. - - 97,685 221,346 - - 97,685 221,346
2006.........o..... - - 101,015 216,509 - - 101,015 216,509
2007 - - 105,960 211,358 - - 105,960 211,358
2008-2012...... - - 627,410 968,131 - - 627,410 968,131
2013-2017...... - - 779,250 788,385 - - 779,250 788,385
2018-2022...... - - 988,915 553,601 - - 988,915 553,601
2023-2027...... - - 1,061,640 267,500 - - 1,061,640 267,500
2028-2032... - - 430,625 46,888 - - 430,625 46,888

Total........... $ - % - $ 4323005 $ 3,726,446 §$ - 8 - $ 4,323,005 $ 3,726,446

Water Department ("?

Fiscal Year General Obligation Revenue Other Long-Term

Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest  Principal Interest  Principal Interest Pringipal Interest
2003............... $ - % - 8 9715 § 19,183 $ - 5 - 3 9715 $ 19,183
2004............... - - 10,350 18,596 - - 10,350 18,596
2005.........c.... - - 11,030 17,957 - - 11,030 17,957
2006............... - - 11,735 17,298 - - 11,735 17,298
2007 - - 12,420 16,590 - - 12,420 16,590
2008-2012...... - - 73,945 70,791 - - 73,945 70,791
2013-2017...... - - 86,440 47,781 - - 86,440 47,781
2018-2022...... - - 60,435 30,071 - - 60,435 30,071
2023-2027...... - - 53,095 17,043 - - 53,095 17,043
2028-2032... - - 35,676 5,282 - - 35,676 5,282

Total........... $ - $ - $ 364841 $ 260592 § - 9% - $§ 364841 $ 260,592

M The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay and accrued workers'
compensation is not practicabie to determine.

@ The payment stream for principal and interest on commercial paper is not practicable to determine because the timing of the
issuance and payment is based on project expenditures.
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2002
for each enterprise fund are as follows (in thousands) - continued:

Clean Water Program "

Fiscal Year General Obligation Revenue Other Long-Term

Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal  Interest Principal Interest Principal  Interest
$ - 3 - 8 24930 $ 22575 $ 14461 §$ 5672 % 39,391 § 28,247
- - 20,415 21,392 14,930 5,203 35,345 26,595
- - 16,010 20,473 15,414 4,718 31,424 25,191
- - - 20,1086 15,915 4,218 15,915 24,324
- - 28,990 19,295 16,431 3,702 45,421 22,997
- - 131,488 74,674 65,541 11,464 197,029 86,138
2013-2017...... - - 100,090 44,654 30,373 3,264 130,463 47,918
2018-2022...... - - 10,380 25,789 6,526 484 16,906 26,273
2023-2027...... - - 86,506 4,821 - - 86,506 4,821
Total........... $ - $ - $ 418809 $ 253,779 $ 179,591 $ 38,725 § 598400 $ 292,504

Port of San Francisco ‘"

Fiscal Year General Obligation Revenue Other Long-Term

Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Total
2003...........e $ 1,200 $ 112§ 3,405 % 1,976 § 74 % 158 § 4679 § 2,246
2004.............. 400 50 3,595 1,719 74 158 4,069 1,927
2005............... 400 25 3,920 1,449 77 155 4,397 1,629
2006............... - - 4,135 1,226 81 151 4,216 1,377
2007............... - - 4,370 985 84 148 4,454 1,133
2008-2012...... - - 14,670 1,329 481 677 15,151 2,006
2013-2017...... - - - - 600 559 600 559
2018-2022...... - - - - 748 410 748 410
2023-2027....... - - - - 932 227 932 227
2028-2032... - - - - 433 30 433 30

Total........... $ 2000 § 187 § 34,095 § 8684 § 3584 3 2673 % 39679 § 11,544

M The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay and accrued workers'
compensation is not practicable to determine.
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2002
for each enterprise fund are as follows (in thousands) — continued:

Parking Garages ‘"

Fiscal Year General Obligation Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Total

2003.......ccoeee $ - % - $ 685 § 3,554 % 241 % 29 §% 926 $ 3,583
2004............... - - 790 2,256 137 16 927 2,272
2005......ccccnee - - 295 2,210 114 4 409 2,214
2006............... - - 310 2,194 - - 310 2,194
2007 - - 325 2,180 - - 325 2,180
2008-2012...... - - 6,520 10,619 - - 6,520 10,619
2013-2017...... - - 7,740 8,230 - - 7,740 8,230
2018-2022...... - - 9,425 3,893 - - 9,425 3,893
2023-2027...... - - - 2,402 - - - 2,402
2028-2032... - - 10,920 740 - - 10,920 740

Total........... $ - 3 - 8 37,010 § 38,278 § 492 § 49 § 37,502 §$ 38,327

A summary of the annual debt service requirement to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of
June 30, 2002 for business type activities follows (in thousands):

Total Business-type Activities "' @
Fiscal Year General Obligation Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Totai
June 30 Principai  Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
$ 1200 $ 112§ 90,995 $ 274,927 $ 14776 § 5859 % 106,971 $ 280,898
400 50 113,395 269,052 15,141 5,377 128,936 274,479
400 25 128,940 263,435 15,605 4,877 144,945 268,337
- - 117,195 257,333 15,996 4,362 133,191 261,702
- - 152,065 250,408 16,5615 3,850 168,580 254,258
- - 854,033 1,125,544 66,022 12,141 920,055 1,137,685
2013-2017..... - - 973,520 889,050 30,973 3,823 1,004,493 892,873
2018-2022..... - - 1,069,155 613,354 7,274 894 1,076,429 614,248
2023-2027..... - - 1,201,241 291,766 932 227 1,202,173 291,993
2028-2032. .. - - 477,221 52,910 433 30 477,654 52,940
Total.......... $ 2000 $ 187 $ 5,177,760 $ 4,287,779 $ 183667 $ 41,447 § 5363427 $ 4329413

®  The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay and accrued workers'
compensation is not practicable to determine.

@  The payment stream for principal and interest on commercial paper is not practicable to determine because the timing of the
issuance and payment is based on project expenditures.
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The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2002
for the component unit are as follows (in thousands):

Component Unit: Redevelopment Agency m

Fiscal Year Lease Revenue Tax Revenue Other Long-Term
Ending Bonds Bonds Obligations Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2003 $ 5570 § 21,167  § 14,511 8 18662 § - 8 691 § 20,081 $ 40,520
2004.............. 10,734 39,777 15,449 19,496 - 691 26,183 59,964
2005.............. 33,661 84,458 16,101 20,016 - 691 49,762 105,165
2006.............. 5,550 13,670 15,032 19,273 - 691 20,582 33,634
2007 5,271 14,018 15,545 18,512 675 891 21,491 33,221
2008-2012..... 23,635 73,927 76,984 79,216 5,247 2,977 105,866 156,120
2013-2017..... 48,698 49,950 102,285 49,836 7,948 1,908 158,931 101,694
2018-2022..... 43,955 8,008 93,587 23,950 1,300 1,380 138,842 33,338
2023-2027..... 11,276 1,175 31,633 32,702 1,620 1,060 44,529 34,937
2028-2032... - - - - 2,019 661 2,019 661
2033-2037... - - - - 1,691 183 1,691 183
Total.......... $ 188,350 $ 306,150 $ 381,127 $ 281663 $ 20,500 $ 11624 § 589,977 $ 599,437

M The specific year for payment of estimated claims payable, accrued vacation and sick leave pay and accrued workers'
compensation is not practicable to determine.

Governmental Activities Long-term Liabilities

General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition or improvement of real
property and construction of affordable housing. General obligation bonds have been issued for both
governmental and business-type activities; however, general obligation bonds have not been issued for
business-type activities since 1979. The net authorized and unissued governmental activities general
obligation bonds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 follows (in thousands):

Governmental Activities - General Obligation Bonds
(in thousands)

Authorized and unissued as of June 30, 2001 ...........iiii i $ 969,510
Bonds issued:

Series 2001E, Branch Library Bonds...........c..cco (17,665)
Net authorized and unissued as of June 30, 2002 ............coiiiiieiiiiiiiieie $ 951,845

There were no new authorizations on general obligation bonds in fiscal year ended June 30, 2002.

In the November 2000 election, $105.9 million was authorized for the improvement of various library
branches. Of this, $17.7 million Branch Library Facilities Improvement Bonds, Series 2001E was issued in
July 2001. Interest rates range from 4% to 7%. The bonds mature from June 2002 through June 2021.
The bonds were issued to finance the acquisition of sites to be used for the construction of new branch
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libraries to replace currently leased facilities, the renovation and rehabilitation of branch libraries, and
acquisition and construction of a new branch library in the Mission Bay neighborhood. Debt service
payments are funded through ad valorem taxes on property.

The Port of San Francisco is the only business-type activity that has General Obligation Bonds
outstanding which amount to $2 million as of June 30, 2002. The bonds were issued in 1971 for the
improvement of the San Francisco harbor area. The final maturity is in fiscal year 2004-2005. Debt service
payments are funded from Port's revenues.

Advance Refundings

in April 2002, the City issued $118.9 million of general obligation refunding bonds, Series 2002-R1 with
interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% (maturing from June 2003 through June 2013) to advance refund
a portion of the City's outstanding General Obligation Bonds as follows:

General Obligation Refunding Bonds
(in thousands)

Amount Average
Description of Refunded Bonds Refunded Interest Rate
Series 1993 A — Public Safety Improvement Projects, 198S.............. $ 10,505 5.323%
Series 1993 B - Public Safety Improvement Projects, 1990.............. 44,055 5.323%
Series 1993 C - Golden Gate Park Improvements, 1992................. 5,400 5.323%
Series 1993 D - Fire Department Facilities Project, 1992.................. 10,890 5.323%
Series 1995 A - Public Safety Improvement Projects, 1990 ............ 8,355 5.457%
Series 1995 B - Golden Gate Park Improvements, 1992................. 11,395 5.457%
Series 1996 A - City Hall Improvement Project.........................o 14,130 5.400%
Series 1996 B - Public Safety Improvement Projects, 1989.............. 1,185 5.500%
Series 1996 C - Fire Department Facilities Project, 1992................. 2,205 5.500%
Series 1996 D - School District Facilities Improvements, 1994......... 6,530 5.500%
Series 1996 E - Asian Art Museum Relocation Project...................... 3,860 5.500%

TO AL e s $ 118,510

The net proceeds of $121.2 million (including original issue premium of $2.8 million, and after payment of
$0.58 million in underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) plus an additional $3.2 million of
unspent prior bond funds were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on
the refunded $118.5 million of general obligation bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to
be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the governmental activities of the
statement of net assets.

Although the refunding resulted in the recognition of an accounting loss of $5.9 million for the year ended
June 30, 2002, the City in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by $7.7 million over the next
11 years, and obtained an economic gain (difference between present value of the old and new debt
service payments) of $6.2 million.

In July 2001, the City issued $15.5 million of refunding certificates of participation, Series 2001-1 with
interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% (maturing from April 2003 through April 2017) to advance refund
$16.7 million of outstanding Series 1991A and B certificates of participation with an average interest rate
of 6.25%. The net proceeds of $15.1 million (including original issue premium of $0.07 million, and after
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payment of $0.48 million in underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs) plus an additional $1.8
million of unspent funds from the refunded certificates and an additional $0.95 million of other City funds
were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable
trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded Series 1991A
and B certificates of participation. As a result, the refunded certificates of participation are considered to
be defeased and the liability for those certificates of participation has been removed from the
governmental activities of the statement of net assets.

Although the refunding resulted in the recognition of an accounting loss of $1 million for the year ended
June 30, 2002, the City in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by $1.4 million over the next
15 years, and obtained an economic gain (difference between present value of the old and new debt
service payments) of $1 million.

Lease Revenue Bonds

The changes in governmental activities - lease revenue bonds for the year ended June 30, 2002 are as
follows:

Governmental Activities - Lease Revenue Bonds
(in thousands)

Authorized and unissued as of June 30, 2001 ... $ 133,738
Increase in authorization in this fiscal year:

Annual increase in Finance Corporation's equipment program...................... 1,629
Current year maturities in Finance Corporation’s equipment program.............. 6,485
Bonds issued:

Series 2002A, San Francisco Finance Corporation ... (7,900)
Net authorized and unissued as of June 30, 2002 ............ccccooiiii $ 133,952

Finance Corporation

The San Francisco Finance Corporation (“Finance Corporation”) was formed in 1991. The purpose of the
Finance Corporation is to provide a means to publicly finance, through lease financing, the acquisition,
construction and installation of facilities, equipment and other tangible real and personal property for the
City's general governmental purposes.

The Finance Corporation uses lease revenue bonds to finance the purchase or construction of property
and equipment, which are in turn leased to the City under the terms of Indenture and Equipment Lease
Agreements. These assets are then recorded in the basic financial statements of the City. Since the sole
purpose of the bond proceeds is to provide lease financing to the City, any amounts that are not applied
towards the acquisition or construction of real and personal property, such as unapplied acquisition funds,
bond issue costs, amounts withheld pursuant to reserve fund requirements, and amounts designated for
capitalized interest are recorded as deferred credits until such time as they are used for their intended
purpose.

(a) Equipment Lease Program
Prior to June 1990, the City Charter prohibited the City from lease-purchasing equipment or real

property through public entities or non-profit corporations using tax-exempt obligations without a vote of
the electorate. In the June 5, 1990 election, the voters of the City approved Proposition C, which
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amended the City Charter to allow the City to lease-purchase up to $20 million of equipment through a
non-profit corporation using tax-exempt obligations.

Beginning July 1, 1991, the Finance Corporation was authorized to issue lease revenue bonds up to
$20 million in aggregate principal amount outstanding plus 5% annual adjustment each July 1. As of
June 30, 2002, the total authorized amount is $34.2 million. The total accumulated annual authorization
since 1990 is $14.2 million of which $1.6 million is new annual authorization for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2002.

In May 2002, the Finance Corporation issued its tenth Series of equipment lease revenue bonds in the
amount of $7.9 million with interest rates ranging from 3.0 to 3.6%. The bonds mature from April 2003
through October 2007.

The equipment lease program functions as a revolving bond authorization fund. That is, for each dollar
in bond principal that is repaid, a new dollar can be issued. The Finance Corporation has issued $83.5
million in equipment lease revenue bonds since 1990. As of June 30, 2002, $64.7 million has been
repaid leaving $18.9 million in equipment lease revenue bonds outstanding and $15.3 million available
for new issuance.

(b) City-wide Communication System

In 1993, the Finance Corporation was authorized to issue lease revenue bonds of up to $50 million for
the acquisition and construction of a citywide emergency radio communication system (800mhz).
There were two issues made in January 1998 for $31.3 million and in January 1999 for $18.7 million.
Further, the Finance Corporation was authorized in 1994 to issue lease revenue bonds of up to $60
million for the acquisition and construction of a combined emergency communication center to house
the City’s 911-emergency communication system. There were two issues made in June 1998 for $23.3
million and in June 1997 for $22.6 million. As of June 30, 2002, the amount authorized and unissued
was $14.1 million.

(c) Moscone Center West Expansion Project

In 1996, the voters approved the issuance of up to $157.5 million in lease revenue bonds for the
purpose of financing a portion of the costs of acquiring, constructing, and improving a free-standing
expansion to the City’'s George R. Moscone Convention Center. On November 2, 2000, Series 2000-1,
2000-2 and 2000-3 totaling $157.5 million were issued. Each Series of Bonds may bear interest at a
different rate and in a different interest rate mode from other Series of Bonds. Funds deposited to the
cash with fiscal agent accounts on the issue date were calculated to be sufficient to pay interest on the
Bonds based on an assumed interest rate of 5.02% through August 1, 2003. The average actual rate of
interest through June 30, 2002, was 2.07%. The final maturity date is April 2030.

Parking Authority

As approved by the voters in November 1989, Proposition F authorized the City and the Parking Authority
to finance the construction of parking lots or garages in eight of the City’s neighborhoods, using lease
financing. There is no limitation on the amount of bonds that can be issued. On July 12, 2000, $8.2 million
jease revenue bonds, Series 2000A, were sold to finance the design and construction of an approximately
200-space, four level parking facility described as North Beach Parking Garage Project. Interest rates
range from 4.3% to 6.0%. The final maturity date is June 15, 2022. The Parking Authority leases the
garage to the City and the City makes lease payments from the City’s general fund. The garage opened in
February 2002.
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Certificates of Participation

In September 2001, the City issued $37.2 million in Certificates of Participation to finance the acquisition
of an office building at 30 Van Ness. These certificates consist of Series 2001A for $35.3 million and
Taxable Series 2001B for $1.9 million. The Series 2001A Certificates have interest rates ranging from
3.6% to 5.0% and mature in 2031. The Taxable Series 2001B Certificates have interest rates ranging from
3.25% to 4.625% and mature in 2006.

Settlement Obligation Bonds

In August 2001, the City issued $60.8 million in Settlement Obligation Bonds, Series 2001. The bonds
have interest rates ranging from 3% to 4% and mature from March 2002 through March 2011. The bonds
were issued to refund certain obligations resulting from the settlement of business tax litigation against the
City.

Solar Power and Enerqy Conservation Revenue Bond

In November 2001, the voters approved Proposition H which is a Charter amendment that added another
exception to the voter-approval requirement for issuing revenue bonds. Under the proposed exception, the
Board of Supervisors can authorize the issuance of revenue bonds to buy, build, or improve renewable
energy facilities or energy conservation facilities without voter approval.

On the same election date, the voters also approved Proposition B, Solar Energy Revenue Bond.
Proposition B authorizes the City to issue revenue bonds and other forms of revenue financing in a
principal amount not to exceed $100 million to build solar and other renewable energy facilities to supply
electricity to City agencies. The money also would fund energy conservation facilities and equipment. The
City would repay the principal and interest on the bonds from energy cost reductions as a result of the
proposed facilities.
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Business-Type Activities Long-Term Liabilities

The following provides a brief description of the current year additions to the long-term debt of the
business-type activities.

Airport

On July 11, 2001, the San Francisco International Airport (SFO) issued Second Series Revenue Bond
Issue 27 (Issue 27) in the amount of $488.5 million with interest rates ranging for 4% to 5.5%. A portion of
the proceeds from Issue 27 were deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent for the
repayment of SFO’s then outstanding commercial paper, and a portion of the proceeds were used to
advance refund certain of the Airport’s Second Series Revenue Bonds as follows (in thousands):

San Francisco International Airport Refunding Bonds
(in thousands)

Amount Average
Second Series Revenue Bond Issuance: Refunded Interest Rate
ISSUE 8B ... e oottt eresr e s asssnnneee e s e e neseaanes $ 825 5.20%
ISSUB DDt bab e s s 15,310 5.00%-5.25%
ISSUB TOB....c.o s, 1,550 5.20%
ISSUE 17 eeeeeiiereeeeeessebemneeeseeeeesssarrreesaneesanrenees 78,950 5.75%-6.25%
|10 (=T 4 = TP 26,975 5.5%-5.63%
ISSUE T3A. oot se s, 10,750 7.13%
ISSUE T6B..ocecrierrmrarestae e s s, 6,760 5.25%-5.50%
ISSUE 17 eeeeeeeeeitevmrereeeeeereststsennnseenensrasenrrnaseasasess 2,885 5.25%-5.50%
ISSUE 18B .o it ee e ee st s e e e e e s, 2,715 5.25%
ISSUE 1D it eeeeeeer e eeeeeevese s e s re e e e nenrn e enes 685 5.25%
B o) £ | SRR $ 147,405

The refunded Second Series Revenue Bonds have final maturity dates ranging from May 1, 2006 to May
1, 2026 and call dates ranging from May 1, 2004 to May 1, 2008.

The net proceeds of $156.6 million (including original issue premium of $3.5 million, and after depositing
$309 million in an irrevocable trust for the repayment of commercial paper, $20.9 million with a fiscal
agent to provide for future debt service, and $0.7 million in a construction account to provide funding for
future construction activity, and the payment $4.8 million in underwriting fees, insurance, and other
issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Treasury Securities — State and Local Series. Those
securities were deposited in irrevocable trusts with an escrow agent to provide debt service payments of
the refunded portion of the bonds identified above until the bonds are called beginning May 1, 2004 and
ending May 1, 2008.

The refunded bonds are considered legally defeased where the debt is legally satisfied based on certain
provisions in the debt instrument even though the debt is still outstanding. Accordingly, the liability for the
refunded bonds has been removed from the accompanying statement of net assets.

Although the advance refunding resulted in the recognition of a deferred accounting loss of $12 million for
the year ended June 30, 2002, SFO in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by
approximately $13 million over the next 25 years and obtained an economic gain (difference between the
present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $8.2 million.

On March 14, 2002, the Airport issued Second Series Revenue Bond Issue 28 (Issue 28) in the amount of

$365 million with interest rates ranging for 2% to 5.5%. A portion of the proceeds from Issue 28 were
deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent for the repayment of the Airport's then
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outstanding commercial paper, and a portion of the proceeds were used to advance refund $99.4 million
of the Airport’s Second Series Revenue Bonds Issue 1.

The refunded Second Series Revenue Bonds have final maturity dates ranging from May 1, 2003 to May
1, 2013 and a call date of May 1, 2002.

The net proceeds of $97.5 million (including original issue premium of $4.3 million, and after depositing
$248.1 million in an irrevocable trust for the repayment of commercial paper, $17.6 million with a fiscal
agent to provide for future debt service, and $1.3 million in a construction account to provide funding for
future construction activity, and the payment $4.8 million in underwriting fees, insurance, and other
issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. Treasury Securities — State and Local Series. Those
securities were deposited in irrevocable trusts with an escrow agent to provide debt service payments of
the refunded portion of Issue 1 until the bonds were called and repaid on May 1, 2002.

The refunded bonds are considered legally defeased where the debt is legally satisfied based on certain
provisions in the debt instrument even though the debt is still outstanding. Accordingly, the liability for the
refunded bonds has been removed from the accompanying statement of net assets.

Although the advance refunding resulted in the recognition of a deferred accounting loss of $5.4 million for
the year ended June 30, 2002, the Airport in effect reduced its aggregate debt service payments by
approximately $11.5 million over the next 11 years and obtained an economic gain (difference between
the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $11 million.

Upon the terms and conditions set forth in a letter of credit dated May 1, 1997, SFO obtained a $300
million standby letter of credit that may be increased to $400 million and commenced issuing commercial
paper as a means of interim financing. The rates on this letter of credit vary from 2.9% to 3.9%. During the
fiscal year 2002, SFO refinanced the commercial paper outstanding with Second Series Revenue Bonds
(discussed above). Moreover, SFO obtained a $200 million standby letter of credit in current fiscal year
that may be increased to $400 million upon the terms and conditions set forth in the letter of credit dated
as of May 1, 2002. As at June 30, 2002, there is no commercial paper balance outstanding.

Water Department

In November 1997, the San Francisco voters approved Propositions A & B, authorizing up to $304 million
in Water Revenue Bonds to fund capital improvements for the Water Enterprise. In May and June 1999,
the Public Utilities Commission and the Board of Supervisors respectively approved a commercial paper
program to provide short-term financing for capital improvement projects funded under the $304 million
Water Revenue Bond Program. Under the enabling ordinance approved by the Board of Supervisors, the
maximum amount of commercial paper that may be outstanding at any given time is $150 million. As of
June 30, 2002, the amount of outstanding commercial paper was $90 million.

During fiscal year 2002, Water Department issued $140 million of Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A.
The Revenue Bonds include current interest serial and term bonds with interest rates varying from 4.0 to
5.0%. The current interest serial bonds mature from November 1, 2002, through November 1, 2021 and
the current interest term bonds mature from November 1, 2002 through November 1, 2031.

General Hospital Medical Center

In June 2002, the General Hospital entered into a five-year capital lease with the Finance Corporation for
various equipment. The principal amount of the capital lease is $0.8 million. The interest rates range from
3% to 3.8% and the lease matures from 2003 through 2007.
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Parking Garages

In May 2001, the Uptown Parking Corporation, issued $19 million of bonds for the purpose of financing
improvements to the Union Square Garage facility. The bonds mature starting in 2003 and are to be fully
retired by 2031. The bonds bear interest at rates from 4.5% to 6.0%. The Corporation has pledged its
gross revenues and all funds and amounts held under the trust indenture as security for payment of the
bonds. Additionally, the trust indenture requires the Corporation to maintain certain ratios and levels of
cash and cash equivalents.

Component Unit Debt - Redevelopment Agency

The current year debt activities of the Redevelopment Agency are discussed in note 12.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PROGRAMS

(a) Retirement Plans

The City maintains a single-employer, defined benefit pension plan (the Plan) which covers substantially
all of its employees, and certain classified and certified employees of the San Francisco Community
College District and Unified School District. The Plan is administered by the San Francisco City and
County Employees’ Retirement System (the Retirement System). Some City employees participate in the
California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), an agent multiple-employer, public employee
pension plan which covers certain employees in public safety functions, the Port, SFO and the
Redevelopment Agency.

Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description - Substantially all full-time employees of the City participate in the Plan. The Plan
provides basic service retirement, disability and death benefits based on specified percentages of defined
final average monthly salary and provides annuai cost-of-living adjustments after retirement. The Plan also
provides pension continuation benefits to qualified survivors. The San Francisco City and County Charter
and Administrative Code is the authority which establishes and amends the benefit provisions and
employer obligations of the Plan. The retirement related payroll for employees covered by the Retirement
System for the year ended June 30, 2002 was $1,858 million. The Retirement System issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the San Francisco City and County Employees’ Retirement
System, 30 Van Ness, Suite 3000, San Francisco, CA 94102 or by calling (415) 487-7020.

Membership

Membership of the Retirement System at July 1, 2001, the date of the latest actuarial valuation is:

Police Fire Others Total
Retirees and beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 1,935 1,722 13,951 17,608
Active members:
Vested 1,669 1,211 16,852 19,732
Nonvested 512 592 90,688 10,792
Subtotai 2,181 1,803 26,540 30,524
Total 4116 3,525 40,491 48,132
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Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Benefits and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

Funding Policy - Contributions are made to the basic plan by both the City and the participating
employees. Employee contributions are mandatory. Employee contribution rates for fiscal year 2001-02
varied from 7.00% to 8.00% as a percentage of gross salary. The City makes the contributions required of
City employees on their behalf and for their account. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. Based on the actuarial report, there were no required employer contributions for fiscal
year 2001-02 because the City is funded at 129.0% of liability.

Employer contributions and member contributions made by the employer to the Plan are recognized when
due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.

Annual Pension Cost - The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of an
actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2001. The actuarial method used was the entry age normal cost
method. The significant actuarial assumptions include: (1) annual rate of return on investments of 8.25%;
(2) inflation element in wage increase of 4.5%; and (3) salary merit increases of 1.25%. Unfunded
liabilities are amortized using the level percentage of payroll method. Changes in actuarial gains and loss
assumptions and purchasable services are amortized as a level percentage of pay over a closed 15 year
period. Plan amendments are amortized over 20 years.

Three-year trend information is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/2000 $0 N/A $0
6/30/2001 $0 N/A $0
6/30/2002 $0 N/A $0

California Public Employees’ Retirement System

Various City public safety, Port, and all Redevelopment Agency employees are eligible to participate in
PERS. Disclosures for the Redevelopment Agency are included in the separately issued financial
statements.

Plan Description - The City and County of San Francisco contributes to PERS, an agent multiple-employer
public employee defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California.
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and city ordinance. Copies
of PERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their executive office: 400 P Street, Sacramento,
CA 95814.

Miscellaneous Plan

Funding Policy - Miscellaneous plan — Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered
salary. The City makes the contributions required of City employees on their behalf and for their account.
The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the miscellaneous plan, the fiscal
year 2001-02 contribution rate is 0% of annual covered payroll because the City is funded at 144.3%. The
contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by PERS.

91



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Annual Pension Cost — Miscellaneous plan - cost for PERS for fiscal year 2001-02 was equal to the City’s
required and actual contributions which was determined as part of the June 30, 1999 actuarial valuation
using the entry age actuarial cost method. The assumptions included in the June 30, 1999 actuarial
valuation were: (a) 8.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) 3.75% to 14.20%
projected annual salary increases that vary by age, service, and type of employment, and (c) 3.75% per
year cost-of-living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.50%. The actuarial
value of PERS assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in
the market value of investments. Changes in unfunded liability/(excess assets) due to changes in actuarial
methods or assumptions or changes in plan benefits are amortized, as a level percentage of pay, over a
closed 20 year period. Actuarial gains and losses are first offset against one another and then 10% of the
net unamortized gain/loss is recognized.

Three-year trend information is as follows (amounts in thousands).

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/1997 $ 0 N/A 30
6/30/1998 $ 0 N/A $0
6/30/1999 3 0 N/A $0

Safety Plan

Funding Policy — Safety plan - Participants are required to contribute 9% of their annual covered salary.
The City makes the contributions required of City employees on their behalf and for their account. The City
is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the safety plan, the fiscal year contribution
rate is 5.432% because the City is funded at 131.2%. The contribution requirements of plan members and
the City are established and may be amended by PERS.

Annual Pension Cost — Safety Plan - cost for PERS for fiscal year 2001-02 was equal to the City’s
required and actual contributions which was determined as part of the June 30, 1999 actuarial valuation
using the entry age actuarial cost method. The assumptions included in the June 30, 1999 actuarial
valuation were: (a) 8.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) 3.75% to 11.59%
projected annual salary increases that vary by age, service and type of employment, and (c) 3.75% per
year cost-of-living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.5%. The actuarial
value of PERS assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in
the market value of investments. Changes in unfunded liability/(excess assets) due to changes in actuarial
methods or assumptions or changes in plan benefits are amortized over as a leve! percentage of pay over
a closed 20 year period. Actuarial gains and losses are first offset against one another and then 10% of
the net unamortized gain/loss is recognized.

Three-year trend information is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
6/30/1997 $12,759 100% $0
6/30/1998 $ 8,392 100% $0
6/30/1999 $ 0 N/A 30
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(b) Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
(IRC) Section 457. The plan, available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees or other beneficiaries until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

The City has no administrative involvement and does not perform the investing function. The City has no
fiduciary accountability for the plan and, accordingly, the plan assets and related liabilities to plan
participants are not included in the basic financial statements.

(c) Health Service System

The Health Service System was established in 1937. Health care benefits of employees, retired
employees and surviving spouses are financed by beneficiaries and by the City through the Health
Service System. The employers’ contribution, which includes the San Francisco Community College
District and Unified School District, amounted to approximately $218.9 million in fiscal year 2002. The
employers’ contribution is mandated and determined by Charter provision based on similar contributions
made by the ten most populous counties in California. Included in this amount is $47.3 million to provide
post-retirement health care benefits for 18,335 retired employees. The City’s liability for both current
employee and post-retirement health care benefits is limited to its annual contribution. The City's
contribution is paid out of current available resources and funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Health
Service System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Health care benefits. That report may be obtained by writing to the San
Francisco Health Service System, 1145 Market Street, 2" Floor, San Francisco, CA 94103 or by calling
(415) 554-1700.

SAN FRANCISCO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

The San Francisco County Transportation Authority (the Authority) was established in 1989 by the voters
of the City and County of San Francisco pursuant to State Code Section 131.000. The purpose of the
Authority is to impose the voter-approved transactions and use tax of one-half of one percent to fund
essential traffic and transportation projects, as set forth in the San Francisco County Transportation
Expenditure Plan, for a period not to exceed 20 years. The principal focus of the Authority’'s Expenditure
Plan is to define a program of prioritized projects to ensure that funding is allocated across major
transportation categories. The City accounts for these activities in the other governmental funds.

In June 1992, the Authority was designated by the Board of Supervisors as the overall program manager
for the Local Guarantee share of transportation funds available through the “Transportation Fund for Clean
Air” Program (AB 434) which is administered by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District. The source
of funds is a $4.00 surcharge on the vehicle registration fee.

The Authority serves as the Congestion Management Agency under state laws, and in that capacity
prioritizes state and federal transportation funds for San Francisco. The funding is administered by the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission in accordance with the Federal Surface Transportation Program
for congestion management activities.

In April 1998, the Authority signed a memorandum of understanding with the State of California
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) to serve as the lead agency for the environmental impact
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research and study and the preliminary design for the Doyle Drive Replacement Project for which Caltrans
was awarded $6 million in federal grant funds.

Following is a summary of the Authority’s financial position and results of operations as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2002 (in thousands).

ASSETS OPERATIONS
Deposits and investments...............c.cocovveene $ 128,709 Revenues:
ReCIVADIES. ..o 26,305 SIS 1AX .ot $ 62,861
Total @SSetS... ..o $ 155,014 Interest and investment iINCOME............cccocceeeee 8,856
intergovemmental..............cccooo i 3,846
LIABILITES ANDFUND BALANCE 75,563
Expenditures and other financing uses:
Due to other funds.........ooeeeevceeeeie e $ 10,445 Public works, transportation, and commerce.... 78,027
Other iabilities. .......ooveeeeeeee e 1,829 Transferto other funds............ccoooiiiiniinns 16,833
Total liabilities..........cooconiiiiiinns 12,274 94,860
Fund balance:
Reserved for encumbrances.................. 134,730 Deficiency of revenues under expenditures
Unresenved..........ooovvvrccreviiecerieneens 8,010 and other financing USES...........cccccvee v (18,297)
Total fund balance..........c.cccoecciiiinis 142,740 Fund balance at beginningof year....................... 162,037
Total liabilities and fund balance......... $155,014 Fund bafance at end of year..............ccccooiiiins $ 142,740

(11) DETAIL INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

(a) San Francisco International Airport

San Francisco International Airport (SFO), which is owned and operated by the City, is the principal
commercial service airport for the San Francisco Bay Area. A five member Commission is responsible for
the operation and management of the Airport. The Airport is located 14 miles south of downtown San
Francisco in an unincorporated area of San Mateo County between the Bayshore Freeway (U.S. Highway
101) and San Francisco Bay. According to final data for calendar year 2001 from the Airports Council
International (the “ACl”), SFO is one of the largest airports in the United States both in terms of
passengers (9th) and air cargo (12th). SFO is also a major origin and destination point and one of the
nation’s principal gateways for Pacific traffic.

The new International Terminal Complex (ITC), which opened December 10, 2000, was the centerpiece of
SFO’s Near Term Master Plan (NTMP) projects. NTMP projects include the new ITC, the AirTrain System,
inbound/outbound ramps and elevated circulation roadways to connect the ITC to U.S. Highway 101, and
individua! projects generally consisting of other terminal, parking, cargo, general aviation, emergency
response, security and other facilities and improvements. With the exception of the AirTrain system, most
of the NTMP projects have been substantially completed. The Commission has issued $4.6 billion in
aggregate principal amount of Second Series Revenue Bonds (exclusive of the Issue 28 Bonds), of which
$2.85 billion was issued to fund costs related to the NTMP projects. In addition to Bonds issued for NTMP
purposes, the Commission has issued $503 million in Bonds to refund previously outstanding senior lien
revenue bonds of the Commission, $432.9 million in Bonds for noise mitigation and other capital projects,
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$60 million in Bonds to finance a portion of the construction costs of a Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART)
extension to the Airport and $756.5 million to refund certain Second Series Revenue Bonds and
commercial paper notes of the Commission. The Commission developed a five-year capital plan (the
“Capital Plan”) to meet the future needs of the Airport. However, as a result of the September 11, 2001
terrorist attacks, current economic conditions, and the resulting decrease in Airport revenues, the
Commission has put its Capital Plan on hold indefinitely and has cancelled or postponed most capital
projects that are not already in progress or related to safety and security of the Airport.

The Airport has financed its capital program primarily through the issuance of revenue bonds and
commercial paper secured by a pledge of the Net Revenues of the Airport, and through interest earnings,
Airport operating revenues, and Federal grants. On July 27, 2001, the FAA approved the Airport's
collection and use of a $4.50 Passenger Facility Charge (“PFC") per enplaning passenger from October 1,
2001 through June 1, 2003, to pay for eligible project development activities and studies relating to a
potential runway reconfiguration. The FAA authorized the Airport to collect approximately $112.7 million in
PFC revenue through June 2003 under this first PFC application (“PFC Application Number 17). On March
21, 2002, the FAA approved PFC Application Number 2 for the period June 2, 2003 through April 1, 2008,
to pay debt service on the bonds issued to finance eligible projects. The amount of PFC revenues to be
collected under PFC Application Number 2 is estimated to be $224 million.

For the year ended June 30, 2002, the Airport has reported $40.6 million of PFC revenue which is
included in other non operating revenues in the accompanying basic financial statements. The
Commission intends to designate $18.8 million of PFC revenue collected during fiscal year ended June
30, 2002 as revenues under the 1991 Master Resolution. The PFC funds received by the Airport are
subject to audit and final acceptance by the FAA and costs reimbursed with PFC revenues are subject to
adjustment upon audit.

The Commission has three outstanding issues of Special Facility Bonds, which were issued to finance the
construction of jet fuel distribution and related facilities at the Airport for the benefit of the airiines: $93.4
million of San Francisco International Airport Special Facilities Lease Revenue Bonds (SFO FUEL
COMPANY LLC), Series 1997A; $12.3 million of San Francisco International Airport Special Facilities
Lease Revenue Bonds (SFO FUEL COMPANY LLC), Series 1997B (Taxable); and $19.3 million of San
Francisco International Airport, 1997 Special Facilities Lease Revenue Bonds (SFO FUEL COMPANY
LLC), Series 2000A (collectively, the “SFO FUEL Bonds”). SFO FUEL Bonds are payable from and
secured by payments made by a special purpose limited liability company (the “LLC") pursuant to a lease
agreement between the Commission and the company with respect to the jet fuel distribution facilities.
The LLC was formed by certain airlines operating at the Airport, including United Airlines, which were its
initial members. The lease payments, and therefore the SFO FUEL Bonds, are payable from charges
imposed by the LLC for into-plane fueling at the Airport, and are not payable from or secured by Net
Revenues. The SFO FUEL Bonds are further secured by an Interline Agreement among the participating
airlines, including United Airlines, under which the participating airlines are obligated to make payments to
the LLC equal to its total net costs, including the lease payments due to the Commission with respect to
the SFO FUEL Bonds. All airlines operating at the Airport are required to have aviation fuel delivered to
their aircraft through the LLC's jet fuel distribution facilities.

Due to the Commission’s noise mitigation efforts, significant progress has been made in reducing the
impact of aircraft noise on the communities surrounding the Airport through the implementation of (1)
noise abatement flight procedures, (2) an aircraft noise insulation program, (3) community outreach
through the Airport Community Roundtable, and (4) requests that certain surrounding communities adopt
ordinances to protect new purchasers of homes within their community.
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Pursuant to an agreement with certain airlines, the Airport makes an annual payment to the City's General
Fund equal to 15% of concession revenue, but not less than $5 million per fiscal year. The amount
transferred to the General Fund during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002 was $17.8 miliion.

(b) Port of San Francisco

A five-member Port Commission is responsible for the operation, development, and maintenance activities
of the Port of San Francisco (Port). Prior to 1969, the Port was owned by the State of California. At that
time the Port was transferred in trust to the City under the terms and conditions of legislation as ratified by
the electorate of the City. The State retains the right to amend, modify or revoke the transfer of lands in
trust provided that it assumes all lawful obligations related to such lands.

In 1996, the Department of Parking and Traffic (DPT) entered into an Annual Payment Agreement with the
Port to resolve a dispute concerning the City’s collection of parking fine revenues from Port property.
Among other things, DPT agreed to pay the Port a guaranteed annual payment of $1.2 million for twenty
years commencing on July 1, 1897, for parking fine revenues collected from Port property. Thereafter,
amounts remitted to the Port are based on actual ticket collections, net of administrative costs.

On November 26, 1996, a fire at the east end of Pier 48 destroyed the interconnecting wood frame
structure and caused substantial structural damage to the steel frames, walls, and roof at the easterly end
of Sheds A and B on the pier. On July 14, 1998, a fire damaged the historic ferry slip arch structure at Pier
43 and the one-story auxiliary building connected to the arch’s west tower. Insurance was in force to cover
fire damage to the Port's property at both piers. In January 2002, the Port and its insurers reached a
settlement to complete the required construction repairs at Pier 48. The Port has received insurance
payments of $6.8 million for approved and completed repairs and $8.0 million in an escrow account to
fund certain seismic retrofit work. Through June 30, 2002, the Port received interim insurance payments
$0.9 million for Pier 43. The Port is involved in discussions with its insurers as to additional insurance
proceeds which the Port believes it is entitled for the repair of the Pier 43 arch.

In July 1997, the Port entered into a ten-year subordinate commercial loan agreement with a bank for $12
million to finance certain capital projects. The outstanding balance of $8.7 million was paid off on July 2,
2001. The loan obligation was subordinate to all bonds payable by the Port. The loan interest rate, which
adjusts with the LIBOR rate, at the payment date was 5.68%.

In September 2002, the Port received a notice of violation from the California Department of Toxic
Substance Control (DTSC) in connection with the presence of approximately 15,000 cubic yards of soil
contaminated with soluble lead in concentrations that classify it as hazardous waste in California. A former
tenant operated a soil disposal service and abandoned the contaminated soil after declaring bankruptcy in
1995 and ceasing operations. The soil has been tested to identify potential disposal and re-use options for
which the Port has obtained current cost estimates ranging from $0.8 to $1.2 million. The Port has
recorded a provision of $0.8 million for the remediation of the contaminated soils as of June 30, 2002.

The Port is presently planning various development projects which involve a commitment to expend
significant funds. Purchase commitments at June 30, 2002 were $9.2 million for capital projects and $1.7
million for general operating costs. Under an agreement with the San Francisco Bay Conservation and
Development Commission (BCDC), the Port is committed to fund and expend up to $30 million over a 20
year period for pier removal, parks and plazas and other public access improvements. As of June 30,
2002 $1.5 million has been appropriated and $0.9 million has been expended for projects under the
agreement.

96



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(c) Water Department

The San Francisco Water Department (Water) was established in 1930. Water, which consists of a
system of reservoirs, storage tanks, water treatment plants, pump stations, and pipelines, is engaged in
the collection, transmission and distribution of water to the City and certain suburban areas. Water
delivers water, approximately 93,194 million gallons annually, to a total population of approximately 2.4
million people who reside primarily in four Bay Area counties (San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa Clara and
Alameda).

The Public Utilities Commission (the Commission), established in 1932 provides the operational oversight
for the Water Department, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power, and the Clean Water Program. The
Commission consists of five members appointed by the Mayor who are responsible for determining such
matters as the rates and charges for services, approval of contracts, and organizational policy.

Water purchases water from Hetch Hetchy. This amount, totaling approximately $19 million, is included in
the charges for services provided by other departments in the accompanying financial statements.

During fiscal year 2002, water sales to suburban resale customers were $70.4 million. As of June 30,
2002, Water owed suburban resale customers approximately $10.9 million under the Suburban Water
Rate Agreement.

As of June 30, 2002, Water had outstanding commitments with third parties of $82.4 million for various
capital projects and for materials and supplies.

In July 1999, the California Regionai Water Quality Control Board (CRWQCB) issued a directive
instructing the Water Department to develop a remedial action plan (plan) that addresses environmental
contamination at certain real property owned by the Water Department. In response to the directive, the
Commission developed a remedial action pian and in August 2001 received the final directive from the
CRWQCB to execute the plan by middle of 2004. The Commission appropriated funding for pre-work and
the award of Phase | of the plan during fiscal year 2002. The cost of cleanup associated with this plan is
estimated to be $22.7 million and was accrued in fiscal year 2001. During fiscal year 2002, Water
expended $2 million in accordance with the plan.

(d) Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power (Hetch Hetchy) was established as a result of the Raker Act of 1913,
which granted water and power resources rights-of-way on the Tuolumne River in Yosemite National Park
to the City. Hetch Hetchy is engaged in the collection and conveyance of approximately 85% of the City's
water supply and in the generation and transmission of electricity from that resource. Approximately one-
third of the electricity is used by the City’s municipal customers (e.g., the San Francisco Municipal
Railway, the Recreation and Parks Department, the Port of San Francisco, San Francisco County
hospitals, street lighting, Moscone Center, and the water and sewer utilities). The balance of the power
generated is sold to other publicly owned utilities, such as the Modesto and Turlock Irrigation Districts.

Hetch Hetchy consists of a system of reservoirs, hydroelectric power plants, aqueducts, pipelines, and
transmission lines. This system carries water and power more than 165 miles from the Sierra Nevada
Mountains to customers in the City and portions of the surrounding San Francisco Bay Area.

Charges for services for the year ended June 30, 2002 include $64.8 million in sales of power by Hetch

Hetchy to other City Departments. Income from Hetch Hetchy is available for certain operations of the
City.
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As of June 30, 2002, Hetch Hetchy had outstanding commitments with third parties of $6.3 million for
various capital projects and other purchase agreements for materials and services.

Hetch Hetchy is party to a fixed price, forward contract (the Contract) to purchase electricity from a third
party energy provider with scheduled future delivery over a five-year period that began July 1, 2001.
Hetch Hetcy entered into the Contract on May 9, 2001 to purchase 2.19 million mWhrs of electric energy.
Under this take or pay contract, Hetch Hetchy is obligated to pay for a minimum amount of electricity even
if the electricity is not required for operations. Commitments related to this contract total $33.0 million
annually, for a total of $131.8 million through June 30, 2006. Expenditures under this contract totaled
$41.7 million in fiscal year ending June 30, 2002.

Hetch Hetchy serves as an intermediary agency between Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) and all
City Departments for the design and construction of various electrical components and other related
systems needed to deliver electricity. As of June 30, 2002 various City Departments were indebted to
Hetch Hetchy for construction costs of approximately $0.21 million, incurred by Hetch Hetchy on their
behalf. This is accounted for in due from other funds and internal balances within the basic financial
statements. Hetch Hetchy receives title to the underlying assets of certain completed projects on behalf of
the City and assumes responsibility for their maintenance, repair and replacement following their initial
year of operation.

The Public Utilities Commission has contracted with PG&E to provide transmission capacity on PG&E’s
system where needed to deliver Hetch Hetchy’s power to its customers. In addition, the PG&E agreement
provides backup power and other support services to Hetch Hetchy. The PG&E agreement allows PG&E
to review past billings paid by Hetch Hetchy and to retroactively adjust these payments to actual backup
power, transmission, and other charges as finally determined by PG&E. During fiscal year 2002, Hetch
Hetchy purchased $14.4 million of transmission services, backup power, and other support services from
PG&E under the terms of the agreement.

To meet certain requirements of the Don Pedro Reservoir operating license, the City entered into an
agreement with the Modesto and Turlock Irrigation Districts (the Districts) in which the Districts would be
responsible for an increase in water flow releases from the reservoir in exchange for annual payments of
$3.5 million from the City. The payments are to be made for the duration of the license, but may be
terminated with one year's prior written notice after 2001. The City and the Districts have also agreed to
monitor the fisheries in the lower Tuolumne River for the duration of the license. A maximum monitoring
expense of $1.4 million is to be shared between the City and the Districts over the term of the license.
The City’s share of the monitoring costs is 52% and the Districts are responsible for 48% of the costs.

In April 1998, Hetch Hetchy entered into a long-term power sales agreement (the Agreement) with the
Districts. The Agreement expires in 2015 and requires that Hetch Hetchy provide, as generated, an
amount equivalent to the difference between 260 megawatts and the amount required to meet the City's
demand. For fiscal year 2002, power sales to the Districts totaled 871,807 mWhrs or $22.6 million.

(e) Municipal Railway

The San Francisco Municipal Railway (MUNI) is the City’s public transit agency. MUNI was established in
1912. During the fiscal year 1999-2000, the San Francisco Municipal Transit Agency (MTA) was created
by Proposition E, a Charter amendment approved by the voters, to run MUNI. MTA replaced the San
Francisco Public Transportation Commission. The data reflects the combined operations of MUNI and the
San Francisco Municipal Railway Improvement Corporation (SFMRIC). SFMRIC is a nonprofit corporation
established to provide capital financial assistance for the modernization of MUNI by acquiring,
constructing, and financing improvements to the City’s public transportation system.
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The City’s Annual Appropriation Ordinance provides funds to subsidize MUNI's operating deficits as
determined by the City’s budgetary accounting procedures, subject to the appropriation process. The
amount of the fiscal year 2001-2002 General Fund Subsidy to MUNI! was $94 million.

MUNI receives capital grants from various federal, state, and local agencies to finance transit related
property and equipment purchases. As of June 30, 2002, MUNI had approved capital grants with unused
balances amounting to $294.6 million. Capital grants receivable as of June 30, 2002 totaled $41.2 million.

MUNI also receives operating assistance from various federal, state, and local sources, including Transit
Development Act funds and sales tax allocations. As of June 30, 2002, MUNI had various operating grants
receivable of $5.7 million.

These capital grants and operating assistance include funds from the Authority. During the year ended
June 30, 2002, the Authority approved $79 million in new capital grants and $17.2 million in new operating
grants for MUNI. During the same period, MUNI received total payments of $68.7 million for capital grants
and $18.4 million in operating grants from the Authority. As of June 30, 2002, MUNI had $10.4 miilion due
from the Authority for capital grants and had no funds due from the Authority for operating grants.

The State Public Utilities Code requires that fare revenues must equal or exceed 33% of operating costs
in order to qualify for an allocation of certain sales tax revenues available for public transit. Transit
operators may add local support to fare revenues in order to calculate the fare recovery ratio. The City
provides significant local support to MUNI from parking revenues and the General Fund.

MUN! has outstanding contract commitments of approximately $88.1 million with third parties for various
capital projects. Grant funding is available for a majority of this amount. MUNI also has outstanding
commitments of approximately $10.6 million for non-capital expenditures. Various local funding sources
are used to finance these expenditures. MUNI is committed to numerous capital projects for which it
anticipates that federal and state grants will be the primary source of funding. SMFRIC's Board of
Directors has authorized SMFRIC to extend financial guarantees to MUNI for certain projects totaling $2.7
million.

In March 2001, MUNI and the Port entered in to a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) under which
MUN!I may use the Metro East site in perpetuity for rail vehicle maintenance, operations and other
operational needs at a cost of $25.7 million. This amount was reported as a Special ltem in the proprietary
funds statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets. MUNI received a capital
contribution from the Authority for this. As part of this MOU, MUNI paid the Port an additional $4 million in
fiscal year 2002 to construct the lllinois Street Bridge over Islais Creek.

In April 2001, the Municipal Transportation Agency Board of Directors authorized the Director of
Transportation to solicit proposals regarding a leveraged lease-leaseback financing involving up to 150
Breda light rail vehicies. The transaction would not involve financing or procurement of any new vehicles.
Rather, MUNI’s intention was to obtain economic benefit in return for transferring the tax benefit of
depreciation on the vehicles to another party, without impairing the day-to-day operations of the transit
system.,

In April 2002, after obtaining final approval from the Municipal Transportation Agency Board of Directors.
MUNI simultaneously entered into two transactions, a lease of 118 Breda light rail vehicles to a group of
equity investors and a sublease of the vehicles back from the investors over a period of 27 years. MUNI
maintains custody of the light rail vehicles and is obligated to insure and maintain the vehicles throughout
the life of the lease.

99



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MUNI received $388.2 million from the equity investors as full payment of the cost to lease the vehicles
based on fair value of the vehicles. MUNI paid $352.7 million to an irrevocable trust to be used solely for
satisfying scheduled payments of both interest and principle of the sublease to the equity investors. The
trust assets are invested in U.S. government bonds with maturity dates that match the completion date of
the sublease. While these payments to the trust did not represent a legal defeasance of MUNI's
obligations under the sublease, management believes that the possibility that MUNI will be required to
make future payments to the trust is remote based on the stability of the investment and the limited risks
to the physical assets. Therefore, the trust assets and the sublease obligation are not recorded on the
financial statements of MUNI as of June 30, 2002.

As a result of the cash transactions above, MUNI recorded deferred revenue in fiscal year 2002 of $35.5
million, for the difference between the amount received of $388.2 and the amount paid to the trust for the
future sublease payments of $352.7, which will be amortized over the life of the sublease.

(f) Laguna Honda Hospital

The Laguna Honda Hospital (LHH) is a skilled nursing facility, which specializes, in serving elderly and
disabled residents. The operations of LHH are subsidized by the City. It is the City’s policy to fund
operating deficits of the enterprise on a budgetary basis; however, the amount of operating subsidy
provided is limited to the amount budgeted by the City. Accordingly, depreciation and certain non-current
accrued expenses are not funded, resulting in continuing deficits on a budget basis. In those
circumstances, the City allows the enterprise to show a deficit on a budget basis. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2002, the subsidy for LHH was $28 million.

Net income of LHH on a GAAP basis $21,025
Tobacco claims settlement* (20,970)
Net loss on specific/donor restricted funds (1,578)
Operating subsidy from City General Fund (27,047)
Operating subsidy from General Hospital Medical Center (1,100)
Net loss on LHH on a GAAP basis before operating subsidy (29,670)
Expenses which require budgetary funding but are not GAAP basis expenses:

Capitalized services and other asset purchases 9,210

Change in encumbrances and appropriation carry forwards (10,338)
Expenses which do not require budgetary funding but are GAAP basis expenses:

Depreciation and other expenses 2,651
Net loss of LHH requiring General Fund subsidy on a budget basis $(28,147)

*During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, LHH received approximately $21 million of the tobacco
settlement funds and $1.6 million in income from investments. As a result, LHH's net assets on a GAAP
basis do not show a deficit.

LHH has agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement to LHH at amounts different
from its established rates. Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs represent
the difference between the hospital’s established rate for services and amounts reimbursed by third-party
payors. Medicare and Medi-Cal are the major third-party payors with whom such agreements have been
established. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, Medicare and Medi-Cal charges for services
amounted to approximately $3.6 million and $102 million, respectively. As of June 30, 2002, LHH had net
patient receivables from Medicare of $1.8 million and net patient receivables from Medi-Cal of $22.1
million.
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During fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, LHH received approximately $12.3 million payment as a result of
matching Federal funds to Local funds which provided a Medi-Cal supplemental in the form of quarterly
payments effective August 1, 2001.

In November 1999, San Francisco voters approved Proposition A, a ballot measure authorizing the City to
finance the acquisition, improvement, construction and/or reconstruction of a new health care, assisted
living and/or other type of continuing care facility or facilities to replace Laguna Honda Hospital.
Proposition A stipulates that $100 million of tobacco settlement funds received by the City, excluding $1
million set aside each year for smoking education and prevention programs, may be used to pay for
construction of a replacement facility for LHH.

(g9) General Hospital Medical Center

The San Francisco General Hospital Medical Center (SFGH) is an acute care hospital. The operations of
SFGH are subsidized by the City. It is the City’s policy to fully fund enterprise operations on a budgetary
basis; however, the amount of operating subsidy provided is limited to the amount budgeted by the City.
Accordingly, depreciation and certain non-current accrued expenses are not funded, resulting in
continuing deficits on a budget basis. In those circumstances, the City allows the enterprise to show a
deficit on a budget basis. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the subsidy for SFGH was $72.3
million.

Loss before operating transfers of SFGH on a GAAP basis $(7,374)
Reimbursement to City General Fund for SB 855 matching program (70,523)
Net gain on specific/donor restricted funds 148
Operating transfers from City General Fund to support SFGH on:

Operation of Mental Health Rehabilitation Facility (938)

Other Program Support (81)
Interest expense on the overdraft funds with the City Treasury 1,221
Operating transfers from SFGH to LHH 1,100
Expenses which require budgetary funding but are not GAAP basis expenses:

Capitalized services and other asset purchases (6,666)

Change in encumbrances and appropriation carryforwards 4 585
Expenses which do not require budgetary funding but are GAAP basis expenses:

Depreciation expense 6,284

Other expenses (101)
Net loss of SFGH requiring General Fund subsidy on a Budget basis $(72,345)

SFGH has agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement to SFGH at amounts
different from its established rates. Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs
represent the difference between SFGH's established rates and amounts reimbursed by third-party
payors. Major third-party payors with whom such agreements have been established are Medicare, Medi-
Cal, the State of California through Senate Bills 855 and 1255 and the Short-Doyle mental health program,
the federal Medi-Cal Medical Education Program and Administrative Claiming System, and a managed
care agreement signed with a health maintenance organization (HMO).
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During the year ended June 30, 2002, Medicare and Medi-Cal revenue accounted for $50 million and $61
million of net patient service revenue respectively. As of June 30, 2002, SFGH had net patient receivables
from Medicare of $8.3 million and net patient receivables from Medi-Cal of $17.2 million.

State of California Senate Bill 855 (SB-855) was passed by the state legislature in July 1991 to provide
additional funding to hospitals which provide a significant portion of their services to Medi-Cal recipients.
In order to receive additional funds, the City must transfer funds to the State Medi-Cal program so that the
funds may be matched by federal funds. Gross patient revenue recorded by SFGH for SB-855 totaled
$106.2 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. This revenue was offset by a reduction in the
General Fund operating subsidy of $70.5 million for net SB 855 revenues of $35.7 million for the year
ended June 30, 2002.

In addition, SFGH receives funding from the State of California under Senate Bill 1255 (SB-1255) which
establishes a funding pool through public and private sector contributions with matching federal
participation. For the year ended June 30, 2002, SFGH recognized gross patient revenue in the amount of
$46 million offset by a reduction in the contribution provided by the City of $26 million for net SB 1255
revenues of $20 million.

Under the Medi-Cal Medical Education program, SFGH is reimbursed for medical education costs incurred
for services rendered to Medi-Cal beneficiaries. For the year ended June 30, 2002, SFGH recognized net
patient service revenue in the amount of $1.3 million pertaining to this program.

As of June 30, 2002, SFGH had Medi-Cal supplemental reimbursement receivables for SB-855, SB-1255,
and other federal and state settlement payments of approximately $46.6 million.

The State of California provides support to SFGH through a realignment of funding provided from vehicle
license fees and sales tax allocated to California's counties. SFGH recognized $61.1 million as non-
operating state revenue for the year ended June 30, 2002 from realignment funding.

in addition, SFGH was reimbursed by the State of California, under the Short-Doyle program, for mental
health services provided to qualifying residents based on an established rate per unit of service not to
exceed an annual negotiated contract amount. During the year ended June 30, 2002, reimbursement
under the Short-Doyle program amounted to approximately $5.1 million and is included in transfers in.

State of California Proposition 99, the Tobacco Tax Initiative, allocates funds to counties for health care
services to indigent persons and others who are unable to pay for health care services. Proposition 99
funds allocated to SFGH for the year ended June 30, 2002 amounted to $3.5 million and are included in
non-operating state revenue.

SFGH provides care without charge or at amounts less than its established rates to patients who meet
certain criteria under its charity care policy. Charges foregone based on established rates were $155
million and estimated costs and expenses to provide charity care were $115 million in fiscal year 2001-
2002.

The City contracts on a year-to-year basis on behalf of SFGH with the University of California (UC). Under
the contract, SFGH serves as a teaching facility for UC professional staff, medical students, residents, and
interns who, in return, provide medical and surgical specialty services to SFGH’s patients. The total
amount for services rendered under the contract for the year ended June 30, 2002 was approximately
$46.0 million.
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(h) Clean Water Program

The Clean Water Program (CWP) was established in 1977 pursuant to bond resolutions to account for the
City’s municipal sewage treatment and disposal system.

CWP’s revenue, which consists mainly of sewer service charges, is pledged for the payment of principal
and interest on various outstanding Sewer Revenue Bonds.

CWP has entered into several loan contracts with the California State Water Resources Control Board
under which CWP borrowed monies to finance the construction of certain facilities. As of June 30, 2002,
CWP had $179.6 million of loan principal outstanding.

On December 1, 2001, the CWP defeased (in-substance) $28.4 million of outstanding sewer revenue
bonds. The CWP did not issue additional bonds to defease the outstanding issues, but used funds
received from the State of California Water Resources Control Revolving Fund Loan Program. The
defeased bonds include $21 million of 1992 sewer revenue refunding bonds with interest rates ranging
from 5.7% to 5.8%, $5.4 million of 1994 sewer revenue refunding bonds with interest rates of 4.7%, and
$2.0 million of 1995A sewer revenue bonds with interest rates of 5.4%. Funds of $30.2 million were
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent and invested in a U.S. Treasury Money Market
Fund to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded sewer revenue bonds. As a result,
the refunded sewer revenue bonds are considered to be defeased in substance and the liability for those
bonds has been removed from the accompanying basic financial statements. The difference between the
$30.2 million deposited with the escrow agent and the carrying amount of the refunded sewer revenue
bonds of $27.6 million (net of $0.8 million in unamortized bond issuance costs, original issue discounts,
and refunding loss associated with those bonds) has been reported as a component of interest expense in
the accompanying basic financial statements.

In 1995 CWP entered into a forward purchase and sale agreement with a financial institution. Under the
agreement, CWP received an up front fee of $8.9 million from the financial institution. In exchange, CWP
will use its debt service payments not yet due to bondholders to purchase short-term U.S. Treasury bills at
face value. Revenue is being recognized over the life of the agreement based on the present value of the
future earnings. The fee was recorded as deferred revenue, and the unamortized balance as of June 30,
2002 was $1.4 million.

As of June 30, 2002, the CWP had purchase commitments for construction and for materials and services
totaling $9.5 million.
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(i) Parking Garages/Other

The data reflects the operations of five parking garages operated by separate nonprofit corporations
organized by the City. This data also includes the San Francisco Market Corporation, a nonprofit
corporation organized to acquire, construct, finance and operate a produce market. This information about
these nonprofit corporations for the year ended June 30, 2002 follows (in thousands):

Japan Ellis- Portsmouth San
Downtown Uptown Center  O'Farrell Plaza Francisco
Parking Parking Garage Parking Parking Market Total

Operating revenues.................c...... $ 11,461 $ 13,982 $ 2184 $ 3741 § 3,004 $ 1,273 $ 35645
Depreciation...........ccccccovvcinininnn 670 - - - 134 264 1,068
Operating income (losS)................. 1,527 2,013 (120) 687 166 444 4,717
Interest and other non-operating

revenues (EXpenses)........cccccc...... (1,383) 62 33 (345) (9) (26) (1,668)
Change in net assets...................... 144 2,075 (87) 342 157 418 3,049
Capital assets, additions................. 441 20,524 31 510 143 71 21,720
Capital assets, deletions................ 870 1,705 - - - 6 2,581
Net working capital (deficit)............ (6,815) (12,595) 147 (676) 454 683 (18,802)
Total assets.....ccccoveviiiciiiin, 29,569 61,878 7,344 18,515 3,043 6,791 127,140
Total liabilities...........oooeveveeirinn. 19,727 33,896 426 5,788 652 714 61,203
Net assets........ccooeeiviiciieieece, 9,842 27,982 6,918 12,727 2,391 6,077 65,937
Total debt outstanding................... $ 12,655 § 19,620 § - $ 5225 % 104 $ 388 $ 37,992

SAN FRANCISCO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

The Agency is a public body, corporate and politic, organized and existing under the Community
Redevelopment Law of the State of California. Since the organization of the Agency in 1948, the Agency
has completed four redevelopment project areas and twelve redevelopment project areas are now
underway. In addition, the Agency is undertaking feasibility studies for three new redevelopment survey
areas designated by the Board of Supervisors of the City and County of San Francisco.

The Agency acts as the lead Agency in administering the Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS
program which is funded by a grant from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. Under
a grant with the Office of Economic Adjustment on behalf of the U.S. Department of Defense, the Agency
has also undertaken community economic adjustment activities for planning the reuse of Hunters Point
Naval Shipyard.

in October and November 1998, the Board of Supervisors approved ordinances and resolutions adopting
the Mission Bay North and South Redevelopment Plans, Interagency Cooperation Agreements, and Tax
Allocation Agreements. The two project areas total 303 acres. Mission Bay North consists of
approximately 65 acres adjacent to the Pacific Bell Park. Mission Bay South includes approximately 238
acres of land. The Agency has entered into an Owner Participation Agreement with the owner/developer
to provide for development of the project areas. The proposed development in the north includes 3,000
housing units, 20% of which will be affordable units, 350,000 square feet of urban entertainment retail
space, 100,000 square feet of City-serving retail space, 55,000 square feet of neighborhood-serving retail
space and six acres of public open space. The proposed development in the south will include 3,090
housing units, 20% of which will be affordable units, a 43-acre University of California San Francisco
(UCSF) research campus, a 500 room hotel, 210,000 square feet of City-serving and neighborhood-
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serving retail space, five million square feet of commercial industrial space, and a 500-student public
school on land to be donated by UCSF. Mission Bay is expected to create over 31,000 new permanent
jobs. The Mission Bay development will take place over 20 to 30 years and will require investment of over
$145 million in new public infrastructure. Total development costs for the two project areas are expected
to exceed $4 billion.

The Agency has no direct taxing power and does not have the power to pledge the general credit or taxing
power of the City, the State of California or any political subdivision thereof. However, California’'s Health
and Safety Code allows redevelopment agencies with appropriate approvals of the local legislative bodies
to recover costs of financing public improvements from increased tax revenues (tax increment) associated
with increased property values of individual project areas. During the year, the Agency's revenue from
property tax increment was $59.4 million.

Outstanding bond issues had interest accretion of approximately $154.9 million during the current year.
Interest accretion is included in the outstanding principal balance of the related bonds in the basic financial

statements.

In order to facilitate construction and rehabilitation within the project areas, various construction loan
notes, promissory notes and mortgage revenue bonds with an aggregate outstanding balance of
approximately $701 million at June 30, 2002, have been issued. When these obligations are issued, they
are secured by the related mortgage indebtedness and, in the opinion of management, are not considered
obligations of the Agency or the City and therefore not included in the basic financial statements. Debt
service payments will be made by developers or property owners.

California Health and Safety Code Section 33334.3 requires the Agency to set aside 20% of the proceeds
from its incremental property tax revenues for expenditures for low and moderate income housing.
Related interest earned must also be set aside for such purposes. The Agency established the Low and
Moderate income Housing Fund to account for this commitment and has reserved $223 million for such
expenditures. The Agency has expended $147 million for low and moderate income housing since its
inception.

The Agency had commitments under contracts for capital improvements of approximately $27.4 million at
June 30, 2002.

During the year the Agency incorporated the Public Initiatives Development Corporation, which is
chartered to develop affordable housing on the Agency’s behalf. There was no financial activity during the
year. ’

TREASURE ISLAND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

The TIDA is a nonprofit public benefit corporation. The TIDA was authorized in accordance with the
Treasure Island Conversion Act of 1997 and designated as a redevelopment agency pursuant to
Community Redevelopment Law of the State of California. The TIDA is governed by seven commissioners
who are appointed by the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City's Board of Supervisors. The specific
purpose of the TIDA is to promote the planning, redevelopment, reconstruction, rehabilitation, reuse and
conversion of the property known as Naval Station Treasure Island for the public interest, convenience,
welfare and common benefit of the inhabitants of the City.

The mission of TIDA is to redevelop the former Naval Station Treasure Island and to manage its
integration with the City in compliance with federal, state and City guidelines (including the California
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Tidelands Trust) to maximize revenues to the City’s General Fund; to create new job opportunities for San
Francisco residents, including assuring job opportunities for homeless and economically disadvantaged
residents; to increase recreational and bay access venues for San Francisco and Bay Area residents; and
to promote the welfare and well being of the citizens of San Francisco.

The services provided by TIDA include negotiating the acquisition of former Naval Station Treasure Island
with the U.S. Navy and establishing the Treasure Island Redevelopment Project; renting Treasure Island
facilities leased from the U.S. Navy to generate revenues sufficient to cover operating costs; maintaining
Treasure Island facilities owned by the U.S. Navy which are not leased to the TIDA or the City; providing
facilities for special events, film production and other commercial business uses; providing 1,000 housing
units; and overseeing the U.S. Navy's toxic remediation activities on the former naval base.

During fiscal year 2002, TIDA's primary sources of revenues included facility rents and federal grant
funding from the U.S. Navy under a cooperative agreement. Under the cooperative agreement, TIDA
provides caretaker services for areas of Treasure and Yerba Buena Islands which are owned by the U.S
Navy and not leased to TIDA.

During fiscal year 2002, TIDA initiated negotiations with the Navy based on TIDA’s application for the
economic conveyance of the former naval station; issued a Request for Proposals for a Primary
Developer to complete the primary developer selection process; worked on preparing a CEQA-compliant
Environmental Impact Report based on the Navy’'s administrative draft Environmental Impact Statement;
and selected a contractor to draft the Treasure Island Redevelopment Plan.
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(14) INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

“Due to” and “due from” balances have primarily been recorded when funds overdraw their share of
pooled cash or when there are transactions between entities where one or both entities do not participate
in the City’s pooled cash. The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2002 is as follows (in
thousands):

Due to / from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Nonmajor governmental fund $ 22,516
General Hospital Medical Center 31,694

Laguna Honda Hospital 10,414

Internal Service Funds 2,027

66,651

Nonmajor Governmental Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund 54
Municipal Railway Nonmajor governmental fund 10,445
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 1,200

Ciean Water Program 800

12,445

Hetchy Hetchy Water and Power San Francisco International Airport 206
General Hospital Medical Center Nonmajor governmental fund 802
Laguna Honda Hospital Nonmajor governmental fund 76
Total $ 80,234

Due to / from primary government and component units:

Receivable Entity Payable Entity Amount

Primary government - governmental Component unit - SF Redevelopment Agency $ 22,587

Interfund transfers:
Transfers In:

Nonmajor Internal San Francisco Laguna
Transfers Out: General Governmental Service Municipal General Honda
Fund Funds Funds Railway Hospital Hospital Total
General fund.........cccoveeiiinineennnnen. $ - § 120670 $ 512 § 94305 § 73646 $ 27,558 $ 316,691
Nonmajor governmental
fUNAS...ooeeieee e, 21,441 180,776 - 16,833 938 1 219,989
San Francisco
International Airport................... 17,784 - - - - - 17,784
General Hospital Medical
Center....o e, 70,523 - - - - 1,100 71,623
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power.... - 382 - - - - 382
Municipal Railway.......cccoccerrnennen. 193 - - - - - 193
Less amount transferred
to internal service funds............ - (144,662) - - - - (144,662)
Total transfers out............. $ 109,941 $ 157166 $ 512 $ 111,138 § 74584 $ 28659 $ 482,000

The $317 million General Fund transfer out includes a total of $195.5 million in operating subsidies to
Municipal Railway, General Hospital Medical Center, and Laguna Honda Hospital (note 11). The transfers
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of $120.7 million from the General Fund to the non major governmental funds is to provide support to
various City programs such as the public library and community health services. The transfers between
the non major governmental funds are to provide support for various City programs and to provide
resources for the payment of debt services.

The General Fund received transfers in of $70.5 million from General Hospital Medical Center as
reimbursement for the SB 855 matching program (note 11(g)), $17.8 million from the San Francisco
international Airport, representing a portion of concession revenue (note 11(a)).

Included with the $180.8 million transferred out of nonmajor governmental funds is approximately $144.7
million which was transferred to a newly created internal service fund to report the operations of the
Finance Corporation. Because internal service funds report certain long-term assets and liabilities that are
not reported in governmental funds, there is no corresponding transfers in reported within internal service
funds related to the creation of this fund (Note 1). Also, $16.8 million was transferred out of nonmajor
governmental funds to Municipal Railway for transportation projects.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) Grants and Subventions

Receipts from federal and state grants and other similar programs are subject to audit to determine if the
monies were expended in accordance with appropriate statutes, grant terms and regulations. The City
believes that no significant liabilities will result.

(b) Operating Leases

The City has operating leases for certain buildings and data processing equipment which require the
following minimum annual payments (in thousands):

Primary Government

Governmental Activities

Fiscal

Years

2003..................... $ 24439

2004..................... 16,227

2005................. 15,427

2006............0.ce. . 13,021

2007 ... 8,356

2008-2012............ 10,691
Total............... $ 88,161
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Business-type Activities

General
San Francisco Hospital Total

Fiscal International Municipal Medical Business-type
Years Airport Railway Center Activities
2003.....cciiiiann, $ 5437 $ 4267 $ 4,405 $ 14109
2004.......cccciiinn, 5,402 3,931 1,584 10,917
2005, 5,251 2,440 608 8,299
2006.......cccceeiiiinnnnn 5,509 803 168 6,480
2007.....ccooiiiiiaann. 5714 153 28 5,895
2008-2012............ 10,318 121 - 10,439
2013-2017............ - 121 - 121
2018-2022............ - 121 - 121
2023-2027............ - 97 - 97

Total............... $ 37,631 $ 12,054 $ 6,793 $ 56,478

Component Unit - Redevelopment Agency

The Redevelopment Agency (Agency) has operating leases for its offices sites which require the following
minimum annual payments (in thousands):

Fiscal
Years
2003, $ 2,109
2004, 2,160
2005, ... 2,198
2006, 1,115
2007 o 757
2008-2012............ 3,785
2013-2017............ 3,785
2018-2022............ 3,785
2023-2027............ 3,785
2028-2032............ 3,785
2033-2037............ 3,785
2038-2042............ 3,785
2043-2047............ 3,786
2048-2052............ 2,271
Total............... $ 40,891
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Several City departments lease land and various facilities to tenants and concessionaires who will provide
the following minimum annual payments (in thousands):

Primary Government

Governmental Activities

Fiscal
Years
2003 . $ 3,349
2004, ... 2,042
2005, ..o 1,299
2006... 898
2007 470
2008-2012............ 2,256
2013-2017............ 2,545
2018-2022............ 883
2023-2027............ 250
2028-2032............ 40
2033-2037............ 1
Total............... $ 14,033
Business-type Activities
General
San Francisco Port Hospital Total
Fiscal International of San Medical Parking Business-type
2003.........cccccee... B 62,196 $ 26,858 $ 1,601 $ 2,515 $ 93,170
2004 ..o 47,483 23,851 1,730 2,606 75,670
2005, 40,409 22,023 1,775 2,425 66,632
2006... .. 34,481 19,302 1,802 2,155 57,740
2007 ..o 28,667 18,263 1,832 1,952 50,714
2008-2012............ 91,868 81,720 1,874 7,585 183,047
2013-2017............ - 71,966 - 857 72,823
2018-2022............ - 61,945 - - 61,945
2023-2027............ - 47,074 - - 47,074
2028-2032............ - 42,279 - - 42,279
2033-2037............ - 37,500 - - 37,500
2038-2042............ - 24,787 - - 24,787
2043-2047............ - 17,875 - - 17,875
2048-2052................. - 12,122 - - 12,122
2053-2057.......cocueee. - 7,023 - - 7,023
2058-2062................. - 7,023 - - 7,023
2063-2067........ccc... - 6,709 - - 6,709
2068-2072.......cccccnee - 209 - - 209
Total.................. $§ 305,104 $ 528,529 $ 10,614 $ 20,095 $ 864,342
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Component Unit - Redevelopment Agency

The Agency leases various facilities within the Yerba Buena Center, Western Addition and Hunters Point
areas. The minimum annual payments are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal
Years
2003 3 2,642
2004.................... 2,607
2005, ...l 2,685
2006... ... ... 2,687
2007 .. . 2,688
2008-2012............ 12,872
2013-2017............ 13,473
2018-2022............ 13,810
2023-2027............ 14,456
2028-2032............ 15,432
2033-2037............ 16,518
2038-2042......... ... 17,739
2043-2047............ 16,085
2048-2052.......c......... 444
Total.................. $ 134,138

(c) Other Lease Commitments

The City is making lease payments to the Agency for the Moscone Convention Center in the amount of
approximately $20 million per year through the year 2024. The lease payments are intended to
approximate the debt service on Series 1988 Lease Revenue Bonds which are recorded as a long term
obligation of the Agency. The City is also making lease payments to outside lessors for various
telecommunication and information equipment through an internal service fund.

Amounts to be provided from capital leases are as follows:

Moscone
Fiscal Convention
Years Center Other Totai
20083, . % 24998 $ 2,102 27,101
2004, . 19,953 1,651 21,604
2005, . e e e 17,524 81 17,605
2008, .. o e e 20,090 - 20,090
20007 . e 20,160 - 20,160
2008-2012.. .o 101,912 - 101,912
2013-2017 o 102,999 - 102,999
2018-2022. .. oo 52,833 - 52,833
2023-2027 .. e 12,450 - 12,450
Total minimum lease payments......................... $ 372920 § 3,834 § 376,754
Less amounts representing interest (150,010) (203) (150,213)
Present value of maximum lease payments $222,910 $3,631 $226,541

(d) Other Commitments

The Retirement System has commitments to contribute capital for real estate and alternative investments
in the aggregate amount of approximately $1.29 billion at June 30, 2002.
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The City is a participant in the Peninsula Corridor Joint Powers Board (‘PCJPB"), which was formed in
1991 to plan, administer and operate the Peninsula CalTrain rail service. The City, on behalf of Muni, is
responsible for 11.6% of the net operating costs and administrative expenses of the PCJPB for operating
and capital needs. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, the City contributed approximately $8.7
million to the PCJPB.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Retention Program Description

The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets: business interruption; errors and omissions; automobile liability and accident claims (primarily for
Muni Railway); medical malpractice; natural disasters; employee health benefit ciaim payments for direct
provider care (collectively referred to herein as estimated claims payable); and injuries to employees
(workers’ compensation). With certain exceptions, it is the policy of the City not to purchase commercial
insurance for the risks of losses to which it is exposed. Instead, the City believes it is more economical to
manage its risks internally and set aside funds as needed for estimated current claim settlements and
unfavorable judgments through annual appropriations and supplemental appropriations.

The City maintains limited excess coverage for certain facilities. The Airport carries liability insurance
coverage of $750 million and commercial property insurance coverage for full replacement value on all
facilities owned by the Airport. The Airport does not carry insurance for losses due to seismic activity. The
Airport is self-insured for general liability up to the first $10,000 and the Airport carries liability insurance
for any amounts in excess of $10,000. The Port carries commercial insurance for all general liability,
property and casualty risks of loss. Additionally, limited insurance coverage is maintained by the City for
the Moscone Convention Center property, personal liability, and for art at City-owned museums.

The San Francisco Redevelopment Agency is a member of the Bay Cities Joint Powers Authority which
provides coverage for its general liability, automobile liability, and public officials errors and omissions
risks with combined single limits of $15,000,000 per occurrence and a deductible of $50,000 self-
insurance retention per occurrence.

Any claims relating to the construction of the Moscone Convention Center are indemnified by the City
under an agreement between the Agency and the City.

Settled claims have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Expenditures and liabilities for all workers’ compensation claims and other estimated claims payable are
reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably
estimated. These losses inciude an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not reported. Because
actual claim liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and
damage awards, the process used in computing claim liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact
amount. Claim liabilities are re-evaluated periodically to take into consideration recently settled claims, the
frequency of claims, and other legal and economic factors. The recorded liabilites have not been
discounted.

Estimated Claims Payable

Numerous lawsuits related to the governmental fund types are pending or threatened against the City. The
City's liability as of June 30, 2002 has been actuarially determined and includes an estimate of incurred
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but not reported losses. In addition, various businesses in the City had filed suit in California Superior
Court challenging the constitutionality of the City Gross Receipts and Payroll Expense Tax Ordinances.
The majority of these suits have been settled for approximately $63 million. The City has issued debt to
pay off this liability over 10 years. A few remaining unsettled claims may be settled over the next 12
months and funds are included in the City’s estimated claims payable to cover these expected expenses.

Changes in the reported estimated claims payable since June 30, 2000, resulted from the following activity
(in thousands):

Current
Beginning Year Claims Ending
Fiscal Year and Changes Claim Fiscal Year
Liability in Estimates Payments Liability
2000-2001 $ 189,427 $ 35219 % (33,184) $ 191,462

2001-2002 $ 191,462 $ (16,305) $ (88,426) $ 86,731

Breakdown of the estimated claims payable at June 30, 2002 is as follows (in thousands):

Governmental activities:

Current portion of estimated claims payables.................................. $ 9,224

Long-term portion of estimated claims payable................................. 32,221

Business- ivities:

Current portion of estimated claims payabies............c....c.l 16,668

Long-term portion of estimated claims payable.................................... 28,618
Total $ 86,731

The Retirement System is involved in two class action type lawsuits which are collectively referred to as
“Final Compensation” cases. These lawsuits allege that the Retirement System should include additional
“pay types’ in pension calculations. The most significant pay types common to all members of the
Retirement System are lump sum payments after termination of employment for sick leave and vacation.
The police, fire, and transit employees have additional claims for special pay types specific to those
employee groups. There is also a new lawsuit against the Retirement System by the Veteran Police
Officers Association (VPOA) that alleges that the Retirement System should include POST pay in pension
calculations for those police officers who retired prior to the creation of the POST ranks. These cases are
being vigorously contested. The City Attorney has sought outside counsel to help defend the claims. The
possible loss to the Retirement System should these cases be successful, while difficult to estimate, could
range between $500 million and $1 billion. The actual loss could exceed this range. No liability has been
accrued by the City relating to these lawsuits as of June 30, 2002.

Workers’ Compensation

The City self-insures for workers’ compensation coverage. The City’s liability as of June 30, 2002 has
been actuarially determined and includes an estimate of incurred but not reported losses. The total
amount estimated to be payable for claims incurred as of June 30, 2002 was $ 304.2 million which is
reported in the appropriate individual funds in accordance with the City’s accounting policies (note 2).

113



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
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Changes in the reported accrued workers’ compensation since June 30, 2000, resulted from the following
activity (in thousands):

Current
Beginning Year Claims Ending
Fiscal Year and Changes Claim Fiscal Year
Liability in Estimates Payments Liability
2000-2001 $ 234616 $ 77812  § (55,636) $ 256,792
2001-2002 256,792 109,671 (62,282) 304,181

Breakdown of the accrued workers' compensation liability at June 30, 2002 is as follows (in thousands):

Governmental activities:

Current portion of accrued workers' compensation liability......c..oooveenn $ 38,926

Long-term portion of accrued workers’ compensation liability............... 137,851
i - iviti

Current portion of accrued workers' compensation liability................... 30,476

Long-term portion of accrued workers' compensation liability............... 96,928

$ 304,181

(17) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Long-term Debt

In July 2002, the Downtown Parking Corporation issued $13.6 million in Parking Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2002. The Series 2002 bonds were sold to provide funds, together with other available
moneys, to refund $12.8 million aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Corporation’s Parking
Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. The proceeds of the 1993 Bonds were used to fund seismic upgrading and
remodeling of the garage, and construction of two additional levels of parking, increasing parking capacity
by approximately 840 spaces. The Series 2002 bonds have interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.375%
and mature from April 2003 through April 2018. The bonds are secured by the revenues of the
Corporation derived from the operation of the garage and the Corporation’s leasehold interest in the
garage.

in August 2002, the Water Department issued $164 million of Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A. Of
the proceeds from the issuance, $90 million was used to refund all of Water's outstanding commercial
paper. In addition, Water issued $86 million Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2002B for the purpose of
refunding all outstanding Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 1992A.

In September 2002, the Finance Corporation redeemed $0.8 million of the Combined Emergency

Communications Center, lease revenue bonds, Series 1997. The redemption resulted in a decrease in
total debt service by $0.8 million on a net present value basis.
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In October 2002, the City issued an aggregate amount of $29.3 million in General Obligation Bonds that
consist of the Zoo Facilities Bonds, Series 2002A for $6.2 Million and $23.1 million for Branch Library
Facilities Improvement Bonds, Series 2002B. The 2002A bonds will finance the acquisition, construction
or reconstruction of San Francisco Zoo facilities and properties. The 2002B bonds will finance the
acquisition, renovation and construction of branch libraries and other library facilities, except the Main
Library. Interest rates range from 2.5% to 5.0%. The bonds mature from June 2003 through June 2022.

In October 2002, the Ellis-O'Farrell Parking Corporation issued $5.5 million in Parking Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2002. The Series 2002 bonds were being sold to provide funds, together with other
available moneys, to refund $5.2 million aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Corporation’s
Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 1992. The proceeds of the 1992 Bonds were used to fund seismic
upgrading and remodeling of the garage, and construction of two and one-half additional levels of parking,
increasing parking capacity by approximately 350 spaces. The Series 2002 bonds have interest rates
ranging from 3.5% to 4.7% and mature from April 2005 through April 2017. The bonds are secured by the
revenues of the Corporation derived from the operation of the garage and the Corporation’s leasehold
interest in the garage.

Also in October 2002, Department of Parking and Traffic lease purchase financed the acquisition and
installation of new electronic meters in the amount of $26 million. Interest rate on the lease purchase
financing is 3.62% and the maturity dates are from April 2003 through October 20089.

In 1994, the City issued $35 million in Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Seismic Safety Loan Program)
to provide loans for the seismic strengthening of privately owned unreinforced masonry buildings in the
City. In October 2002, from proceeds of the bonds loan repayment and other sources, the City paid in full
the $26.7 million outstanding principal, accrued interest from June 2002, and the redemption premiums.

The Redevelopment Agency of the City and County of San Francisco has its Commission and the Board
of Supervisor's approval to issue up to $72 million in Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds to refund a portion
of the 1992 Lease Revenue Bonds maturing on July 1, 2018. It is anticipated that such bonds would be
issued in December 2002 or January 2003. As a result of the issuance of the lease revenue refunding
bonds, the Agency would reduce total debt service payment and realize up-front savings, which will be
applied to the construction of the Moscone West project. However, the issuance of the lease revenue
refunding bonds may result in an increase in principal amount of outstanding lease revenue bonds by
approximately $8.8 million.

Revenue Bonds Redemption

In October 2002, the General Purpose Sewer Revenue Bonds Series 1991 were completely redeemed
and has the effect of reducing revenue bonds as reported as of June 30, 2002 by $3.6 million.

Elections

On November 5, 2002, the San Francisco voters approved the following propositions that will have fiscal
impact on the City:

Proposition A - Water Bonds This authorizes the City to issue up to $1.62 billion in Revenue Bonds
to finance improvements to its water system. Improvements will upgrade and strengthen the system’s
pipelines, tunnels and other facilities against earthquakes; upgrade the water storage and pipe
transport system to the Bay Area; upgrade the water distribution system in San Francisco; meet future
water guality standards and increase water system capacity.
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Proposition E - Control of Operational Activities of Water Department, Clean Water Program,
and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power This establishes provisions for exclusive control of various
operational activities of the Water Department, Clean Water Program and Hetch Hetchy Water and
Power enterprises. Such activities include rate-setting standards and methods, planning and reporting
requirements, transfer of surplus funds between enterprises, contracting independence, issuance of
revenue bonds, or other financing sources. Proposition E establishes a Rate Fairness Board
consisting of seven members that will participate in rate setting. Proposition E also repeals the rate
freeze enacted in 1998 for sewer rates. Proposition E is effective July 2, 2008 for water rates.

Proposition H - Police and Firefighter Retirement Benefits This amends the City’s Charter to
change the formula for retirement benefits for police and firefighters. The City estimates that
retirement benefits would increase, as estimated by the Retirement System Actuary, by $28 million
per year for the next 20 years, dropping after 20 years to an ongoing cost of approximately $8.2
million per year. However, no cash would be required since the City’s Retirement System currently
has a surplus and the City does not expect to have to make a contribution to the Retirement System
for at least the next ten years.

Proposition | - Paid Parental Leave This amends the City's Charter to provide up to twelve weeks of
paid leave for City employees who take time off after the birth, adoption, or foster care acceptance of
a child. It also provides up to sixteen weeks of paid leave to City employees who give birth or suffer a
pregnancy-related disability. The City estimates the increased cost of this amendment will be $6.3
million per year.

Proposition P - Public Utilities Revenue Bond Oversight Committee This proposition creates a
committee to oversee the City's use of utility revenue-bond funds. The committee will report to the
Mayor, Board of Supervisors and Public Utilities Commission (PUC) on whether these bond funds are
being used for authorized purposes. The oversight committee can hold public hearings; review the
expenditure of utility revenue-bond funds; review the PUC's capital improvement plans and proposals
and other financial records; inspect utility facilities; and hire independent auditor, inspectors and other
experts to assist in their oversight activities.

Wellness Program

Effective July 1, 2002, the City established a pilot “weliness incentive program” (the Program) to promote
workforce attendance. The Program was negotiated as part of the July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2003 labor
contract between the City and forty-one labor organizations, representing 48% of the City's workforce. It is
described in a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) dated July 1, 2001, between the City and the
effected labor organizations. Under the terms of this MOU and the labor contracts, the Wellness Program
will be in effect from July 1, 2002 to June 30, 2003.

This Program provides:

Effective July 1, 2002, any full-time employee leaving the employment of the City upon service or
disability retirement may receive payment for a portion of sick leave earned but unused at the time of
separation. The amount of this payment shall be equal to 2.5% of sick leave balances earned but
unused at the time of separation times the number of whole years of continuous employment times an
employee's salary rate, exclusive of premiums of supplements, at the time of separation. Vested sick
leave hours as described by Civil Service Commission rules, shall not be included in this computation.

The City estimates that the total cost of this will be $1.6 million during Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2003.
The General City portion of this estimate is $1.3 million and the Enterprise Funds portion is $0.3 million.
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Employees’ Retirement System - Analysis of Funding Progress

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Required Supplementary Information -
Historical Pension Data

(Unaudited)

Historical trend information is presented.

Schedule of funding progress for the Employees’ Retirement System (amounts in thousands):

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
7/1/95
7/1/96
7/1/97
7/1/98
7/1/99
7/1/00
7/1/01

Actuarial
Asset
Value

6,131,696

6,663,504

7,245,195

7,945,707

8,862,168

10,076,469
10,797,024

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)
Entry Age
5,620,413
5,813,808
6,162,138
6,351,397
6,430,740
7,258,394
8,371,843

1
1

Over-
funded
AAL
OAAL

511,283

849,696

,083,057
,594,310

2,431,428
2,818,075
2,425,181

Funded
Ratio
109.1%
114.6%
117.6%
125.1%
137.8%
138.8%
129.0%

Covered

Payroll
1,193,814
1,320,652
1,384,666
1,474,007
1,691,240
1,727,127
1,858,565

OAAL as
a % of
Covered

Payroll
42.8%
64.3%
78.2%
108.2%
152.8%
163.2%
130.5%

California Public Employees’ Retirement System - Analysis of Funding Progress
Historical trend information is presented.

Schedule of funding progress for PERS (amounts in thousands):

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
06/30/96:

Misc.
Safety
Total

06/30/97:

Misc.

Safety
Total

06/30/98:

Misc.

Safety
Total

06/30/99:

Misc.

Safety
Total

06/30/00:
Misc.

Safety
Total

Actuarial

Accrued Over-

Actuarial Liability funded
Asset (AAL) AAL
Value Entry Age (OAAL)

$ 20901 $ 19615 $ 1,286
214,416 196,124 18,292
$ 235317 $ 215739 $ 19,578
$ 25017 $ 19,882 $ 5,135
275,556 219,726 55,830
$ 300,573 $ 239,608 $ 60,965
$ 28215 $ 20914 $ 7,301
337,060 260,893 76,167

$ 365275 $ 281,807 $ 83,468
$ 30355 $ 21,042 $ 9,313
381,063 290,509 90,554

$ 411418 $ 311,551 $ 99,867
$ 32572 $ 22430 $ 10,141
423,369 330,118 93,252

$ 455941 $ 352,548 $ 103,393

1

18

Funded
Ratio

106.6%
109.3%
109.1%

125.8%
125.4%
125.4%

134.9%
129.2%
129.6%

144.3%
131.2%
132.1%

145.2%
128.2%
129.3%

Covered
Payroll

1,171
54,673

55,844

1,119
54,708

55,827

1,149
57,834

58,983

1,123
55,633

56,756

1,079
58,775

59,854

OAAL as
a % of
Covered

Payrol!

109.8%
33.5%
35.1%

458.9%
102.1%
109.2%

635.4%
131.7%
141.5%

829.3%
162.8%
176.0%

939.9%
168.7%
172.7%
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.

Building Inspection Fund -- Accounts for the revenues and expenditures of the Bureau of Building
Inspection which provides enforcement and implementation of laws regulating the use, occupancy, location
and maintenance of buildings.

Business Tax Fund -- Accounts for the activities related to the refunding of certain obligations resuiting
from the settlement of business tax litigation against the City.

Children and Families Fund -- Accounts for property tax revenues, tobacco tax funding from Proposition
10 and interest earnings designated by Charter provision. Monies in this fund are used as specified in the
Charter and Proposition 10 to provide services to children less than eighteen years old, and to promote,
support and improve the early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age.

Community/Neighborhood Development Fund -- Accounts for various grants primarily from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development to provide for community development of rundown areas; to
promote new housing, child care centers and public recreation areas; to provide a variety of social programs
for the underprivileged and provide loans for various community development activities. This fund also
includes proceeds from a bond issuance to benefit the Seismic Safety Loan Program which provides loans for
seismic strengthening of privately-owned unreinforced masonry buildings in the City.

Community Health Services Fund -- Accounts for state and federal grants used to promote public health
and mental health programs.

Convention Facilities Fund -- Accounts for operating revenues of the convention facilities: Moscone
Center, Brooks Hall and Civic Auditorium. In addition to transfers for lease payments of the Moscone Center,
this fund provides for operating costs of the various convention facilities and the San Francisco Convention
and Visitors Bureau.

Court’s Fund -- Accounts for a portion of revenues from court filing fees that are specifically dedicated for
Courthouse costs.

Culture and Recreation Fund -- Accounts for revenues received from a variety of cultural and recreationai
funds such as Public Arts, Youth Arts and Yacht Harbor with revenues used for certain specified operating
costs.

Environmental Protection Fund — Accounts for revenues received from state, federal and other sources
for the preservation of the environment, recycling, and reduction of toxic waste from the City’s waste stream.

Gasoline Tax Fund -- Accounts for the subventions received from state gas taxes under the provision of
the Streets and Highways Code and for operating transfers from other funds which are used for the same
purposes. State subventions are restricted to uses related to local streets and highways, acquisitions of real
property, construction and improvements, and maintenance and repairs.

General Services Fund -- Accounts for the activities of several non-grant activities, generally established
by administrative action.

Gift Fund -- Accounts for certain cash gifts which have been accepted by the Board of Supervisors on
behalf of the City and the operations of two smaller funds that cannot properly be grouped into the Gift Fund
because of their specific terms. Disbursements are made by departments, boards and commissions in
accordance with the purposes, if any, specified by the donor. Activities are controlled by project accounting
procedures maintained by the Controlier.

(Continued)
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

Human Welfare Fund -- Accounts for state and federal grants used to promote education and discourage
domestic violence.

Off-Street Parking Fund -- Accounts for revenues from garages and parking meters and financing for the
San Francisco off-street parking program and other parking related projects, including construction,
administration, maintenance and operation of neighborhood parking lots and garages. On-street meter
revenues are pledged for debt service on Parking Authority Revenue Bonds.

Open Space and Park Fund -- Accounts for property tax revenues designated by Charter provision,
interest earnings and miscellaneous service charges and gifts. Monies in this fund are used as specified in
the Charter for acquisition and development of parks and open space parcels, for renovation of existing parks
and recreation facilities, for maintenance of properties acquired and for after-school recreation programs.

Public Library Fund -- Accounts for property tax revenues and interest earnings designated by Charter
provision. Monies in this fund are to be expended or used exclusively by the library department to provide
library services and materials and to operate library facilities.

Public Protection Fund -- Accounts for grants received and revenues and expenditures of 21 special
revenue funds including fingerprinting, vehicle theft crimes, peace officer training and other activities related
to public protection.

Public Works, Transportation and Commerce Fund -- Accounts for the revenues and expenditures of 13
special revenue funds including construction inspection, engineering inspection and other activities related to
public works projects. In addition, the fund accounts for various grants from federal and state agencies
expended for specific purposes, activities or facilities related to transportation and commerce.

Real Property Fund -- Accounts for the lease revenue from real property purchased with the proceeds
from certificates of participation. The iease revenue is used for operations and to pay for debt service of the
certificates of participation. Sales and disposals of real property are also accounted for in this fund.

San Francisco County Transportation Authority Fund -- Accounts for the proceeds of a one-half of one
percent increase in local sales tax authorized by the voters for mass transit and other traffic and
transportation purposes.

Senior Citizens' Program Fund -- Accounts for revenues from the allocation of one-fifth of the parking tax
receipts and for grants from the state to be used to promote the well-being of San Francisco senior citizens.

War Memorial Fund -- Accounts for the costs of maintaining, operating and caring for the War Memorial
buildings and grounds.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

The Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of property taxes and other revenues for periodic
payment of interest and principal on general obligation and certain iease revenue bonds and related
authorized costs.

General Obligation Bond Fund -- Accounts for property taxes and other revenues for periodic payment of
interest and principal of general obligation bonds and related costs. Provisions are made in the general
property tax levy for monies sufficient to meet these requirements in accordance with Article XlII of the State
Constitution (Proposition 13).

Finance Corporation Lease Revenue Bond Fund -- Accounts for financing activities of a nonprofit public
benefit corporation organized for the purpose of providing financial assistance to the City by acquiring,
improving and installing certain real and personal property for use, benefit and enjoyment of the public.
Beginning July 1, 2001, this activity is now accounted for in the Finance Corporation Internal Service Fund.

(Continued)
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (Continued)

Certificates of Participation (COP) Funds -- Accounts for transfers of Base Rental payments from the
various COP Special Revenue Funds which provide for periodic payments of interest and principal. The
COPs are being sold to provide funds to finance the acquisition of existing office buildings and certain
improvements thereto, or the construction of City buildings such as the Courthouse, to be leased to the City
for use of certain City departments as office space.

Other Bond Funds - Accounts for funds and debt service of two nonprofit corporations (Social Services
Corporation and San Francisco Stadium, Inc.), the Parking Authority’s Parking Meter Revenue Bonds, and
the Moscone Center Parking Garage.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition of land
or acquisition and construction of major facilities other than those financed in the proprietary fund types.

City Facilities Improvement Fund -- Accounts for bond proceeds, capital lease financing, federal and local
funds and transfers from other funds which are designated for various buildings and general improvements.
Expenditures for acquisition and construction of public buildings and improvements are made in accordance
with bond requirements and appropriation ordinances.

Citywide Communication Fund -- Accounts for the proceeds of bond issuances related to equipment
purchases for a citywide radio communication system. Expenditures for design, administration and other
such costs are made in accordance with bond requirements and appropriation ordinances.

Earthquake Safety Improvement Fund -- Accounts for bond proceeds, Federal/State grants and private
gifts which are designated for earthquake facilities improvements to various City buildings and facilities.
Expenditures for construction are made in accordance with bond requirements and grant regulations.

Finance Corporation Fund -- Accounts for acquisition, improvement and installation of certain real and
personal property lease-purchased for the City. Beginning July 1, 2001, this activity is now accounted for in
the Finance Corporation Internal Service Fund.

Fire Protection Systems Improvement Fund -- Accounts for bond proceeds which are designated for
improvements in fire protection facilities. Expenditures for construction are made in accordance with bond
requirements.

Moscone Convention Center Fund -- Accounts for proceeds from Moscone Convention Center Lease
Revenue Bonds and transfers from the General Fund and Convention Facilities Special Revenue Fund.
Expenditures are for construction of the George R. Moscone Convention Center and for related administrative
costs.

Public Library Improvement Fund -- Accounts for bond proceeds and private gifts which are designated
for construction of public library facilities including a new main library. Expenditures for construction are made
in accordance with bond requirements and private funds agreements.

Recreation and Park Projects Fund -- Accounts for bond proceeds, Federal and state grants, gifts and
transfers from other funds which are designated for various recreation and park additions and development.
Expenditures for acquisition and construction of recreation and park facilities are made in accordance with
bond requirements and appropriation ordinances.

Strest Improvement Fund -- Accounts for gas tax subventions, bond fund proceeds and other revenues
which are designated for general street improvements. Expenditures for land acquisition and construction of
designated improvements are made in accordance with applicable state codes, City charter provisions and
bond requirements.
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PERMANENT FUND

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings,
not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government's programs.

Bequest Fund -- Accounts for income and disbursements of bequests accepted by the City.
Disbursements are made in accordance with terms of the bequests.

123



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

ASSETS

Deposits and investments with City Treasury..................
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury..............

Receivables:

Property taxes and penalties..........cccccverrreriiiiiinnnnns

Other local taXes.....uuevveereiiirerreerie e
Federal and state grants and subventions....
Charges for Services....c...ccevcvvcrrinveciininns
Interest and other......
Due from other funds........

Due from component unit..........ccccoeeeiiiiicinniineiinn s
Loans receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles)....

Deferred charges and other assets...

Total 8SSetS....ccccueirereieier e

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable...........ccevciiiniiiine e

Accrued payroll

Accrued interest payable........ccccooiiiiiicicci.
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues...............

Due to other funds

Deferred credits and other liabilities...........cccccccceeieie
Total liabilities.......ccccerereriiiieeeeee e

Fund balances:
Reserved for assets not available for appropriation

Reserved for debt service.......cccvcvvvieireiieiinicicririvenicanns
Reserved for enCuUmMbranCes........coovvvvvveuicvieeenennnrnennnns

Reserved for appropriation carryforward....

Reserved for subsequent years' budgets....................
UNFESEIVED. ... coieiieeeieeererersereee e n e s seneses s

Total fund balances.......coceveerreveeeicvrceieennenn
Total liabilities and fund balances...................

June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Permanent Total

Special Debt Capital Fund Nonmajor
Revenue Service Project Bequest Governmental

Funds Funds Funds Fund Funds
.............. $ 486,096 $ 26,001 $ 206,885 $ 5,819 $ 724,801
.............. 9,795 16,296 106,353 54 132,498
.............. 2,384 4,063 - - 6,447
26,505 - - - 26,505
60,010 - 23,075 - 83,085
5,190 - 440 - 5,630
2,050 - 1,016 39 3,105
54 - - - 54
446 - 21,741 - 22,187
148,942 - - - 148,942
1,252 - 86 - 1,338
............... $ 742,724 $ 46,360 $ 359,596 $ 5,912 $ 1,154,592
$ 35,808 $ 112 § 22291 % 3 $ 58,214
12,727 - 1,426 14 14,167
- 398 - 398
.............. 7,862 3,682 136 - 11,680
24,696 6 9,191 - 33,893
.............. 160,044 5,614 1,971 40 167,669
241,137 9,812 35,015 57 286,021
.............. 19,437 - 21,742 54 41,233
.............. - 36,548 - - 36,548
.............. 185,807 - 154,784 - 340,591
191,172 - 92,968 1,368 285,508
.............. 8,004 - 10,600 - 18,604
.............. 97,167 - 44,487 4,433 146,087
.............. 501,587 36,548 324,581 5,855 868,571
.............. $ 742,724 $ 46360 $ 359596 $ 5912 $ 1,154,592
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Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Permanent Total
Special Debt Capital Funds Nonmajor
Revenue Service Project Bequest Governmental
Funds Funds Funds Fund Total
Revenues:
PrOPETLY TAXES.. - reeeereercmrrscireernsserniasserss st $ 69,989 $ 109,853 $ - $ - $ 179,842
BUSINESS tAXES.....vviveeeeierereireeereecssssnreennsesnrarnsee s anenes 723 - - - 723
Other 10Cal taXES......ccccereeerreeir i irrie e s 110,233 - - - 110,233
Licenses, permits and franchises.............ccooiniiiinnns 6,214 - - - 6,214
Fines, forfeitures and penalties.........cococoiniiicncnnns 3,454 - - - 3,454
Interest and investment iNnCOMe.........ccocoiiiiiniiiiis 24,214 2,258 18,136 252 44,860
Rents and CONCESSIONS.....cccovveeriiiiirrimieenereecemnncn e 27,870 16,754 708 555 45,987
Intergovernmental:
Federal 146,656 - 10,843 - 157,499
State.......ccceenee . 81,788 859 15,205 - 97,852
Other......ccccveerinenn. 5,280 - 28,644 - 33,924
Charges for services. 122,137 - 628 - 122,765
(01 1= ST TRUPOP 11,415 - 4,585 67 16,067
Total rEVENUES.......ceeceeee it 610,073 129,724 78,749 874 819,420
Expenditures:
Current:
PUbic Protection..........ccovieeecirernnnn s 40,031 - - - 40,031
Public works, transportation and commerce................ 192,832 - - - 192,832
Human welfare and neighborhood development.......... 145,445 - - - 145,445
Community health............ccooviiiinis 89,361 - - - 89,361
Culture and recreation..........ccccoccvirremeecie e 128,722 - - 794 129,516
General administration and finance..........c.cc.cccceoeeee. 28,602 - - - 28,602
General City responsibilities. ... 5,057 - - - 5,057
Debt service:
Principal retirement..........ccoeeiis 8 69,528 - - 69,536
Interest and fiscal charges...........cooveinnieeniccnnnns 3 68,108 - - 68,111
Bond iSSUANCE COSES...cveririerciiiiirenniesiee e 1,134 962 357 - 2,453
Capital OULIAY.......c.cccoviririremieirrr e 33,741 - 242,921 - 276,662
Total expenditures. ........ccoeeeienennenencciinen, 664,936 138,598 243,278 794 1,047,606
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures............cc.coereee. (54,863) (8,874) (164,529) 80 (228,186)
Other financing sources (uses):
TrANSTEIS IM..oiviireeceree e et e sttt 114,881 12,456 29,829 - 157,166
Transfers out (72,091) (31,399) (116,485) (14) (219,989)
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds issued.........ccoceveniiriniiniecnnnne 37,170 134,405 17,665 189,240
Premium on issuance of bonds.... . - 2,882 213 3,095
Discount on issuance of bonds..........cccoceinnni (62) - - (62)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent ..............coeueee - (136,230) - - (136,230)
Other financing sources-capital leases.............cccoeonien 700 - 89,307 - 90,007
Total other financing sources (USE€S)...........ccoveene 80,598 (17,886) 20,529 (14) 83,227
Net change in fund balances..........cccoccoovrneins 25,735 (26,760) (144,000) 66 (144,959)
Fund balances at beginning of year..........c.cccocoovvinicienn. 475,852 63,308 468,581 5,789 1,013,530
Fund balances at end of year............ccoovniniiinnninnenn, $ 501,587 $ 36548 § 324581 $ 5855 $ 868,571
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Special Revenue

June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Children Community/ Community Cultural
Building and Neighborhood Health Convention and Environmental
Inspection Families Development  Services Facilities Court's Recreation Protection
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury $ 32,269 $ 42,486 $ 117,050 $ 12,642 $ 23,512 $ 8768 % - 8 1
Deposits and investments outside City
TOEASUIY...eviieeeiiiiiii et ee ettt e e - - 5,500 - - - - -
Receivables:
Property taxes and penalties................... - 791 - - - - - -
Other local taxes........cc.ccccevvieiiiicncne - - - - - - - -
Federal and state grants and subventions - 4,994 15,065 18,395 - 117 6,039 1,173
Charges for services..........cccoocccevveeininnnn. - - - - 750 5 93 -
interest and other . 194 314 826 41 - 60 20 -
Due from other funds..............ccoccevinnn, - - - - - - -
Due from component unit................ccccovinis - - 446 - - - - -
Loans receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectibles)........cccocovviieiiiiiiii 151 - 139,867 - 8,924 - - -
Deferred charges and other assets............... - 2 - 12 - - - -
Total assets..........ccocevvvvieieiinnnnne $ 32,614 $ 48,587 $ 278,754 $ 31,090 $ 33,186 $ 8950 §$ 6,152 § 1,174
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable.............cccoeeeiiieiiennnen. $ 247 $ 3,396 $ 6,584 $ 8,196 $ 4041 §$ 72 $ 218 $ 8
Accrued payroll...........ccooeeivniini 1,369 764 532 1,449 42 2 112 19
Deferred tax, grant and subvention
TEVENUES.....ooo ittt eee e e e et e e - 652 5 2,840 - - - -
Due to other funds................ccoeeen . - 392 3,021 - - - 2,750 1,147
Deferred credits and other liabilities.......... 10,397 1,715 129,286 3,496 10,623 - - -
Total liabilities..........ccooevevierin. 12,013 6,919 139,428 15,981 14,706 74 3,080 1,174
Fund balances:
Reserved for assets not available for
appropriation..........ccocccneernee i - 2 16,081 12 1,011 - - -
Reserved for encumbrances 532 8,971 7,242 14,249 2,672 482 240 304
Reserved for appropriation carryforward... 9,996 13,678 81,031 10,616 10,588 602 1,757 -
Reserved for subsequent years' budgets.. - 8,000 - - - - 4 -
Unreserved (deficit)..........cccocereiiiniin 10,073 11,017 34,972 (9,768) 4,209 7,792 1,071 (304)
Total fund balances..................... 20,601 41,668 139,326 15,109 18,480 8,876 3,072 -

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 32,614 § 48,587 $ 278,754 $ 31,090 $ 33186 $ 8950 § 6152 § 1,174

(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Special Revenue (Continued)

June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Open
Gasoline  General Human Off-street Space Public
Tax Services Gift Welfare Parking and Park Library
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury........ $ 9105 $ 6,789 § 6,115 $ - $ 2709 $ 28701 $ 13,093
Deposits and investments outside City
TEASUNY.cceeeeiirees e eciac ettt et - - 469 - 2 - -
Receivables:
Property taxes and penalties... - - - - - 839 754
Other local taXes......ccccocvrceicciininncsiieeeiies - - - - - - -
Federal and state grants and subventions........ 2,080 - 31 3,852 - - -
Charges for services 917 603 386 - 637 - 37
Interest and other....... 53 62 14 56 5 179 14
Due from other funds..........cccocemninniviiiiinnncnens 24 - - - 30 - -
Loans receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectibles).....c...ocveeeeer e - - - - - - -
Deferred charges and other assets...................... - - - - - 2 -
Total @assets.........coceceeiniieincieniene $ 12,179 §$ 7454 § 7015 $ 3908 $ 3383 $ 29721 $ 13,898
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable............cccoveiiiiinneniniinenns $ 716 $ 3066 $ 144 $ 1,786 § 408 § 163 $ 1,208
Accrued payroll..........ccone 2,071 72 76 - 232 788 2,468
Deferred tax, grant and subvention
FEVENUES....cecverereeiereecerersnree e e sraessraens s - - 208 145 - 724 637
Due to other funds.........ccoceeiiiiiiiiinieneeen - - - 1,026 - - -
Deferred credits and other liabilities... 26 212 428 - 1,162 1,019 1,009
Total liabilities..........c.ccoveeeiiiiiinninens 2,813 3,350 856 2,957 1,802 2,694 5,322
Fund balances:
Reserved for assets not available for
apPropriation...........cceeeeeeieiiiiinnese e - - 469 - 2 2 -
Reserved for encumbrances 649 69 303 1,730 207 536 1,442
Reserved for appropriation carryforward........... 5,920 3,670 5,020 434 988 18,440 2,022
Reserved for subsequent years’ budgets......... - - - - - - -
Unreserved (defiCit)..........ccooevevcinnnnininninne 2,797 365 367 (1,213) 384 8,049 5,112
Total fund balances...........ccoeevvvnennen. 9,366 4,104 6,159 951 1,581 27,027 8,576
Total liabilities and fund balances....... $ 12179 §$ 7454 § 7015 $ 3908 §$ 3,383 $ 29721 $ 13,898

(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Special Revenue (Continued)

June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Public Works, San Francisco
Transportation County Senior
Public and Real Transportation Citizens' War
Protection Commerce Property Authority Program Memorial
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.......... $ 17474 $ 13484 § 9,291 $ 126,689 $ 601 $ 15317 $486,096
Deposits and investments outside City
TrEASUIY . c.ceieeieeeeene et eae s 411 - 1,393 2,020 - - 9,795
Receivables:
Property taxes and penalties..........c.cccocoeeeeenne - - - - - - 2,384
Other local taxes......cccccecovivvininircneciceenns 200 - - 26,305 - - 26,505
Federal and state grants and subventions.......... 4,415 2,282 - - 1,567 - 60,010
Charges for Services..........oocoveveiecniinieinnecieenne 173 1,589 - - - - 5,190
Interest and Other........c..ccccciiinin s 206 2 4 - - - 2,050
Due from other funds - - - - - - 54
Due from component unit............cocovveeimeeiiinniienns - - - - - - 446
Loans receivable (net of allowance for
uncollectibles).........o.ooeiiinnnenii s - - - - - - 148,942
Deferred charges and other assets... 53 1,183 - - - - 1,252
Total asSets......cccvvrveniririieccrceceins $ 22932 $ 18540 $ 10,688 $ 155,014 $ 2168 $ 15317 § 742,724
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable.......c.coeeevreeiiiiinicne s $ 1369 $ 982 % 262 $ 1,829 $ 700 $§ 413 $35,808
Accrued payroll.........cc.ovvininiiie e 1,678 522 134 - - 397 12,727
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues..... 2,651 - - - - - 7,862
Due to other funds.......cocceeveeivciiiiinience i - 5,915 - 10,445 - - 24,696
Deferred credits and other liabilities.... .. 170 501 - - - - 160,044
Total liabilities......cccoovrvrriiiiiiiiceen 5,868 7,920 396 12,274 700 810 241,137
Fund balances:
Reserved for assets not available for
appropriation...........ccoeeeeeiniiiienre e 465 - 1,393 - - - 19,437
Reserved for encumbrances.................. 8,173 2,406 33 134,730 608 229 185,807
Reserved for appropriation carryforward.... 4,983 8,381 4,503 - - 8,543 191,172
Reserved for subsequent years' budgets........... - - - - - - 8,004
Unreserved (deficit)..........ccovoniiincinnninininnens 3,443 (167) 4,363 8,010 860 5,735 97,167
Total fund balances.............ccccccovveennne 17,064 10,620 10,292 142,740 1,468 14,507 501,587
Total liabilities and fund balances......... $ 22932 §$ 18540 $ 10,688 $ 155,014 $ 2168 $ 15317 § 742,724
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Special Revenue

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

) Children Community/ Community Cultural
Building Business and Neighborhood  Health Convention and
Inspection Tax Families Development Services Facilities Court's Recreation
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues:
PrOPErty taXES......ocvveverererere s eee e sinee e $ - 3 - §$25923 % -3 - -3 - % -
Business taxes... - - - 723 - - - -
Other local taxes........coeveeevveeiirenrecinerreceeeie - - - - - 39,468 - -
Licenses, permits and franchises...................... 3,404 - - - - - - 129
Fines, forfeitures and penalties.... - - - - 1,841 - 35 1
Interest and investment income..........c.............. 1,336 - 1,596 5,189 631 967 374 124
Rents and ConCesSioNS........occeecerrereeniiniiiienes - - - - - 10,059 - 162
Intergovernmental:
Federal........coovviveereerecieree e - - 24 180 30,383 66,873 - 196 29
SHate....ce i - - 8,716 - 18,651 - - 6,083
Other.......ccooeeees - - - - - - - -
Charges for Services........cccovvvcriiiiiininnneenen. 34,396 - 1,027 13,564 2,595 3,785 5,009 3,903
Other.....cccovcerncernnnnnee 11 - 21 5,035 746 1,418 - 17
Total revenues..........ccceereeenee 39,147 - 61,463 54,894 91,337 55,697 5,614 10,448
Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection........c..cccocermiiiiiiiiinnenins - - - - 97 - 4,624 -
Public works, transportation and commerce.. 28,797 - - 331 - 632 193 -
Human weifare and neighborhood
development........occcceriiccninecicniies - - 48,299 57,265 - 12,220 - -
Community health.... - - - 182 87,782 - - -
Culture and recreation................ - - - 2,400 - 44,536 - 4,553
General administration and finance... . - - - 9,747 - - - 132
General City responsibilities..............ccoeceeeee - - - - - 4,806 - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement............c.cccooeniiiins - - - - - - - 8
Interest and fiscal charges.............ceeeeeees - - - - - - - 3
Bond issuance Costs............coccniniiennenns - - - - - - - -
Capital outlay................. - - - - - - - -
Total expenditures 28,797 - 48,299 69,925 87,879 62,194 4,817 4,696
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures.................. 10,350 - 13,164 (15,031) 3,458 (6,497) 797 5,752
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers iN.......co.eecvieecceeeinie e - 63,000 22 307 - 12,139 - 90
Transfers out.........cceeeeeiennccciconnccncic (457) - - (3.672) (1,225) (18,724) - (5,323)
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds issued...........ccocceeiiiis - - - - - - - -
Discount on issuance of bonds...... - - - - - - - -
Other financing sources-capital leases............... - - - - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses)..... (457) 63,000 22 (3,365) (1,225) (6,585) - {5,233)
Net change in fund balances................ 9,893 63,000 13,186 (18,396) 2,233 (13,082) 797 519
Fund balances at beginning of year....................... 10,708 (63,000) 28,482 157,722 12,876 31,562 8,079 2,553
Fund balances at end of year $ 20601 $ - $ 41,668 $ 139,326 $ 15109 §$ 18480 §$ 8876 § 3,072
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Special Revenue (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Open
Environmental Gasoline General Human Off-street Space Public
Protection Tax Services Gift Welfare Parking  and Park Library
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues:
Property taxes........ccceeeeeiveeierieerersreeneneenas $ - $ - % - 8 - 8 - 8 - $ 22,028 $22,038
Business taxes.... - - - - - - - -
Other local taxes..........ccccceeeeen, - - - - - - - -
Licenses, permits and franchises... - 680 240 - 197 - - -
Fines, forfeitures and penalties...... - - - - - - - -
Interest and investment income.. - 307 65 296 299 153 935 10
Rents and CONCESSIONS........covviiieriinreeeerine s - - 442 - - 9,551 - 28
Intergovernmental:
Federal.......cooocmveiiieceeeee e - - 46 46 11,500 - - 36
State....ooeeeriircreeene 1,346 22,558 411 - 1,101 - 174 1,750
Other.....ooo e - - 1,281 - - - - -
Charges for services.. - 7,440 11,646 64 222 10 - 471
(0] (111 OSSOSO P RS - 17 - 3,542 - 10 - 125
Total revVenUES. .......oveeeeeeeeeeiereeeeceeeaen, 1,346 31,002 14,131 3,948 13,319 9,724 23,137 24,458
Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection..........cccccovmirneceiinneccnciiin - - 454 158 - - - -
Public works, transportation and commerce..... - 44,235 1,021 5 - 11,796 823 66
Human welfare and neighborhood
development............cocvveeveverineieceen s 1,346 - 53 640 12,341 - - -
Community health........ - - - 160 - - - -
Culture and recreation.. - - 455 2,103 - - 14,650 51,536
General administration and finance.................. - - 11,423 5 - - - -
General City responsibilities................ccccecen. 20 - 171 - - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement............cccoooviiniinininn. - - - - - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges................. - - - - - - - -
Bond issuance costs.......c..coevreceneeenne - - - - - - - -
Capital outlay................... - - - - - - - -
Total expenditures..........ccccevvrveeericvecnenes 1,366 44,235 13,577 3,071 12,341 11,796 15,473 51,602
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures...................... (20) (13,233) 554 877 978 (2,072) 7,664 (27,144)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers iN........occvvierrereee e e 20 6,784 1,564 - 125 470 - 28,798
Transfers OUL.......c.ooeeereerir e - (86) (1,367) (282) (152) (150) (2,129) (514)
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds issued...........cccccceeecinne - - - - - - - -
Discount on issuance of bonds..........ccccoeuee.. - - - - - - - -
Other financing sources-capital leases................. - - - - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses)....... 20 6,698 197 (282) (27) 320 (2,129) 28,284
Net change in fund balances.................. - (6,535) 751 595 951 (1,752) 5,535 1,140
Fund balances at beginning of year..............c.ccouu. - 15,901 3,353 5,564 - 3,333 21,492 7,436
Fund balances at end of year.............ccceeievininiennnne $ - $ 9,366 $ 4104 $ 6,159 $ 951 § 1,581 § 27,027 § 8,576
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Special Revenue (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Public Works, San Francisco
Transportation County Senior
Public and Real Transportation Citizens’ War
Protection = Commerce Property Authority Program Memorial
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Revenues:
PrOPEIY tXES. ... eevseeeeseeersertrrecacsiencnracnaesnnss $ - 8 - 8 - 3 - $ - 3 - $ 69989
Business taxes... - - - - - - 723
Other local taxes - - - 62,861 - 7,904 110,233
Licenses, permits and franchises.............cc.ccceennt 1,564 - - - - - 6,214
Fines, forfeitures and penalties.... 1,577 - - - - - 3,454
Interest and investment income..............ccoeeeiinn 1,325 753 425 8,856 3 570 24,214
Rents and CONCESSIONS.........c.coccervrieeceiieneennecene - 402 5,769 - - 1,557 27,970
Intergovernmental:
Federal 9,313 - - - 4,054 - 146,656
State.... 16,180 1,448 - - 3,370 - 81,788
Other.. .o 44 109 - 3,846 - - 5,280
Charges for services 25,271 11,133 1,323 - - 278 122,137
(0] 117 U PP OP 43 428 2 - - - 11,415
Total FeVENUES........coecrrrrierecrciiiee it ennen 55,317 14,273 7,519 75,563 7,427 10,309 610,073
Expenditures:
Current:
Public protection............ccovvienerininnnnnnee e 34,698 - - - - - 40,031
Public works, transportation and commerce...... 16,467 9,866 152 78,027 - 421 192,832
Human welfare and neighborhood
development..........cccccuvinieciniininenceeens 756 5,446 8 - 7,071 - 145,445
Community health.........cc.occooiininins 1,237 - - - - - 89,361
Culture and recreation...........cccveeeeeiiiiiieee - 3 - - - 8,486 128,722
General administration and finance... - 504 6,791 - - - 28,602
General City responsibilities...............ccciieecn 60 - - - - - 5,057
Debt service:
Principal retirement.............ccccoviniiiin - - - - - - 8
Interest and fiscal charges.............ccooeeeeeeinn. - - - - - - 3
Bond iSSUance CoStS........ccoeevveericnimiieiiieninennnns - - 1,134 - - - 1,134
Capital OUAY.......cocrmrrrecciiieeeee e - - 33,741 - - - 33,741
Total expenditures..........ccceceeeeneriniinnns 53,218 15,819 41,826 78,027 7,071 8,907 664,936
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures...................... 2,099 (1,546) (34,307) (2,464) 356 1,402 (54,863)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers iN......ccoooveeeecer e - 1,058 504 - - - 114,881
Transfers out (10,594) (3,714) (5,187) (16,833) 3) (1,679) (72,091)
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds issued.............cccemeeeininns - - 37,170 - - - 37,170
Discount on issuance of bonds................ccco.cc... - - (62) - - - (62)
Other financing sources-capital leases.................. 700 - - - - - 700
Total other financing sources (uses)......... (9,894) (2,656) 32,425 (16,833) 3) (1,679) 80,598
Net change in fund balances.................... (7,795) (4,202) (1,882) (19,297) 353 (277) 25,735
Fund balances at beginning of year.................cccoceee 24,859 14,822 12,174 162,037 1,115 14,784 475,852
Fund balances atend of year..........c.ccoceeiiiinncnnnns $ 17,064 $ 10,620 $ 10,292 § 142,740 $ 1468 $ 14,507 $ 501,587
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Building Inspection Fund

Children and Families Fund

Variance Variance
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Property taxes... ettt - $ - $ - 3 - $ 235339 $ 23539 $25922 § 2,383
Business taxes...... . - - - - - - - -
Other local taxes.........cccceeeveeenes - - - - - - - -
Licenses, permits, and franchises... 2,916 2,916 3,404 488 - - - -
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties...... . - - - - - - - -
Interest and investment income... 884 884 1,111 227 379 379 1,304 925
Rents and concessions..........ccoeevvenenn. . - - - - - - - -
Intergovernmental:
Federal......ooooiecc e, - - - - 25,941 25,487 24,180 (1,307)
State..... - - - - 8,439 8,673 8,717 44
Other......ccccocce. - - - - - - - -
Charges for services . 29,830 29,830 34,397 4,567 3 960 973 13
Other revenues.............ccocveiiineninnnncnenne - - 11 11 - 75 39 (36)
Total revenues..........cccocvveeeeieeceeecniienianns 33,630 33,630 38,923 5,293 58,301 59,113 61,135 2,022
Expenditures:
Public protection..........ccccceveeiiviiiiiiciciiins - - - - - - - -
Public works, transportation and
COMMEICE....ccnvirmeererrineaiririees s 33,391 32,660 28,797 3,863 - - - -
Human welfare and neighborhood
development...... . - - - - 58,301 51,773 48,279 3,494
Community health....... . - - - - - - - -
Culture and recreation..................... . - - - - - - - -
General administration and finance. - - - - - - - -
General City responsibilities......... - - - - - - - -
Total expenditures...........ccccooeevenirinnnnenn. 33,391 32,660 28,797 3,863 58,301 51,773 48,279 3,494
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures..................... 239 970 10,126 9,156 - 7,340 12,856 5,516
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers N - - - - - - - -
Transfers out......... (858) (870) (320) 550 - - - -
Issuance of bonds..........ccccociiiinine - - - - - - - -
Budget reserves and designations................. - - - - - - - -
Loan repayments and other financing
SOUNCES.ceeieeireeinrarsaesseeeneeeemeeeeeessnssirsies - - - - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses)........ (858) (870) (320) 550 - - - -
Net change in fund balances.................... 619) 100 9,806 9,706 - 7,340 12,856 5,616
Budgetary fund balance, July 1..............cceie 619 10,463 10,463 - - 28,245 28,245 -
Budgetary fund balance, June 30.... $ - $10563 $ 20269 $ 9,706 $ - $ 3558 $41,101 $ 5516
(Continued)
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Revenues:

Property taxes........ccoeveeveveenniiiric e
Busingss taxes.......cccvvvvieeiereeniiiniim e

Other local taxes
Licenses, permits, and franchises.

Fines, forfeitures, and penalties..........cc....c......

Interest and investment income..

Rents and concessions.........ccccevevecinnncnnnnnne

Intergovernmental:
Federal.......cccoveeveneieereieecieeenne

Charges for services..

Other revenues...........ccoeceeeriiinens

Total revenues.........cccceueennne

Expenditures:
Public protection........cccccceeivencenns
Public works, transportation and

COMMEICE. .. ... e

Human welfare and neighborhood

development..........coooveeireci e

Community heatth......
Culture and recreation

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Community/Neighborhood Development Fund

Community Health Services Fund

General administration and finance.................

General City responsibilities

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over {under) expenditures..........cc..........

Other financing sources (uses).

Transfers iN......cccoeeeeeeeeeeeinciicieee e,

Transfers out

Issuance of bonds...........ccocoeevieieeeiiees
Budget reserves and designations.......

Loan repayments and other financing

SOUNCES...cviiirrnrnrierencecern e nceanaes

Total other financing sources {(uses)

Net change in fund balances.....................
Budgetary fund balance, July 1................

Budgetary fund balance, June 30............

133

Variance Variance
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
$ -8 -8 - 8 -8 -8 -8 - 8 -
600 600 723 123 - - - -
- - - - 1,723 1,725 1,841 116
- 590 4,866 4,276 50 89 281 192
- 30,384 30,384 - 55,511 66,873 66,873 -
- - - - 26,874 18,652 18,651 1)
3,055 13,789 13,564 (225) 121 2,598 2,595 3)
- 6,104 6,008 (96) 1,658 1,404 746 (658)
3,655 51,467 55,545 4,078 85,937 91,341 90,987 (354)
- - - - - 98 98 -
394 4,481 4,481 - - - - -
43,770 56,990 56,990 - - - - -
- 181 181 - 85,937 87,794 87,794 -
2,400 2,400 2,400 - - - - -
- 9,748 9,748 - - - - .
46,564 73,800 73,800 - 85,937 87,892 87,892 -
(42,909) (22,333) (18,255) 4,078 - 3,449 3,095 (354)
21) (3,672) (3,672) - - (938) (938) -
........... - 419 419 - - - - -
......... (21) (3,253) (3,253) - - (938) (938) -
(42,930) (25,586) (21,508) 4,078 - 2,511 2,157 (354)
........... 2,930 154,234 154,234 - - 12,878 12,878 -
........... $ (40,0000 $ 128,648 $ 132,726 $ 4,078 $ - $15389 $15035 § (354)
(Continued)



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Convention Facilities Fund

Court’'s Fund

Variance Variance
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative} Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Property taxes........cceeevivvrcrnneeneerenmieeeeeesaane $ - $ - $ - 8 - 8 - $ - % - 5 -
Business taxes - - - - - - - -
Other local taxes........co.cocvvieiveciinnccc i, 52,677 52,677 39,468 (13,209) - - - -
Licenses, permits, and franchises.................... - - - - - - - -
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties - - - - 58 58 35 (23)
Interest and investment income....................... - - - - 433 433 332 (101)
Rents and concessions.........cooeviiiiniieeneenns 10,168 10,168 10,059 (109) - - - -
Intergovernmental:
Federal.....ooooieeeereneeecccn e - - - - - 196 196 -
SHAtE. e - - - - - - - -
Other.......ccoveeeeee. - - - - - - - -
Charges for services 3,416 3,416 3,785 369 4,001 4,001 5,010 1,009
Other revenues..... - 1,418 1,418 - - - - -
Total reVEeNUES........cccoocvmeeirincecenereneeanes 66,261 67,679 54,730 (12,949) 4,492 4,688 5,573 885
Expenditures:
Public protection...........cccovvriiiiinie - - - - 255 4,758 4,624 134
Public works, transportation and
COIMIMEBICE....ccuvieereenreaeresseeecrresrraesssssasssnee e - 633 632 1 - 193 193 -
Human welfare and neighborhood
development.........ccovriiinciniinecccn 600 12,220 12,220 - - - - -
Community health.... - - - - - - - -
Culture and recreation............cccecevveerriceciinnns 51,375 48,889 44,536 4,353 - - - -
General administration and finance................. - - - - - - - -
General City responsibilities 5,967 4,806 4,806 - - - - -
Total expenditures........... 57,942 66,548 62,194 4,354 255 4,951 4,817 134
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures...................... 8,319 1,131 (7,464) (8,595) 4,237 (263) 756 1,019
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers iN.......cccccevecnnccineee 11,639 12,139 12,139 - - - - -
Transfers out........cccocevevccriinennnn. (28,657) (17,756) (17,756) - - - - -
Issuance of bonds..........coooveinnns - - - - - - - -
Budget reserves and designations.................. - - - - - - - -
Loan repayments and other financing
SOUICES...c..ooaieieierreceeieestenneerenese s essassaanes - - - - (4,237) - - -
Total other financing sources (uses)......... (17,018) (5,617) (5,617) - (4,237) - - -
Budgetary fund balance, July 1 8,699 31,561 31,561 - - 8,017 8,017 -
Budgetary fund balance, June 30 3 - $27075 $18480 $ (8,595 $ - $ 7,754 § 8773 $ 1,019
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)
Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Revenues:
Property taxXes.........coeveeeeeernecrni e
Business taxes..
Other local taxes..........coccovvvveereen
Licenses, permits, and franchises...
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties......
Interest and investment income...
Rents and concessions.............
Intergovernmental:
Federal......cc.ooooeieiiieeeeee e

Charges for services
Otherrevenues............ccoocieeiiniinncnnnnnns

Total revenues.........cccccevvervvneeeeeenieciiiienns

Expenditures:
Public protection............ccocovcevremnviniciiiiins
Public works, transportation and

COMIMIEICE.....ceveneiurrieeieiteresiesecnena s eene e
Human welfare and neighborhood

development.........ccooevvrineriec s
Community health....
Culture and recreation....................
General administration and finance....
General City responsibilities............

Total expenditures.........c..ccoccveeiriiiininnns

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures..........ccccoeuee

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers iN......cccovevveeevecenccie e
Transfers out
Issuance of bonds........cccceceviiriinnicn e
Budget reserves and designations..................

Loan repayments and other financing
SOUICES....cecrerueerrerscraaneeseeeseeseeasanssareesenres
Total other financing sources (uses).........

Net change in fund balances
Budgetary fund balance, July 1.......

Budgetary fund balance, June 30......................

Culture and Recreation Fund Environmental Protection Fund

Variance Variance

Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
-3 -5 -3 -3 - 8 -8 - s -
156 156 129 (27) - - - -
- - 1 1 - - - .
139 139 109 (30) - - - -
190 190 163 27) - - - -
- 29 29 - - - - -
40 44 44 - - 1,346 1,346 -
2,938 4,157 3,903 (254) - - - -
124 141 17 (124) - - - -
3,587 4,856 4,395 (461) - 1,346 1,346 -
- - - - - 1,346 1,346 -
2,803 4,483 4,462 21 - - - -
125 133 132 1 - - - -
2,928 4,616 4,594 22 - 1,346 1,346 -
659 240 (199) (439) - - - -

- (5,323) (5,323) - - - . .
(23) (12) (11) 1 - - - -
(23) (5,335) (5,334) 1 - - - -
636 (5,095) (5,533) (438) - - - -
481 2,526 2,526 - - - - -
1,117 8§ (2,569) §$ (3,007) $ (438) $ - 3 - $ - 8 -
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Gasoline Tax Fund General Services Fund
Variance Variance
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual  (Negative]  Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues:
Property taxes........ccvoveeerrererrereceeseneeeiiannes $ - $ - 8 - 3 - -8 - 3 - 3 -

Business taxes
Other local taxes......cceeceeeemerecvereeccecciieienns - - - - - -
Licenses, permits, and franchises................. 321 321 680 359 240 351 241 (110)

Fines, forfeitures, and penalties - - - - - - - -
Interest and investment income..................... 255 255 323 68 30 30 54 24
Rents and concessions............cccceivievinnnne. - - - - - 442 442 -
Intergovernmental:
Federal......ocooeecieevecireeeeceeeee e - - - - 131 46 46 -
SAte .. 22,841 22,826 22,558 (268) - 412 411 (1)
Other.....occocevcvennnnn - - - - - 1,281 1,281 -
Charges for services... 6,469 7,848 7,440 (408) 1,906 10,430 11,646 1,216
Other revenuUEeS..........ccovveveececiiinienc e 10 10 18 8 - - - -
Total revenues.............ccoceeevcnncininacnnne. 29,896 31,260 31,019 (241) 2,307 12,992 14,121 1,129
Expenditures:
Public protection.............coccovcieiinnnninninennn - - - - 533 454 454 -
Public works, transportation and
COMIMEICE.....eveeeeeeeaiecerrreereesesiicessaeaanenes 38,680 45,881 44,235 1,646 1,034 1,021 1,021 -
Human welfare and neighborhood
development.............ooiiiiin - - - - - 53 53 -
Community health - - - - - - - -
Culture and recreation............c.ccceveeviieninnns - - - - - 456 455 1
General administration and finance................ - - - - 1,798 12,006 11,423 583
General City responsibilities - - - - - - - -
Total expenditures............ccocvevvvemninnienne 38,680 45,881 44,235 1,646 3,365 13,990 13,406 584
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures..................... (8,784) (14,621) (13,216) 1,405 (1,058) (998) 715 1,713
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers ... s 8,784 8,784 6,784 (2,000) 950 1,393 1,393 -
Transfers out........ - - (85) (85) (80) (1,367) (1,367) -
Issuance of bonds..........c.ccoeueeees - - - - - - - -
Budget reserves and designations................. - - - - - - - -
Loan repayments and other financing
SOUFCES....eeuvrererrnereenenersreseseeesasesiesssnrasaseeas - - - - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses)........ 8,784 8,784 6,699 (2,085) 870 26 26 -
Net change in fund balances.................... - (5,837) (6,517) (680) (188) (972) 741 1,713
Budgetary fund balance, July 1....... - 15,788 15,788 - 188 3,350 3,350 -
Budgetary fund balance, June 30 3 - $ 991 §$ 9271 § (680) $ - $ 2378 $ 4091 § 1,713

(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)
Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Revenues:
Property taxes.......cccevvieeiieeeieie e
BUSINESS taXeS.......coreueeereeiiiiierir i
Other local taxes
Licenses, permits, and franchises....................
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties.......................
Interest and investment income...
Rents and concessions..........ccccvveevvreceeeeceenes
Intergovernmental:
Federal........ccooiierieciieccienreee e

Charges for services.
Other revenues........cccooviiimnninccnnneen s

Total reveNUES.......cveeviveeeeeeeceeeeieenenne

Expenditures:
Public protection............cveeciviivurreieeeeen e
Public works, transportation and
COMIMEICE. .. .eeeeeveareeeeeriersreeseesseesereeseenenss
Human welfare and neighborhood
development..........cccovvieiiiiiieiiie e
Community health
Culture and recreation .
General administration and finance.................
General City responsibilities...........cccccceeeeeee.

Total expenditures...........ccoeeviviivciiiiiens

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures.........cc.ccoeeeee

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers iN......oovvereeccce e
Transfers out .
Issuance of bonds...........occoceiiniinnnnnninnne.
Budget reserves and designations..................

Loan repayments and other financing
SOUTCES...uvverirvreeseeerneeeeeearessanaeessesseersosnennes
Total other financing sources (uses).........

Net change in fund balances.....................
Budgetary fund balance, July 1.......ccccccorninnnnnns

Budgetary fund balance, June 30......................
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Gift Fund Human Welfare Fund
Variance Variance
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
-8 -3 -3 -8 -8 -8 -8 -
- - - - 200 200 197 (3)
- 17 95 78 - - 296 296
- 46 46 - 1,280 11,500 11,500 -
- - - - - 1,101 1,101 -
- 17 65 48 - - 222 222
163 4,072 3,543 (529) - - - -
163 4,152 3,749 (403) 1,480 12,801 13,316 515
- 158 158 - - - - -
- 5 5 - - - - .
72 640 640 - 1,464 12,215 12,215 -
- 160 160 - - - - -
91 2,103 2,103 - - - - -
- 5 5 - - . - -
163 3,071 3,071 - 1,464 12,215 12,215 -
- 1,081 678 (403) 16 586 1,101 515
- (84) (84) - (16) (152) (153) 1
- (84) (84) - (16) (152) (153) (1)
- 997 594 (403) - 434 948 514
- 5,538 5,538 - - - - -
- $ 653 § 6132 $ (403) $ - $§ 434 § 948 § 514
(Continued)



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Off-Street Parking Fund Open Space and Park Fund
Variance Variance
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Property taxes.................... . S - $ - 8 - 8 - $19619 $19619 $22,027 $ 2408
Business taxes...... - - - - - - -

Other local taxes........ccceeveerrenees - - - - -
Licenses, permits, and franchises...
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties...... - - - -
Interest and investment income... - - -
Rents and concessions.............ccccveeieicecinn 10,473 10,573 9,551 (1,022) - - - -
Intergovernmental:

Federal........coooieeieeeeeeee s - - - -

Charges for services - 10 10 - - - - -
Other reVeNnUES........ccoereveeceneciiie e - - 10 10 -
Total revenues..........ccooeeveierreeeceercninnes 10,473 10,583 9,571 (1,012) 21,108 21,107 22,975 1,868

Expenditures:
Public protection............ccccccoviinnienneeiean. - - - -
Public works, transportation and
COMIMEICR. ....coueeneiairaeinresterseeee e esssaneeneneess 8,076 11,796 11,796 - - 823 823 -
Human welfare and neighborhood
development..........cccceevverrneceieniiees - - - -
Community health........ - - - - -
Culture and recreation........c.cccceveeeeeeeees - - - - 21,152 15,133 14,651 482
General administration and finance....... - - - - - - - -
General City responsibilities............ - - - - - .
Total expenditures..........ccccecmveveciiennennns 8,076 11,796 11,796 - 21,152 15,956 15,474 482

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures.............c.oeee.. 2,397 (1,213) (2,225) (1,012) (44) 5,151 7,501 2,350

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers iN......cccoociccccci e 470 470 470 - - - -
Transfers out......... - - - - - (2,120) (2,129) {9)
Issuance of bonds................ . - - -
Budget reserves and designations.................. - (1,660) - 1,660 - - - -
Loan repayments and other financing
SOUTCES . ..uuuunrnereeeeresrrteresaanrnrneteeenseserassrsnnnnes (2,867) -
Total other financing sources (uses)......... (2,397) (1,190) 470 1,660 - (2,120) (2,129) 9)
Net change in fund balances - (2,403) (1,755) 648 (44) 3,031 5,372 2,341
Budgetary fund balance, July 1....... - 3,327 3,327 - 44 21,315 21,315 -
Budgetary fund balance, June 30............ccceoe... $ - $ 924 §$ 1572 § 648 % - $24346 $26687 § 2,341

(Continued)
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Revenues:

Property taxes.... e

Business taxes...
Other local taxes.........occcveccinnennne

Licenses, permits, and franchises....
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties....
Interest and investment income....

Rents and concessions.........ccccoo.e.. .

Intergovernmental:

Federal........ccooveienenniiinicnceeercee

State..

Charges for services.

Other revenues...........ccceecceeeeeceennnnes
Total revenues.........c.ccoveeeeerveenene

Expenditures:

Public protection.............ccoocmmmeeeces

Public works, transportation and

COMMIEICE.. ..ot

Human welfare and neighborhood
development.......

Community health.....

Culture and recreation..................

General administration and finance..

General City responsibilities.............

Total expenditures..........ccccceeeeeen.

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.........

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers iN.......ccovecccrvrverreeeceen e

Transfers out......
Issuance of bonds.....

Budget reserves and designations......

Loan repayments and other financing

SOUMCES..-ueeeeeriersreeereeeesiee e essinananas
Total other financing sources (uses).........

Net change in fund balances..
Budgetary fund balance, July 1........

Budgetary fund balance, June 30...........

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)
Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Public Library Fund

Public Protection Fund

139

Variance Variance
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
............. $19619 $19619 $22,037 $ 2,418 - - - -
- - - - 1,000 1,366 1,564 198
- - - - 2,069 2,247 1,577 (670)
- - - - - 430 1,135 705
28 28 28 - - - - -
............ - 36 35 () 4,569 9,314 9,313 ()
1,559 1,863 1,749 (114) 8,970 16,180 16,180 -
- - - - - 44 44 -
607 611 314 (297) 14,788 22,464 25,271 2,807
............. - 125 125 - - 120 36 (84)
............ 21,813 22,282 24,288 2,006 31,396 52,165 55,120 2,955
............ - - - - 19,710 34,918 34,686 232
............. - 66 66 - 12,009 15,767 15,767 -
- - - - - 757 757 -
- - - - - 1,237 1,237 -
51,721 52,155 51,536 619 - - - -
- - - - - 60 60 -
............. 51,721 52,221 51,602 619 31,719 52,739 52,507 232
............. (29,908) (29,939) (27,314) 2,625 (323) (574) 2,613 3,187
............. 29,955 29,731 28,798 (933) - - - -
- (393) (393) - - (10,534) (10,533) 1
47) 47) - 47 - - - -
29,908 29,291 28,405 (886) - (10,534) (10,533) 1
- (648) 1,091 1,739 (323) (11,108) (7,920) 3,188
- 7,349 7,349 - 314 24,656 24,656 -
............ $ - $ 6,701 $ 8440 § 1,739 $ (9) $13,548 $16,736 $§ 3,188
(Continued)



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Public Works, Transportation and

Commerce Fund Real Property Fund
Variance Variance
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Property taXes...........ocoeuroreeernemeneseseecsesssenons - - - - 8 - % - 3 - $ -

BUSINESS taXES..ocveccerieerireerrecciee v - - - -
Other local taxes.........ccocvvvevreccccinnnnniienee e, - - - - -

Licenses, permits, and franchises.. - 4 - (4) - - - -
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties....................... - - - - - - -
Interest and investment income...................... - - 10 10 - 20 49 29
Rents and CONCESSIONS......c..covreecriiiiiineeneienns - 700 402 (298) 5,458 5,719 5,769 50
Intergovernmental:
Federal.......occcmmm i - - - - - - - -
State...... . - 1,449 1,449 - - - - -
(0] {1 1= SO U PTU PR SRROPPTP 554 109 109 - - - - -
Charges for Services.........oovvvvemninnicniicccnnns 4,676 9,193 11,133 1,940 1,200 1,200 1,323 123
Other reVeNUES..........coocvceciiiiiriniee e - 12 428 416 - 2 2 -
Total revenUES........cccccerveeerrciriirreereeieens 5,230 11,467 13,531 2,064 6,658 6,941 7,143 202
Expenditures:
Public protection............ccccoonmemeiiiiinin e - - - - - - - -
Public works, transportation and
COMIMIEICE ... ieeeeeieseesereaaaaaararaseeaeeaeerenarnnnnns - 9,705 9,705 - - 152 152 -
Human welfare and neighborhood
development..........ccooiiviiinine 4,676 5,453 5,446 7 - 8 8 -
Community health...........ccoooiis - - - - - -
Culture and recreation.............ccocovnmeeenicinnees - 3 3 - - - - -
General administration and finance.. . 554 504 504 - 41,447 40,532 40,532 -
General City responsibilities..............c..c..oe. - - - - - - - -
Total expenditures...........cccccovveverrecrciinneen, 5,230 15,665 15,658 7 41,447 40,692 40,692 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures.............cc.e.e... - (4,198) (2,127) 2,071 (34,789) (33,751) (33,549) 202
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers iN........occoeveeneercecoiinininieee e e - 899 899 - 1,054 504 504 -
Transfers Oub......cooooiricrieiiiii i - (2,974) (2,974) - - (4,813) (4,813) -
Issuance of bonds........c.ccco o - - - - 36,469 37,309 35,974 (1,335)
Budget reserves and designations.................. - - - - - - - -
Loan repayments and other financing
SOUMCES ... ceueereenierimsiit e sreeeseesbe e sae e s - - - - (2,734) - - -
Total other financing sources {(uses)......... - (2,075) (2,075) - 34,789 33,000 31,665 (1,335)
Net change in fund balances..................... - (6,273) (4,202) 2,071 - (751) (1,884) (1,133)
Budgetary fund balance, July ... - 14,827 14,827 - - 12,175 12,175 -
Budgetary fund balance, June 30....................... $ - % 8554 $10625 $ 2,071 $ - % 11,424 $ 10291 § (1,133)

(Continued)

140



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

San Francisco County

Transportation Authority Fund

Senior Citizens' Program Fund

Revenues:

Property taxes........cceccovveiiiiiiiciii e
Business taxes....
Other local taxes..........ccveecveeeincereenienne
Licenses, permits, and franchises..................
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties....
Interest and investment income....
Rents and concessSions........ccovvccveiieiiiieniinnnnns
Intergovernmental:

Federal........oooooemeiiiinn et

Charges for services.. .
Other reVENUES.........coceeecmrreeecceenee s

Total revenUES..........ooeevvvveiemrevecrer e

Expenditures:
Public protection.........cccoeoeveeeciiiiienniees
Public works, transportation and

COMIMEICE. ...ceureeerveeeceesiriieeseeeeareenssnsessnes
Human welfare and neighborhood

development............coccoiiiiiiiiininnieie e
Community health
Culture and recreation............ccccooveviiiineeeis
General administration and finance.................
General City responsibilities

Total expenditures............ccccoovrvvereeeeiens

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures......................

Other financing sources {(uses):

Transfers in.......cccoovveeeicceneeeccen e
Transfers out..........
Issuance of bonds..........coceenen. .
Budget reserves and designations..................

Loan repayments and other financing
SOUMCES...evveeeenreesaeresseeeereseessenesareesesssinssnas
Total other financing sources (uses).........

Net change in fund balances....................
Budgetary fund balance, July 1........

Budgetary fund balance, June 30.......................

Final

Budget

71,617

9,277

176,258

Actual
$ -

62,805

8,856

4,034

Variance
Positive

{Negative)
$ -
(8,812)

(421-)

(172,224)

Variance
Positive

(Negative)
$ .

257,152

(181,457)

204,982

78,159

126,823

204,982

78,159

126,823

52,170

(2,464)

(54,634)

(16,833)

(16,833)

(16,833)

(16,833)

35,337
163,201

(19,297)
163,201

(54,634)

59

$198,538

$143,904

$ (54,634)

$ 59
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Revenues:
Property taXes......c..cccocmirecrieniie i e
Business taxes.....
Other local taxes...c......cceoceeeenes
Licenses, permits, and franchises.......................
Fines, forfeitures, and penalties.....
Interest and investment income..
Rents and CONCESSIONS........ccceevmimrreenreciieereeena
Intergovernmental:
Federal........ooocooiieeeeecieece e
StAt@......eieeeieeeee e

Charges for services...
Other reVENMUES.....c.cceeeeeeeeecieeine e

Total FEVENUES......ooeviveieeieeeveieiee e

Expenditures:
Public protection.........cccccccvnerrinmiincinciiiinnns
Public works, transportation and

COMIMEICE.....ecuveervreenreaeeearerraeesenresessseessaeennas
Human welfare and neighborhood

development..........coveeiviiiiic e
Community health...
Culture and recreation....................
General administration and finance...
General City responsibilities...........

Total expenditures..........coccoeeeeiiiiiiniieninnns

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures.............c.ceeeenee

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in.... ..o
Transfers out
Issuance of bonds.......coocvrcercimne e
Budget reserves and designations.....................
Loan repayments and other financing
SOUFCES......eeenieneaereesteenreeeereeeeseee st sss s saeennees

Total other financing sources (uses).............

Net change in fund balances..........
Budgetary fund balance, July 1......

Budgetary fund balance, June 30..........................

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

War Memorial Fund TOTAL
Variance Variance
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Budget Budget Actual {Negative)

- 8 - 8 - 8 - $ 82777 $ 62,777 $ 69,986 § 7,209

- - - - 600 600 723 123
10,213 10,213 7,904 (2,309) 62,890 134,507 110,177 (24,330)
- - - - 4,833 5,314 6,215 901
- - - - 3,850 4,030 3,454 (576)

- - - - 3,494 13,866 19,595 5,729
1,138 1,375 1,557 182 27,455 29,185 27,971 (1,224)
- - - - 91,122 323,859 150,692 (173,167)
- - - - 70,532 76,614 75,750 (864)

- - - - 554 1,434 1,434 -

208 250 278 28 73,218 110,774 121,929 11,155
- - - - 1,955 13,483 12,401 (1,082)
11,559 11,838 9,739 (2,099) 403,280 776,453 600,327 (176,126)
- - - - 20,498 40,386 40,020 366

- 422 421 1 93,584 328,587 196,253 132,334

- - - - 114,217 148,752 145,025 3,727

- - - - 85,937 89,372 89,372 -
10,589 9,218 8,484 734 140,131 134,840 128,630 6,210
- - - - 43,924 62,928 62,344 584

. - - - 5,967 4,866 4,866 -

10,589 9,640 8,905 735 504,258 809,731 666,510 143,221
970 2,198 834 (1,364) (100,978) (33,278) (66,183) (32,905)

- - - - 52,852 53,920 50,987 (2,933)

- (1,109) (1,109) - (29,632) (68,938) (68,482) 456

- - - - 36,469 37,309 35,974 (1,335)

- - - - 47) (1,707) - 1,707

- - - - (9,861) 407 408 1

- (1,109) (1,109) - 49,781 20,991 18,887 (2,104)

970 1,089 (275) (1,364) (51,197) (12,287) (47,296) (35,009)

- 14,784 14,784 - 13,275 535,350 535,350 -

970 $15873 $14509 $ (1,364) $ (37,922) § 523,063 $488,054 $ (35,009)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Schedule of Expenditures by Department
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
BUILDING INSPECTION FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
Building Inspection.........c.cccocevreeiene $ 33,391 $ 32,660 $ 28,797 $ 3,863
Total Building Inspection Fund 33,391 32,660 28,797 3,863
CHILDREN AND FAMILIES FUND
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Child Support Services.........ccceevennnee e et 25,064 25,188 21,694 3,494
Children and Families COMMISSION.....c...cocvimiinniinien i 8,274 3,711 3,711 -
Children, Youth and Their Families....... 24,963 22,874 22,874 -
Total Children and Families Fund...........econinniiioicnnnee 58,301 51,773 48,279 3,494
COMMUNITY/NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
Business and Economic Development............cceevenninninninn 394 4,481 4,481 -
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Human Rights Commission - 15 15 -
Mayor's Office........coceeuruenen . 40,715 53,683 53,683 -
Rent Arbitration Board.........cccccererreteinimineeninnninnnsen e 3,055 3,292 3,292 -
43,770 56,990 56,990 -
Community Health
PUDIC HEAMN. ... oieeeereeeecrerreeeesccreeeees s sresrnre e s n e s s - 181 181 -
Culture and Recreation
Recreation and Park COMMISSION...........coorieneeienimnsnnerees s 2,400 2,400 2,400 -
General Administration and Finance
City Planning.......ccovrmrnmessmas s - 9,748 9,748 -
Total Community/Neighborhood Development Fund............ 46,564 73,800 73,800 -
COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES FUND
Public Protection
THAL COUMS.ooeeiiieeerieieresieet e esnse s st ere s ss s nsnn e nesbee - 98 98 -
Community Health
Community Health NetWOTK......coaiiii i 85,937 87,794 87,794 -
Total Community Health Services Fund...........cocoooeeiennnenes 85,937 87,892 87,892 -
CONVENTION FACILITIES FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
Parking and Traffic Commission - 24 23 1
Public WOIKS.....coccevtecrirmniisieneneecensnnaees - 609 609 -
- 633 632 1
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
MaYOr'S OfiCE. ..cccrrrrccriierie s 600 12,220 12,220 -
Culture and Recreation
Administrative Services - Convention Facilities.. 51,375 48,589 44,236 4,353
ArtS COMMUISSION....coivreirerreererreeamenreessstisiesistensnenesnesnsenaneesansesass - 300 300 -
51,375 48,889 44,536 4,353
General City Responsibilities
General City Responsibility........cccvvierninininnnscnniniienae - 4,806 4,806 -
MAYOr'S OFfiCE. ....ccimrmreercmiimrire s st 5,967 - - -
5,967 4,806 4,806 -
Total Convention Facilities Fund........ccccocoimniiiennnniineenees 57,942 66,548 62,194 4,354
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Schedule of Expenditures by Department
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
COURT'S FUND
Public Protection
255 4,758 4,624 134
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
PUDHE WOTKS....eeiierereeeeeeieieecieeeeereesressessae e ssnseesameses e esseeessbssnns - 193 193 -
Total Court's FUNG.......coccioireeeiee e e 255 4,951 4,817 134
CULTURE AND RECREATION FUND
Culture and Recreation
Arts COMMISSION. ...ccciiieiiirrr e e cessrneessreas 428 1,234 1,234 -
Asian Art Museum... 17 163 163 -
Fine Arts Museums..........ccoounee . 168 1,054 1,054 -
Recreation and Park COMMISSION.......ccccovvrcimmimeciirreneenes e 2,190 2,032 2,011 21
2,803 4,483 4,462 21
General Administration and Finance
Mayor's OffiCe........vviiiiiiiiiii e 125 133 132 1
Total Culture and Recreation Fund............cccoviiniinninnnnnns 2,928 4,616 4,594 22
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION FUND
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
ENvironment..........ceeeveeviennccnecrcnimncenncnnns - 1,346 1,346 -
Total Environmental Protection Fund - 1,346 1,346 -
GASOLINE TAX FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
CONrOlIEN ... e - 117 117 -
Public Works........ccconeeveeceanenen. . 30,057 36,512 35,649 863
Parking and Traffic COmMmISSION.........c.comeemniien e 8,623 9,262 8,469 783
Total Gasoling Tax FUNG......cccoomrrerrmrenrn e 38,680 45,881 44,235 1,646
GENERAL SERVICES FUND
Public Protection
District Attorney. 131 - - -
Mayor's Office... - 10 10 -
Tl COUMS...c.eiieeeie e re e rer s esrss s s s s s srn s ae s s nanees 402 444 444 -
533 454 454 -
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
Telecommunications and Information Services........ccccceveceveneenne 1,034 1,021 1,021 -
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
MayOr's OffiCe.......vorererrerr e eeseeneeneas - 53 53 -
Cuilture and Recreation
Fing ArtS MUSEUM.......coiiiecierece e e e s ee s eensts srnssaams s - 456 455 1
General Administration and Finance
AdMINistrative ServiCeSs.......cccvvirrverveenie s ses s - 1,199 1,199 -
ASSESSOI/RECOTdET.......covvereeereenercre e 848 961 961 -
Board of Supervisors... . - 119 119 -
City AROIMEY....c.ciereccreeecrerr et vas b se e s ann e 950 1,901 1,901 -
City Planning.......ccccccevvrevieieiniisncnininstces s - 87 87 -
Human Resources... - 7,658 7,075 583
Mayor's OffiCe.....ooueeccreeer e e e - 81 81 -
1,798 12,006 11,423 583
Total General Services Fund.......ccccooevrveinriiinniinicnnnnees 3,365 13,990 13,406 584
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Schedule of Expenditures by Department
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
GIFT FUND
Public Protection
Administrative Services - Animal Care and Control............ccoceueee - 84 84 -
Fire Department..........ccoveeeineniieree s - 4 4 -
Trial Courts.......... - 14 14 -
Sheriff....ccoocveenee. eeteeeteeeeseesseeseesssessessessesssesstestesseistesetessieseeseen - 56 56 -
- 158 158 -
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
PUDHE WOTKS...coeeeeiieieeeeniir s ccesesc s e e - 1 1 -
Telecommunications and Information Services............occovinenns - 4 4 -
- 5 5 -
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Adult and Aging ServiCes.........ccevrvirrcncrciniiii e 72 72 72 -
HUMEN SEIVICES....ccoeteciiriirereeerereee i cctnsse st ebe s annes - 471 471 -
Mayor's OffiCe.....cceviimiriircei s - 97 97 -
72 640 640 -
Community Health
Community Health Network..........c.occvciviniiviiniciiinesieneeeees - 160 160 -
Culture and Recreation
ANS COMMISSION.....iiieeresiieeiirrte e e e sssesses s sssnssaressens - 35 35 -
Fine Arts MUSEBUMS ... .omirierererre e v sene e e - 579 579 -
Mayor's OffiCe......cuvvrreerrrrcrr s 91 57 57 -
Public Library - 126 126 -
Recreation and Park COMMISSION.........ccocniiinniniinniinnecenniennn - 1,306 1,306 -
91 2,103 2,103 -
General Administration and Finance
Board of SUPEIrVISOrS..........ooceviiiiirccie st - 1 1 -
MaYOr's OffiCe. ..ot - 4 4 -
- 5 5 -
Total Gift and Other Expendable Trusts Fund....................... 163 3,071 3,071 -
HUMAN WELFARE FUND
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Commission on Status of Women......c.c.ccoveieiiiiiineiicinnnennn, 184 196 196 -
Human Services.......coceveeeevrecrenne. 1,280 12,019 12,019 -
Total Human Welfare Fund 1,464 12,215 12,215 -
OFF-STREET PARKING FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
Parking and Traffic COmMMISSION........cccooeimiiieiererevieeciececrnr s 8,076 11,796 11,796 -
Total Off-Street Parking Fund............ccovimincinie, 8,076 11,796 11,796 -
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Schedule of Expenditures by Department
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
OPEN SPACE AND PARK FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
PUBIC WOTKS.....oiiieiiveerereeirereesssssssseeseesssssssnes ssssseessasnasssesssasasass - 823 823 -
Culture and Recreation
Recreation and Park COMMISSION........ccccvrriviiiinmmmmniieniieeneennenenen: 21,152 15,133 14,651 482
Total Open Space and Park Fund........cocvmneneiincninnnnes 21,152 15,956 15,474 482
PUBLIC LIBRARY FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
PUBDIE WOTKS....eceereeveercerieernseraneseseramresesssssmsssaesssesesassessanssssnsaseas - 66 66 -
Culture and Recreation
PUDIC LIDrary......ccociineinieminnenseresssse s e s s sansses 51,721 52,155 51,536 619
Total Public Library FUN........ccoriiieeeeririnicnenensincnnceees 51,721 52,221 51,602 619
PUBLIC PROTECTION FUND
Public Protection
DiStriCt AOMNEY....cc et ressesees s 4,776 4,956 4,956 -
Juvenile Probation.. - 4 4 -
Mayor's OffiCe........oovvuirrnenineec e 1,744 3,831 3,831 -
POlCE COMMISSION...eertieciiriirrierrseenimnecrsrrssiiransesssns censennassensnsssaseen: 8,411 18,106 17,874 232
57 593 593 -
4,022 5,396 5,396 -
700 2,032 2,032 -
19,710 34,918 34,686 232
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
Emergency Communications Department..........c.cccciviinnninn 12,009 14,375 14,375 -
PUDIC WOTKS......ceieiirveesererrnnerneessmsnemeessesssnessssssssaes sssnssassesssssssnas - 1,392 1,392 -
12,009 15,767 15,767 -
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Child SUPPOIt SEIVICES......ccrerreriareiriireeests s sne s - 24 24 -
Children, Youth and Their Families. - 646 646 -
HUME@N SEIVICES.....ciovereeeeerieerireseanasameessresossnesinnssneesssessnessseassens - 87 87 -
- 757 757 -
Community Health
PUDIC HEAIN.....cveeereetecieieeeee et recsee s recas e s senna e - 1,237 1,237 -
General City Responsibilities
[070) 51 (o)1= AR UO TP - 60 60 -
Total Public Protection Fund 31,719 52,739 52,507 232
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Schedule of Expenditures by Department
Budget and Actual - Budget Basis (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Variance
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
PUBLIC WORKS TRANSPORTATION AND COMMERCE FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
Airport - 8 8 -
Mayor's OffiCE.....covirrerrrer ettt - 373 373 -
Municipal Transportation AQency........cccuirvveeeniniinninnsneee e - 154 154 -
Public Utilities Commission - 187 187 -
Public WOrKS.......ccccoececrrenees - 8,983 8,983 -
- 9,705 9,705 -
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Children, Youth and Their Families.........c.cccovvcniinniievecnnnnniceenen, 4,676 5,453 5,446 7
Culture and Recreation
PUDNC LIBrary......ccocvveiimceiie s - 3 3 -
General Administration and Finance
City Planning.......cccveererreramrerreesiscsnsesssvessseses s snssesnsssanes 554 504 504 -
Total Public Works Transportation and Commerce Fund..... 5,230 15,665 15,658 7
REAL PROPERTY FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
PUDIC WOTKS.......eeiriieiiecenee et s aa s - 152 152 -
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Rent Arbitration Board..........ccooeeerreiriscninnecninenieeseassnsenensnen - 8 8 -
- 8 8 -
General Administration and Finance
Administrative Services - Real Estate.......c.coonnnnvciiincns 41,447 40,532 40,532 -
Total Real Property Fund 41,447 40,692 40,692 -
SAN FRANCISCO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION
AUTHORITY FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
Total San Francisco Transportation Authority...........cccceeeeeecieenne. - 204,982 78,159 126,823
SENIOR CITIZENS' PROGRAM FUND
Human Welfare and Neighborhood Development
Adult and AgINg SErviCes.......cociiiriciirivessnrecernirirnneees 5,334 7,297 7,071 226
Total Senior Citizens' Program Fund 5,334 7,297 7,071 226
WAR MEMORIAL FUND
Public Works, Transportation and Commerce
PUDBHC WOTKS....cuieciecreecre e seee s ne s sns st s s snensennas - 422 421 1
Culture and Recreation
War MemOTial........cccovveveiiinerenireee s s 10,589 9,218 8,484 734
Total War Memorial Fund.........ccoveeceemnecnnnnnisncnnnnees 10,589 9,640 8,905 735
Total Special Revenue Funds With Legally Adopted
BUAGELS....vcceeeereeeerrirreeessese s rreree et s ssssrresaessanens $ 504,258 $ 809,731 $ 666,510 $ 143,221
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Debt Service

June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

General Certificate Other
Obligation of Bond
Bond Participation Funds Total
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury..........ccccooocinnnnns $ 25,990 $ 6 $ 5 26,001
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.............cooenii. - 15,012 1,284 16,296
Receivables:
Property taxes and penalties..........ccooe s 4,063 - - 4,063
TOtal @SSELS...ueviieeitiieecmtee et e $ 30,053 $ 15,018 $ 1,289 46,360
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE......ervreeeerereererrecaearaerrnssessssssssass s $ 112§ - $ - 112
Accrued interest payable........courevenin s 398 - - 398
Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues...............cceeeeens 3,682 - - 3,682
Due to other fUNAS.......cveeriiriecrrr e - 6 - 6
Deferred credits and other liabilities..........cocovmviieiniiicinne 5,466 - 148 5,614
Total liabilities......oeeeiveeirreeeeeeccree e 9,658 6 148 9,812
Fund balances:
Reserved for debt SErVICE.......ccccireirriririee et 20,395 15,012 1,141 36,548
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 15,018 $ 1,289 46,360
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Debt Service

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Finance
General Corporation Certificate Other
Obligation Lease Revenue of Bond
Bond Bond Participation Funds Total
Revenues:
PrOPEMtY TAXES.....cv.vsceeesererccerineseereesiassssinsssessmsnsnssssssssase $ 109,853 § - 3 - $ - % 109,853
Interest and investment income.. 1,446 - 734 78 2,258
Rents and CONCESSIONS....c.cvvreeercrverierriiiisisrnrrnnineas i - - 11,720 5,034 16,754
Intergovernmental:
859 - - - 859
Total revenues........cooccevirririeiiicnnnens . 112,158 - 12,454 5,112 129,724
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement...........cooooieiinneenes 54,415 - 4,420 10,693 69,528
Interest and fiscal charges 50,761 - 12,437 4,910 68,108
Bond issuance costs.................. 532 - 412 18 962
Total expenditures...........ccvrrveirieneeeninnecrnee 105,708 - 17,269 15,621 138,598
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures..........cccveevieecinnne 6,450 - (4,815) (10,509) (8,874)
Other financing sources (uses):
TTANSTEIS IM.eeiiiieieeeerriereerercer s e sen e e sr e e anne e - - 2,417 10,039 12,456
TrANSTEIS OUL....uiiieeeeeeeirieeercee e reeeessasren s sann e araeeannnnee (1,445) (11,671) - (18,283) (31,399)
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds iSSUEd.........ccccceevrieiriciverniniieenn. 118,945 - 15,460 134,405
Premium on issuance of bonds...........ccccoviereeneicnnenns 2,816 - 66 2,882
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent ...........cc.ceueee. (121,180) - (15,050) - (136,230)
Total other financing sources (USES).......cceeeerrnees (864) (11,671) 2,893 (8,244) (17,886)
Net change in fund balances.........cccocveiennnnn, 5,586 (11,671) (1,922) (18,753) (26,760)
Fund balances at beginning of year..........ccccceevmmneeieennne 14,809 11,671 16,934 19,894 63,308
Fund balances at end of Year.........cccovcimvrienieninsneccnnene $ 20,395 $ - $ 15,012 $ 1,141 § 36,548
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Capital Project

June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Fire
City Earthquake Protection Moscone
Facilities Safety Systems Convention
Improvement Improvement Improvement Center
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............... $ 35149 § 27,632 $ 20,579 3 57,023
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury......... 106,353 - - -
Receivables:
Federal and state grants and subventions............... - 65 - -
Charges for SernviCes...........co v - - - -
Interest and other 249 189 150 158
Due from component unit...............cccocciiiiii - - - 18,853

Deferred charges and other assets.............................. - 61 - -
Total assets $ 141751 § 27,947 $ 20,729 $ 76,034

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable..................cooo $ 2,429 § 6,671 $ 889 $ 737
Accrued payroll...........cccccooii 290 53 42 82

Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenues.......... - - - -
Dueto other funds............cccvveiiiiieiiiii e - - - -
Deferred credits and other liabilities....................... 712 983 - -
Total liabilities........c.coveeviii 3,431 7,707 931 819
Fund balances:
Reserved for assets not available for

APProPration.........ccocciviiiriii s - 1 - 18,853
Reserved for encumbrances................. 98,929 4,344 556 2,983
Reserved for appropriation carryforward.................. 30,762 15,021 9,066 14,240
Reserved for subsequent years' budgets................ - - - 10,600
Unreserved (deficit)..........cccccciiiiii 8,629 874 10,176 28,539

Total fund balances..............c.coiieinn 138,320 20,240 19,798 75,215

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 141,751 $ 27,947 $ 20,729 $ 76,034

(Continueq)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

ASSETS

Deposits and investments with City Treasury.

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Capital Project (Continued)

June 30, 2002

Deposits and investments outside City Treasury..........

Receivables:
Federal and state grants and subventions.

Charges for SEIVICES.......ccuvuiimeinieiecrieeieeesssaenes

Interest and other.

Due from component unit.........cccocoueeeevienennes

Deferred charges and other assets................
Total assets.......ccceeevererecnrneeneenn.

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable...................

Accrued payroll.......ccccoieiiieinicincneennenn

Deferred tax, grant and subvention revenu

Due to other funds........cooovvieiiiicieieiininis

es....

Deferred credits and other liabilities..........coccceeene.

Total liabilities......coceveeeeiireieicees

Fund balances:
Reserved for assets not available for

appropriation........ccccceeviereennieinieene.

Reserved for encumbrances..............ccoeueeee

Reserved for appropriation carryforward....
Reserved for subsequent years' budgets...

Unreserved (deficit)..........cccoovvvinvinnnnnnnn

Total fund balances.........ccccoeeiemiirennnicnnnn.

Total liabilities and fund balances

(In Thousands)

Public Recreation
Library and Park Street
Improvement Projects Improvement Total
$ 22,037 $ 36,708 $ 7,757 $ 206,885
- - - 106,353
- 934 22,076 23,075
- - 440 440
100 170 - 1,016
- - 2,888 21,741
- - 25 86
$ 22,137 3 37,812 $ 33,186 $ 359,596
$ 39 $ 6,618 $ 4,908 $ 22,291
49 387 523 1,426
- - 136 136
- - 9,191 9,191
- 231 45 1,971
88 7,236 14,803 35,015
- - 2,888 21,742
238 29,570 18,164 154,784
19,884 3,995 - 92,968
- - - 10,600
1,927 (2,989) (2,669) 44,487
22,049 30,576 18,383 324,581
$ 22,137 $ 37,812 $ 33,186 $ 359,596
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Capital Project

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Fire
City Earthquake Protection
Facilities Citywide Safety Systems
Improve- Commun- Improve- Finance Improve-
ment ication ment Corporation ment
Revenues:
Interest and investment INCOME.....c.cvvcveeereeenrrerriis e e $ 10477 $ - % 129 $ - $ 1,028
Rents and CONCESSIONS. .....ccceerrveeeriicririitres e sceas e s sanees 76 - - - -
Intergovernmental:
Federal - - 1,617 - 23
State......... 110 - 8,170 - -
(01271 SRR - - - - -
Charges for services 160 - 100 - -
Other....ccoov e 25 - - - -
Total revenues 10,848 - 11,181 - 1,051
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Bond iSSUBNCE COSES.....eeeicrerrreeirerermerircrcresssnnessssesssanensnnennn: - - - - -
Capital outlay........ccecvieirninncenn 52,483 - 25,954 - 3,445
Total expenditures 52,483 - 25,954 - 3,445
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures..........cveereiinnniineenes (41,635) - (14,773) - (2,394)
Other financing sources (uses):
TrANSTEIS IN..eveeiireiieeiecreeeereeceie e e et e e sera e s ssar s e s b rsnmn e e s bt narannns 656 - - - -
Transfers out (548) (9,891) - (977) -
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds iSSUed........ccccccveviiiiiniiniie e - - - - -
Premium on issuance of bonds..........cccooeiriecimnennnnnnncnens - - - - -
Other financing sources-capital leases........ - - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 108 (9,891) - 977) -
Net change in fund balances................. (41,527) (9,891) (14,773) (977) (2,394)
Fund balances at beginning of year.........cccovveiiviiennciinncneccnne 179,847 9,891 35,013 977 22,192
Fund balances at end of year...........cccerriericiin e, $ 138,320 $ - $ 20,240 $ - $ 19,798
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - Capital Project (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Moscone Public Recreation
Convention Library and Park Street
Center Improvement Projects Improvement Total
Revenues:
Interest and investment iINCOME........ccucvvineniniencisesnennnens $ 2,343 $ 749 $ 2245 $ - $ 18,136
Rents and CONCESSIONS.....cccarmrururmreriensmiainrera s seesssainnens - - - 632 708
Intergovernmental:
[0 =) = | PP PR - - 1,047 8,156 10,843
State.. i - - 1,809 5,116 15,205
[0]111=) SO - - - 28,644 28,644
Charges for services.... 267 - - 101 628
(6] 11 1= ST PO PR PN - - - 4,560 4,585
Total revenues 2,610 749 5,101 47,209 78,749
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Bond iSSUANCE COSES....cccrcemmriimiriiie s - 357 - - 357
Capital QUIAY.....coovirrereierr e 97,718 1,100 29,716 32,505 242,921
Total expenditures..........ovvvreenernnesiniinineenen: 97,718 1,457 29,716 32,505 243,278
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures.........c..ccoeniiinninns (95,108) (708) (24,615) 14,704 (164,529)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers iMoo e 17,756 27 8,032 3,358 29,829
Transfers out (105,069) - - - (116,485)
Issuance of bonds and loans
Face value of bonds issued......... - 17,665 - - 17,665
Premium on issuance of bonds - 213 - - 213
Other financing sources-capital leases...........c.cccoveeeenn. 89,307 - - - 89,307
Total other financing sources (USEs)..........ccc..-.. 1,994 17,905 8,032 3,358 20,529
Net change in fund balances..........ccocciiiiinennns (93,114) 17,197 (16,583) 18,062 (144,000)
Fund balances at beginning of year............cccoccniniimncenne 168,329 4,852 47,159 321 468,581
Fund balances at end of Year.......ccoeeieinieiienicenieninins $ 75215 $ 22,049 $ 30,576 $ 18,383 $§ 324,581
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies on a cost reimbursement basis.

Central Shops Fund -- Accounts for Central Shops equipment (primarily vehicle) maintenance service
charges and the related billings to various departments.

Finance Corporation -- Accounts for the lease financing services provided by the Finance Corporation to
City departments. On July 1, 2001 the City established the Finance Corporation Internal Service fund
because its sole purpose is to provide lease financing to the City. Previously, the activities of the Finance
Corporation were reported within governmental funds.

Reproduction Fund -- Accounts for printing, design and mail services required by various City
departments and agencies.

Telecommunications and Information Fund -- Accounts for centralized telecommunications activities in
the City's Wide Area Network, radio communication and telephone systems. In addition, it accounts for
application support provided to many department-specific and citywide systems, management of the City’s
Web site, operations of the City’'s mainframe computers and technology training provided to city personnel. It
also accounts for the related billings to various departments for specific services performed and operating
support from the General Fund.

155



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Telecom-
Central munications
Shops Finance Reproduction & Information
Fund Corporation Fund Fund Total
Assets —
Current assets:
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.............. $ 657 $ 6,732 $ 1271 $ 5,839 $ 14,499
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury......... - 51,732 - - 51,732
Receivables:

Interest and Other.. ... - 49 - 1,202 1,251
Capital lease receivable................... - 16,922 - - 16,922
Deferred charges and other assets. - - - 390 390

Total current 8SSetS.....cccvvvvevevevirreieiiiire e 657 75,435 1,271 7,431 84,794

Noncurrent assets:
Capital lease receivable........ocoovvoeieiiiniiinnen 241,863 241,863
Capital assets:

Facilities and equipment, net of depreciation........... 197 - 157 3,243 3,597
Deferred charges and other assets............ccocvvveiniens - 2,266 - - 2,266

Total noncurrent assets. ... iniiiievennennees 197 244,129 157 3,243 247,726

Total SSELS...ccvvriererereerreecrrsearesntseraresasaeenns 854 319,564 1,428 10,674 332,520
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable.........cccoceieniinen 606 - 408 5,800 6,814
Accrued payroll........cccrier e 457 - 97 1,761 2,315
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay.......cccocceveeniien 336 - - 1,098 1,434
Accrued workers' compensation..........ccceeeeencnicneinn - - - 250 250
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables........ - 13,925 - 2,169 16,094
Accrued interest payable......ccoooiii - 2,997 - - 2,997
Due to other funds - 2,027 - - 2,027
Deferred credits and other liabilities..........coccocniennis - 58,752 - - 58,752
Total current Habilities. .......ccoveererivirmrnireniineciennn 1,399 77,701 505 11,078 90,683
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued vacation and sick leave pay..........cccverniiann 236 - - 1,146 1,382
Accrued workers' compensation.........cccconcnniennn - - - 762 762
Bonds, loans, capital leases, and other payables........ - 241,863 - 2,236 244,099
Total noncurrent liabilities 236 241,863 - 4,144 246,243
Total liabilities............ 1,635 319,564 505 15,222 336,926
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................ 259 - 662 3,243 4,164
Unrestricted (DefiCit).....c..covvvrrmnmmrmnimneence s (1,040) - 261 (7,791 (8,570)
Total net assets (AefiCit)........covvrmriirererensianens 3 (781) $ - $ 923 $ (4,548) $ (4,406)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Internal Service Funds

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Telecom-
Central munications
Shops Finance Reproduction & Information
Fund Corporation Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES......cocecimmrirrersrsnsesenseeins $ 16,925 $ - $ 6,845 $ 78,561 $ 102,331
Rent and concessioNS........cccvuieirieceimninne e - - - 31 31
Total operating revenues...........ccccoeeinnen 16,925 - 6,845 78,592 102,362
Operating expenses:
Personal SEIVICES. ... .evemrereeiriiriicrierncnrnsasenenens 7,957 - 1,585 30,277 39,819
Contractual ServiCes........covomreniiineeneennnniicenenns 1,899 - 3,839 31,478 37,216
Materials and sUpplies......cocoivrierreeriennecnennecens 6,512 - 510 9,309 16,331
Depreciation and amortization..............cc.cocceciine 85 84 357 2,183 2,709
General and administrative.........cccccevevviieneeee 66 - 23 1,648 1,737
Services provided by other departments............. 497 - 309 2,179 2,985
(0] 11=] SUTT PR P USRS 19 - 239 2,520 2,778
Total operating expenses.........ccceeereneenees 17,035 84 6,862 79,594 103,575
Operating Io8S.......cocvivieeimiire e (110) (84) (7 (1,002) (1,213)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest and investment income - 7,003 - - 7,003
Interest eXpense.........ccovveveieniineenns (86) (6,919) 7)) (410) (7,432)
103 7= PR 1 =] ST PP - - - 18 18
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses).... (86) 84 (17) (392) (411)
Loss before operating transfers................. (196) - (34) (1,394) (1,624)
Transfers iN.....ccvvcceerrerrerereeesiesiisesrerrnneranies e sesans 86 - 17 409 512
Change in net assets.........coveeierirvicnecenencnennn (110) - (17) (985) (1,112)
Total net assets (deficit) - beginning............c.c..c... (671) - 940 (3,563) (3,294)
Total net assets (deficit) - ending.......ccoooceeeniencns $ (781) $ - $ 923 $ (4,548) $ (4,406)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds

Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Telecom-
Central munications
Shops Finance Reproduction & Information
Fund Corporation Fund Fund Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from CUSIOMETS.....c.ccecvererreeeeere e eecene e $16,925 § 14,228 $ 6,845 $ 77,304 $ 115,302
Cash paid to employees for Services........ccevvniiveicniinniinnnne (7,930) - (1,573) (29,370) (38,873)
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services...........cccccvenenen. (9,027) (96,321) (4,908) (45,539) (155,795)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities......... (32) (82,093) 364 2,395 (79,366)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating transfers in.........occccoiiiniierec 86 - 17 409 512
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities....... 86 - 17 409 512
Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Bond Sale ProCeedS.......ccevrerirrcreienies i s ras s - 7,928 - - 7,928
LOANS reCEIVEd......cuviier it rtr e e e - - - 3,541 3,541
Acquisition of capital assets........c..oovvrveiiirieici (40) - (82) (3,505) (3,627)
Retirement of capital lease obligation.............cccocvveineniennne - (14,215) - (2,687) (16,902)
Bond issue costs paid........c.ccooeeriiiciiiinnn e - 67) - - (67)
Interest paid on long term debt - (7,058) - (410) (7,468)
Net cash used in capital financing activities.................... (40) (13,412) (82) (3,061) (16,595)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest iINCOME reCeiVEd........covvieeieieieeeeeeerveeerererre e - 8,178 - - 8,178
Other investing activities.... (86) - (17) 18 (85)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities.......... (86) 8,178 17) 18 8,093
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (72) (87,327) 282 (239) (87,356)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year..........cccccv e 729 145,791 989 6,078 153,587
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year..........cccoecvvvinienicninncn, $ 657 $ 58,464 $ 1,271 $ 5839 § 66,231
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
used in operating activities:
Operating iNCOME (I0SS)...c.cvareerrerrerarecerrerscriaresmesees e eneenens $ (110) $ (84) $ (17) $ (1,002) $ (1,213)
Adjustments for non-cash activities:
Depreciation and amortization...........ccccvvvininiinnnicincnnnen, 85 84 357 2,183 2,709
Changes in assets/liabilities:
Receivables, Net.........c.oovcevieriiciirie e - 14,228 - (901) 13,327
Deferred charges & other assets..........cccocvviiicciieenenenes - - - (387) (387)
Accounts payable..........ccciiiciiinii e (34) - 12 1,595 1,573
Accrued payroll......c.c i 15 - 12 219 246
Accrued vacation & sick leave pay.........cccceeeiviiiiinininnnn. 12 - - 254 266
Accrued workers' compensation...........cocceceeienieniineneneen - - - 434 434
Deferred credits and other liabilities..........ccoccvieiieiinnnnns - (96,321) - - (96,321)
Total adjustments 78 (82,009) 381 3,397 (78,153)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities....................... $ (32) $ (82,093) $ 364 $ 2395 $ (79,366)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the
combining statement of net assets:
Deposits and investment with City Treasury........ccccecevenviens $ 657 $ 6,732 $ 1,271 $ 5839 $§ 14,499
Deposits and investment outside City Treasury - 51,732 - - 51,732
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year on
combining statement of cash flows........cccoivniiiniinnnnens $ 657 $ 58464 - § 12711 - $§ 5839 $§ 66,231
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Funds include all Trust and Agency Funds which account for assets held by the City as a
trustee or as an agent for individuals or other governmental units.

Trust Funds

Employees’ Retirement System -- Accounts for the contributions from employees, City contributions and
the earnings and profits from investments of monies. Disbursements are made for retirements, withdrawal,
disability, and death benefits of the employees as well as administrative expenses.

Health Service System -- Accounts for the contributions from active and retired employees, and surviving
spouses, City contributions and the earnings and profits from investment of monies. Disbursements are made
for medical expenses and to various health plans of the beneficiaries.

Agency Funds

Agency Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations. Such
funds have no equity accounts since all assets are due to individuals or entities at some future time.

Assistance Program Fund -- Accounts for collections and advances received as an agent under various
human welfare and community health programs. Monies are disbursed in accordance with legal requirements
and program regulations.

Deposits Fund -- Accounts for all deposits under the control of the City departments. Dispositions of the
deposits are governed by the terms of the statutes and ordinances establishing the deposit requirement.

Payroll Deduction Fund — Accounts for monies held for payroll charges including federal, state and other
payroll related deductions.

State Revenue Collection Fund -- Accounts for various fees, fines and penalties collected by City
departments for the State of California which are passed through to the State.

Tax Collection Fund -- Accounts for monies received for current and delinquent taxes which must be held
pending authority for distribution. Included are prepaid taxes, disputed taxes, duplicate payment of taxes, etc.
This fund also accounts for monies deposited by third parties pending settlement of litigation and claims.
Upon final settlement, monies are disbursed as directed by the courts or by parties to the dispute.

Transit Fund -- Accounts for the quarter of one percent sales tax collected by the State Board of
Equalization and deposited with the County of origin for local transportation support. The Metropolitan
Transportation Commission, the regional agency responsible for administration of these monies, directs their
use and distribution.

Other Agency Funds -- Accounts for monies held as agent for a variety of purposes.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Other
Pension Employee
Trust Benefit
Fund Trust Fund
Employees’ Health
Retirement Service
System System Total
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury.......cccoeeeeieniniecens $ - 8 70,570 $ 70,570
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury 11,026,161 - 11,026,161
Receivables:
Payrol! contribution - 12,358 12,358
Interest and other.........cccocvenenenenen. 255,240 860 256,100
Invested securities lending collateral..........ocmreniiiicniniinnines 1,461,506 - 1,461,506
Deferred charges and other assets.........ccooeiiiinins - 3 3
TOtal ASSEIS......iiveerieericierrcriire e e 12,742,907 83,791 12,826,698
Liabilities
ACCOUNES PAYADIE........coiiiitrrerirrne 6,125 9,333 15,458
Estimated claims payable - 14,911 14,911
Obligations under fixed coupon dollar repurchase agreements..... 252,500 - 252,500
Payable t0 BroKErS........cciveriieiirin e 593,214 - 593,214
Securities lending collateral.........coooeeeei e 1,461,506 - 1,461,506
Deferred credits and other liabilities . 13,612 21,170 34,782
Total Habilities......coveeeeeeeereererreer e 2,326,957 45414 2,372,371
Net Assets
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes................... $10,415950 § 38,377 § 10,454,327
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Other
Pension Employee
Trust Benefit
Fund Trust Fund
Employees’ Health
Retirement Service
System System Total

Additions:

Employees' contributions $ 155919 $ 72250 § 228,169

Employer contributions........... - 218,854 218,854
Total CONtHBULONS. .......cveeireereeeeeeerrer e e s s 155,919 291,104 447,023
Investment income (loss):
131 =) (=13 AP ORP 212,806 2,465 215,271
[T L= 1 1o L PSPPSRSO 63,875 - 63,875
Net decrease in fair value of investments...........ooooeviiiincii, (820,574) 335 (820,239)
Securities lending INCOME.........cooivriiiiiiiici e 35,676 - 35,676
Fixed coupon dollar repurchase agreement inCOmMe............cccoeveninicinines 7,791 - 7,73
Total investment iNCOME (I0SS).....covvvmmminniiierie e (500,426) 2,800 (497,626)
Less investment expenses:
Securities lending borrower rebates and expenses.........c..cccvenciinniennne (24,505) - (24,505)
Fixed coupon dollar repurchase finance charges and expenses............ (7,061) - (7,061)
OthEr EXPENSES. ... veecrrrerrerrereeiieiitisie s st e s sbne v taese s s s e s snesanes (18,517) - (18,517)
Total investment expenses.. (50,083) - (50,083)
Total additions (I0SS), NEL........ccccverirciieereree e (394,590) 293,904 (100,686)
Deductions:
Benefit payments................. 413,899 290,295 704,194
Refunds of contributions 9,814 - 9,814
AGMINIStrative EXPENSES........cocorerrrerreriirin et 11,827 - 11,827
Total dEQUCHIONS........oicveeeerereireeerererereesrersrererrereerasnsasar s saressraes s 435,540 290,295 725,835
Change in net asSets........occviciiiiiin e (830,130) 3,609 (826,521)
11,246,080 34,768 11,280,848
Net assets at end Of YEar........ececveveciiicrerr e e $10,415,950 $ 38,377 $10,454,327
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Additions Deductions , 2002
Assistance Program Fund
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury................ $ 6,527 40,397 $ 39,381 $ 7,543
Receivables:
Interest and Other........cccevvvvecciiiee e 148 140 148 140
TOtal ASSEIS.c.evieeiieceeeeeeeeie e e $ 6,675 40,637 $ 39,529 $ 7,683
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES PAYADIE.....cerercececeriinine s $ 1,059 8,364 $ 8,400 $ 1,023
Agency obligations............eeeieiinn 5,616 38,277 37,233 6,660
Total liabilities.......coevvvver e $ 6,675 46,641 $ 45,633 $ 7,683
Deposits Fund
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............... $ 21,964 39,313 $ 24,007 $ 37,270
Receivables:
Interest and Other........ccovvvrecerciic e 1 - - 1
Deferred charges and other assets...........cccccoeiieis 6,299 - 558 5,741
TOtal ASSELS..eviivieeeieeie et $ 28,264 39,313 $ 24,565 $ 43,012
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNtS PAYaDIE.......cccoveiiiiiici e $ 406 11,699 $ 11,445 $ 660
Agency obligations..........coceiriin 27,858 38,749 24,255 42,352
Total NabilitieS......ccoeoieerreeieerece e $ 28,264 50,448 $ 35,700 $ 43,012
Payroll Deduction Fund
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury................ $ 7,713 - $ 3,746 $ 3,967
Receivables:
Payroll Contribution...........ccoveeeiiinini, 44,957 3,372 - 48,329
TOtal ASSEES.ceeieeeeeieiee e eere e $ 52,670 3,372 $ 3,746 $ 52,296
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNtS PAYADIE......cevcevcecmicie it $ 47,508 4,511 $ - $ 52,019
Agency obligations.........c..ccoeeii 5,162 - 4,885 277
Total Habilities. ....uevveveeiireeiee e e $ 52,670 4,511 $ 4,885 $ 52,296
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities -
Agency Funds (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Additions Deductions 2002
State Revenue Collection Fund
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............... $ 2,315 $ 10,234 $ 11,329 3 1,220
TOtal @SSES...cccoeeeeeeeieeeeereeeeceire e e e s ee e $ 2315 $ 10,234 $ 11,329 $ 1,220
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ...t $ 2,007 $ 10,174 $ 11,325 $ 856
Agency obligations.........cceeeeiiiieinci s 308 10,139 10,083 364
Total iabilities. .....ccoeeerreereireceiiece e, $ 2315 $ 20,313 $ 21,408 $ 1,220
Tax Collection Fund
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............... $ 39,966 $ 1,456,915 $ 1,465,264 $ 31,617
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.......... - 2,930 - 2,930
Receivables:
Interest and OthET.......coovviveviiiiiee e 83,592 83,701 82,154 85,139
Total @SSetS.....ccoeeieerer e $ 123,558 $ 1,543,546 $ 1,547,418 $ 119,686
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable........ciiininnc e, $ 308 $ 30,883 $ 30,877 $ 314
Agency obligations........coore i 123,250 1,388,135 1,392,013 119,372
Total liabilities........ccevveeerriree e $ 123,558 $ 1,419,018 $ 1,422,890 $ 119,686
Transit Fund
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury................ $ 8,734 $ 35,950 $ 43,914 $ 770
Receivables:
Interest and other..........cooooiiiin 129 440 532 37
Total @SSetS....cieiiiee e s $ 8,863 $ 36,390 $ 44,446 $ 807
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE.......coveerreree et $ 657 $ 6,344 $ 6,232 $ 769
Agency obligations..........cceernrn e 8,206 34,399 42,567 38
Total HabilitieS.........coveeeeeee e $ 8,863 $ 40,743 $ 48,799 $ 807
(Continued)
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities -
Agency Funds (Continued)

Year ended June 30, 2002

(In Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2001 Additions Deductions 2002
Other Agency Funds
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury............... $ 5,308 $ 79,930 $ 63,632 $ 21,606
Receivables:
Interest and other.......coccoeev e, 105 125 106 124
TOtal @SSELS......cccveeeeeeeeecirreecriiereeraear e e eeieee e $ 5,413 $ 80,055 $ 63,738 $ 21,730
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable..........cocevvrveniniieiiiniies e $ 3,031 $ 73,955 $ 59,578 $ 17,408
Agency obligations............covmeee 2,382 79,494 77,554 4,322
Total iabilitieS.....coveiveeeiieeeecee e $ 5413 $ 153,449 $ 137,132 $ 21,730
Total Agency Funds
ASSETS
Deposits and investments with City Treasury................ $ 92,627 $ 1,662,739 $ 1,651,273 $ 103,993
Deposits and investments outside City Treasury.......... - 2,930 - 2,930
Receivables:
Payroll contribution...........cccveviiiiinie 44,957 3,372 - 48,329
Interest and Other........ccooceeceiiieeeree e 83,975 84,406 82,940 85,441
Deferred charges and other assets............cccccccernnenn. 6,299 - 558 5,741
TOtal @SSELS....cccveieeeeecciereereeee e s e $ 227,758 $ 1,753,447 $ 1,734,771 $ 246,434
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNtS PAYADIE. ......currieececnri e, $ 54,976 $ 145,930 $ 127,857 $ 73,049
Agency obligations..........ccocrire 172,782 1,589,193 1,588,590 173,385
Total HabiltieS......coovivevee et ee e $ 227,758 $ 1,735,123 $ 1,716,447 $ 246,434
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IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule By Source’
June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Governmental funds capital assets:

[T 11 RO OO O p SO PSR ORPPROUONt $ 139,534
Facilities and improvements 1,570,401
Infrastructure..........ccccovniniin, 23,663
Machinery and equipment.......... 203,937
Construction in progress......... 576,490
Total governmental funds capital assets $ 2,514,025
Investments in governmental funds capital assets acquired prior to July 1, 2000.........ccccoimiiiiiii $ 2,055,670
Investments in governmental funds capital assets acquired from July 1, 2000 by source:
General fund 23,438
Special revenue funds.. 68,807
Capital project funds. 366,110
Total governmental funds Capital @SSEES........ .o e $ 2,514,025
Schedule By Function '
June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
Facilities Machinery Construction
and and in
Function Land Improvements Equipment Infrastructure Progress Total
PUDIC Protection...........ccceerrenreces e cccresisivenaeseieees $ 11629 $ 161,221 $ 74318 § - § 2,334 $ 249,502
Public works, transportation and commerce.... 17,880 54,166 111,282 22,696 304,975 510,999
Human welfare and neighborhood development 4,240 18,077 2,359 - 3,314 27,990
Community health 1,978 24,486 3,124 - 144 29,732
Culture and recreation.............. . 79,408 621,789 9,724 967 262,400 974,288
General administration and finance....... 24,399 690,662 3,130 - 3,323 721,514

Total governmental funds capital assets.... $ 139,534 $ 1,570,401 $ 203937 § 23663 § 576,490 § 2,514,025

Schedule of Changes by Function*
Year ended June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)

Balance Balance

July 1, 2001 Additions Deductions June 30, 2002

Public protection...........ccccevneiennininniniiens $ 244766 $ 5105 § 369 $ 249,502
Public works, transportation and commerce.... 417,331 95,814 2,146 510,999
Human welfare and neighborhood development.... 27,934 236 180 27,990
Community health 29,211 521 - 29,732
Culture and recreation 836,681 137,607 974,288
General administration and finance 688,256 33,276 18 721,514
Total governmental funds capital assets............cccooeeeeinnicn $ 2244179 $ 272,559 § 2713 $ 2,514,025

1 This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to govermmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets reported in
internal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE (1)(3)(4)(5)(6)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)

Licenses, Interest

Other Fines and Rents and Charges
Fiscal Property Business Local and Investment Conces- Intergovern- for
Year Taxes Taxes Taxes Penalties(4) Income sions(5) mental(6) Services Other Total
1993....cce. $500,348 $154,026 $292,427 $ 53,165 $ 26,553 $ - $ 567,127 $117,550 $ 16,324 $1,736,520
% of Total.... 29.3 8.9 16.8 3.1 1.5 - 32.7 6.8 0.9 100.0
% Change.... - - - - - - - - - -
1994............... 436,619 164,075 312,942 66,319 41,274 52,336 577,621 92,868 6,047 1,750,101
% of Total.... 24.9 9.4 17.9 3.8 2.4 3.0 33.0 5.3 0.3 100.0
% Change.... (14.3) 6.5 7.0 24.7 55.4 100.0 1.9 (21.0) (63.0) 0.8
1995.....ceeee. 425,361 168,047 326,640 21,227 42,093 39,160 609,885 115,964 5,002 1,753,379
% of Total.... 24.3 9.6 18.6 1.2 2.4 2.2 34.8 6.6 0.3 100.0
% Change.... (2.6) 2.4 4.4 (68.0) 2.0 (25.2) 5.6 24.9 (17.3) 0.2
1996..........c.... 415,009 175,624 351,790 22,124 40,770 49,019 612,853 117,674 4,408 1,789,271
% of Total.... 23.2 9.8 19.7 1.2 2.3 2.7 34.3 6.6 0.2 100.0
% Change.... (2.4) 4.5 7.7 4.2 (3.1) 25.2 0.5 1.5 (11.9) 2.0
1997 438,250 201,210 413,935 22,154 42,227 59,816 656,127 126,137 15,885 1,975,741
% of Total.... 22.2 10.2 21.0 1.1 2.1 3.0 33.2 6.4 0.8 100.0
% Change.... 56 14.6 17.7 0.1 3.6 22.0 7.1 7.2 260.4 10.4
1998............... 479,912 223,647 445,628 24,667 50,115 65,318 709,078 164,881 12,038 2,175,284
% of Total.... 22.1 10.3 20.5 1.1 2.3 3.0 32.5 7.6 0.6 100.0
% Change.... 9.5 11.2 7.7 11.3 18.7 9.2 8.1 30.7 (24.2) 10.1
1999.....ccceee. 527,176 229,905 481,362 40,482 42,466 61,363 696,071 160,540 19,022 2,258,387
% of Total.... 23.3 10.2 21.3 1.8 1.9 27 30.9 7.1 0.8 100.0
% Change.... 9.8 2.8 8.0 64.1 (15.3) (6.1) (1.8) (2.6) 58.0 3.8
2000........c.c... 544210 267,918 547,470 33,681 47,132 72,380 804,723 185,510 13,898 2,516,922
% of Total.... 21.6 10.6 21.8 1.3 1.9 2.9 31.9 7.4 0.6 100.0
% Change.... 32 16.5 13.7 (16.8) 11.0 18.0 15.6 15.6 (26.9) 114
627,654 277,822 581,480 36,276 68,042 73,731 858,766 214,638 30,364 2,768,773
22.7 10.0 21.0 1.3 2.5 2.7 30.9 7.8 1.1 100.0
16.3 3.7 6.2 7.7 44.4 1.9 6.7 15.7 118.5 10.0
2002............... 687,150 274,848 444,590 37,807 47,209 62,360 895,979 224,919 21,753 2,696,615
% of Total.... 25.5 10.2 16.5 1.4 1.8 2.3 33.1 8.3 0.8 100.0
% Change.... 9.5 (1.1) (23.5) 4.2 (30.6) (15.4) 4.3 4.8 (28.4) (2.6)

Notes:

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.

(2) The information for the years 1994 through 2002 has been adjusted to the 1993 value of the dollar, using the average Consumer Price
Index - Urban for each year. This information has been provided for informational purposes as an indication of the true changes in the
City's revenues since 1993.

(3) The component unit, San Francisco Redevelopment Agency, is excluded beginning in 1993. Certain other 1994 information has
been reclassified to conform to the 1995 presentation.

(4) Under Proposition M, beginning in 1995, traffic fines of approximately $46.7 million were directly allocated to Muni Railway.

(5) Prior to 1994, rents and concessions were reported in charges for services.

(6) Prior to 1994, intergovernmental revenues were reported as grants, subventions and other allocations.

(7) Beginning in fiscal year 1997-98, the base year for the Consumer Price Index was changed from 1967 to 1982-84.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE (1)(3)(4)(5)(6)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)
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Notes:

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.

(2) The information for the years 1994 through 2002 has been adjusted to the 1993 value of the dollar, using the average Consumer Price
Index - Urban for each year. This information has been provided for informational purposes as an indication of the true changes in the
City's revenues since 1993.

(3) The component unit, San Francisco Redevelopment Agency, is excluded beginning in 1993. Certain other 1994 information has
been reclassified to conform to the 1995 presentation.

(4) Under Proposition M, beginning in 1995, traffic fines of approximately $46.7 million were directly allocated to Muni Railway.

(5) Prior to 1994, rents and concessions were reported in charges for services.

(6) Prior to 1994, intergovernmental revenues were reported as grants, subventions and other allocations.

(7) Beginning in fiscal year 1997-98, the base year for the Consumer Price Index was changed from 1967 to 1982-84.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
GENERAL REVENUES BY SOURCE - CONSTANT DOLLAR VALUE(1)(2)(3)(4)(5)(6)(7)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)

Licenses, Interest

Other Fines and Rents and Charges
Fiscal Property Business Local and Investment Conces- Intergovern- for
Year Taxes Taxes Taxes Penalties(4) Income sions(5) mental(6) Services Other Total
1993....cccoeneneen $ 509,348 $ 154,026 $ 292,427 $ 53,165 $ 26,553 § - $ 567,127 $117,550 $ 16,324 $1,736,520
% of Total..... 29.3 8.9 16.8 3.1 1.5 - 32.7 6.8 0.9 100.0
% Change.... - - - - - - - - - -
1994......cccocl 423,352 159,089 303,433 64,304 40,020 - 560,069 90,046 5,863 1,646,176
% of Total..... 25.7 9.7 18.4 39 2.4 - 34.0 5.5 0.4 100.0
% Change.... (16.9) 3.3 38 21.0 50.7 - (1.2) (23.4) (64.1) (5.2)
1995.. .. 405,436 160,175 311,339 20,233 40,121 36,605 581,316 110,532 4,768 1,670,525
% of Total..... 24.2 9.6 18.6 1.2 2.4 2.3 34.8 6.6 0.3 100.0
% Change.... (4.2) 07 2.6 (68.5) 0.3 100.0 3.8 22.8 (18.7) 1.5
1996.......c.oe.. 387,931 164,165 328,837 20,680 38,110 45,821 572,867 109,996 4,120 1,672,527
% of Total..... 23.2 9.8 19.7 1.2 2.3 2.7 34.3 6.6 0.2 100.0
% Change.... (4.3) 2.5 5.6 2.2 (5.0) 25.2 (1.5) (0.5) (13.6) 0.1
1997...coveees 402,159 184,640 379,846 20,330 38,749 54,890 602,093 115,749 14,577 1,813,033
% of Total..... 22.2 10.2 21.0 1.1 2.1 3.0 33.2 6.4 0.8 100.0
% Change.... 3.7 12.5 15.5 (1.7) 1.7 19.8 5.1 5.2 253.8 8.4
1998............... 427,536 199,239 396,993 21,975 44,646 58,189 631,691 146,886 10,724 1,937,879
% of Total..... 22.1 10.3 20.5 1.1 2.3 3.0 32.5 7.6 0.6 100.0
% Change.... 6.3 7.9 4.5 8.1 16.2 6.0 4.9 26.9 (26.4) 6.9
1999............... 462,597 201,742 422,395 35,5623 37,264 53,846 610,802 140,874 16,692 1,981,735
% of Total..... 23.3 10.2 21.3 1.8 1.9 2.7 30.9 7.1 08 100.0
% Change.... 8.2 1.3 6.4 61.7 (16.5) (7.5) (3.3) (4.1) 55.7 2.3
2000............... 433,638 213,483 436,236 26,838 37,556 57,674 641,221 147,818 11,074 2,005,538
% of Total..... 21.6 10.6 21.8 1.3 1.9 2.9 31.9 7.4 0.6 100.0
% Change.... (6.3) 58 33 (24.4) 0.8 7.1 5.0 4.9 (33.7) 1.2
2001............... 473,269 209,486 438,452 27,353 51,306 55,595 647,534 161,843 22,895 2,087,733
% of Total..... 22.7 10.0 21.0 1.3 2.5 2.7 30.9 7.8 1.1 100.0
% Change.... 9.1 (1.9) 0.5 1.9 36.6 (3.6) 1.0 9.5 106.7 4.1
2002.......c..c... 503,002 201,192 325,445 27,675 34,558 45,648 655,868 164,644 15,923 1,973,955
% of Total..... 25.5 10.2 16.5 1.4 1.8 2.3 33.2 8.3 0.8 100.0
% Change.... 6.3 (4.0) (25.8) 1.2 (32.6) (17.9) 1.3 1.7 (30.5) (5.4)
Notes:

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.

(2) The information for the years 1994 through 2002 has been adjusted to the 1993 value of the dollar, using the average Consumer Price
Index - Urban for each year. This information has been provided for informational purposes as an indication of the true changes in the
City's revenues since 1993.

(3) The component unit, San Francisco Redevelopment Agency, is excluded beginning in 1993. Certain other 1994 information has
been reclassified to conform to the 1995 presentation.

(4) Under Proposition M, beginning in 1995, traffic fines of approximately $46.7 million were directly allocated to Muni Railway.

(5) Prior to 1994, rents and concessions were reported in charges for services.

(6) Prior to 1994, intergovemmental revenues were reported as grants, subventions and other allocations.

(7) Beginning in fiscal year 1997-98, the base year for the Consumer Price Index was changed from 1967 to 1982-84.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION(1)(3)(5)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)

Public Works, Human General
Transporta- Welfare and Culture General City
Fiscal Public tionand Neighborhood Community and  Administration Respon- Debt
Year Protection Commerce Development Health Recreation and Finance sibilities Service Total
1993.......... ... $448,308  $109,258 $ 335,406 $307,698 $116,907 $142,997 $ - $63,060 $1,523,634
% of Total..... 29.4 7.2 22.0 20.2 7.7 9.4 - 4.1 100.0
% Change..... - - - - - - - - -
1994.....cccenees 475,844 85,776 345,523 300,036 119,274 138,784 - 74,627 1,539,864
% of Total..... 30.9 5.6 224 19.6 7.7 9.0 - 4.8 100.0
% Change..... 6.1 (21.5) 3.0 (2.5) 2.0 (2.9) - 18.3 1.1
1995, 507,231 116,426 378,922 347,234 146,990 137,913 - 79,924 1,714,640
% of Total..... 29.6 6.8 22.1 20.2 8.6 8.0 - 4.7 100.0
% Change..... 6.6 35.7 9.7 15.7 23.2 (0.6) - 7.1 11.4
1996.....ccccoennne 524,499 118,007 372,763 356,080 167,379 138,616 - 86,088 1,763,432
% of Total..... 29.7 6.7 21.1 20.2 9.5 7.9 - 4.9 100.0
% Change..... 3.4 1.4 (1.6) 2.5 13.9 0.5 - 7.7 2.8
1997...covieienn 529,302 139,021 384,519 390,226 182,505 142,287 - 99,016 1,866,876
% of Total..... 28.4 7.4 20.6 20.9 9.8 7.6 - 5.3 100.0
% Change..... 0.9 17.8 3.2 9.6 9.0 2.6 - 15.0 5.9
617,595 134,557 393,003 430,087 186,733 149,636 - 115,552 2,027,163
30.5 6.6 19.4 21.2 9.2 7.4 - 57 100.0
16.7 (3.2) 2.2 10.2 2.3 5.2 - 16.7 8.6
1999, 582,460 234,524 435,014 452,563 196,008 148,440 48,093.0 109,538 2,206,640
% of Total..... 26.4 10.6 19.7 20.5 8.9 6.7 2.2 5.0 100.0
% Change..... (5.7) 74.3 10.7 5.2 5.0 (0.8) 100.0 (5.2) 8.9
2000.....cccoonn..n. 632,516 231,970 485,201 433,448 201,558 174,566 45,194 124,246 2,328,699
% of Total..... 27.2 10.0 20.8 18.6 8.7 7.5 1.9 5.3 100.0
% Change..... 8.6 (1.1) 11.5 (4.2) 2.8 17.6 (6.0) 13.4 55
2001 ..o 672,119 299,949 557,242 454,975 233,506 150,482 109,753 139,138 2,617,164
% of Total..... 257 11.5 21.3 17.4 8.9 5.7 4.2 5.3 100.0
% Change..... 6.3 29.3 14.8 5.0 15.9 (13.8) 142.8 12.0 12.4
2002.........ccc.... 690,050 296,411 613,133 484,826 237,532 164,745 54,628 140,277 2,681,602
% of Total..... 25.7 11.1 22.9 18.1 8.9 6.1 2.0 5.2 100.0
% Change..... 2.7 (1.2) 10.0 6.6 1.7 9.5 (50.2) 0.8 2.5

NOTES:

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.

(2) The information for the years 1994 through 2002 has been adjusted to the 1993 value of the dollar, using the average
Consumer Price Index - Urban for each year. This information has been provided for informational purposes as an
indication of the true changes in the expenditure level of the City since 1993.

(3) The component unit, San Francisco Redevelopment Agency, is excluded beginning in 1993.

(4) Beginning in fiscal year 1997-98, the base year for the Consumer Price Index was changed from 1967 to 1982-84.

(5) Prior to fiscal year 1998-99, the General City Responsibilities were reported in the General Administration and Finance.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION(1)(3)(5)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)
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NOTES:

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.

(2) The information for the years 1994 through 2002 has been adjusted to the 1993 value of the dollar, using the average
Consumer Price Index - Urban for each year. This information has been provided for informational purposes as an
indication of the true changes in the expenditure level of the City since 1993.

(3) The component unit, San Francisco Redevelopment Agency, is excluded beginning in 1993.

(4) Beginning in fiscal year 1997-98, the base year for the Consumer Price Index was changed from 1967 to 1982-84.

(5) Prior to fiscal year 1998-99, the General City Responsibilities were reported in the General Administration and Finance.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION -
CONSTANT DOLLAR VALUE(1)(2)(3)(4)(5)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)

Public Works, Human General
Transporta- Welfare and Culture General City
Fiscal Public tion and Neighborhood Community and Administration Respon- Debt
Year Protection Commerce Development Health Recreation and Finance sibilities Service Total
1993....ccn. $448308 $ 109,258 $335,406 $307,698 $ 116,907 $ 142,997 $ - $ 63,060 $1,523,634
% of Total...... 29.4 7.2 22.0 20.2 7.7 9.4 - 4.1 100.0
% Change..... - - - - - - - - -
1994, 461,385 83,170 335,024 290,919 115,650 134,567 - 72,359 1,493,074
% of Total...... 31.0 5.6 22.4 19.5 7.7 9.0 - 4.8 100.0
% Change..... 2.9 (23.9) (0.1) (5.5) (1.1) (5.9) - 14.7 (2.0)
1995 483,471 110,972 361,172 330,968 140,105 131,453 - 76,180 1,634,321
% of Total...... 29.5 6.8 22.1 20.3 8.6 8.0 - 4.7 100.0
% Change..... 4.8 334 7.8 13.8 21.1 (2.3) - 5.3 9.5
1996.....cccoen.. 490,277 110,307 348,442 332,847 156,458 129,672 - 80,471 1,648,374
% of Total...... 29.7 6.7 21.1 20.2 9.5 7.9 - 4.9 100.0
% Change..... 1.4 (0.6) (3.5) 0.6 11.7 (1.4) - 5.6 0.9
1997, 485,712 127,572 352,853 358,090 167,475 130,569 - 90,862 1,713,133
% of Total...... 28.4 7.4 20.6 20.9 9.8 7.6 - 5.3 100.0
% Change..... (0.9) 15.7 1.3 7.6 7.0 0.8 - 12.9 3.9
1998......cccveeee 550,193 119,872 350,112 383,149 166,354 133,305 - 102,941 1,805,926
% of Total...... 30.5 6.6 19.4 21.2 9.2 74 - 57 100.0
% Change..... 13.3 (6.0) (0.8) 7.0 (0.7) 2.1 - 13.3 54
1999, 511,108 205,795 381,725 397,124 171,997 130,256 - 96,120 1,894,126
% of Total...... 26.9 10.9 20.1 21.0 9.1 6.9 - 5.1 100.0
% Change..... (7.1) 71.7 9.0 3.6 3.4 (2.3) - (6.6) 4.9
2000......cccceeeee 504,003 184,839 386,619 345,381 160,606 139,098 36,012 99,002 1,855,560
% of Total...... 27.2 10.0 20.8 18.6 8.7 7.5 1.9 5.3 100.0
% Change..... (1.4) (10.2) 1.3 (13.0) (6.6) 6.8 100.0 3.0 (2.0)
2001t 506,796 226,170 420,176 343,064 176,070 113,468 82,757 104,914 1,973,415
% of Total...... 25.7 11.5 21.3 17.4 8.9 57 4.2 53 100.0
% Change..... 0.6 22.4 8.7 (0.7) 9.6 (18.4) 129.8 6.0 6.4
2002.....ceeeeee 505,125 216,977 448,821 354,899 173,876 120,595 39,988 102,685 1,962,966
% of Total...... 25.7 11.1 22.9 18.1 8.9 6.1 2.0 52 100.0
% Change..... (0.3) (4.1) 6.8 3.4 (1.2) 6.3 (61.7) (2.1) (0.5)
NOTES:

(1) Includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.

(2) The information for the years 1994 through 2002 has been adjusted to the 1993 value of the dollar, using the average
Consumer Price Index - Urban for each year. This information has been provided for informational purposes as an
indication of the true changes in the expenditure level of the City since 1993.

(3) The component unit, San Francisco Redevelopment Agency, is excluded beginning in 1993.

(4) Beginning in fiscal year 1997-98, the base year for the Consumer Price Index was changed from 1967 to 1982-84.

(5) Prior to fiscal year 1998-99, the General City Responsibilities were reported in the General Administration and Finance.
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Fiscal
Year

1993........
1994 (3)...
1995 (3)...
1996 (3)...
1997 (3)...
1998 (3)...
1999 (3)...
2000 (3)...

2001 (3)

2002 (3)...

Source:

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS (1) (2)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)

Percent of Percent of
Current Tax Total Tax
Current  Collections Delinquent Collections
Annual Tax to Annual Tax Total Tax to Annual
Tax Levy Collections Tax Levy Collections Collections Tax Levy
$ 634,983 $613,646 96.6 $19,381 $633,027 99.7
652,128 629,844 96.6 16,075 645,919 99.0
658,301 641,074 97.4 14,159 655,233 995
648,876 635,110 97.9 11,373 646,483 99.6
671,657 658,300 98.0 13,556 671,856 100.0
709,852 697,755 98.3 8,917 706,672 99.6
757,899 742,774 98.0 8,719 751,493 99.2
799,385 784,984 98.2 6,153 791,137 99.0
892,675 877,170 98.3 3,526 880,696 98.7
1,010,960 985,838 97.5 7,366 993,204 98.2

Controller, City and County of San Francisco

Notes:

Percent of
Delinquent

Outstanding Taxes to

Delinquent

$

Taxes

55,5625
56,207
57,097
55,104
48,743
46,716
49,811
47,751
50,242
57,503

Annual
Tax Levy

8.7
8.6
8.7
8.5
7.3
6.6
6.6
6.0
5.6
5.7

(1) Includes San Francisco Unified School District, San Francisco Community College District, Bay Area Rapid Transit
District, Bay Area Air Quality Management District and San Francisco Redevelopment Agency.
(2) Does not include SB-813 supplemental property taxes.
(3) Delinquent tax collections and outstanding delinquent taxes reflect assessment appeals reduction.
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Fiscal
Year

1993 (3)
1994 (3)
1995 (3)
1996 (3)
1997 (3)
1998 (3)
1999
2000......
2001......
2002......

Source:

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY (1)

Assessed Value

(In Thousands)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Exemptions (2)

Real Personal

Property Property
$54,164,413 $ 2,343,303
56,557,585 3,070,791
56,315,478 2,877,646
56,336,280 2,652,119
56,956,168 2,680,912
59,010,846 2,585,594
61,700,799 4,010,092
66,859,683 4,384,155
73,712,384 7,807,032
88,866,299 4,686,951

Total

$ 56,507,716
59,628,376
59,193,124
58,988,399
59,637,080
61,596,440
65,710,891
71,243,838
81,519,416
93,553,250

Controller, City and County of San Francisco

Notes:

(1) Assessed value of taxable property represents all property within the City. The maximum tax rate is 1% of the full cash

Non-reim- Reim- Redevelopment
bursable bursable Tax Increments

$1,614,320 $ 684,660 $1,650,061
1,894,594 679,627 1,943,945
1,931,250 677,218 1,938,260
2,075,607 678,295 3,134,869
2,260,394 663,199 3,126,655
2,331,980 668,877 3,343,618
2,663,293 668,010 2,672,017
2,783,904 666,747 2,844,489
2,800,943 670,468 3,175,792
3,129,961 665,145 5,291,437

value or $1/$100 of the assessed value, excluding the tax rate for debt service.

3

3

Exemptions are summarized as follows:

Assessed
Value Less

Exemptions

$ 52,558,675
55,110,210
54,646,396
53,099,628
53,586,832
55,251,965
59,707,571
64,948,698
74,872,213
84,466,707

Net Increase/

(Decrease)
Amount Percentage
$ 838,425 1.6
2,551,535 4.9
(463,814) (0.8)
(1,546,768) (2.8)
487,204 0.9
1,665,133 3.1
4,455,606 8.1
5,241,127 8.8
9,923,515 15.3
9,594,494 12.8

(a) Non-reimbursable exemptions are revenues lost to the City because of provisions of California Constitution, Article XII1(3).

(b) Reimbursable exemptions arise from Article XlI(25) which reimburses local governments for revenues lost through the
homeowners' exemption in Article X1II(3) (k).

(c) Taxincrements are allocations made to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency under authority of California
Constitution, Article XVI and Section 33675 of the California Health & Safety Code. Actual allocations are limited under
an indebtedness agreement between the City and the Redevelopment Agency.

Based on certified assessed values.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

PROPERTY TAX RATES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

1993.......
1994.......
1995.......
1996.......

1998.......
1999.......
2000.......
2001.......
2002.......

Source:

Fiscal Year 2002 Property Tax Percentage Breakdown

Bay Area Air Quality

Management District
0.2% \

San Francisco
Community Coilege
District
4.8%

San Francisco Unified
School District
25.4%

Debt Service Fund
11.0%

Controller, City and County of San Francisco

Notes:

Bay Area Rapid
Transit District
0.5%

Fund
7.1%

General Fund

51.0%

Special Revenue

(1) The General Fund shifted the following property tax rates to schools under State law:

$0.10310710

............................... 0.25216000
FY 1995 through 1997......... 0.24467000
FY 1998 through 2002......... 0.24678699
(2) The Special Revenue Fund includes the following:
Open Library
Space Children's  Preservation
Fund Fund Fund Total
FY 1990-1992............ccce.. $0.0250 - - $0.0250
FY 1993.....ccoiiiieeeeeenes 0.0250 0.0125 - 0.0375
FY 1994 ... 0.0250 0.0250 - 0.0500
FY 1995 through 2001......... 0.0250 0.0250 0.0250 0.0750
FY 2002.....ccoociiiiicecens 0.0250 0.0300 0.0250 0.0800

The allocation to the Open Space Fund is required under Section 16.107 of the San Francisco Charter.
The allocation to the Children's Fund is required under Section 16.108 of the San Francisco Charter.
The allocation to the Library Preservation Fund is required under Section 16.109 of the San Francisco Charter.

177

San San Bay Area
City and County of San Francisco Francisco Francisco  Air Quality Bay Area

Special Debt Unified Community Manage- Rapid

General Revenue Service School College ment Transit

Fund (1) Fund (2) Fund Total District District District District
0.75954944 0.037500 0.12002249 0.91707193 0.16801319 0.03070421 0.00208539 0.03212528
0.59799654 0.050000 0.12208013 0.77007667 0.29330281 0.05420985 0.00208539 0.03032528
0.58048654 0.075000 0.13536743 0.79085397 0.28720668 0.05302868 0.00208539 0.02982528
0.58048654 0.075000 0.13674375 0.79223029 0.28733036 0.05302868 0.00208539 0.02932528
0.58048654 0.075000 0.15637530 0.81186184 0.28719881 0.05302868 0.00208539 0.02882528
0.57836955 0.075000 0.16430174 0.81767129 0.28855551 0.05336253 0.00208539 0.02832528
0.57836955 0.075000 0.14493925 0.79830880 0.28823800 0.05336253 0.00208539 0.02300528
0.57836955 0.075000 0.12766122 0.78103077 0.28619603 0.05336253 0.00208539 0.00632528
0.57836955  0.075000 0.13481356 0.78818311 0.28604369 0.05336253 0.00208539 0.00632528
0.57336955  0.080000 0.12359506 0.77696461 0.28526219 0.05336253 0.00208539 0.00632528

Total

1.1500
1.1500
1.1630
1.1640
1.1830
1.1900
1.1650
1.1290
1.1360
1.1240



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT TO NET ASSESSED
VALUE AND NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Assessed Value vs General Bonded Debt Population vs Net General Bonded Debt

Per Capita
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1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
[1Assessed Value [ Population
—e— Net General Bonded Debt —e&— Net General Bonded Debt Per Capita
Ratio
Debt of Net
Debt Payable Net General Net
Assessed Gross Service from General Bonded Debt General
Value (net of Bonded Monies Enterprise Bonded to Net Bonded
Fiscal Population exemptions) Debt Available Revenue Debt Assessed Debt
Year (1) (2) (4) (5) (8) (3) (4) (6) (3) (4) (7) (3) (4) (4) Value Per Capita
1993 743,606 $ 52,558,675 $ 1,952,035 $ 201,336 $ 1,147,833 $ 602,866 1.15% $ 810.73
1994 744,543 55,110,210 2,038,579 211,811 1,221,675 605,093 1.10 812.70
1995 753,460 54,646,396 2,246,811 250,003 1,358,092 638,716 1.7 847.71
1996 755,315 53,099,628 3,109,276 242,680 2,149,998 716,598 1.35 948.74
1997 777,906 53,586,832 3,721,458 250,020 2,691,888 779,550 1.45 1,002.11
1998 788,297 55,251,965 4,362,727 209,948 3,336,715 816,064 1.48 1,035.22
1999 789,463 59,707,571 5,079,106 269,426 3,927,313 882,367 1.48 1,117.68
2000 800,606 64,948,698 5,134,208 290,121 3,934,230 909,857 1.40 1,136.46
2001 793,459 74,872,213 5,368,482 317,537 4,109,019 941,926 1.26 1,187.11
2002 793,600 84,466,707 5,993,217 372,359 4,722,033 898,825 1.06 1,132.59
Sources:

(1) Department of Finance, State of California
(2) Assessor, City and County of San Francisco
(3) Controller, City and County of San Francisco

Notes:

(4) Inthousands.

(5) See Statistical Section Table of Assessed Value of Taxable Property note (2) for exemptions.

(6) Excludes San Francisco Redevelopment Agency revenue bonds and nonprofit corporation obligations.
Amounts are net of unamortized bond discount or premium.

(7) Includes monies restricted for debt service payments (principal and interest) and reserves set aside
as required by bond indentures.

(8) Net assessed value for the purposes of calculating the debt limit under the City Charter would Include
$9 billion of additional value including, $5.3 billion attibutalbe to Redevelopment Tax Increments, and
$3.7 billion attibutable to exemptions.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
June 30, 2002
(In Thousands)
o N rSablo o Ly

BaSIS OF IBVY ... teieieeeee ettt et a e s s

Debt limit - 3 percent of valuation subject to taxation (3)

Amount of debt applicable to debt imit............cooii $ 919,220
Less: Net assets in General Obligation Bonds Fund (2)......cc.ccvviiiiiniineee 20,395
Total amount of debt applicable to debt lImit..........cc.oieeiii
Legal debt Margin.........cco e
Sources:

(1) Assessor, City and County of San Francisco
2) Controller, City and County of San Francisco

Note:
(3) City's Administrative Code Section 2.60 Limitations on Bonded Indebtedness.
"There shall be a limit on outstanding general obligation bond indebtedness of three percent of the

assessed value of all taxable real and personal property, located within the City and County.”
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$

93,553,250

3,129,961

90,423,289

2,712,699

898,825

1,813,874



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

(1) includes General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds.

PER CAPITA DIRECT DEBT
June 30, 2002
Total General Debt Outstanding (100% applicable to City and County of San Francisco).......cuevvrcciiiiiinrenin $ 917,220,000
POPUIGHON = 2002 M. .t r s b e s eh s 860 h R 793,600
PEr CaPita DIFECE DEDL. . cvevveeere ettt reeretec et eesstes st es et e s st es bbbt E b b e $ 1,155.77
o Source: Department of Finance State of California
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR
GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL
EXPENDITURES (1) (2)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(In Thousands)
Percent of
Total Debt Service to
Interest Total General Total General
and Fiscal Debt Governmental Governmental
Fiscal Year Principal Charges Service Expenditures Expenditures
1993 $ 23,340 $ 33,072 56,412 $ 1,523,634 3.70%
1994 26,390 37,012 63,402 1,539,864 412
1995 26,585 40,187 66,772 1,714,640 3.89
1996 26,360 41,203 67,563 1,763,432 3.83
1997 29,400 49,190 78,590 1,866,876 4.21
1998 46,385 39,964 86,349 2,027,163 4.26
1999 38,800 42,844 81,644 2,206,640 3.70
2000 44,590 47,734 92,324 2,328,699 3.96
2001 49,210 49,169 98,379 2,617,164 3.76
2002 54,415 50,761 105,176 2,681,602 3.92
Debt Service Growth Total General Governmental Expenditures
$110 vs Total Debt Service
$100 $3,000
$90 $2,500
$80
g $70 % $2,000
[} c
£ $60 s
= $50 S $1.500
340 = $1,000
$30
$20 $500
$10
$0 30
1993 41004 1995 1996 1897 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 1993 1994 1985 1896 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
HBPrincipal  OCharges [ Total General Governmental Expenditures
—4— Total Debt Service
Notes:

(2) Amounts have been restated to exclude general obligation bonds of Water Department/Hetch
Hetchy Project and Cleanwater that were previously reported as part of general bonded debt.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

DEBT‘SERVICE COVERAGE BY ENTERPRISE REVENUES
AIRPORT, PORT, CLEAN WATER, MUNICIPAL RAILWAY,
WATER, AND HETCH HETCHY

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(In Thousands)

Direct
Gross Operating Net Revenue Debt
Revenue Expenses Available for Debt Service Requirements (1) Service
Fiscal Year (2) (3) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage

1993 $ 828,271 $ 658,930 $ 169,341 $ 37,440 $ 106,276 $ 143,716 1.18
1994 850,614 685,167 165,447 36,250 89,770 126,020 1.31
1995 870,999 662,290 208,709 36,340 87,778 124,118 1.68
1996 917,041 676,385 240,656 25,699 92,551 118,250 2.04
1997 961,133 706,977 254,156 56,284 139,175 195,459 1.30
1998 (4) 743,160 472,739 270,421 144,625 (5) 172,388 (5) 317,013 0.85
1999 (4) 790,883 499,710 291,173 52,865 204,032 256,897 1.13
2000 (4) 868,748 547,678 321,070 64,497 228,391 292,888 1.10
2001 (4) 996,420 640,437 355,983 55,964 253,770 309,734 1.15
2002 (4) 907,316 547,382 359,934 47,984 339,691 387,675 0.93

Notes:

(1) Covers general obligation and revenue bonds for all indicated enterprise funds. Amounts have been restated to
include general obligation bonds of Water, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power, and Cleanwater that were
previously reported as part of general bonded debt.

(2) Gross revenue includes operating revenues, non-operating revenues and operating transfers.

(3) Direct operating expenses include operating expenses (except depreciation), non-operating expenses (except
interest expense) and operating transfers out.

(4) During FY 1996-97, Muni Railway made the final payment on their long-term debt. Accordingly, for FY 1997-08
through present, revenue and expenses do not reflect activity of Muni Railway.

(5) Principal and interest for FY 1997-98 include $100.6 million and $5 million respectively relating to refunding of bonds
by the Water Department.
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Sources: (1) Assessor, City and County of San Francisco (excludes unsecured roll and State Board Roll)
(2) Department of Buidling Inspection, City and County of San Francisco (fiscal year basis)

(3) State of California Banking Department through the year ended June 30, 1993; Federal Deposit Corporation

for year ended June 30, 1994 through present. These figures include savings and loan deposits.

N/A - Not available
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Per Capita Median Public Shool Unemployment
Year Population (1) Income (2) Age (3) Enrollment (4) Rate % (5)
1993........ 743,606 $ 33,750 364 66,656 7.2
1994........ 744,543 33,733 36.7 66,035 7.1
1995........ 753,460 36,811 371 66,128 6.4
1996........ 755,315 39,249 374 66,343 5.6
1997........ 777,906 41,290 378 66,604 4.1
1998........ 788,297 44,518 379 66,679 3.9
1999........ 789,463 49,695 387 65,540 3.4
2000........ 800,606 55,272 391 65,519 2.6
2001........ 793,459 N/A N/A 67,152 34
2002........ 793,600 N/A N/A 64,870 6.5
Sources:
(1) State of California Department of Finance
(2) State of California Employment Development Department
(3) Market Statistics - Demographics USA - County Edition
(4) San Francisco Unified School District (includes Child Center, Juvenile Center, etc.)
(5) State of California Department of Employment Development
N/A  Not available
CONSTRUCTION, BANK DEPOSITS AND PROPERTY VALUE
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(All Dollar Figures in Thousands)
Authorized
New Value of Building Permits (2) Real Property Values (1)
Year Dwelling Non- Bank Non-
Ended Units (2) Residential Residential Deposits (3) Residential residential Non-taxable
1993........ 1,054 $ 266,736 $ 435,333 $ 34,404,123 $ 30,046,385 $21,095,489 $1,845,279
1994........ 633 140,216 358,534 33,761,314 30,046,385 21,095,489 1,845,279
1995........ 843 240,960 529,936 30,186,985 30,536,108 20,621,677 1,696,373
1996........ 956 108,932 637,100 38,847,726 31,117,350 19,658,750 2,025,771
1997....... 1,249 319,744 553,895 41,505,334 32,570,542 19,406,454 2,260,394
1998........ 2,411 478,929 531,172 44,416,996 33,577,176 19,787,009 2,311,636
1999........ 3,297 712,161 1,693,705 48,159,221 36,266,388 21,744,102 2,418,557
2000........ 3,058 305,828 623,257 50,248,551 40,299,182 23,151,611 2,424,640
2001........ 2,670 381,623 725,313 51,211,617 43,064,184 27,642,410 2,660,826
2002........ 3,273 299,028 364,801 N/A 47,847,771 31,791,203 2,967,823



CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS

Taxpayer

Embarcadero Center Associates
555 California Street Partners
Pacific Gas & Electric Company
Pacific Bell

YBG Associates LLC

SHC Embarcadero LLC
Knickerbocker Properties

China Basin Ballpark Company LLC
ZML One Market Ltd Partnership
101 California Venture

Ten largest taxpayers

All other taxpayers

June 30, 2002

T f in

Offices, Commercial, Hotel
Offices, Commercial
Utilities

Utilities, Communications
Hotel

Hotel, Offices

Offices

Possessory Interest-Stadium
Offices, Commercial
Offices

Total assessed valuation - all taxpayers

Source:

Assessor, City and County of San Francisco
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2002 Percentage
Assessed of Total
Valuation Assessed
(In 000's) Valuation

$ 1,330,244 1.51
873,194 0.99
776,849 0.88
602,740 0.69
364,753 0.42
307,562 0.35
304,688 0.35
285,347 0.32
275,337 0.31
260,913 0.30

5,381,627 6.12
82,538,669 83.88
$ 87,920,296 100.00




CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
June 30, 2002

Date of iIncorporation..........cor i April 15, 1850
Form of government............ccco v Chartered City and County
YN == PR U URN 46.1 square miles
Miles Of StrEets (1)..ci et e 1,044
Number of street lights (2) ..o 42,363
Fire protection (3):

NUMbeEr Of StAtIONS ... iteeieiee et ee e 45

Number of firefighters ..o 1,800
Police protection (4):

NUMDbEr Of StAtiONS ...ttt arar e s 11

Number of police OffiCers ... 2,449
Public school education (5):

AHENdance CENEETS ..ot e e e e e r e 113

NUmber of ClaSSIO0MS ...t e 3428

Number of teachers, full time equivalent.................ccoiiii, 3,272

Number of StUENES.......coooiii i 60,421
Municipal water department (2):

NUMDbBEr Of SEIVICES ... ..eiieceee et ves s 174,873

Average daily consumption ..o 249.4 million gallons

Miles Of Water MAINS .......ooaniiiiiieeeeeecee e et e s e e s esanan e es 1,520
Sewers (2):

COllECtiNG SEWETS ...cocieeer it 900 miles

Transport/storage SEWENS ...........ccueivmeeiinniie e 15 miles
Recreation and culture:

NUMDEr Of PArKS (B) ... eeoeeeeererieicene e 230

Number of IBraries (7) ...eeveeereeeieerie ettt 27

Number of library volumes (7).......cccovevioniiininn e 2.2 million
Employees (8):

2001-02 Paid full time equivalent .............ccocioii 28,718
Sources:

(1) Department of Public Works, City and County of San Francisco

(2) Public Utilities Commission, City and County of San Francisco

(3) Fire Commission, City and County of San Francisco

(4) Police Commission, City and County of San Francisco

(5) San Francisco Unified School District

(6) Parks and Recreation Commission, City and County of San Francisco
(7) Library Commission, City and County of San Francisco

(8) Controller, City and County of San Francisco
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